City Clerk File No. Ord. 14.092
3.A

Agenda No. 1st Reading
Agenda No. 2nd Reading & Final Passage
ORDINANCE
OF
JERSEY CITY, N.]J.
COUNCIL AS A WHOLE

offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE  j4_pa2

TITLE; ORDINANCE  AUTHORIZING THE AMENDMENT OF CHAPTER 3
(ADMINISTRATION OF GOVERNMENT), ARTICLE XI (DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIAC
SAFETY), SUB-ARTICLE I (DIVISION OF POLICE) TO ALLOW FOR THE

* ACCEPTANCE OF CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCH. OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, the Jersey City Police Trust Fund currently cannot accept credit cards as a form of
payment; and :

WHEREAS, the City is now allowing the use of credit cards for every other payment which the
City accepts if allowable by law; and

WHEREAS, the Municipal Code needs to be updated to allow for credit card payments to be used
to pay for off duty police officers;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Muuicipal Council of the City of Jersey City
that Chapter-3, Article XTI, Sub-Article I shall be amended to read:

§ 3-85. Creation of the Division of Police; Police Chief in charge. [No changes.]

§ 3-85.1 Off-duty employment.

A. [No changes.]
B. [No changes.]
C. Trust account established.

(1) To assure the timely payment of wages to off-duty personnel who perform off-duty work, and
to meet the requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act, the City of Jersey City has established a
trust account known as the "Off-Duty Employment Trust Account.”" This trust account is dedicated
for the receipt of fees collected for the payment for off-duty employment. The "Off-Duty
Employment Trust Account” shall be administered by the Off-Duty Billing Coordinator who shall
“make a written report to the Director of Public Safety and the Fiscal Officer every ninety (90) days
regarding said account, Payments to offiduty personnel shall be on a biweekly basis with all
appropriate deductions. All payments must be remitted directly to the City of Jersey City for said
account, Deposits shall be in the form of certified check, bank check, money order, e business
check; credit card or electronic payment at the discretion of the Fiscal Officer.

D. [No changes.]

E. [No changes.]




~ Continuation of City Crdinance , hage

L All Ordinances and parts of Ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

1L This Ordinance shail be part of the Jersey City Code as -though codified and fully set forth
therein. The City shall have this Ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies
of the Jersey City Code. ] :

III.  This Ordinance shall take effect af the time and in the manner as provided by [aw.

IV.  The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and hereby are authorized and directed to
change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event the
codification of this Ordinance reveals that there is conflict between those numbers and the
existing code.

NOTE: All new material is underlined. Words in [brackets] are omitted.
For purposes of advertising only, new matter is indicated by beld face and repealed
matter by itafic.

JM/kn
8/11/14
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:
APPROVED:
Corperation Counsel Buslness Administrator

Certification Required O
Not Required O




'RESOLUTION FACT SHEET — NON-CONTRACTUAL
This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any resolution that is submitted for Council consideration.
Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution.

@Full Title of Ordinance/Resolution

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE AMENDMENT OF CHAPTER 3 (ADMINISTRATION OF
GOVERNMENT), ARTICLE XI (DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY), SUB-ARTICLE 1
(DIVISION OF POLICE) TO ALLOW FOR THE ACCEPTANCE OF CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS

Initiator

‘ Department/Division | Business Administration Budget

| Name/Title Donna Mauer Chief Financial Officer
| Phone/email | (201) 547-5990 dmaner@jcnj.org

Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

!

Resolution Purpose

The eurrent version of the Municipal Code is specific in regards to what methods of payment are allowable for
payment into the "Off-Duty Employment Trust Account." This ordinance will amend the code to allow for
“credit card or electronic payments” to be used for payment into the "Off-Duty Employment Trust Account."

I certify thgt all the facts presented herein are accurate.,
| g/ /7//'71

Signature@epartment Director Date




City Clerk File No. Ord. 14.093

Agenda No. 3.B 1st Reading
Agenda No. 2nd Reading & Final Passage
ORDINANCE
OF
JERSEY CITY, N.J.
COUNCIL AS A WHOLE

offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

TITLE:

CITY ORDINANCE 14.0353

AN ORDINANCE RENAMING THE NEW WEST DISTRICT POLICE FACILITY
THE “DETECTIVE MELVIN VINCENT SANTIAGO POLICE FACILITY”

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREZAS, Detective Melvin Vincent Santiago was horn on June 28, 1991 in Hoboken,
New Jersey, the first born child of Catherine {nee DeFazio) McBride and stepson of
Alexander McBride; and

WHEREAS, although Melvin lived in upstate New York as a young boy, he returned to
Jersey City; and

WHEREAS, Melvin attended Public School #38 and CREATE Charter High School; and

WHEREAS, Santiago was one of three Hudson County high school seniors to earn the
New Jersey Rising Scholars Award; and

WHEREAS, upon graduating from the CREATE in 2009, he studied criminal justice at
Hudson Cotunty Community College, while working in the pharmacy at Target; and

WHEREAS, Melvin wasan All County Soccer Goalie, a member of the baseball team and
acertified scuba diver; :

WHEREAS, a complete sportsman and fan, Melvin loved spending time with his brother
Alex playing video games, go-carting, bowling and playing soccer; and

WHEREAS, even as a child, Melvin always wanted to be a police officer and at the age of
18, Santiago took the test for the police department; and

WHEREAS, in July of 2013, he entered the Jersey City Police Academy; and

WHEREAS, Melvin was sworn in as a Police Officer December 12, 2013, realizing his
dream and following in the footsteps of his beloved uncle, Frank DeFazio; and

WHEREAS, as a police officer, Melvin was hard working, conscientious, strong and
considerate of others; and

WHEREAS, Melvin believed that good would prevail over evil, and that the vulnerable
especially needed protection; and

WHEREAS, Melvin asked to be assigned to serve in the West District so that he could
guard the community which was his home, understanding that serving as a police officer
while dangerous, was also the highest call to service; and
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/he

AN ORDINANCE RENAMING THE NEW WEST DISTRICT POLICE FACILITY
THE “DETECYIVE MELVIN VINCENT SANTIAGO FPOLICE FACILITY”

WHEREAS, Melvin is survived by his beloved mother Catherine McBride and his step
dad, Alexander McBride; his loving brother Alexander McBride, Jr., and dear uncle Frank
DeFazio, Ret. JOPD and his wife Shazi DeFazio, his Godmother Marianne Romito, Marino
Romito, Renee Roselle and her hushand, Joseph Roselle, Ret. JCPD, Vincent DeFazio, HC
Corrections and his wife Karen, Aggie Hernandez (Henry), Jennie Soto (Willie); and a host
of great aunts, uncles and cousins. -

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the Municipal Couneil deems it fitting
and most appropriate to honor the memory of Detective Melvin Vincent Saniiago by
renaming the new West District Police Facility, the “Detective Melvin Vincent Santiago
Police Facility”.

A, All ordinances and parts of ordinanees inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

B. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully
setforth therein. The Cityshall havethis ordinance codified and incorporated in the
official copies of the Jersey City Code.

C. This ordinance shall take effect ai the time and in the manner as provided by law.

D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and
direeted to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in
the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals thai there is a conflict
hetween those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and
possible accidental repealers of existing provisions.

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:

APPROVED:

Corporatlon Counsel Business Administrator

Certification Required O

Not Required

1




City Clerk File No. Ord. 14.094

Agenda No. 3.c 1st Reading

Agenda No. 2nd Reading & Final Passage

ORDINANCE
OF
JERSEY CITY, N.J.

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE  14_p94

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 332 (VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC) ARTICLE I (PARKING, STANDING AND STOFPPING)
AMENDING SECTION 332-22 (PARKING PROHIBITED AT ALL TIMES) OF
THE JERSEY CITY CODE DESIGNATING NO PARKING ANY TIME IN
FRONT OF ALLARIS, 330 NINTH STREET

TITLE:

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

1. Chaptor 332 (Vehicles and Traffic) Article Il (No Parking Any Time) of the Jersey City Code is hereby supplemented
as follows:

Section 332-22 PARKING PROHIBITED AT ALL TIMES .
No person shall park a vehicle on any of the streets or parts thereof described.
Name of Street Side Limits
Ninth St Both Manila Av to Marin Blvd
North 184 fect east of Brunswiclk St to a point 200 feet east
North West of Brunswick St
South Brunswick St to a point 80 feet west thereof

2. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewitl are hereby repealed.

. 3. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set forth therein. The City Clerk
shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies of the Jersey City Code.

4, This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law.

5. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and directed to change any chapter
numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a
conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of
existing provisions.

NOTE: All new matetial to be inserfed is underscored.

JDS:pel

(08.06.14) ici i 7 ' >
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED: %@éﬂ) i % -
Dir., Architecture; Engmeering, Lratilc ATd irans T
APPROVED: .
Corporation Counsel Business Administrator

Certification Reguired [

Not Required 1




RESOLUTION FACT SHEET — NON-CONTRACTUAL
This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any ordinance that is submitted for Council consideration.
Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution,

Full Title of Ordinance

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 332 (VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC) ARTICLE III (PARKING,
STANDING AND STOPPING) AMENDING SECTION 332-22 (PARKING PROHIBITED AT ALL TIMES) OF
THE JERSEY CITY CODE DESIGNATING NO PARKING ANY TIME IN FRONT OF ALLARTS, 330 NINTH
STREET

Initiator
Department/Division | Administration Architecture, Engineering, Traffic and Fransportation
Name/Title Joao D’Souza at the request of Mary | Director of Traffic & Transportation

Avagliano on behalf of Allaris, Assisted Living
Facility, 330 Ninth Sireet, JCNJ
Phone/email 201.547.4470 JOAO@jenj.org

Nots: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council ineeting @ 4:00 pan.}

" Resolution Purpose

DESIGNAT NO PARKING ANY TIME IN FRONT OF ALLARIS, 330 NINTH STREET

Designate “no parking any time” in front of Allaris, an Assisted Living facility located at 330 Ninth St The
parking space measures 16 feet in length and is Iocated between the horseshoe driveways at the enirance to the
building. Buses transport day patients, some who are both physicaily and mentally challenged, to the facility
for rehab and residents at the facility to appointments and day trips. The buses are unable to safely navigate
out of the driveway with a vehicle parked at this location.

I certify that all the facts presented herein are acg} jate.

B/l

Signature of/Department Director Diite
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CITY OF JERSEY CITY
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
DIVISION OF ARCHITECTURE, ENGINEERING,

TRAFFIC & TRANSPORTATION
PUBLIC WORKS COMPLEX § 575 ROUTE 440 | JERSEY CITY, NJ 07305
P: 201 547 4470 | F: 201 547 4703

STEVEN M. FULOP ' _ ROBERT KAKOLESKI
MAYOR OF JERSEY CITY - BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR
MEMORANDUM '
DATE: August 5,2014
TO: Jeremy Farrell, Corporation Counsel
FROM: Patricia Logan, Supervising Traffic Investigator

Division of Architecture, Engineering, Traffic and Transportation

SUBJECT: PROPOSED ORDINANCE

Attached for your review, is an Ordinance proposed by this Division, (for Municipal Council
approval), designating a 16 foot area in front of the Allaris, an Assisted Living Facility Iocated at
330 Ninth Street, as “no parking any time.”

The parking restriction was requested by Mary Avagliano on behalf of Allaris. Buses transport
day patients, some who ate both physically and mentally challenged, to the facility for rehab and
residents of the facility to appointments and day trips. The buses are unable to navigate the tumn
from the driveway to east on Ninth St whien there is a vehicle parked between the two driveways.

It is anticipated the Ordinance will be listed on the Agenda for the August 20, 2014 Municipal
Council Meeting.

If you have any questions regarding the Ordinance, pleasd feel fge to contact Patricia Logan at

Patricial (@jchi.org or at extension 4492,

Patricia Logan, %i e Joao D’

7 L'
OuiZd,
Supervising Traffic Investigator Director o%%' fic & Transportation

C: Stanley Huang, P.E., Municipal Engineer
' Brian Weller, L.L.A., ASLA, Director, Architecture, Engineering, Traffic and Transportation
Muhammed Akil, Chief of Staff
Robert Byrne, City Clerk
Robert Kakoleski, Business Admistrator

WWW.JERSEYCITYNJL.GOV




City Clerk File No. _ Ord. 14.035

Agenda No. 3.D 1st Reading
Agenda No. '2nd_ Reading & Final Passage
ORDINANCE
OF
JERSEY CITY, N.J.
COUNCIL AS A WHOLE

offered and moved adoption of the following ordlnance

CITY ORDINANCE 34 _095

TiTLE-AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 332 (VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC)
ARTICLE III (PARKING, STANDING AND STOPPING) AND ARTICLE IX
(PARKING FOR THE DISABLED) OF THE JERSEY CITY CODE DESIGNATING A
RESERVED PARKING SPACE THE RESERVED PARKING SPACE AT 310-308
ACADEMY STREET; 177 BARTHOLDI AVENUE; 131-133 BOYD AVENUE; 411-413
CATOR AVENUE; 71 CLARKE AVENUE; 60 CLENDENNY AVENUE; 196
CLENDENNY AVENUE; 225 COLUMBIA AVENUE; 102 FERRY STREET; 248
FOURTH STREET; 66 GAUTIER AVENUE; 84 HARMON STREET; 74-72 LINDEN
AVENUE; 19 MADISON AVENUE; 281 MONMOUTH STREET; 113 NELSON
AVENUE; 257 RANDOLPH AVENUE; 364 RANDOLPH AVENUE AND 116 TERRACE
AVENUE AND AMEND THE RESERVED PARKING SPACE AT 323-325 PACIFIC
AVENUE

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

1. Chapter 332 (Vehicles and Traffic) Article IH (Parking, Standing and Stopping) and Article IX (Parking for
the Disabled) of the Jersey City Code is hereby supplemented as follows:

Section 332-29 Disabled Parking Manual
Section 332-69 Restricted patking zones in front of or near residences of disabled drivers.
PARKING FOR THE DISABLED

Restricted parking spaces, {measuring approximately 22 fect in length) in front of residential
building for use by persons who have been issued special vehicle ideniification cards by the
Division of Motor Vehicles and handicapped parking permits issued by the Traffic Pivision.

Nathalie Barreto 310-308 Academy St
Cheryl Jamison [Nancy B, Washington] 177 Bartholdi Av
Mina George 131-133 Bovd Av
Socorro & Wilfredo Paredes [Golois Freeman| 413-411 Cator Av
Dawn Betrios 71 Clarke Av
Hanna Henedy 60 Clendenny Av
Patrick Geoghepan 196 Clendenny Av
Carolyn Artificio [Helen Drozowski] 225 Columbia Ay
Carmela Charles ‘ 102 Ferry St
Walter Fielding & Ann Blaszeyk 248 Fourth St
Esther Jenking 66 Gautier Av
Colleen Colbert 84 Harmon St
Lorraine Harmon 74-72 Linden Av

+ Sugrim Dwarka . 19 Madison Av
Jesus Reves 281 Monmouth St
Juan L. Vargas 113 Nelson Av
Queen McGill [Hayward MeGill] 323-325 Pacific Av
Richard Johnson ‘ 257 Randolph Ay
La Vern Washington 364 Randolph Av
Ralph Famularo 116 Terrace Av

IDS:pel (8.7.14)
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2. All oxdinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

3. This erdinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code ag though codified and incorporated in the official
copies of the Jersey City Code.

4. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as prescribed by law.
5. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel may change any chapier numbers, article numbers and section
numbers if codification of this ordinance reveals a conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in

order to avoid confuision and possible accidental repealers of existing provisions,

NOTE: The new material to be inserted is underscored; the material to be repealed is in [hrackers].

JDS:pel
(08.07.14)
APPROVED: L g
Directg) of Traffic & Transportation
~.
APPROVED AS TC LEGAL FORM APPROVED? %’éﬁ’) "/ dﬁw
s Municipal Engineer™ & e
APPROVED:
Cerporation Counsel Busingss Adminlstrator

Certification Required B
Neot Required o




ORDINANCE FACT SHEET — NON-CONTRACTUAL
This sumsnary sheet is to be attached to the front of any ordinance that is submitted for Council consideration.
Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution.

Full Title of Ordinance

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 332 (VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC) ARTICLE HI
(PARKING, STANDING AND STOPPING) AND ARTICLE IX (PARKING FOR THE DISABLED)
OF THE JERSEY CITY CODE DESIGNATING A RESERVED PARKING SPACE AT 310-308
ACADEMY STREET; 177 BARTHOLDI AVENUE; 131133 BOYD AVENUE; 411-413 CATOR
AVENUE; 71 CLARKE AVENUE; 60 CLENDENNY AVENUE; 196 CLENDENNY AVENUE; 225
COLUMBIA AVENUE; 102 FERRY STREET; 248 FOURTH STREET; 66 GAUTIER AVENUE; 84
HARMON STREET; 74-72 LINDEN AVENUE; 19 MADISON AVENUE; 281 MONMOUTH
STREET; 113 NELSON AVENUE; 257 RANDOLPH AVENUE; 364 RANDOLPH AVENUE AND 116
TERRACE AVENUL AND AMEND THE RESERVED PARKING SPACE AT 323-325 PACIFIC
AVENUE

Initiator
Department/Division | Administration Architecture, Engineering, Traffic and Transportation
Name/Title Joao D’Souza Director of Traffic & Transportation
Phone/email 201.547.4470 JOAO@jenj.org

Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting {@ 4:00 p.m.)

Ordinance Purpose

Desigmate a reserved parking space at or near the residence of a disabled individual whose application has
been reviewed and approved by the Municipal Council Committee for Disabled Parking. This parking space
will improve the quality of each of the disabled individual’s lives. .

There will be approximately 30 u-posts and 38 signs installed at an approximate cost of $6800.00.

1 certify that all the facts presentfed herein are accurate.

Signature of Department Director Date




CITY OF JERSEY CITY
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
DIVISION OF ARCHITECTURE, ENGINEERING,

TRAFFIC & TRANSPORTATION
PUBLIC WORKS COMPLEX | 575 ROUTE 440 | JERSEY CITY, NJ 07305
: P: 201 547 4470 | F: 201 547 4703
STEVEN M, FULOP ROBERT KAKOLESKI

MAYOR OF JERSEY CITY " BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR
MEMORANDUM
DATE: August 8, 2014
TO: Jeremy Farrell, Corporation Counsel
FROM: Patricia Logan, Supervising Traffic Investigator

Division of Architecture, Engineering, Traffic and Transportation

SUBJECT: PROPOSED ORDINANCE
RESERVED PARKING FOR THE DISABLED

L

- At the request of the Municipal Council Committee for Disabled Parking, attached for your review and
signature, is an Ordinance proposed by this Division designating and or amending a reserved parking
space at the locations listed on the attached Ordinance.

Each location has been approved by the Municipal Council Committee for Disabled Parking,

It is anticipated that this legislation will be on the Agenda for the August 20, 2014 Municipal Council
Meeting.

If you have any questions regarding this Ordinance, please feel free to contact Patricia Logan at ex. 4492
or Patricial.@jcnj.org,

Thank you.

Joao D’Souza,
Director of {raffiq & Transportation

CRatricee N oo
)

Patricia Logan
Supervising Traffic Investigator

C: Stanley Huang, P.E., Municipal Engineer
Brian Weller, L.L.A., ASLA, Director, Architecture, Engineering, Traffic and Transportation-
Muhammed Akil, Chief of Staff
Robert Byruoe, City Clerk
Robert Kakoleski, Business Administrator

WWW.JERSEYCITYN].GOV




City Clerk File No. Ord. 14.096

Agenda No, 3.E 1st Reading

Agenda No. 2nd Reading & Final Passage

ORDINANCE
OF
JERSEY CITY, N.].

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 14 056

TITLE: AN ORDINANCE TO MAKE A TECHNICAL AMENDMENT TO THE CITY’S PAID
SICK LEAVE ORDINANCE TO CORRECT TYPOGRAPHICAL ERRORS IN
SECTIONS § 3-52B(3),(7),(8) and (10}

THE MUNECIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHERFEAS, in preparing the Jersey City Paid Sick Leave Ordinance for codification in the
Municipal Code the City Clerk noticed discrepancies between the title of Section B entitled
“Accrual of Unpaid Sick Time Section” and the text of Section B which referenced paid sick
time in subparts (3}(7)(8) and (10); and

WHEREAS, the Law Department reviewed the text of the Ordinance and agreed that theses
subparts should be amended to avoid confusion; and

WHEREAS, amending the Jersey City Paid Sick Leave Ordinance to correct these
typographical errors is in the best interest of the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of Jersey City that § 3-
52B(3)(7)(8)(10) be amended as follows:

B. Accrual of Unpaid Sick Time.

1. Employees who are not entitled to paid sick time under this ordinance, shall accrue a
minimum of one hour of unpaid sick time for every 30 hours worked.

2. . Employers who employ less than ten employees for compensation are not required to

. provide more than 40 hours of unpaid sick time in a calendar year. In determining the

number of employees performing work for an employer, all employees performing work

for compensation on a full-time, part-time, or temporary basis shall be counted, provided

that where the number of employees who work for an employer for compensation

fluctuates, business size may be determined for the current calendar year based upon the

average number of employees who worked for compensafion during the preceding
calendar year.

3. Employees who are exempt from overtime requirements under 29 U.8.C. § 201 et seq. of
the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act are assumed to work 40 hours in each work week
for purposes of unpaid sick time accrual unless their normal work week is less than 40
hours, in which case unpaid sick time accrues based upon that normal work week.

4. Unpaid sick time as provided in this section begins to accrue at the commencement of
employment.

5. Employees begin to accrue unpaid sick time on the first day of employment. Employees
are ¢entitled to use aecrued unpaid sick time beginning on the 90th calendar day of their
employment. After the 90th calendar day of employment, employees may use unpaid sick
time as it is accrued. - :

6.  Unpaid sick time is carried over to the following calendar year except that no employer is
required to carry over more than 40 hours of unpaid sick time from one calendar year to
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the next and nothing in this section entitles an employee to use more than 40 hours of
unpaid sick time in a calendar year.

7.  Any employer with a pasd sick leave policy, such as a paid time off policy, that provides
an amount of paid sick leave sufficient to meet the total annual accrual requirements of
this section that may be used for the same purposes and under the same conditions as
paid sick time under this Ordinance is not required to provide additional paid sick time.

8. . Nothing in this section shall be construed as requiring financial or other reimbursement to
an employee from an employer upon the employee’s termination, resignation, retirement,
or other separation from employment for accrued paid sick time that has not been used.

9, If an employee is transferred to a separate division, entity, or location, but remains
employed by the same employer, the employee is entitled to all unpaid sick time accrued
at the prior division, entity, or location and is entitled to use all vapaid sick time as
provided in this section. If there is a separation from employment and the employee is
rehired within six (6) months of separation, previously accrued unpaid sick time that had
not been used shall be reinstated. Further, the employee is entitled to use accrued vnpaid
sick time and accrue additional unpaid sick time at the re-commencement of
employment.

10. When a different employer succeeds or takes the place of an existing employer, alt
employees of the original employer who remain employed by the successor employer are
entitled to all unpaid sick time accrued when employed by the original employer and are
entitled to use all wnpaid sick leave previously accrued.

11. At its discretion, an employer may loan sick time to an employee in advance of accrual
by such employee.

L All Ordinances and paris of Ordinances incensistent herewith are hereby repealed.

1. This Ordinance shall be part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set forth therein.
‘ The City shall have this Ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies of the Jersey
City Code.

. This Ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law.

v, The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and hereby are authorized and directed to change
any chapter numbers, aiticle numbers and section numbers in the event the codification of this
Ordinance reveals that there is conflict between those numbers and the existing code.

Note: All new material is underlined: words in boldface and strael-through are omitted.
For purposes of advertising only, new matter is boldface and repealed by ifalics.

JiH
BAi4

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:

APPROVED:

Carporation Counsel Business Administrator

Certification Required O
Not Required 0O




ORDINANCE FACT SHEET -- NON-CONTRACTUAL
This summary sheet is fo be attached to the front of any Ordinance that is submitted for Couneil consideration.

Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the Ordinance.

Full Title of Ordinance

AN ORDINANCE TO MAKE A TECHNICAL AMENDMENT TO THE CITY’S PAID SICK LEAVE
ORDINANCE TO CORRECT TYPOGRAPHICAL ERRORS IN SECTIONS § 3-52B(3),(7),(8) and (1)

Initiator :
Department/Division | Department of Law
Name/Title- John J. Hallanan IIT Assistant Corporation Counsel
Phone/email (201)-547-5952 Jjhallanan@jenj.org

Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to comeil teeting @ 4:00 pan.)

Ordinance Purpose

To eliminate confusion regarding Section B (3)(7)(8) and (10} of the Jersey City Paid Sick Leave Ordinance,

referetices to paid gick time will be amended to read “unpaid sick time” or “sick time” as the case may be so

as to be consistent with the section heading,

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accarate,

o il T

Sfehature” &

5//3 Nty
Date




City Clerk Fite No. Ord. 14.098

Agenda No. 3.6 1st Reading
Agenda No. 2nd Réading & Final Passage
ORDINANCE
OF
JERSEY CITY, N.J.

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following crdinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 14 _gog

TITLE:

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY TO EXCUTE A SIX
MONTH LEASE AGREEMENT WITH 3000 KENNEDY BLVD, LLC FOR THE USE OF
27 PARKING SPACES AT 3000 JOHN F. KENNEDY BOULEVARD TO BE USED FOR
JOURNAL SQUARE EMPFLOYEE PARKING

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, the City of Jersey City (“City™) requires a parking facility for employees who work
at 1 Journal Square Plaza, Jersey City, New Jersey; and

WHEREAS, 3000 Kennedy Blvd., LLC operates a parking facility located at 3000 John F.
Kennedy Boulevard, Jersey City, New Jersey 07306 (“Facility™); and '

WHEREAS, 3000 Kennedy Blvd., LLC agrees to lease the City twenty-seven (27) reserved
parking spaces at the Facility; and

WHEREAS, the City will use the reserved parking spaces as Journal Square Employee Parking
and for no other purpose; and

WHEREAS, the monthly rent shall be as follows: One Hundred Twenty Dollars ($120.00) per
parking space per manth; and

WHEREAS, the lease term shall be six (6) months effective October 1, 2014 and ending on
March 31, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the City shall have an option to renew the lease for an additional six (6) months
upon; and '

WHEREAS, either party shall have the right to terminate the Lease Agreement without cause by
providing ninety (90) days written notice to the other party; and

WHEREAS, N.J.8.A, 40A:12-5 provides that a municipality may by ordinance acquire property
by lease; and

WHEREAS, the sum of $13,000.00 is available in Account No. 012013 1-432-304.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE 1T RESOLVED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey
City that: :

1. Subject to such modifications as may be deemed necessary or appropriate by Corporation
Coungel, the Mayor or Business Administrator is authorized to execute the Lease
Agreement attached hereto with 3000 Kemnedy Blvd., LLC for twenty seven (27) parking
spaces at the parking facility located at 3000 John F. Kennedy Boulevard, Jersey City,
New Jersey;




Continuation of City Ordinance , page

2. The term of the lease shall be effective as of October 1, 2014 and shall end on March 31,
2015, and shall continue on a month to month basis until the pariies execute a new lease
agreement;

3. The rent for the parking spaces shall be as follows: One Hundred Twenty Dollars
($120.00) per parking space per month;

4. Punding in the amount of $13,000.00 is available in Account No. 0120131-432-304, The
balance of the lease funds will be made available in the 2015 budget and in subsequent
Calendar year budgets.

a. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

b. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey city Code as though codified and fully
set forth therein. The City shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in
the official copies of'the Jersey City Code.

¢. This ordinance shall take effect in the manner as prescribed by law.

d. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized
and directed to change any chapter numbers, article numbers, and section
numbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a
conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion
and possible accidental repealers of existing provisions.

L , Donna Mauer, as Chief fiscal Officer, hereby certify that funds
in the amount of $13,000.00 are available for this expenditure in Account No. 0120131-432-304.
CRiEn
811714
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:
APPROVED:

Corporation Counsel Business Administrator

Certification Required O
Not Required o




RESOLUTION FACT SHEET - CONTRACT AWARD
This summary sheet is to be aitached to the front of any resclution that is submitted for Council consideration.
Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution.

Full Title of Ordinance/Resolution

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY TO EXCUTE A SIX MONTH LEASE
AGREEMENT WITH 3000 KENNEDY BLVD, LLC FOR THE USE OF 27 PARKING SPACES AT
3000 JOHN F. KENNEDY BOULEVARD TO BE USED FOR JOURNAL SQUARE EMPLOYEE
PARKING

Project Manager
Department/Divigion | Business Administrator
Name/Title Dominick Pandolfo Superyising Administrative Analyst
Phone/email (201) 547-4296 Dominick@jonj.org

Note: Project Manager must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Contract Purpose

For the execution of a Lease Agreement authorizing the City of Jersey City to use 27 parking spaces in the
parking lot located at 3000 John F, Kennedy Boulevard at the rate of $120.00 per parking space per month for
the term, commencing October 1, 2014 and expiring six months thereafter on March 31, 2015; with an option
to renew the lease for a period of six months.

Cost (Edentify all sources and amounts) Contract term (include all proposed renewals)
27 total spaces at $120/per space/pér monih October 1, 2014 through March 31, 2015; with
an option to renew the lease for six months
thereafter.

Type of award | Not applicable

If “Other Exception”, enter type |

Additional Information

The 27 parking spaces are replacing the parking spaces which we were renting in the Central Parking
Garage. Our 5 year lease with Central was cancelled by the landlord because they are using a portion of the
properiy to construct a new building. If we want to enter into a new lease with Central Parking, the new
amount is $200.00 per space. '

I certify that Wemnted herein are accurate.

Signature of Department Director - Dat




LEASE AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT made this day of August, 2014, between the CITY OF
JERSEY CITY, a Municipal Corporation of the State of New Jersey, with offices at City Hall,
280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 [City or Tenant] and 3000 KENNEDY BLVD,

LLC with offices at 3000 Kennedy Boulevard, Suite 313B, Jersey City, NJ 07306 [Landlord.]

Whereas, the City requires parking facilities for employees whose offices are at One Journal

Square Plaza, Jersey City; and

Whereas, the Landlord operates a parking facility at 3000 John F. Kennedy Boulevard, Jersey
City, New Jersey 07306 (“Facility”); and

Whereas the Landlord agrees to permit the City to rent twenty-seven (27) parking spaces at the
Facility on a twenty-four (24) hour basis, Monday thru Sunday; and

Whereas, the City and Landlord desire to enter into this lease agreement for the rental of parking
spaces effective as of October 1, 2014 and expiring six (6) months thereafter on March 31, 2015,

with an option to renew the lease for an additional six (6) months thereafter.

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth herein, the

parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE ]
Premises
Landlord does hereby lease to the City and the City does hereby rent from the Landlord the
following premises: twenty-seven (27) parking spaces at the Facility, as depicted in Exhibit A.
During the lease term, the City shall have the right to reduce or increase the number of parking
spaces that it uses by as many as five (5) spaces, subject to the availability of the requested

number of spaces.




ARTICLE II
Term

This lease agreemenf shall be for a term of six (6) months effective as of October 1, 2014 and
ending on March 31, 2015. The City shall have the option to renew this lease agreement for an
additional six (6) months upon one (1) month’s written notice to the Landlord.

ARTICLE 1l

Use

Under the terms of this lease, the City shall have the right to use and occupy twenty-seven (27)
parking spaces located at Licensor’s Facility. The City’s use of the leased spaces shall be
restricted to the list of vehicles listed on Exhibit B,

ARTICLE IV

Payment of Rent

The Cify agrees to pay Landlord as monthly rent for and during the term of this lease agreement
as follows: One Hundred Twenty Dollars ($120.00) per parking space per month, payable on the
first day of each month. Payments must be mailed to Landlord’s office, 3000 John F. Kennedy
Boulevard, Suite 313B, Jersey City, New Jersey 07306. In the event that the City exercises its
right to decrease or increase the number of parking spaces, the monthly rent shall be reduced or

increased accordingly upon 30 days’ written notice to landlord prior to the following full month.

ARTICLEV
| Property Damage/ Loss
The City shall hold Landlord harmless for any lost, stolen, or damaged property that is not due to

the recklessness or negligence of Landlord, its agents, employees, and/or officials.

The City also agrees to assume any charges associated with the towing of any of the City’s

vehicles parked in the Facility.




ARTICLE VI
Termination
The term of this lease is for six (6) months. Either party shall have the right to terminate the lease
at any time during its term by giving the other party ninety (90) days’ written notice prior to the

effective date of termination.

ARTICLE VII
Validity of Lease
The terms, conditions, covenants, and provisions of this Lease shall be deemed to be severable,
If any clause or provision herein contained shall be adjudged to be invalid or unenforceable by a
court of competent jurisdiction or by operation of any applicable law, it shall not affect the
validity or any other clause or provision herein, but such other clauses or provisions shall remain

in full force and effect.

ARTICLE VIII

Notices

All notices required under the terms of this Lease shall be given and shall be complete by
mailing such notices by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by hand delivery to the

addresses below:

City:
City of Jersey City
Robert Kakoleski, CMFQ, Business Administrator
City Hall

280 Grove Street, Room 108
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302

Licensor:
3000 Kennedy Blvd, LI.C

3000 John F. Kennedy Blvd., Suite 313B
Jersey City, New Jersey 07306




ARTICLE IX

Entire Contract
This lease contains the entire agreement between the parties. No representative, agent, or
employee of the Landlord has been authorized to make any representations or promise with
reference to the within to vary, alter, or modify the terms hereof. No additions, changes or
modifications, renewals or extensions hereof, shall be binding unless reduced to writing and

signed by the Landlord and the City.

ARTICLE X
Insurance

The City agrees to supply Landlord with a certificate of insurance evidencing liability coverage
naming Landlord as an additional insured. The City shall supply Landlord with the certificate of
insurance prior to commencement of the lease, and such coverage shall remain in effect

throughout the term of the lease.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this agreement have executed this Lease

Agreement as of the day of August, 2014.

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY

ROBERT BYRNE ROBERT KAKOLESKI

City Clerk _ Business Administrator

WITNESS: CENTRAL PARKING SYSTEM OF
NEW JERSEY

By By:

Title: Title:




City Clerk File No, _ 0rd. 14.097

Agenda No. 3.F 1st Reading

Agenda No. 2nd Reading & Final Passage

ORDINANCE
OF
JERSEY CITY, N.J.

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 14.097

TITLE:
ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO
THE JOURNAL SQUARE 2060 REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

WHEREAS, the Municipal Counci of the City cf Jersey City, adopted the Journal Sguare 2060 Redevelopment Pian
at its meeting of July 14, 2010, Ordinance #10-103; and

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council seeks to promote the continuing redevelopment of the area by updating the
standards and regulations within the redevelopment plan and by incorporating the nearby Sip/Van Wagenen
Redevelopment Plan inte the Journal Square 2060 Redevelopment Plan; and

WHEREAS, a copy of the amended text is attached hereto and made a part heracf, and is available for public
inspection at the Offices of the City Clerk, City Half, 280 Grove Sirest, Jersey City, NJ; and

WHEREAS, the following amendments fo the Journal Square 2060 Redevelopment Plan have been reviewed by
the Jersey City Planning Board at its meefing of June 17, 2014; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Board voted to recommend adoptien of these amendments by the Municipal Council;
and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey Cily that the recommended
amendments to the Journat Square 2060 Redevelopment Plan be, and hereby are, adopted.

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED THAT:

A, All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealad.

B. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey Cily Code as though codified and set forth fully hersin. The City Clerk shall have this
ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies of the Jersey Ciiy Code. )

o This ordinance shall {ake effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law.

D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Council be and they are hereby autharized and directed to change any chapter aumbers, article

numbers and section numbers I the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those
numbers and the existing code, in order {o avoid confusicn and possible repealers of existing provisions.

E. The City Planning Division is hereby directed to giva notice at least ten days prict to the hearing on the adoption of this Crdinance to
the Hudson County Planning board and to all other persons entitled thereto pursuant te N.J.8. 40:55D-15 and N.J.S. 40:550-63 (if
required). Upen the adoption of this Ordinance after public hearing thereon, the City Clerk is hereby directed to publish notice of the
passage thereof and to flle a copy of the Ordinance as finally adopted with the Hudson County Planning Board as required by

- N.J.8. 40:58D-18. The clerk shall also forthwith transmit a copy of this Ordinance after final passage ta the Municipal Tax Assesser
as required by N.J.8. 40:49-2.1,

MR@M D. Cotter, PP, FAICP, Director of Planning

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:

APPROVED:

Corporation Gounsel Business Administrator

Certification Required O
Not Required 0




ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION FACT SHEET — NON-CONTRACTUAL
This summary-sheet is to be attached to the front of any resolution/ordinance that is submitted for Council
consideration. Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution/ordinance.

Full Title of Ordinance/Resolution

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY ADOPTING
AMENDMENTS TO THE JOURNAL SQUARE 2060 REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

Initiator
Department/Division | HEDC City Planning
Name/Title Robert Cotter, PP, AICP Ditector
’ Jeff Wenger, AICP Principal Planner
Phonefemail 201-347-5010 bobbyo@jenj.org / jeffi@jonj.org-

Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to coun_cil meeting (@ 4:00 p.m.)

Purpose

This ordinance incorporates the Sip Van Wagenen Redevelopment Plan into the Journal Square 2060
Redevelopment Plan, The ordinance amendment also updates development regulations in the Journal Square
2060 Plan, reducing the land area requirement for cornier lot building height bonuses, adds new cormner bonus
locations, and various building design and yard requirements. This amendment will also permit the
conversion of older office buildings to residential use and minor changes to the land use plan.

| %&i&ﬂ%presmted herein are accurate.
- sluliy

Signature of Departus@nt Director Date




SUMMARY STATEMENT

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY
ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE JOURNAL SQUARE 2060 REDEVELOPMENT
PLAN

This ordinance incorporates the Sip Van Wagenen Redevelopment Plan into the Journal Square
2060 Redevelopment Plan. The ordinance amendment also updates development regulations in
the Journal Square 2060 Plan, reducing the land area requirement for cotner lot building height
bonuses, adds new corner bonus locations, and various building design and yard requirements.
This amendment will also permit the conversion of older office buildings to residential use and
minor changes to the land use plan.




PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE JOURNAL SQUARE 2060
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

PRESENTED TO THE JERSEY CITY PLANNING BOARD ON JUNE 17,2014

Text that is unchanged is in plain face type like this.

Text that is deleted is in strike-through like-this.

Text that is added is in bold like this.

On November 25, 2008 the Jersey City Municipal Council determined, by Resolution #
08-879, the Greater Journal Square Study Area to be an "area in need of rehabilitation,"”
pursuant to the New Jersey Local Housing and Redevelopment Law (N.J.S.A. 40A:12A-
1 et seq.). Previously, portions of the Journal Square area were also declared to be an
"area in need of redevelopment," called the Jowrnal Square Redevelopment Plan
originally adopted in 1974 and amended several times since.

‘This redevelopment plan focuses on J ournal Square, the PATH rail station and bus depot,
as well as the surrounding neighborhoods within walking distance, comprising an area of
approximately 211 acres, 57 city blocks, and approximately 1600 individual parcels.

The purpose of the Journal Square 2060 Plan is to foster the redevelopment of Journal
Squate, Jersey City's central business district, by providing for transit oriented
development of new housing, offices, commercial, and public open spaces within
walking distance to the Square and transit facilities, returning Journal Square to a
flourishing central business and shopping destination.

Since the mid 1950°s, various plans in and around Journal Square were adopted by the
Jersey City Municipal Council to address the adjacent air-rights development over the
PATH rail cut and various development parcels in the vicinity of the Journat Square
Transportation Center. Then in 2007, Vision Journal Square was prepared by A.
Nelessen Associates, Inc. (ANA) and Dean Marchetto Architects, PC (DMA) in
coordination the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency (JCRA) and the City of Jersey City.
The process included multiple charrettes and public meetings, producing a
comprehensive vision for the greater Journal Square area.

The Jersey City Master Plan lists several specific objectives and recommended actions
which guide the standards and requirements for this plan. More specifically, the award
winning Jersey City Master Plan Circulation Element, Jersey City Mobility 2050,
recommends that the City:

k2§




Develop and implement smart growth strategies that locate new residential
development within walking distance of bus stops and passenger rail stations,
with the highest density zones located within walking distance of passenger rail
stations; that mixes residential land use with commercial land use;

Create meaningful public spaces that facilitate integration of the built
environment with arterials and major transit routes,

Requirements to provide bicycle amenities for building users, such as interior
bicycle storage facilities for residential buildings that are accessible without
stairs or tight corners, and bicycle racks and employee showers for commercial
buildings;

Parking space requirement maximums that reduce the number of permitted
parking spaces in development near fixed rail transit stations in proportion to
distance and inversely proportional to the intensity of development.

In addition, the NJ Department of Transportation and NJ Transit created the "Transit
Village Initiative" to recognize municipalities that have demonstrated a commitment to
revitalizing and redeveloping areas within walking distance of rail or bus facilities into
compact, mixed-use neighborhoods that are consistent with Smart Growth principles. In
2005, the Journal Square area received designation as a Transit Village by an inter-
agency Transit Village Task Force.

It now appears appropriate for the City to take a more pro-active approach to
redevelopment in this Area, so as to bring the Area into greater compliance with the
recommendations of the Master Plan. The Master Plan calls for “station areas™ around
Jersey City's mass transit facilities to be up-zoned to include higher density residential,
neighborhood retail, restaurants and other uses compatible with a mixed use transit
oriented station area. In addition, parking requirements are to be reduced “to capitalize on
the availability of high quality mass transit” and to increase building coverage, floor-
area-ratios, and residential density, which can be supported near transit facilities.

As Jersey City enters the 21st century, we wish to continue developing in a sustainable
direction. This means focusing future development to areas where mass transit is
available, reducing parking to limit traffic congestion and effects on air quality, requiring
bicycle parking and wider sidewalks to limit automobile use and promote alternative
modes, requiring retail uses along pedestrian corridors to create an enjoyable and safe
neighborhood environment, concentrating high density high-rise development along the
major thoroughfares and immediately adjacent to mass transit facilities, preserving the
most distinguished historic structures, and provide for design guidelines so that new
development sits comfortably next to the historic fabric of this area.

g




Journal Square and its surrounding neighborhoods are not a blank slate. The existing
physical structure of the Area is extremely varied. Building types range from detached
two-family homes with generous front yards, to 4 to 6 story apartment buildings, office
buildings, and commercial uses. This variety of uses and building types are all
interwoven at a fine scale. Some streets are quiet and narrow, while others have intensive
retail uses. This diversity need not inhibit the City from drafting new development
guidelines. This redevelopment plan balances the need for new development at higher
densities with the existing context of diverse and varied neighborhoods. To do this, this
plan employs an approach to development that requires higher density projects to
assemble sufficient development sites to accommodate building designs and forms that
can reasonably fit into its surroundings while providing improved infrastructure. The
Plan employs the use of building stepbacks, sidewalk widening, open space and plaza
provisions, contextual yard requirements, required retail uses, parking limitations and
bicycle parking requirements, green building requirements, and design guidelines to
assure that fiture development contributes to the sustainable future of Journal Square.

and shall govern the boundaries of this rcdevelopment plan.

B) The boundary of the Journal Square 2060 plan omits land on Blocks 5931 6502

(formérly known as 593.1 and 628.1) and 6281 which was authorized as part of the
Greater Journal Square Study Area (Resolution 08-879). As this site has already been
redeveloped under the St John's Redevelopment Plan and no substantive change to this

site is currently contemplated this area will not be included as part of the Journal Square
2060 Plan.

C) The boundary of the Journal Square 2060 plan also omits land on Block 634-1+ 6401 and

portions of Block 57+ 6701 and 530 8203 which are part of the Bergen Arches right-of-
way and which were authorized as part of the Greater Journal Square Study Area
(Resolution 08-879).

Renewal activities for the Journal Square 2060 plan area will be undertaken in conformity

with, and will be designed to meet, the following objectives of the Redevelopment Plan:

1)  Re-establish Journal Square as a Jersey City's primary central business district and
activity center.

2)  Make sustainability a theme of future development and redevelopment that guides
land use and transportation decisions,

3) Integrate open space into the Area by incorporating a system of parks, plazas, and
natural amenities.

4)  Promote a pattern of mixed and multiple-use development, New buildings within
the Area should appropriately combine residential, commercial, and entertainment

- uses and encourage a balance of jobs-to-housing.

5) Make walking and biking an easy, safe, desirable, and convenient mode of

transport.
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6)
7

8)
9
10)
11)
12)
13)

14)
15)

16)
17)
18)
19)
20)

21)

22)

23)
24)

25)

Encourage local quality retail within the greater Journal Square area.

Reduce automobile dependency by encouraging high density development in close
proximity to mass transit with low automobile parking ratios and with bicycle
parking requirecments.

Provide for urban amenities such as transit, housing variety, open space, and
entertainment that will attract new employers and a range of new residents to the
area while sustaining existing neighborhoods.

Encourage the adaptive reuse of existing structures.

Encourage buildings to meet or exceed the US Green Building Council’s LEED
(Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) Certification or equivalent.

The removal of vacated, deteriorated and obsolete structures.

The overall improvement of traffic circulation through the development of new and
improved vehicular and pedestrian circulation systems which provide for separation
of vehicular and pedestrian traffic and the maximum use of public transportation.
Coordination of redevelopment activities, reinforcing already existing adjacent
renewal programs and in accordance with the Master Plan for the City overall.
Provide for the conservation and preservation of select structures with historic or
architectural significance, and provide opportunity for adaptive reuse for future
generations.

Encourage the private sector to consolidate development parcels to allow for
sufficient building stepbacks providing, light and air to the street and adjacent
properties.

Provide for redevelopment without public acquisition or relocation of residenis and
business concerns.

Provide for an active "front door" plaza entry way where Magnolia Avenue
accesses the Journal Square PATH station, at the existing kiss-and-ride area.

To promote balanced development in accordance with applicable State laws and
City requirements regarding affordable housing.

Creation of major new employment, housing, educational, recreational, commercial
and retail opportunities for the residents of Jersey City.

Coordinate redevelopment activities to provide a uniform and consistent attack on
blighted, dilapidated, and obsolete structures within the Area.

To promote the principles of “Smart Growth” and “Transit Village” development
including a variety of housmg choices, providing wider sidewalks, minimize
automobile use by maximizing the appeal of mass transit, encourage reduced
parking and shared use parking solutions, and creating a livable commumty with
convenient access to commercial facilities.

Maintain and improve pedestrian access to the Journal Square PATH Station from
the surroundmg communities.

To maximize the use of rooftop open space for recreation and/or green roofs.
Utilize stepbacks, architectural design elements, and building massing regulation to
maintained light and air to the street and adjacent properties.

All structures within the project area shall be designed and maintained so as to
improve the visual impact of the Jersey City skyline as viewed from within and
beyond the City’s borders.
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26) Provide for new transport systems such as a streeicar along Kennedy Blvd. and
Bergen Avenues and a Bus Rapid Transit system connecting to Route 440.

) No building shail be constructed over public rights-of-way in the project area with the
exception of freestanding structures ancillary to public plazas and/or pedestrian
walkways, which shall be subject to review by the Planning Board.

B) Prior to commencement of construction, site plans for the construction and/or
rehabilitation of improvements to the Area shall be submitted by the developer to the
Planning Board of the City of Jersey City for review and approval so that compliance of
such plans with the redevelopment objectives can be determined. Site plan review shall
be conducted by the Planning Board pursuant to NJSA 40:55D-1 et. seq. Applications
may be submitted for the entire project or in any number of phases.

C) As part of any site plan approval, the Planning Board may require a developer to furnish
performance guarantees pursuant to NJSA 40:55D-53 et seq. Such performance
guarantees shall be in favor of the City in a form approved by the Jersey City Corporation
Counsel. The amount of any such performance guarantees shall be determined by the
City Engineer and shall be sufficient to assure completion of on and off site
improvements within one (1) year of final site plan approval.

D) SPLIT ZONED DEVELOPMENT SITES
1) For any consolidated development site which overlaps multiple zone districts, the

zone that covers the largest portion of the site shall govern the entire development
site. Zone 6, Zone 7, and Zone 11 are excluded from this split zone provision. All
property within Zones 6, 7, or 11 must be developed under the provisions of that
Zone.

E) All traffic impact studies shall incorporate, as part of the study, all projects approved or
proposed in the immediate area, A listing of the projects may be obtained from the
Division of City Planning,

F) No use or reuse shall be permitted, which, when conducted under proper safeguards, will
produce corrosive, toxic or noxious fume, glare, electromagnetic disturbances, radiation,
smoke, cinders, odors, dust or waste, undue noise or vibration (60 decibels), or other
objectionable features so as to be detrimental to the public health, safety or general

- welfare,

G) All residential redevelopment proposals and construction plans shall meet or exceed
applicable FITA minimum room size requirements prior to approval by the Planning
Board.

H) The provisions of this plan specifying the redevelopment of the project area and the
requirements and restrictions with respect thereto shall be in effect for a period of fifty
(50) years from the date of approval of this plan by the City Council of the City of Jersey
City, provided however that any development or redevelopment projects that are
commenced and/or completed within said fifty (50) year period shall be deemed to
comply with all applicable laws, so long as they comply with the provisions of this
Redevelopment Plan. At the end of this fifty (50) year period, the zoning regulations
contained berein shall be incorporated into the zoning ordinance of the City of Jersey
City in accordance with the appropriate State statutes.
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I) Any subdivision of lots and parcels of land within the Redevelopment Area shall be in
accordance with the requirements of this plan and the Land Development Otdinance
(LDO) of Jersey City. ‘

J) Upon demolition of existing structures, the site shall be graded and planted or sodded,
with a durable dust free surface in the interim period prior to construction of new
buildings.

K) DEVIATION REQUESTS
The Plarming Board may grant deviations from the regulations contained within this
Redevelopment Plan, where, by reason of exceptional narrowness, shallowness or shape
of a specific piece of property, or by reason of exceptional topographic conditions, pre-
existing structures or physical features uniquely affecting a specific piece of property, the
strict application of any area, yard, bulk or design objective or regulation adopted
pursuant to this Redevelopment Plan, would result in peculiar and exceptional practical
difficuliies to, or exceptional and undue hardship upon, the developer of such property.
The Planning Board may also grant such relief in an application relating to a specific
piece of property where the purposes of this Redevelopment Plan would be advanced by
a deviation from the strict requirements of this Plan and the benefits of the deviation
would outweigh any detriments. Deviations from the required retail use as per section IX
shall be considered a design waiver, cognizable by the Planning Board. No relief may be
granted under the terms of this section unless such deviation or relief can be granted
without substantial detriment to the public good and will not substantially impair the
intent and purpose of the Redevelopment Plan,

No deviations may be granted which will result in permitting:

1) A use or principal structure in a district which does not permit such use or principal
structure;

2)  Anexpansion of a non-conforming use;

3) Anincrease in height of more than ten feet or 10% of the height in feet, whichever
1§ less. '

4) A breach in the required minimum or maximum building base height requirement
of more than 5% 10% ex-meze;

5) Anincrease in the permitted floor area ratio;

6)  Anincrease in the parking ratio of more than 10%-et-mere above the maximum
permitted,;

7)  Breach the minimum or maximum number of permitted stories.

8) Right-of-way width, and pavement width beyond normal adjustments encountered
during survey synchronization;

9) Non-completion of minimum open space, parks, or other {ype of phased
improvements required to be implemented;

10} Deviation from the Impact Fees provisions set forth in this Plan; or

11) Non-compliance with the specific goals and objectives enumerated in the Plan.

Any deviation in the above categories (1-11) or any other deviation that would otherwise
constifute a "d" type variance or deviation constitutes a request for a legislative plan
amendment cognizable only by the Governing Body. The Jersey City Zoning Board of
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Adjustment's powers are strictly limited to "a" and "b" appeals (N.J.S.A. 40:53D-
70A&B).

L) All development projects within Zone 1, Zone 2, or Zone 10 shall be pursuant to a
redevelopment agreement approved by the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency. The
agreements will be undertaken on a project by project basis.

M) IMPACT FEE
1) Redevelopment shall provide adequate water, sewer and other necessary utilities to

the site, to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and the Municipal Utility
Authority. All costs necessary for infrastructure improvements associated with a
development project, off-site as well as on-site, are the resp0n51b1hty of the developer
or redeveloper.

N) PROCEDURES FOR AMENDING THE PLAN
1) This Redevelopment Plan may be amended from time to time upon compliance with

the requirements of law. A fee of $5,000.00 plus all costs for copying and transcripts
shall be payable to the City of Jersey City for any request by a private entity to amend
this plan. The City of Jersey City reserves the right to amend this plan.

0O) INTERIM USES
1) Interim uses may be established, subject to agreements between the developers and

the Planning Board, that such use will not have an adverse effect upon existing or
contemplated development during the interim use period. Interim uses may include
surface parking provided there is no ingress or egress onto Journal Square itself.
Interim uses must be approved by the Planning Board, which may establish an interim
use period of between one (1) year and three (3) years in duration, subject to the
Planning Board’s discretion. Additional renewals of an interim use may be granted
by the Planning Board, subject to the same interim period limitations specified above.

¢ Local Redevelopment and Housing Law, N.L.S.A 40A:12A-1 et seq. requires that a
Redevelopment Plan shall include an outline for the planning, development,
redevelopment, or rehabilitation of the project area sufficient to indicate:

1) This Redevelopment Plan achieves the stated objectives of the Jersey City Master
Plan by locating high density development in exceptionally close proximity to mass
transit facilities with low parking ratios to reduce the traffic impact of future high
density development. Other uses such as retail and office uses compatible with a
mixed use transit oriented station area are permitted. The plan also provides for
adequate setbacks for the widening of Pavonia Avenue, the continuation of Central
Avenue, and improved access to the PATH station as well as requirements for the
provision of rooftop recreation space so as to reduce the impact of new development
on the City's park system.

2) This Redevelopment Plan provides for a list of permitted prmclpal uses, as well as

accessory uses and prohibited uses in the redevelopment area. The plan also provides

for density restriction through the use of a maximum floor area ratio, maximum
height limits, as well as setback and stepback requirements and various design
controls.
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3) There will be no displacement of existing residents through the implementation of
this plan through condemnation, as this is an area in need of rehabilitation and
condemnation is not permitted. Any condemnation action already commenced by the
Jersey City Redevelopment Agency may continue., The condemnation of easements
in areas previously declared in need of redevelopment may be pursued by the Jersey
City Redevelopment Agency.

4) The Journal Square 2060 Redevelopment Plan proposes no new acquisition or
condemnation of private property for private redevelopment purposes, however the -
condemnation of easements in areas previously declared in need of redevelopment
may be pursued by the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency.

5) 'The area covered by this Redevelopment Plan constitutes the area within walking
distance of Jersey City's central business district and the transportation hub for
Hudson County. This location in the very center of Jersey City and is remote from
any adjacent municipality. Jersey City is designated as a "Planning Area 1" in the
State Plan and is at the center of the Hudson County "urban complex." The
development envisioned by this plan is in conformity with the "State Planning Act"
P.L. 1985, c. 398 (C.52:18A-196 ct al) as well as the master plan of Hudson County
and all contiguous municipalities.

6) No affordable units are identified to be removed as part of the implementation of this
redevelopment plan,

7) No affordable units are identified to be removed as part of the implementation of this

- redevelopment plan.

O“

A) The Plan proposes the widening of Pavonia and Qakland Avenues. The western half of
Pavonia Avenue between Kennedy Blvd and Summit Avenue was previously widened
along the PATH Transportation Center. The remainder of Pavonia Avenue must be
widened to match the previous project. This shall be achieved through the dedicating of
land to the City along the south side of Pavonia Avenue as shown on Map 6: Circulation
Map. Oakland Avenue shall also be widened to a total width of 60 feet by a dedication of
land along the western side of the Avenue between Newark Avenue and Hoboken
Avenue as shown on Map 6: Circulation Map.

B) Central Avenue currently functions as the primary commercial street for the Heights
Neighborhood to the north of the Journal Square 2060 Plan area. This Plan proposes a
new street to connect Central Avenue in the Heights Neighborhood to Summit Avenue
and the Journal Square PATH station. A new street connector is shown on Map 6:
Circulation Map.

C) Cook Street is proposed to be vacated and added to Block 527 8102, provided the Central
Avenue connector is constructed.

D) The Bergen Arches right-of-way runs along State Highway Route 139, connecting
downtown Jersey City to the national railway network. This right-of-way has many
potential future uses. To insure that future use of this right-of-way can be maximized for
public benefit, any development on top of the Bergen Arches shall preserve an at grade
public easement along the top of the Bergen Arches tunnel or open cut as shown on Map
6. Circulation Map, Right-of-Way Preservation area.

w8




E) The Journal Square Transportation Center is currently configured with its main entrance
on Kennedy Blvd. A secondary entrance is located at the eastern end of the
Transportation Center at Magnolia Avenue and currently functions as a kiss-and-ride
drop off point. This secondary entrance must be upgraded and redesigned as a new front
entry plaza by any developer with greater than 200 linear feet along the Magnolia Avenue
right-of-way as required in Zone 1. Improvements shall include decorative sidewalk and
lighting throughout the plaza with bollards to control traffic, street furniture, and other
design elements to successfully create an active plaza entryway from Magnolia Avenue.

F) The Plan envisions a narrow-gauge streetcar line that runs in a dedicated right-of-way
along Kennedy Boulevard, Journal Square and Bergen Avenue. This strectcar system is a
critical north/south component of a comprehensive transit network designed to service
Journal Square and surrounding neighborhoods. A streetcar system will ensure that new
and existing developments along Kennedy Boulevard and Bergen Avenue have
convenient access to the Journal Square Transportation Center and proposed extensions
of the Hudson Bergen Light Rail in the Bergen Arches. The Redevelopment Plan
recommends that a streetcar run from the intersection of John F. Kennedy Boulevard and
Route 139 to Bergen Avenue at McGinley Square (see Map 6). During the development
of a streetcar system, a dedicated bus lane should be implemented along the streetcar
right-of-way. All stops should be permanent and substantial in nature. A transitional bus
along the streetcar route can help establish a riding habit among Journal Square residents
and encourage transit appropriate development along the eventual streetcar corridor. The
streetcar may be extended in the future to service additional neighborhoods as part of a
comprehensive bus rapid transit system for Jersey City.

G) Bus priority lanes should be provided within Sip, Pavonia, and Summit Avenues to
accommaodate a western waterfront bus rapid transit (BRT) system. A BRT line that
connects the western waterfront corridor to the Journal Square Transportation Center is
necessary to support the development and redevelopment of Jersey City’s western
waterfront. At the time of this writing, the City of Jersey City is developing a concept
design for a two directional BRT route that runs along the Routes 440 and 1&9 Truck
corridor between Danforth Avenue and Sip Avenue, and connects to the Journal Square
Transportation Center via Sip Avenue. The route will have loop turnarounds at each end.
The southern turnaround will be in the vicinity of Danforth Avenue, and the northern
turnaround will be at the Journal Square Transportation Center via Pavonia, Summit and
Sip Avenues. In order to accommodate the BRT route as it traverses the Journal Square
area, the full length of Sip Avenue between Garrison Avenue and the transportation
center should be designed to include bus priority lanes so that the BRT vehicles are not
delayed by general traffic. These lanes may be placed within the existing right-of-way or
cartway, and may be comprised of two one-directional lanes, or one reversible lane that is
castbound during the AM peak and westbound during the PM peak. Additionally, to
accommodate the loop turnaround at Journal Square, Pavonia, Summit and Sip Avenue
should be designed to include bus priority lanes so that BRT vehicles departing Journal
Square for Route 440/1&97T via Sip Avenue are not delayed by general traffic.

A) GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
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1) All structures within the project area shall be situated with proper consideration of
their relationship to other buildings, both existing and proposed, in terms of light, air
and usable open space, access to public rights of way and off-street parking, height
and bulk,

2) All minimum building height requirements shall be measured as stories above
sidewalk grade. No mezzanines or split levels or any floor partially below grade shall
be considered for minimum height requirements (see building height tables for each
zone district). All floors necessary to meet the minimum height requirement must be
approximately equal in floor area. No required minimum floor may be less than 60%
of the first floor area at grade.

3) Alllots at the time of adoption of this plan are conforming lots for development,
however any newly created lots or development sites through subdivision or

consolidation shall have a maximum shape factor of 30. Shape factor is defined as
the perimeter of the lot squared, divided by the lot area ( ‘%?’;‘%)
(a) Example for a standard 25' by 100’ rectangular lot:

perimeter = 250'

perimeter squared = 62,500

area = 2500 square feet
shape factor is 5“;; =15

4) Groups of related buildings shall be designed to present a harmonious appearance in
terms of architectural style and exterior materials and shall be encouraged to
incorporate historic elements found throughout the surrounding area.

5) Buildings shall be designed so as to have an attractive, finished appearance when
Viewed from all vantage points within and outs1de of the proj ect area. k {

sculpted” carved or penetrated Wall _urfaces, archltectural llghtmg, or other
architectural techmques to provide visual interest.

7) Access by the elderly, physically handicapped and/or disabled shall meet barrier free
design regulations as specified in the New Jersey and Federal ADA Standard Uniform
Construction Code.

8) All utility distribution lines, including multi-media telecommunication lines, and
utility service connections from such lines to the project area’s individual use shall be
located underground.

9) All adaptive reuse of existing structures shall not be required to meet minimum
building height requirements.

10) Roof treatment, Mechanical Screening and Electrical Equipment
(a) All mechanical equipment located on any roof of a building shall be screened

from view from all vantage points with a material complementary with the facade

- B &
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of the structure. The screening shall not resemble a utility or rooftop elevator or
~ stair tower. It shall instead resemble an upper level extension of the building and
be designed to contribute to the building top design.

(b) A roof plan must be developed and submitted for approval. Roof plans shall
include mechanical equipment, trellises to obscure view, colored roof patterns and
landscaping. Parking deck roofs shall be designed to maximize recreational
amenity space and all remaining rooftop areas shall be developed as a green roof.

(c) All electrical communication equipment shall be located in such a way that it does
not negatively impact the appearance of the building nor create objectionable
views as seen from surrounding structures.

(d) Transformers and primary and back-up generators shall be located interior to the
building or vaulted underground within the pavement area of an adjacent street.
Location withinand upon the sidewalk, between the sidewalk and the building, or
anywhere outside at grade is not permitted.

(e) The placement of all new or reconstructed signal boxes is required to be below
grade.

{(f) The screening of all new or reconstructed telecom equipment is required.

11) Streetscape
(a) All buildings shall be designed to front on a public street to create a street wall

and a pedestrian environment at a human scale.

(b) Main entrances into buildings shall be located on all public streets. Secondary
entrances shall also be provided from parking areas and/or as necessary according
to the design of the structure.

(c) Entrances shall be designed to be attractive and functional. Indicators such as
awning, changes in sidewalk paving material or other indicator consistent with the
design, proportions, material and character of the surrounding area shall be
provided.

(d) Automobile parking between the building line and a public right-of-way is
expressly prohibited, even where surface parking is a permitted use. Parking is
not permitted in any front yard.

(e) Porte-cocheres and drop-off lanes are prohibited.

12) A cornerstone marking the date of construction shall be located in an appropriate
ground level corner of any building five or more stories. The commerstone shall be
incorporated into the primary facade material.

13) Overhead walkways (skywalks) connecting buildings and or parking above streets or

* rights-of-ways are prohibited.

14} All facade vents for air conditioning or heating units must be incorporated into the
window design such that vent grills and windows appear as a single unit. This is best
achieved by lining up vent grills with the vertical or horizontal edge of the adjacent
window and matching the window's length or width or using a spandrel panel to fil}
any voids. _

15) All new sidewalk concrete shall be tinted charcoal grey or equivalent tint. The
Planning Board may grant a waiver for saperior design which relates to
adjacent architecture or other public purpose.
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B)

16) All storefronts shall incorporate a cornice element or horizontal projection above the
storefront glazing separating ground floor uses from the building above.

17) Ground floor storefront bulkheads below the display windows shall be a maximum of
i8 1nches in height above 51dewa1k grade.

18) All : alstorefront facades shall incorporate a minimum of

80% transparent glass

19) All ground floor entryways shall be recessed or designed to avoid door sw1ngs into
any public right-of-way,

20} All large restdential development projects are strongly recommended to include
provisions for a dog run.

FLOOR HEIGHT MINIMUM

1) Residential floor-to-ceiling heights must be a minimum of 9 feet and a maximum of
12 feet.

2) A ground floor residential use (where permitted) must be 2 3 feef above sidewalk
grade or set back from a front property line by 3 feet and screened with raised
landscaping enclosed by a minimum 6x6 inch masonry curb. Building lobbies
may be at grade for ADA accessibility.

3) Ground floor floor-to-ceiling height minimums for a non-residential use are regulated
by the following table:

2106 12 18 12'

Tto 12 15 20 12'

13 and up 200 30 12’
Table 1

C) SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS FOR A TOWER ON A BASE

1) When indicated in the Building Stepback Tables in ecach Zone district, the following
“Tower on a base” requircments shall apply.

2) All buildings shall have a base, which shall be designed according to the following:
(a) Building base height requirements;

1 66 50’ 75'

3 30 60’

4- 30 42

5 39 S0

10 30 5545
Table 2




(b) As an alternative to the chart above, buﬂdmg base heights may be contextual
to. match the adjacent buildings heights, or match the mean or mode building
helght on the block.

(c) A project on Block 9501 Lot 23 fronting onto the Journal Square Plaza is

- permitted a base height of 95 feet, and may provide enclosed recreation
facilities.

3) Towers shall be setback from the front lot line a minimum of 10 feet for sites with a
lot depth of 100 feet or less. Tower setback shall be a minimum of 15 feet for sites
with a lot depth of more than 100 feet.

4) Towers shall be setback from side lot lines a minimum of 20 feet.

5) Maximum tower length or width dimension is 150 linear feet for primarily residential
or hotel use buildings. _

6) Maximum tower length or width dimension is 200 linear feet for primarily office use
buildings.

7) Where the tower base abuts a lower density zone, the base of a tower shall be set back
from side lot line a minimum of 10 feet and the tower shall be setback a minimum of
30 feet.

8) Tower bases must set back 30 feet from any adjacent property's rear property line,
except the ground floor which may cover 100% of the lot.

9) Front yard setback requirements for each Zone shall apply.

10) Building Base Design Requirements:

(a) A visual cue or indicator such as a cornice, belt coursing, a significant change in
the glass to solid ratio, or any other indicator consistent with the design,
proportions, and materials shall be provided at the top of the base.

(b) Decorative features and materials are required to provide detail and interest to the
pedestrian level of the building. '

(c) Building bases shall be constructed of durable material of high quality, including
but not limited to glass, stone, brick, textured concrete, metal paneling, etc. Glass
shall constitute a minimum of 80 % of the ground floor storefront facades (see
ground floor height minimum).

(d) A decorative screening facade may substitute for glass to wrap parking facilities,
subject to approval by the Planning Board.

(e) Retail and/or other permitted uses are required along all public rights-of-way,
with a minimum depth of twenty-five (25) feet. No more than fifteen (15) percent
of the first floor street frontage and no more than-tweaty-26)-30 consecutive
linear feet along a public right-of-way may be dedicated to other uses such as
meter rooms, blank walls, garage-doers-orloading Zones, emergency exits, etc.

() First floor retail height shall be regulated by the ground floor floor-to-ceiling
height table in Table 1 above.

11) Building Tower Design Requirements:

(a) A visual cue or indicator such as a cornice, belt coursing, a significant change in
the glass to solid ratio, or any other indicator consistent with the design,
proportions, and materials shall be provided at the top of the tower.

(b) Building towers shall be constructed of durable material of high quality,
including, but not limited to glass, stone, textured concrete, brick, metal paneling
cte. Glass shall constitute a minimum of 40 % of the facade.




(c) Building towers are required to have a minimum separation distance of 50 feet.
D) PARKING STANDARDS
All parking shall be provided in multi-tiered structures,-oz automatic garages, or within a
structure. Parking structures shall meet the following requirements:
1) Bicycle Parking Provisions: Blcycle parking shall be provided pursuant to the
reqmrements faund in tke Jersey Czty Land DeVelopment Ordmance

2) Automobile Maximum Parking Ratios By Use:

(a) For lots of less than 60 feet in width: no parking is permitted.

(b) Residential uses may provide up to a maximum of 0.5 off-strect parking space per
dwelling unit.

(c) Office and other commercial uses may provide up to a maximum of 0.5 spaces
per 1000 square feet of gross floor area.

(d) Retail, restaurants, bars, nightclubs and health clubs may provide up to a
maximum of 0.5 space per 1000 square feet of gross floor area.

(e} Theaters may provide up to a maximum of 1 space per 20 seats.

(f) Hotels may provide up to a maximum of 1 space per every 3 rooms.

(g) Public/semi-public uses may provide a maximum 0.5 space per 1000 square feet
of gross floor area.

(h) Colleges and Universities may provide a maximum of 1 space per faculty and
administrative member per 8 hour shift.

(i) All other uses may provide a maximum 0.5 space per 1000 square feet of gross
floor area.

(G) Public parking garages as a stand alone use arc exempt from the parking
maximum.

3) Automobile Parking Provisions

(a) Commuter parking is prohibited.

(b) Semi-annual reporting of the parking pricing and usage shall be provided to the
Director of the Division of City Planning and the Chairman of the Jersey City
Planning Board in a format and detail similar to the semi-annual parking report
submitted for the Newport Redevelopment Plan Area.

(c) To assure the most efficient and effective use of the parking resources located
within the Redevelopment Area, shared use of the parking facilities is
encouraged.




4) Design Standards:

(a) In any building over six stories, or any stand-alone parking structure, a parking
level at grade may not contain any parking or mechanical floor area adjacent to
the sidewalk/street frontage. Atrium, fobby, and/or retail space shall occupy these
areas with a minimum depth of 25 feet.

(b) In any building under six stories, a parking level at grade shall be set back from
the sidewalk a minimum of 3 feet to provide for landscaping, screening the
parking use.

(c) For stand alone parking structures, the ground floor retail use shall be a minimum
height of 15 feet and a depth of 25 feet.

(d) Any parking structure shall be designed to eliminate headlight glare by the
provision of opaque screening for head lights and placement of interior garage
lighting to be directed into the structure and/or mounted on the interior side of
columns so as to prevent glare from such lighting to be visible from the street or
adjacent property. Light fixture details and location shall be included within the
garage floor plan at the time of site plan application.

(e) The facade of all parking levels shall be of a compatible material to that used
throughout the development or adjacent structures and shall be designed to
provide visual interest.

(f) All openings must be screened with glass or decorative fagade materials. Any
openings shall be in a vertical proportion. Open horizontal bands along the facade
of any parking structure are prohibited.

(g) Exterior lighting of the screening materials on a parking structure fagade is may
be required by the Planning Board in order to provide additional visual interest
in terms of light and shadow and to further mask the interior lighting of the
parking structure and headlight glare.

(h) All pedestrian access points shall be provided at street level and designed to
encourage street activity. Overhead or elevated pedestrian or vehicular
connections are prohibited.

(1) All parking spaces shall be 9 feet wide by 18 feet deep. Compact parking spaces
(8x15), may be provided, up to fifty (50) percent of approved parking spaces.

(3) Aisle widths shall conform to the following standards:

(1) 90 degree parking 22' wide two-way aisle
(ii) 60 degree parking 18' wide one-way aisle
(iif)45 degree parking 15' wide one-way aisle
(1v)30 degree parking 12' wide one-way aisle

(k) All one-way aisles shall be clearly designated.

(1) All automatic garage parking is exempt from the above space and aisle
dimension requirements.

(m)Off-street parking and loading arcas shall be coordinated with the public street
system serving the project area in order to avoid conflicts with through traffic or
obstruction of pedestrian walks and thoroughfares.




~ (n) Surface parking lots (as an interim use) and all loading areas, shall provide a

3)
6)

screen planting of dense evergreens along any street line and along all property
lines except those instances where a building intervenes or where the proposed
planting may interfere with sight triangles. Within the parking arca, a mininnum
of three percent (3%)of the parking area shall be landscaped and maintained with
shrubs no higher than three (3) feet and trees with branches no lower than six (6)
so that the landscaping is dispersed throughout the parking area.

(o) The number and design of off-street loading spaces shall be demonstrated by an
applicant according to an anticipated need. All freight loading activities are
encouraged to be restricted to early morning and/or late evening hours. The
design and number of off-street loading shall be regulated by the Jersey City Land
Development Ordinance.

(p) Drop off arcas may be required for uses generating organized pick-up and drop-
off services such as, but not limited to, medical offices.

(q) All entry ways to off-street parking and loading structures shall incorporate
decorative materials coordinated with the primary base fagade on all surfaces
twenty-five (25) feet deep into the structure to create an attractive view from the
sidewalk and adjacent pedestrian arcas.

(r} Parking and service access should not be located on the main traffic orlented
streets. A head-in/head-out design is required for all loading and parking
facilities. For parking facilities with 30 spaces or less, driveway widths shall be a
maximum of 12 feet. For all other parking facilities, driveway widths shall be a
maximum of 18 feet.

(s) Direct new development to minimize pedestrian and traffic conflicts.

(t) All site plan application for parking structures should demonstrate the ability to
provide for electric vehicle charging stations in the future.

Below grade parking is permitted to cover 100% of the lot and shall not be counted

against permitted FAR.

All developments which propose valet parking shall submit a parking management

plan. Such plan shall include but not be limited to: number of vehicles to be parked,

number of rows of cars to be stacked, all parking stall and aiste widths and any other
information deemed necessary to effectively evaluate the management plan. All
parking management plans shall be subject to review and approval of the Division of

Traffic Engineering, the Division of City Planning and the Planning Board. Valet

parking schemes shall not be permitted to increase the total number of parked cars

above the maximum number of permitted spaces. :

E) OPEN SPACE DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

1)

2)

Where possible, new structures surrounding or enclosing open space should be
designed and sited to allow the greatest penetration of sunlight onto open space areas
throughout the year.

Open space shall provide visual and functional elements such as bicycle parking,
benches, seating walls, drinking fountains, refuse containers and planters, and public
fountains. Open space amenities shall include decorative material such as: stone
pavers, brick pavers, asphalt pavers, stamped and tinted concrete, and decorative
lighting and detailing.




F)

3)

4
3)

6)
7

Adequate lighting shall be provided to encourage active usage and a sense of security
in the open space.

Open space shall be distribuied so as to provide for maximum usability.

Through creative design, open space features shall address the need for human
comfort and enjoyment and provide both active and passive leisure uses for secure
and pleasant outdoor and indoor settings to meet public and private use requirements.
Open space and plazas shall be designed at a human scale to invite and attract the
public.

Open space shall be oriented to maximize views.

As a general guide, one (1) lincar foot of seating for each linear foot of plaza
perimeter shall be provided. Seating space may include planters, benches, fountains,
cte.

LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING REQUIREMENTS

1)

2)

3)
4

6)

7)
8)

9)

Landscaping shall be required for any part of any parcel not used for buildings, off-
street parking, plaza areas or loading zones. The developer’s plan shall include
proposals for landscaping indicating the location, size and quantity of the various
species to be used. .

All plant material used must be able to withstand an urban environment. All screen
planting shall be a minimum of 4 feet high and shall be planted, balled and burlapped
as established by the American Association of Nurserymen. A planting schedule
shall be provided by the developer and approved by the Planning Board. Ground
cover shall be used in place of mulch.

All new trees shall be of a species and gender so as to minimize fruit and pollen.
Any landscaping which is not resistant to the environment or dies within 2 years of
planting shall be replaced by the developer.

Underground watering facilities shall be required for all landscaped arcas. Hose bibs
shall be provided immediately adjacent to planting areas abutting a building,

Street trees shall be planted along curb lines of streets in a regular pattern, spaced at
one-half the mature spread of the tree canopy to further enhance the aesthetic quality
of the redevelopment area. All trees shall be a minimum of four (4) inches in caliper.
Lighting within the site shall sufficiently illuminate all areas, including those areas
where buildings are setback or offset to prevent dark corners.

All lighting sources must be adequately shielded to avoid any off-site glare. The area
of illumination shall have a uniform pattern of at least one-half (0.5) foot candles.
All Iandscaping must be fully enclosed by curb or seating wall constructed of a
masonry or metal material with a minimum of 6 inch in height. Landscaping shall be
elevated to match the height of the curb or seating wall. Fencing is discouraged, but
may be set into the required curb.

() GREEN BUILDING REQUIREMENTS
1) For new construction projects with more than 9,000 square feet of roof top area, 90%

2)

of all roof top area not used for recreation space, solar panels, elevator or stair
housing or other areas necessary for mechanical equipment must be a “green roof".
All plumbing fixtures must demonstrate a 30% improvement over US EPA 1992
Energy Policy Act standards. All new toilets must be a duel-flush design and use an
average of 1,28 gallons per flush or less and achieve the US EPA HET standard. All




3)

4)

5)

6)

new shower heads and faucets must be equipped with aerators or other mechanisms to
reduce water flow. _
All new construction must demonstrate 28 15% improvement in energy efficiency of
the building envelope and mechanical systems over ASHRAE 90.1 2007 or the most
recently adopted energy standards by NJ Department of Energy.

All paints and carpets must be “low VOC” generally defined as having less than 60
grams per liter of volatile organic compou.nds
All new installed appliances andk tbs must be Energy Star rated. All light
bulbs must be Eneérgy Star rated LED or utilize other energy saving features
such as dimmers, motion detectors, ete,

The recycling and reuse of grey water is encouraged when feasible.

H) BUILDING AMENITY REQUIREMENTS

D

1y

2)

3)
4)

5)

All buildings with 4 or more units must provide a washer/dryer toom in the building
or a washer/dryer within each unit.

Buildings with over 50 units must include at least 2% of the units designed with 3
bedrooms or more.

Buildings with 4 or more floors must provide an elevator.

A minimum of 30% 20% of the lot area must be dedicated to useable recreation
space by occupants. This space may be placed in a rear yard or on a roof. Roof
decks are encouraged and may be necessary to achieve this requirement. E
Showets and other facilities necessary to support people biking to work is required in
all office buildings and other major centers of employment greater than 100 000
square feet.

BUILDING MATERIALS REQUIREMENTS

1)

2)
3)
4

5)

6)

7

Synthetic stucco materials such as EIFS is prohibited. Any stucco. ‘material used
must be fine gramed with a smooth finish to reflect a more stone like appearance
and qualities of light reflection:

Concrete block may not be used as a decorative finish on any facade.

Exterior doors including emergency exits and utility access shall not be secured with
apad lock. All door must include a built in lock mechanism. _

Brick facades are encouraged to utilize multi toned brick selections with at least 3
tones so as not to create a dull or flat brick facade.

Front cantilevered balconies may project no more than 12 inches from the facade
where located within 45 feet from grade or on the base of any "tower on a base"
building design (see Section IV: C). Above a stepback, balconies may extend no
more than the width of the stepback

Use of chain link fencing, razor wire, barbed wire, or other similar security devises is
expressly prohibited. Chain linked fencing may be temporality utilized during
construction only.

Security Gates: All front security gates shall be completely composed of the open
mesh type, except for two feet at the bottom of the gate which may be solid. Storage
boxes for all security gates shall be mounted on the inierior of the building. Gate
tracks shall be recessed into the glazing reveal and the gate housing shall be flush
with the plane of the storefront. No storage box, tracks or mechanical devices related
to the gates may project from the plane of the storefront.




~A) Signage Approval Process

1
2)
3)
4)
)

6)
7)

All signs are subject to site plan review when included as part of a major site plan
application.

All temporary banner signs for marketing projects on site shall be considered as an
interim use.

All new signage (except billboards) that complies with the redevelopment plan shall
not require site plan approval.

Minor Site Plan application with deviation must be submitted to the Planning board
for all non-conforming sign proposals.

Any signage (except billboards) more than 45 feet above grade is not permitted in this
Redevelopment Plan. All requests for this type of signage constitutes a minor site
plan application with deviation.

Billboards or theater marquees are subject to minor site plan review.

During construction, one (1) temporary sign indicating: the name of the project or
development, general contractor, subcontractor, financing institution and public entity
officials (where applicable) shall be permitted. The sign area shall not exceed forty
(40) square feet.

B) Number and Size of Signage

1
2)

3)

4)

The building address is required to placed on either the main entry door, transom
window, building, or awning flap at a maximum font height of 10 inches.

Corner lot development is encouraged to display the street names on the building
facade or imprinted into the sidewalk. '

Sign requirements along all Rights-of-Way where retail is mandatory (see Map 4:
Required Retail Use Map):

(a) For retail, restaurants, bars, nightclubs, and other similar ground floor uses:

(1) Each use fronting on a public street may be permitted one (1) exterior sign per
store front bay on each street frontage.

(ii) Maximum sign height shall be 2432 inches.

(b) All other uses:

(i) Each such use fronting on a public street may be permitted one (1) exterior
sign per entryway per street frontage. Buildings with multiple uses shall have
no more than one (1) sign per use.

(ii) The total exterior sign area shall not exceed the equivalent of three-(3} 5
percent of the first story portion of the wall to which it is attached. In no case
shall a sign on any structure exceed 1620 square feet.

Sign requirements along all Rights-of-Way where retail is not required (see Map 4.
Required Retail Use Map):
(a) For retail, restaurants, bars, nightclubs, and other similar storefront uses:

(i) Each such use fronting on a public street may be permitted one (1) exterior
sign per store front bay on each sireet frontage.

(il Maximum sign height shall be 18 inches.

(b) All other uses:

(1) Each such use fronting on a public street may be permitted one (1) exterior
sign per entryway per street frontage. Buildings with multiple uses shall have
not more than one (1) sign per use.
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_5)

(ii) The total exterior sign area shall not exceed the equivalent of two (2) percent
of the first story portion of the wall to which it is attached. In no case shall a
sign on any structure exceed 8 square feet.
Signage along Kennedy Boulevard between Tonnele Avenue and Van Reipen
Avenue may exceed size and placement llmltatlons by design waiver request to
the Planning Board as part of a minor site plan application.

Sign Design Requirements

1)

2)
3

4

5)

6)

' Sigas may be lit from backlit halo, and up-lights. I

All signs shall be attached to the first floor level of the building only, although blade

signs may be attached to the first or second floor fagade.

All wall signs shall be flush mounted;

All blade signs shall proj ject no more than 30 inches from the facade and the bottom

of the sign must be a minimum of 9 feet above the sidewalk.

Window signs (other than lettering and logos as specifically permitied) shall be

prohibited. Lettering or logos shall be limited to decorative metal leaf, flat black or

etched / frosted glass style lettering and shall be limited to the name of the business

occupying the commercial space / storefront and shall cover no more than twenty

(20%) of the window area.

Permitted signage material includes:

(a) Painted wood.

(b) Painted metals including aluminum and steel.

(c) Brushed finished aluminum, stainless steel, brass, copper, or bronze.

(d) Carved wood or wood substitute.

(¢) Channel letters.

Permitted lettering material includes:

(a) Lettering forms applied to the surface of the sign.

(b) Single colored lettering forms applied to the surface of the sign.

(c) Metallic solid body letters with or without returns.

(d) Painted acrylic or metal letter.

(e) Vinyl lettering attached permanently to a wood, wood substitute or metal
signboard.

Storefront windows shall not be blocked by any interior display case or other form of
barrier. Pedestrians on the street shall have the ability to see into the shop and view
the activity within.
Signs may include the name of the store only. Building address, phone number,
' operatmg hours and other add1t10na1 mformatlon may be stencﬂed on the door

D) Parkmg Ga:rage SIgnage

y

2)

One (1) sign shall be provided per entrance to garages indicating the parking facility
by the international parking symbol and direction atrow. The sign area shall not
exceed twenty (20) square feet. If applicable, one (1) sign per entrance may be
allowed indicating parking rates, not to exceed eight (8) square feet.

Portable signs are not permitted for parking garages.

E) Billboard Requirements




1) Billboards are only permitted within a 400 foot radius of the intersection of the center
lines of Kennedy Boulevard and Bergen Avenue.

2) Billboards are permitted only on building rooftops greater than 30 feet above grade.
Billboards may also be permitted on a building facade only at the discretion of the
Planning Board and only for the purpose of screening a blank wall or parking
structures and within the 400 foot radius described above.

3) All billboards are required to be coplanar, (placed in the same plane) with the
building facade.

4y Billboards may not exceed 20 feet in height and are required to be the same width as
the portion of the facade it is built coplanar to.

5) All support structures shall be screened from view from all public rights-of-way by
the face of the billboard.

F) Prohibited Signs

1) Freestanding signs, except for those indicating direction, transportation, circulation
and parking are prohibited. .

2) Portable advertising signs not associated with use within 10 feet are strictly
prohibited.

3) Product advertising signage of any kind.

4) Signage attached to parking meters, light poles, benches, or other street {furniture.

5) Monument signs

6) Internally or externally illuminated box signs

7) Flashing or animated signs, spinners, pennants, reflective materials that sparkle or
twinkle

8) Window signs, posters, plastic or paper that appear to be attached to the window.

9) Pole signs.

10) Waterfall style or plastic awnings.

A) Retail and/or other permitted active storefront type uses, which activate the adjacent
sidewalk, are required along all public rights-of~way where indicated on Map 4. Required
Retail Use Map. Active storefront type uses include, but not limited to, retail, storefronts,
building lobbies, art galleries, bars and restaurants.

1) Minimum depth of retail use shall be twenty-five (25) feet.

2} No more than fifteen (15) percent and no more than twenty (20) consecutive linear
feet may be dedicated to other uses such as meter rooms, blank walls, emergency
exits, etc.

3) Ground floor residential is only permitted if necessary to meet the requirements of the
Americans with Disabilities Act, there is no elevator access, and provided the
following conditions are met:

(a) Must be situated behind the retail use.

(b) The building must maintain a minimum of 600 square feet of retail space at grade
level and at the front of the building.

(c) The building must incorporate a cellar not less than 600 square feet or 50% of the
butlding’s footprint, whichever is greater, to provide storage space for the retail
use and for the location of trash rooms, mechanical rooms, meters or other
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A) ZONE 1: CORE

infrastructure needs of the building so as to maximize available retail space at the
ground floor level. Additional space may be allocated to residential tenants.

The purpose of this zone is to provide for high-density, high-rise construction on parcels
immediately adjacent to the Journal Square Transportation Center. As the center of the
Journal Square plan with the greatest access to both heavy rail and bus transportation
systems, this block has the greatest potential to provide housing, office space, and other
uses in a transit oriented manner.

1)

2)

3)

4)

Permitted Principal Uses:

(a) Mid and High-rise Residential: no residential units permitted on the ground floor.

(b) Retail Sales of Goods and Services/Financial Services,

(c) Office: Permitted everywhere except ground floor.

(d) Art galleries

(e) Live/Work units and home occupations: except on the ground floor.

() Restaurants, category one and two.

(g) Hotels/Bed and Breakfast.

(h) Theaters.

(i) Child/Adult Day Care Centers: except on the ground floor.

() Night Clubs/Bars.

(k) Schools.

(1) Community Centers.

{m)Museums.

(n) Government uses.

(o) Billboards: as per billboard requirements in Section VII: E above.

(p) Any combination of the above

Accessory Uses

(a) Structured parking and loading

(b) Fences and seating walls

(c) Landscape features

{(d) Improved Open Space

(e) Signs

(f) Rooftop Recreation

(g) Sidewalk Cafe: where sidewalk width permits.

Prohibited Uses

(a) Surface parking as a principal or accessory use.

(b) Drive-through facilities pertaining to restaurants, banks, pharmacies, and other
drive through uses

(c) Gas stations, service stations, auto repair, auto body shops, and other antomobile
related uses (not including car share programs).

Lot Size and Dimension Requirements

(a) All existing lots at the time of adoption of this plan are conforming lots.

(b) Subdivisions must conform to the following minimum standards:
(1) Minimum lot area: 10,000 square feet.
(ii) Minimum lot width: 100 feet.




3)

6)

7)

8)

9)

(1ii) Minimum Lot Depth: 100 feet.
(iv) Shape Factor Maximum: 30

Maximum Floor Area Ratio (FAR)Standards

(a) The permitted Floor Area Ratio (FAR) for any new development shall be
regulated according to the following table:

0 © 5,999 4 4
6,000 19,999 8 6
20,000 29,999 16 8
30,000 59,999 20 12
60,000 so-and up 25 16
Table 3

(b) The Floor Area Ratios in Table 3 above are inclusive of all built structures at or
-above grade including, but not limited to parking decks, lobbies, hallways,
building core, common areas, etc.

(c) Buildings over 210 feet must comply with "tower on a base" design requirements
in Section VI C.

Minimum Buﬂdmg Height Requirement

(a) The minimum height for any new building shall be sixty-five (65) feet.

Yard Requirements

(a) Front Yard Requirecments:

(i) Front yard setback shall be sufficient to provide the minimum sidewalk width
indicated in Map 3: Required Sidewalk Width Map, measured from the ground
floor building facade to the existing curb-line at the time of adoption.
Example: If the existing sidewalk width is 10 feet, and the required sidewalk
is 20 feet, then the required front yard setback shall be 10 feet,

(b) Side Yard Requirements:

(i) Side yards are not permitted within 10 feet of a right-of-way except where
required by fire or building code to accommodate adjacent windows or as per
the “Fower on a Base” requirements in Section IV: C.

(c) Rear Yard Requirements:

(1) No rear yard is required.

Sidewalk and streetscape elements shall complement the established design, color,

materials and street furniture of the Journal Square Streetscape improvements.

The current public pedestrian access easement that traverses the Block 1866 9501,

Lot 36 23 and provides access between Sip Avenue and Concourse East shall be

maintained at grade level. Its location may be shifted to the eastern edge of Block

1866 9501, Lot 25H 23, parallel to the Hudson County College walkway and

provide a minimum width of 15 feet. The existing College pedestrian walkway

along the western side of Lot 276 22 on Block 1866 9501 shall be maintained.-and




10) Improvement shall be provided to Concourse East to insure a seamless connection
between the projects and usable shared sidewalk.

11)It is required that Pavonia Avenue be widened by approximately ten feet (10") on the
South side, in-line with a previous street widening in front on the Journal Square
Transportation Center. The required setback along Pavonia Avenue therefore must be
sufficient to accommodate this street widening as well as the required sidewalk width
of twenty (20" feet, totaling an approximate thirty (30) foot setback from the existing
curb line along this section of Pavonia Avenue. The land necessary for this right-of-
way improvement shall be dedicated to the City. All setback and stepback
requirements shall be measured from the new property lines created.

12) A maximization of lot coverage and FAR is being permitted as a component of this
zone due to its proximity to the Journal Square PATH station. At grade open space is
not required on site, but instead must be provided as improvements to the Magnolia
Ave kiss-and-ride drop off area as described in section VI) E above by any
development adjacent to Magnolia Avenue for a length greater than 200 linear feet.
Any developer that triggers this provision shall fund, improve, and maintain this new
plaza entry way for the Journal Square Transportation Center. Any development
application for building under this provision shall include the site plan development
improvements for the plaza as part of the same application. Construction of the plaza
shall be completed simultaneously with the principal building.

B) ZONE 2: AIR-RIGHTS
1) The sole permitted use in this zone is for transportation uses. It is desirable in the

future to deck over the existing rail tracks and develop the air rights above for a
variety of uses, including office, commercial and residential uses, and to incorporate
public open space to create landscaped pedestrian plazas that form a continuous link
from the Journal Square PATH station to the sutrounding neighborhoods from
Baldwin Avenue to Garrison Avenue. Recommended pedestrian corridors are shown
on Map 5: Required Sidewalk Width and Map 6: Circulation. Building heights,
forms, and permitted uses are to be determined as a future amendment to this
redevelopment plan. '

C) ZONE 3: COMMERCIAL CENTER
The purpose of this zone is to provide for an active and intensive use of parcels
surrounding the Journal Square Transportation Center. With close proximity and short
walking distances to heavy rail and bus transit systems, this zone complements the
established commercial center of Jersey City.
1) Permitted Uses:
(a) Residential: permitted everywhere except on the ground floor of buildings greater
than 65 feet in height.
{(b) Retail Sales of Goods and Services/Financial Services.
(c) Offices: permitted everywhere except on the ground floor of buildings greater
than 65 feet in height.
(d) Art galleries.
(e) Live/Work units and home occupations: except on the ground floor of buildings
greater than 65 feet in height.




2)

3)

4)

S)

6)

(f) Restaurants: category one and two.

(g) Structured Parking: provided the design standards of Section IV: D above are
met. Structured Parking is not permitted at any street corner location.

(h) Hotels/Bed and Breakfast.

(1) Medical Offices

(3) Child and Adult Day Care Centers.

(k) Theatres/Night Clubs/Bars.

() Schools

(m)Museum

(n) Government uses.

(o) Billboards: as per billboard requirements in Section VII: E above.,

(p) Any combination of the above.

Accessory Uses

(a) Fences and seating walls.

(b) Landscape features.

(c) Improved Open Space.

(d) Signs.

(e) Rooftop Recreation.

(f) Sidewalk Cafe: where sidewalk width permits.

Prohibited Uses

(a) Surface parking as a principal or accessory use,

(b) Drive-throughs pertaining to restaurants, banks, pharmacies, and other drive
through uses.

(c) Gas stations, service stations, auto repair, auto body shops, and other automobile
related uses (not including car share programs).

Lot Size and Dimension Requirements

(a) All existing lots at the time of adoption of this plan are conforming lots.

(b) Subdivisions must conform to the following minimum standards:
(1) Minimum lot area: 7500 square fect.
(it} Minimum lot width: 75 feet.
(1ii) Minimum Lot Depth: 100 feet.
(iv) Shape Factor Maximum: 30

Density and Height Requirements

(a) Density is not regulated by floor area ratio or units per acre in this zone. Instead,
a "building envelope™ is defined, depending on the size and shape of the site.
Minimum room and unit sizes are regulated by building code.

Maximum and minimum building height shall be calculated based on the lot size

according to the following table provided the required standards in the table are met:

0 to 2499 3/32 3/34

25x100 2500 to 4999 3/32 5/54'

50x100 5000 to 7499 4742 8/ 85
- S




75x100 7500 to 9999 5/52' 10/ 105’

100x100 10000 to 12499 5752 18 /195’

125x100 12500 and up 5/52 25/ 265
Table 4

7) Building Stepbacks: To provide light and air to adjacent lots, buildings taller than 4
stories must provide a "stepback" from the property line at the following intervals:

1
2to5
6to 10

11to 18
19 and up h
Table 5

8) Yard Requirements
(a) Iront Yard Requirements:

(i) Front yard setback shall be sufficient to provide the minimum sidewalk width
indicated in Map 5: Required Sidewalk Width Map, measured from the ground
floor building facade to the existing curb-line at the time of adoption.
Example: If the existing sidewalk width is 10 feet, and the required sidewalk
is 20 feet, then the required front yard setback shall be 10 feet.

(ii) Up to 30% of a building fagade may be set back up to an additional 10 feet to
accommodate outdoor seating areas or public space, but not for front yard car
parking and must be designed to be 1mpract1ca1 for such use.

(b) Side Yard Requirements:
(1) Side yards are not permitted within 10 feet of a right-of-way except where

required by fire or building code to accommodate adjacent windows or as per
the “Tower on a Base” requirements in Section IV: C.
(c) Rear Yard Requirements:

(i) No rear yard is required, however a building second-floer step back above
the ground floor o£30-feet is required as per Table 5 above.
(ii) For through lots, a 50 foot "rear yard" is required at grade or above the first

floor, and centered n the mlddle of the block
(111)Comer lots gst-provide. :

reqmrements abo pr0v1ded 'that the Wall of any proposed buxldmg

above the ground ﬂoor shall not extend along the adjoining lot line for a
depth. of greater tlian 85 feet from the street line.

D) ZONE 4: NEIGHBORHOOD MIXED USE

The purpose of this zone is to provide for new housing, office space, and other uses on
parcels within a 10 minute walk of the Journal Square Transportation Center. This zone




continues the existing pattern of mixed land uses and building types while providing for
increased height limits on corner lots.
1) Permitted Uses:

(a) Residential: permitted everywhere except as restricted on the ground floor of
buildings utilizing a corner height bonus depicted on Map 3: Corner Lot Bonus
Map. : ‘

{b) Retail Sales of Goods and Services/Financial Services.

(c) Offices.

(d) Art galleries.

(e) Live/Work units and home occupations,

(f) Restaurants: category one and two. '

(g) Structured Parking: provided the design standards of Section IV: D above are met.
Structured Parking is not permitted at any street corner location. :

(h) Hotels/Bed and Breakfast.

(i) Medical Offices.

(i) Child and Adult Day Care Centers.

(k) Theatres/Night Clubs/Bars: on corner lots, provided no more than 60 decibels is
measureable outside the establishment. Night clubs and bars are limited to 5000
square feet.

(1) Houses of worship.

(m)Museum.

(n) Schools.

(0) Community Centers.

(p) Government uses.

(q) Any combination of the above.

2) Accessory Uses

(a) Structured and surface parking and loading.

(b) Fences and seating walls.

(c) Landscape features.

(d) Improved Open Space.

(e) Signs.

{f) Rooftop Recreation.

(g) Sidewalk Cafe: where sidewalk width permits,

3) Prohibited Uses

(a) Surface parking as a principal use.

(b) Drive-throughs pertaining to restaurants, banks, pharmacies, and other drive
through uses.

(c) Gas stations, service stations, auto repair, auto body shops, and other automobile
related uses (not including car share programs),

(d) Billboards.

4) Lot Size and Dimension Requirements
(a) All existing lots at the time of adoption of this plan are conforming lots.
(b) Subdivisions must conform to the following minimum standards:
(1) Minimum lot area: 7500 square feet.
(i1) Minimum lot width: 75 feet.
(iii)Minimum Lot Depth: 100 feet.




(iv)Shape Factor Maximum: 30
5) Density and Height Requirements

(a) Density is not regulated by floor area ratio or units per acre in this zone. Instead,
a "building envelope” is defined, depending on the size and shape of the site.
Minimum room and unit sizes are regulated by building code.

(b) Maximum and minimum building height shall be calculated based on the lot size
according to the following table provided the required standards in the table are
met:

0 to 2499 2/ 3/34' ) )/
25x100 2500 to 4999 2/22 4/44 5 /54" 5 /54" 5/ 54"
50x100 5000 to 7499 3/32" 5 /54" 6/ 64" 6/ 64" 8/ 85'
7500 to 9999
75x100 9500 4/42 6 /64" 6/ 64 8/ 85' 8/ 85'
20060 9501 and ‘ '
95100x100 up 5752 6/ 64' 6/64' 8 / 85' . 12/130
Table 6

(c) Corner Lot Bonus: Corner lots at selected locations are permitted a height bonus
to encourage larger buildings at street corners as indicated in Map 3: Corner Lot
Bonus Map. To qualify for the bonus height, corner lots must have the minimum
lot size indicated in Table 6 for each bonus as well as the minimum sidewalk
width indicated in Map 3: Sidewalk Width Map, or @ minimum of 12 feet;
whichever is greater. Corner Bonus projects are not required to match adjacent
front yard setbacks in section 6 below, but instead must provide a front yard
setback from the existing curb-line at the time of adoption sufficient to meet the
minimum sidewalk width as per the Map 5: Sidewalk Width Map, or-a minimum
of 12 feet, whichever is greater. Projects must also comply with the minimum
floor-to-ceiling height requirements and required building Stepbacks Buddmgs of
8 stories: and greater must provide ground floor commercial uses in all ground
ﬂoor areas not utthzed for parkin g, storage or bmldmg utlltttes, and must
nieqsure a minimum de £30 feet. from: all street lines. Ground floor.
reszdentml is only permitted at the rear-of a building wh ere a minimum of 5000
square feet of retail is provided. The Corner Lot Bonus is applicable to a
maximum lot area of 20,000 square feet.

(d) Whole block development provision: where an entire block measuring greater
than 30,000 square feet (not including any property in Zone 6) is consolidated,
bounded only by rights-of-way, the development standards for Zone 3 may be
applied provided that:

(1) A 20 foot sidewalk is provided around the entire circumference of the block.




(i1) Tower stepbacks of 12 feet are accommodated set back from the base facade.

(tii)Parking is not permitted to front along any right-of-way at grade level. All
parking uses must be screened from view through the use of wrap units. Any
non-parking permitted use must occupy the first floor along all rights-of-way
to a depth of a minimum of 25 feet. Parking may only be exposed on or above
the second story.

(tv)Properties in Zone 6 must be excluded from any site plan under this provision.

(v} No buildings may be placed in the right-of-way preservation area as indicated
on Map 6: Circulation. All preservation areas must be designed as publicly
accessible plaza.

(e) Building Stepbacks: To provide light and air to adjacent lots, buildings must
provide a "stepback” from the property line at the following intervals:

1 none none none
2ta5
5
6to8
#
$9t012
Table 7

6) Yard Requirements
(a) Front Yard Requirements:

(1) Front yard setback shall match the setback of the "Primary Building Facade"
(see Article I of the Land Development Ordinance for definition of Primary
Building Fagade) on either side of the subject parcel, provided that the
building setback to be matched shall be closest to the predominant (most
frequently occurring) setback on the block front. Where sidewatk widths are
less than 8 feet, the front yard setback requirement must be the minimum of 8
feet from front facade at the ground floor to the curb.

(i) Up to 30% of a building fagade may be set back up to an additional 10 feet to
accommodate stoops, outdoor seating areas or public space, but not for front
yard car parking and must be designed to be impractical for such use.

(11i)If the adjacent front yard setbacks are greater than 10 feet, and the project site
has 60 feet or more of frontage on a right-of-way, then the building may limit
the front yard setback requirement to 10 feet.

(iv) Where retail is required as indicated in Map 4: Required Retail Use Map, the
front yard setback shall be from the existing curb-line at the time of adoption
sufficient to provide the minimum sidewalk width as depicted in Map 5:
Required Sidewalk Width Map, measured from the ground floor building
facade to curb. Example: If the existing sidewalk width is 10 feet, and the




required sidewalk is 20 feet, then the front yard setback shall be 10 feet.
(b) Side Yard Requirements:
(1) Where the adjacent bulldmg is Iess than four stones ‘che mmlmum side yard
setback Shall be %ot i edotwAdth AR

iy =alaae -. & " -n‘

wmdews—f& feet to match an. ad]acent 2 foot yard 2 feet to match an
adjacent 3 foot yard; or the reqmred minimuim to neet fire and building
code to scconumodate windows.

(ii) Where a ground floor retail use is mandatory (see Map 4: Required Retail Use
Map), side yards are not permitted within 10 feet of a right-of-way except
where required by fire or building code to accommodate adjacent windows.

(iii)Where the adjacent building is greater than 4 stories, or where the adjacent
building is built on the lot line, side yards are not permitted within 10 feet of a
right-of-way except where required by fire or building code to accommodate
adjacent windows.

(c) Rear Yard Requirements:

(i) No rear yard is required, however a seeend-floor step back of 30 feet is
required above the first floor as per the building step back table above.

(i1) For through lots, a 50 foot "rear yard" is required at grade or above the first
floor, and centered in the Imddle of the block

(111)Comer Iots _ ast-stepba :

= A By

above prov:dedhthat ﬂl(; Wall of any proposed bu_ dﬁlg above the ground
floor sha]] not extend al ‘_g’:the ad]mmng fot line for a depth of greater

E) ZONE 5: COMMERCIAL MAIN STREET
The purpose of this zone is to continue the existing pattern of main street type
commercial buildings along Newark Avenue while providing for efficient modern new
construction and increased density on corner lots.
1) Permitted Uses:
(2) Residential: permitted everywhere except on the ground floor.
(b) Retail Sales of Goods and Services/Financial Services.
{c) Offices.
{(d) Art galleries.
(e) Live/Work units and home occupations: permitted everywhere except on the
ground floor.
(f) Restaurants: category one and two.
(g) Structured Parking: provided the design standards of Section IV: D above are met.
Structured Parking is not permitted at any street corner location.
(h) Hotels/Bed and Breakfast.
(i) Medical Offices.
(j) Child and Adult Day Care Centers.
(k) Night Clubs/Bars: on corner lots, provided no more than 60 decibels is
measureable outside the estabhshment
(1) Museum.




(m)Any combination of the above.
2) Accessory Uses
(a} Structured parking and loading.
(b) Fences and seating walls.
(c) Landscape features,
(d) Improved Open Space.
(e) Signs.
{f) Rooftop Recreation.
(g) Sidewalk Cafe: where sidewalk width permits.
3) Prohibited Uses '
(a) Surface parking as a principal or accessory use.
(b) Drive-throughs pertaining to restaurants, banks, pharmacies, and other drive-
through uses.
{c) Gas stations, service stations, auto repair, auto body shops, and other automobile
related uses (not including car share programs).
(d) Billboards.
4) Lot Size and Dimension Requirements
(a) All existing lots at the time of adoption of this plan are conforming lots.
(b) Subdivisions must conform to the following minimum standards:
(1) Minimum lot area: 2500 square feet.
(it) Minimum lot width: 25 feet.
(1i1) Minimum Lot Depth: 100 feet.
(iv)Shape Factor Maximum: 30
5) Density and Height Requirements
(a) Density is not regulated by floor area ratio or units per acre in this zone. Instead,
a "building envelope" is defined, depending on the size and shape of the site.
Minimum room and unit sizes are regulated by building code.
(b) Maximum and minimum building height shall be calculated based on the lot size
according to the following table provided the required standards in the table are
met:

0 to 2499
25x100 2500 to 4999 3/32 C 4/[44 5 /54 5/54' 5/54'
50x100 5000 to 749% 3/32 5/54' 6/64 6 /64 6/64
7500 {0 8999
75x100 9500 4742 6/ 64 6 / 64" 8/85 8 /85
10000 9501 ' ’
951030x100 and up 5/52 6/ 64" 6 /64 8 /85 12 /130
Table §
@ B W




(c) Corner Lot Bonus: Corner lots at selected locations are permitted a height bonus
to encourage larger buildings at street corners as indicated in Map 3. Corner Lot
Bonus Map. To qualify for the additional height, corner lots must have the
minimum lot size indicated in Table 8 above for each bonus as well as the
minimum sidewalk width indicated in Map 5: Required Sidewalk Width Map, ox
a minimum widtlh of 12 feet; whichever is.greater. Corner Bonus projects are
not required to match adjacent front yard setbacks in Section 5 below, but instead
provide a front yard setback from the existing curb-line at the time of adoption
sufficient to meet the minimum sidewalk width, ¥ a minimum width of 12 feet;
whichever is greater. Projects must also comply with the minimum floor-to-
ceiling height requirements and required building stepbacks. The Cortner Lot
Bonus is applicable to a maximum lot area of 20,000 square fect.

(d) Building Stepbacks: To provide light and air to adjacent lots, buildings taller-thas
4-steries must provide a "stepback” from the property line at the following
intervals:

1
2105
6.t08

9to 12
Table 9

6) Yard Requirements
(a) Front Yard Requirements:

(1) The front yard setback shall be sufficient to provide the minimum sidewallk
width as indicated in Map 5: Required Sidewalk Width Map, measured from
the ground floor building facade to the existing curb-line at the time of
adoption. Example: If the existing sidewalk width is 10 feet, and the required
sidewalk is 20 feet, then the front yard setback shall be 10 feet.

(i) Up to 30% of a building fagade may be set back up to an additional 10 feet to
accommodate outdoor seating areas or public space, but not for front yard car
parking and must be designed to be impractical for such use.

(b) Side Yard Requirements:

(1) Side yards are not permitted within 10 feet of a right-of-way except where

required by fire or building code to accommodate adjacent windows.
(c¢) Rear Yard Requirements:

(1) No rear yard is required, however a second floor step back of 30 feet is
required as per Table 9 above. -

(i1) For through lots, a 50 foot "rear yard" is required at grade or above the first
floor, and centered in the middle of the block.




' srear-propert-line shall adhere to the s1de yard requlrements
above prowded that the Wall of any proposed bulldmg above the ground
floor shall not extend along the adjommg lot line a distance greater than
85 feet from the street line for floors 2 through 3,80 feet for floor 6
through 8 and 75 feet for floors 9 to 12.

F) ZONE 6: PRESERVATION

Situated with the original palisaded town of Bergen to the south, and Newark Avenue and
Five Corners to the north; the Journal Square 2060 Redevelopment Plan Area has been
the site of architectural endeavors for some 350 years. Although many early buildings
have been razed in the development of the area, much remains to give us an idea of the
area's development: socially, economically, architecturally, historically and culturally.
Many resources remain that are locally significant and that still possess integrity of
location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association, These
buildings and streetscapes give the area a unique sense of place different not experienced
elsewhere in the city.

During prior waves of development in the twentieth century, when the area’s landscape
changed from that of a suburban small town to the city’s Central Business District,
important buildings were demolished, altered, or moved. Development, especially in the
first half of the twentieth century, was sometimes undertaken without examination and
appreciation of past cultural and architectural development. This plan seeks to preserve
important resources which help to define the unique character of the Journal Square area.
This Zone shall preserve a wide variety of buildings characteristic of the area’s varied
development encompassing the seventeenth century Newkirk / Summit House, the
eighteenth and nineteenth century Apple Tree House, Victorian brick townhouse rows, a
Classical Revival Terrace on East Street, late 19th century mixed use developments and
large early 20th century apartment buildings as well as churches, theatres and office
buildings.

The properties that have been selected for Zone 6: Preservation have, paraphrasing the
National Register Criteria for Evaluation:

A. Been associated with events that have made significant contribution to the broad
patterns of our history; or

B. Are associated with the lives of persons significant in our past; or

C. Embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction, or
‘that represent the work of a master, or that possess high artistic values, or that represent a

significant and distinguishable entity whose components may lack individual distinction;

or

D. Have yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history.




To respect the special character that the Journal Square area has acquired and retained
over the past three and one half centuries, the buildings included in this Preservation
Zone shall be rehabilitated in accordance with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards
and Guidelines for the Treatment of Historic Properties so that future generations can be
delighted by the history and architecture of the Journal Square Neighborhood.

1) Permitted Uses:

(a) All uses at their existing location at the time of adoption of this Plan are
permitted.

(b) New uses shall be considered by the Planning Board on a case by case basis,
guided by adjacent uses only. Because historic buildings in this zone are scattered
throughout the Plan Area, and are situated in a variety of land use areas, the
permitted uses in this zone must be contextual to the site.

(c) Adaptive re-use conversions to residential or live/work units.is permitted.

2) Lot Size and Dimension Requirements
(a) All existing lots at the time of adoption of this plan are conforming lots.
(b} Subdivision is not permitted.

3) Height and Bulk Requirements

(a) The existing building height, floor area, established setbacks and the exterior
building envelope as of the adoption of this Plan shall constitute the development
standards of each building. Any change to the above standards shall constitute a
deviation from this plan.

(b) Minor alterations in site plan and fagade characteristics may be permitted by the
Planning Board provided such alterations are consistent with the above standards
for this zone. Any changes not consistent with this Plan are cognizable under a
deviation application, and will be judged on their merits. |

4) Yard and Coverage Requirements

(2) building coverage: existing

(b) lot coverage: existing

(c) front yard: existing

(d) side yard: existing

(e) rear yard: existing

5) Building Design Requirements

(a) All visible fagades must retain historic building fabric where practicable.
Architectural elements must be fully retained, preserved, restored, or recreated as
necessary, based on site, photographic, or period documentation.

(b) Any rehabilitation is to be done in compliance with the Secretary of the Interiors
Standards and Guidelines for the Treatment of Historic Properties

(c) All building must comply with all State or national historic register regulations.

(d) Parking is not permitted in this zone unless present at the time of adoption of this
redevelopment plan.

G) ZONE 7: DECO
The purpose of this zone is to retain and preserve the carly twentieth century art-deco
facades along Bergen Avenue while providing for vertical additions to these historic
facades.
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1) Permitted Uses:

(a) Residential: permitted everywhere except on the ground floor.

(b) Retail Sales of Goods and Services/Financial Services.

(c) Offices: permitted everywhere except on the ground floor.

(d) Art galleries.

(e) Live/Work units and home occupations: permitted everywhere except on the
ground floor.

(f) Restaurants: category one and two.

(g) Hotels/Bed and Breakfast.

(h) Medical Offices: permitted everywhere except on the ground floor.

(i) Child and Adult Day Care Centers: permitted everywhere except on the ground
floor.

(j) Night Clubs/Bars: on corner lots, provided no more than 60 decibels is
measureable outside the establishment. Night clubs and bars are limited to 3000
square feet.

(k) Museum.

(1) Any combination of the above.

2) Lot Size and Dimension Requirements
(a) All existing lots at the time of adoption of this plan are conforming lots.
(b) Subdivision is not permitted.

3) Height Requirements

(a) Maximum building height: 8 stories and 85 feet

(b) Building Stepbacks: a 15 foot front stepback is required for any additions above
the existing deco buildings along Bergen Avenue. A 5 foot stepback is required
for any additions on Newkirk Street.

4) Yard Requirements

(a) The maximum permitted building and lot coverage shall be the existing building

and lot coverage at the time of adoption of this Plan.
5) Building Design Requirements

(a) All visible facades must retain historic building fabric where practicable.
Architectural elements must be fully retained, preserved, restored, or recreated as
necessary, based on site, photographic, or period documentation.

(b) Any facade rehabilitation is to be done in compliance with the Secretary of the
Interiors Standards and Guidelines for the Treatment of Historic Properties

{c) The front fagade of any roof top addition must include 75 % glazing which will
minimize any impact the addition may have on the historic resource.

(d) Parking is not permitted in this zone.

H) ZONE 8: BERGEN SQUARE
The purpose of this zone is to demarcate and preserve the footprint, block, and lot lines of
the original Dutch settlement of Bergen, established in 1661, This zone provides for
mixed use development respecting the established height limits and development context
found in Bergen Square.
1) Permitted Uses:

(a) Residential: permitted everywhere except on the ground floor of buildings
utilizing a corner height bonus.

(b) Retail Sales of Goods and Services/Financial Services.




(c) Offices.
(d) Medical Offices
(e) Art galleries.
(f) Live/Work units and home occupations.
(g) Restaurants: category one and two.
(h) Bed and Breakfast.
(1) Child and Adult Day Care Centers.
(1) Night Clubs/Bars: restricted to Bergen Ave, provided no more than 60 dec1bels is
measureable outside the establishment.
(k) Schools.
() Community Centers.
(m)Government uses.
(n) Museum.
(0) Any combination of the above.
2) Accessory Uses
(a) Fences and seating walls,
(b) Landscape features.
(c) Improved Open Space.
(d) Signs.
(e) Roofiop Recreation.
(f) Sidewalk Cafe: where sidewalk width permits.
3) Prohibited Uses
(a) Surface parking as a principal or accessory use.
(b) Drive-throughs pertaining to restaurants, banks, pharmacies, and other drive
through uses.
(c) Gas stations, service stations, auto repair, auto body shops, and other automobile
related uses (not including car share programs).
(d) Billboards.
4) Lot Size and Dimension Requirements
(a)} All existing lots at the time of adoption of this plan are conforming lots.
(b) Subdivisions must conform to the following minimum standards:
(i) Minimum lot area: 2500 square feet.
(it) Minimum lot width: 25 feet.
(i) Minimum Lot Depth: 100 feet.
(iv)Shape Factor Maximum: 30
5) Density and Height Requirements
(a) Density is not regulated by floor area ratio or units per acre in this zone. Instead,
a "building envelope" is defined, depending on the size and shape of the site.
Minimum room and unit sizes are regulated by building code.
(b) Maximum and minimum building height shall be calculated based on the lot size
according to the following table provided the required standards in the table are
met:




0 to 2499 2722 3/34

25x100 2500 1o 4999 2/22 4 /44

50x100 5000 and up 3/32 5/54'
Table 10

(c) Building Stepbacks: To provide light and air to adjacent lots, buildings taller than
4 stories must provide a "stepback” from the property line at the following
intervals:

lio4

none
5 10 none 30
Table 11

6) Yard Requirements
(a) I'ront Yard Requirements:
(1) Front yard setback shall match the setback of the "Primary Building Facade"
(see Article I of the Land Development Ordinance for definition of Primary
Building Fagade) on either side of the subject parcel, provided that the
building setback to be matched shall be closest to the predominant (most
frequently occurring) setback on the block front.
(1) Where retail is required as indicated in Map 4: Required Retail Use Map, the
front yard setback from the existing curb-line at the time of adoption shall be
sufficient to provide the minimum sidewalk width as depicted in Map 5:
Required Sidewalk Width Map, measured from the ground floor building
facade to curb. Example: If the existing sidewalk width is 10 feet, and the
required sidewalk is 20 feet, then the front yard setback shall be 10 feet. -
{(b) Side Yard Requirements:
Il v here the adjacent bulldmg is less than fou:r stones the mlmmum 51de yard
setback Shall be “ _ ot-width-tp RaxHRHn-Teq €

Mﬂdews— 3 feet to match an'adjacent 2 foot yard 2 feet tu match an
adjacent 3 foot yard or the reqmred minimum to meet fire and building
code to accommodate windows.

(ii) Where a ground floor retail use is mandatory (see Map 4: Required Retail Use
Map), side yards are not permitted within 10 feet of a right-of-way except
where required by fire or building code to accommodate adjacent windows.

(iii))Where the adjacent building is greater than 4 stories, or when the adjacent
building is built on the lot line, side yards are not permitted within 10 feet of a




right-of-way except where required by fire or building code to accommodate
adjacent windows.
(c) Rear Yard Requuements
() Arearyard of tis d contextual to the block and lining up with
adj acent bmldmgs -as_ determmed by Plannmg Board 1s requlred

I) ZONE 9: PARKS

1) Parks, plazas, and other types of public open space are the only permiited at grade use
in this zone. Underground parking facilities are also permitted beneath the required at
grade park. :

J) ZONE 10: TRANSITION

1) All parcels in Zone 10 must be submitted to the City Planning Division as a single
site plan application, however construction may be phased.

2) A maximum of two buildings may be constructed in Zone 10, with the remainder of
the zone developed as open space. One of the two buildings must be on Block 1863
10601 Lot N25-39 adjacent to the historic Lowes Theatre. The second building must
be situated south of the continuation of the Van Reipen Avenue right-of-way and a
minimum of 40 feet from the Zone 2 boundary line.

3) The as-of-right building height shall be a maximum of 6 stones This height
limitation may be exceeded by constructing the un-built portions of Zone 10 as
publicly accessible open space. Surface parking is not permitted. Each square foot of
open space made available to the public may be converted to FAR applicable to the
two permitted building sites at a ratio of 6:1. For example, 10,000 square feet of land
designed as public open space will permit 60,000 additional square feet to be built
above the permitted 6 stories. The building site on Block 1863 10601 Lot N25 39
shall not be restricted in the amount of bonus FAR applied to this site, however any
second building shall have a maximum height of 12 stories or 130 feet with apphed
bonus FAR.

4) The site plan for Zone 10 must be in conformity with all design requirements in
Chapter VI as well as the required public sidewalk requirements found on Map 5:
Required Sidewalk Width.

K) ZONE 11: TRANSITION

1) Allland in Zone 11 must be submitted to the City Planning Board as a single site plan
application, however construction may be phased.

2) Property in Zone 11 fronting on Summit Avenue, continuing to the east side of the
West Street right-of-way and its extension to the south across Block 9604 Lot 11 and
Block 10803 Lot 27 may utilize the development regulations of Zone 3 Commercial
Center, with the following additional requirements:

(a) Summit House Plaza: A 30 foot side yard shall be provided along the southern
property line of the Summit House at 510 Summit Avenue, one of the oldest
buildings in the State of New Jersey. This yard area must be developed as a
pedestrian plaza, and may include seating for restaurant or cafe type uses.
Driveway egress only to Summit Avenue is permitted within the required plaza
area.




(b) A 10 foot yard shall be provided along the eastern property line at the rear of the
Summit House.

(c) No yard or building stepbacks shall be required between any two buildings within
Zone 11,

(d) Primary driveway entrance and exit must be from West Street.

(¢} A 24 hour publicly accessible pedestrian easement and paved walkway shall be
constructed along the full length of the southern property line of Block 10803 Lot
27 with a minimum width of 20 feet, running along the PATH rail tracks and
connecting from Summit Avenue to the Zone 9 Park (see Map 5: Required
Sidewalk Width Map).

(f) A building height bonus of 17 stories has been granted for this portion of Zone 11
due to the dedication of land for a public park. The maximum building height is
therefore set at 42 stories and 440 feet.

3) Property in Zone 11 east of the West Street right-of-way and its extension to the south
across Block 9604 Lot 11 and Block 10803 Lot 27 may unitize the development
regulations of Zone 4 Neighborhood Mixed Use, with the following additional
requirerments:

(a) A publicly accessible pedestrian casement and paved walkway shall be
constructed along the full length of the southern property line of Block 10803 Lot
27 with a minimum width of 20 feet, running along the PATH rail tracks and
connecting from Summit Avenue to the Zone 9 Park (see Map 5: Required
Sidewalk Width Map).

(b} Mutti-level parking garages within this portion of Zone 11:

(i) shall have a height limit of 5 parking levels and 50 feet.

(i1) are required to provide a minimum 10 foot rear yard adjacent to Zone 6 and
Zone 9.

(iii)shall not be required to provide building step backs.

A) All definitions shall refer to the Jersey City Land Development Ordinance.

1) Boundary Map

2) Zone Districts Map

3) Corner Lot Bonus Map
4) Required Retail Use Map
5) Sidewalk Width Map

6) Circulation Map
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JOURNAL SQUARE 2060 Corner Lot Bonus Locations
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JOURNAL SQUARE 2060
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JOURNAL SQUARE 2060 L _ Sidewalk Width Requirements
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JOURNAL SQUARE 2060
MAP 6: CIRCULATION MAP
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Gity Clerk File No. Ord. 14.098 °

Agenda No. 3.G 1st Reading
Agenda No. 2nd Reading & Final Passage
ORDINANCE
OF |
JERSEY CITY, N.J.
COUNCIL AS A WHOLE

offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

TITLE:

CITY ORDINANCE  j14_gog

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JERSEY CiTY TO EXCUTE A SIX
MONTH LEASE AGREEMENT WITH 3000 KENNEDY BLVD, LEC FOR THE USE OF
27 PARKING SPACES AT 3000 JOHN F. KENNEDY BOULEVARD TO BE USED FOR
JOURNAL SQUARE EMPLOYEE PARKING

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, the City of Jexsey City (“City”) requires a parking facility for employees who work
at 1 Fournal Square Plaza, Jersey City, New Jersey; and

WHEREAS, 3000 Kennedy Blvd., LLC operates a parking facility located at 3000 John F.
Kennedy Boulevard, Jersey City, New Jersey 07306 (“Facility™); and

WHEREAS, 3000 Kennedy Blvd., LLC agrees to lease the City twenty-seven (27) reserved
parking spaces at the Facility; and

WHEREAS, the City will use the reserved parking spaces as Journal Square Employee Parking
and for no other purpose; and

WHEREAS, the monthly rent shall be as follows: One Hundred Twenty Dollars ($120.00) per
parking space per month; and

WHEREAS, the lease term shall be six (6) months effective October 1, 2014 and ending on
March 31, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the City shall have an option to renew the lease for an additional six (6) months
upon; and

WIHEREAS, either party shall have the right to terminate the Lease Agreement without cause by
providing ninety (90) days written notice to the other party; and

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:12-5 provides that a municipality may by ordinance acquire property
by lease; and

WHEREAS, the sum of $13,000.00 is available in Account No. 0120131-432-304.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey
City that: :

1. Subject to such modifications as may be deemed necessary or appropriate by Corporation
Counsel, the Mayor or Business Adminisirator is authorized to execute the Lease
Agreement attached hereto with 3000 Kennedy Blvd., LLC for twenty seven (27) parking
spaces at the parking facility located at 3000 John F. Kennedy Boulevard, Jersey City,
New Jersey,;




Continuation of City Ordinance , page

2. The term of the lease shall be effective as of October 1, 2014 and shall end on March 31,
2015, and shall continue on a month to month basis until the parties execute a new lease
agreement;

3. The rent for the parking spaces shall be as follows: One Hundred Twenty Dollars
($120.00) per parking space per month;

4. Funding in the amount of $13,000.00 is available in Account No. 0120131-432-304. The
balance of the lease fimds will be made available in the 2015 budget and in subseguent
Calendar year budgets.

a. Al ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

b. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey city Code as though codified and fully
set forth therein. The City shail have this ordinance codified and incorporated in
the official capies of the Jersey City Code,

c. This ordinance shall take effect in the manner as prescribed by law.

d. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized
and directed to change any chapter nmumbers, article numbers, and section
numbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a
conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion
and possible accidental repealers of existing provisions.

L , Donna Mauer, as Chief fiscal Officer, hereby certify that funds
in the amoumt of $13,000.00 are available for this expenditure in Account No. 0120131-432-304.
CR/kn
811714
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:
APPROVED:

Gorporafion Counsel Business Administrater  *

Certification Required O
Not Required |




RESOLUTION FACT SHEET - CONTRACT AWARD
This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any resolution that is submitted for Council consideration.
Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution.

Full Title of Ordinance/Resolution

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY TO EXCUTE A SIX MONTH LEASE
AGREEMENT WITH 3000 KENNEDY BLVD, LLC FOR THE USE OF 27 PARKING SPACES AT
3000 JOHN F. KENNEDY BOULEVARD TO BE USED FOR JOURNAL SQUARE EMPLOYEE
PARKING

Project Manager

Department/Divigion | Business Administrator

Name/Title Dominick Pandolfo Supervising Administrative Analyst

Phone/email (201) 547-4296 Dominick{@jenj.org

Note: Project Manager must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to coumcil meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Contract Purpose

For the execution of a Iease Agreement authorizing the City of Jersey City to use 27 parking spaces in the
patking lot located at 3000 John F, Kennedy Boulevard at the rate of $120.00 per parking space per month for
the term, commencing October 1, 2014 and expiring six months thereafter on March 31, 2015; with an option
to renew the lease for a period of six months.

Cost (Identify all sources and amounts) Contract term (include all proposed renewals)
27 total spaces at $120/per space/per month October 1, 2014 through March 31, 2015; with
an option to renew the lease for six months
thereafter.

Type of award | Not applicable

H “Other Exception”, enter type

Additional Information

The 27 parking spaces are replacing the parking spaces which we were renting in the Central Parking
Garage. Our 5 year lease with Central was cancelled by the landlord because they are using a portion of the
property to construct a new building, If we want to enter into a new lease with Central Parking, the new
amount is $200.00 per space,

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate.
/

8|13

Signature of Pepartment Director Dat




LEASE AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT made this _____ day of August, 2014, between the CITY OF

JERSEY CITY, a Municipal Corporation of the State of New Jersey, with offices at City Hall,

280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 [City or Tenant] and 3000 KENNEDY BLVD,
LLC with officés at 3000 Kennedy Boulevard, Suite 313B, Jersey City, NJ 07306 {Landlord. |

Whereas, the City requires parking facilitics for employees whose offices are at One Journal

Square Plaza, Jersey City; and

Whereas, the Landlord operates a parking facility at 3000 John F. Kennedy Boulevard, Jersey
City, New Jersey 07306 (“Facility”); and

Whereas the Landlord agrees to permit the City to rent twenty-seven (27) parking spaces at the
Facility on a twenty-four (24) hour basis, Monday thru Sunday; and

Whereas, the City and Landlord desire to enter into this lease agreement for the rental of parking
spaces effective as of October 1, 2014 and expiring six (6) months thereafter on March 31, 2015,

with an option to renew the lease for an additional six (6) months thereafter.

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth herein, the

parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE!
‘ Premises
Landlord does hereby lease to the City and the City does hereby rent from the Landlord the
following premises: twenty-seven (27) parking spaces at the Facility, as depicted in Exhibit A.
During the lease term, the City shall have the right to reduce or increase the number of parking
spaces that it uses by as many as five (5) spaces, subject to the availability of the requested

number of spaces.




ARTICLE 11
Term

This lease agreement shall be for a term of six (6) months effective as of October 1, 2014 and
ending on March 31, 2015. The City shall have the option to renew this lease agreement for an
additional six (6) months upon one (1) month’s written notice to the Landlord.

ARTICLE 1T

Use

Under the terms of this lease, the City shall have the right to use and occupy twenty-seven (27)
parking spaces located at Licensor’s Facility. The City’s use of the leased spaces shall be
restricted to the list of vehicles listed on Exhibit B.

ARTICLE IV

Payment of Rent

The City agrees to pay Landlord as monthly rent for and during the term of this lease agreement
as follows: One Hundred Twenty Dollars ($120.00) per parking space per month, payable on the
first déy of each month. Payments must be mailed to Landlord’s office, 3000 John F. Kennedy
Boulevard, Suite 313B, Jersey City, New Jersey 07306. In the event that the City exercises its
right to decrease or increase the number of parking spaces, the monthly rent shall be reduced or

increased accordingly upon 30 days’ written notice to landlord prior to the following full month.

ARTICLEV
Property Damage/ Loss
The City shall hold Landlord harmless for any lost, stolen, or damaged property that is not due to

the recklessness or negligence of Landlord, its agents, employees, and/or officials.

The City also agrees to assume any charges associated with the towing of any of the City’s

vehicles parked in the Facility.




ARTICLE VI
Termination
The term of this lease is for six (6) months. Either party shall have the right to terminate the lease
at any time during its term by giving the other party ninety (90) days’ written notice prior to the

effective date of termination.

ARTICLE V11
Validity of Lease
The terms, conditions, covenants, and provisions of this Lease shall be deemed to be severable.
If any clause or provision herein contained shall be adjudged to be invalid or unenforceable by a
court of competent jurisdiction or by operation of any applicable law, it shall not affect the
validity or any other clause or provision herein, but such other clauses or provisions shall remain

in full force and effect.

ARTICLE VIII

Notices

All notices required under the terms of this Lease shall be given and shall be complete by
mailing such notices by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by hand delivery to the
addresses below:
City:

City of J.ersey City

Robert Kakoleski, CMFQO, Business Administrator

City Hall

280 Grove Street, Room 108
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302

Licensor:
3000 Kennedy Blvd, LL.C

3000 John F. Kennedy Blvd., Suite 313B
Jersey City, New Jersey 07306




ARTICLE IX
Entire Contract
This lease contains the entire agreement between the parties. No representative, agent, or
employee of the Landlord has been authorized to make any representations or promise with
reference to the within to vary, alter, or modify the terms hereof. No additions, changes or
modifications, renewals or extensions hereof, shall be binding unless reduced to writing and

signed by the Landlord and the City.

ARTICLE X
Insurance
The City agrees to supply Landlord with a certificate of insurance evidencing liability coverage
naming Landlord as an additional insured. The City shall supply Landlord with the certificate of
insurance prior to commencement of the lease, and such coverage shall remain in effect

throughout the term of the lease.

IN WITNESS WHEREOT, the parties to this agreement have executed this Lease

Agreement as of the day of August, 2014.

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY

ROBERT BYRNE ROBERT KAKOLESKI

City Clerk _ Business Administrator

WITNESS: CENTRAL PARKING SYSTEM OF
NEW JERSEY

By: By:

Title: Title:







City Clerk File No. Ord. 14.099

Agenda No. 3.H 1st Reading

Agenda No. 2nd Reading & Final Passage -

ORDINANCE
| OF
JERSEY CITY, N.J.

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

TITLE:

CITY ORDINANCE 14.099

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY TO
ENTER INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT AS LESSEE WITH JERSEY
CITY MUNICIPAL, L1.C AS LESSOR FOR OFFICE SPACE TO BE
CONSTRUCTED AT THE HUB ON A PORTION OF LOT 17,
BLOCK 21201 AT THE INTERSECTION OF KEARNEY AVENUE
AND MARTIN LUTHER KING DRIVE

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, the City of Jersey City (“City™) has a need for office space for the
Department of Health and Human Services, the Department of Public Safety, and the
Department of Housing Economic Development and Commerce; and

WHEREAS, Lot 17 in Block 21201 on the City’s Tax Map is a 6.95 acre parcel of land
located near the intersection of Kearney Avenue and Martin Luther King Drive; and

WHEREAS, subject to the approval of this Lease Agreement by the City’s governing
body, Jersey City Municipal, LLC (“JCM”} intends to obtain a subdivision of Lot 17 to
establish a 0.556 acre vacant lot, purchase the vacant lot, and construct a three story office
building of approximately 60,000 square feet (“Property”) which the City will lease; and

WHERFEAS, the term of the Lease Agreement is twenty-five (25) vears with base rent
payments commencing on the date of substantial completion of the building which is
expected to oceur approximately October 3, 2016; and

WHEREAS, JCM offers to lease 60,000 square feet of office space to the City at $21.40
per square foot for a monthly basic rent of $107,000.00 or $1,284,000.00 annually for the
first five years of the lease ferm; and

WHEREAS, the basic rent for years six (6) through twenty-five (25) of the lease term shalt
be accordance with Exhibit “B™ of the Lease Agreement attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, the City shall have the option to purchase the Property for $1.00 at the end of
the lease term; and

WHEREAS JCM will construct the “Base Building Work” described in Exhibit “C” of the
Lease Agreement aitached hereto; and

WHEREAS, JCM will perform on the City’s behalf the initial fitup work in or to the
building and shall provide the City with an allowance of $50.00 per square foot or
$3,000,000.00 for 60,000 square feet for the initial fit-up work; and

WHEREAS, the Lease Agreement is a triple net lease and City will be responsible for
maintenance and repair costs for the building and the costs for insurance, real estate taxes

O
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Continuation of City Ordinance 14.099 i \ page 2

and utilities; and

WHEREAS, N.J.S A. 40A:12-5 provides that a municipality may by ordinance acquire
property by Lease.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of
Jersey City that:

i. Subject to such modifications as may be deemed necessary or appropriate by
Corporation Counsel, the Mayor or Business Administrater is authorized to execute
a Lease in substantially the form attached with Jersey City Municipal, LLC for an
office building to be constructed at the HUB, on a 0,556 acre parcel of vacaat land
that is currently part of the 6.95 acres of land known as Lot 17 in Block 21201on the
City’s Tax Map;

2. The authorization for this Lease Agreement is subject to the construction by Jersey
City Munjcipal, LLC, at its own expense, of the improvements described in
paragraph C1 of Exhibit “C” of Lease Agreement attached hereto, and the
acceptance of the improvements by City Officials, If the improvements described
in C1 are not constructed, this Ordinance shafl be deemed to be void and of no
effect;

3. The term of the Lease Agreement is twenty-five (25) years cominencing on the date
of substantial completion of the improvements;

4. The rent, not including the expenses that are the responsibility of the City, for years
one through five of the lease term shall be $21.40 per square foot for a monthly
basic rent of $107,000 or $1,284,000 annually. - Subsequent years® rent shall be as
set forth in Schedule “B” of the attached Lease Agreement; and

5. Rent payments due to the Landlord and the payment of expenses that are the City’s
responsibility under the Lease shall be made anmually from budget appropriations
in the manner prescribed by law pursuant o the provisions of the Focal Budget
Law, N.J.S.A. 40A:4-1 et seq.

A, All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed,

B. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully
set forth therein.  The City Cletk shall have this ordinance cod1ﬁed and incorporated in the
official copies of the Jersey City Code.

C. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the marmmer as provided by law.

D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and
directed to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event
that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers
and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of
existing provisions.

NOTE: All material is new; therefore, underlining has been omitted.
For purposes of advertising only, new matter is indicated by bold face and
repealed matter by italic,

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:

APPROVED:

Gorporation Counsel Business Adminfstrator

Cerfification Required O

Not Required

n




RESOLUTION FACT SHEET - CONTRACT AWARD
This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any resolution that is submitted for Council consideration.

tncomplete or vague fact sheets will be retumed with the resolution.

¥ull Title of Ordinance/Resolution -

4

'

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY TO ENTER INTO A LEASE
AGREEMENT AS LESSEE WITH JERSEY CITY MUNICIPAL, LLC AS LESSOR FOR
OFFICE SPACE TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON AN APPROXIMATELY 0.556 ACRE PORTION
OF LOT 17 IN BLOCK 21201 ON THE TAX MAP OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY
LOCATED NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF KEARNEY AVENUE AND MARTIN LUTHER
KING DRIVE

Froject Manager

i h;par{nlent/})ivision Business Administration

= ame/Title Gregory Corrado, Asst, Business Administrator

Fhone/email 547-5561; Greg@jcnj.org

Note: Project Manager must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

i satract Purpese

L.ease Agreement between the City of Jersey City as the tenant and Jersey City Municipal, LLC as the
undlord for the landlord to construct and lease to the City an approximately 60,000 square foot office
tuilding, The building will be constructed on a 9.556 acrea of vacant land that is currently part of a 6.95
screa parcel of land known as Lot 17 in Block 212010n the City’s Tax Map. The site is located near the .
stersection of Kearney Avenue and Martin Luther King Drive. The City will use the building as office space
tor the Department of Public Safety, the Department of Health and Human Services, and the Depariment of
Housing Economic Development and Commerce.

Cost (Idenftify all sources and amounts) Contract ferm (include 21l propesed renewals)
, #wr years one through five of the {ease term shall be $21.40 25 years with an option to purchase the

| per square foot for a monthly basic rent of $107,000.00 or 2130

i $1.284,000.00 annually. Subsequent years’ rent shall be as bmldmg at the end of the lease term for $1 .00

E ~1 forth in Exhibit “B” of the Lease Agreement.

T'ype of award

If “Other Exception”, enter type |

Additional Information

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate,

Signature of Department Director Date




EXECUTION VERSION

LLEASE AGREEMENT
between
jERS%- Y CITY MUNICIPAL, LLC,
as Landlord
and
( ITY OF JERSEY CITY,
as Tenant

Dated , 2014
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This LEASE AGREEMENT (this “Lease™) is made as of this day of September,

2014, by and between JERSEY CITY MUNICIPAL, LLC, a : having an office at

, Attention: ("Landlord™), and the City OF JERSEY
Crty, a having its principal office at

, Attention: ‘ ("Tenant").

In consideration of the rerts and provisions herein stipulated to be paid and performed;

Landlord and Tenant hereby covenant and-agree as follows;

1. CERTAIN DEFINITH)NS.
(a) “Action” stall mean Action as defined in Paragraph 19(e).

{(b) “Additionsl Rent” shall mean all sums required to- be paid by Tenant

under this Lease other than Basic Rent, which sums shall constitute rental hereunder,

(c) “Adjoining Property” shall mean all sidewalks, curbs, gores and vault

spaces adjoining any of the Leased Premises.

(d) “Alteration™ or “Alterations” shall mean any or all changes, additions,
improvements, reconstructions or replacements of any of the Improvements, both interior or .

exterior, and ordinary and extraordinary.
(¢)  "Base Building Work" is defined in Exhibit C.
(f) “Basic Rent” shall mean Basic Rent as defined in Paragraph 4.

(g)  “Basic Rent Commencement Date” shall mean the earlier of the Date of

Substantial Completion and August 1, 2016.

- (h) “Basic Rent Payment Dates” shall mean the Basic Rent Payment Dates
as defined in Paragraph 4.

(1) “Basic Term” means the period from the Basic Rent Commencement
100224698 DOCX) '




Date to the Expiration Date,
§)] “Code” shall mean Code as defined in Paragraph 19(d).

(k) “Commencesment Date” shall mean the date on which Landlord shall
have acquired title to the Leased Premises subject to Permitted Encumbrances, it being
understood that a series of events must take place before such acquisition can occur (e.g., and not
by way of limitation, the subdivision of the land from a larger parcel of real property must be

approved and implemented).
) “Condemnation” shall mean a Taking and/or a Requisition.
(m) "Date of Substantial Completion" is defined in Exhibit C.

(n) . “Default Rate™ shall mean the default rate of interest under the first
Mortgage or if there is no Mortgage an annual rate of interest equal to the Prime Rate plus five
(5) percentage points, but in no event greater than the maximum interest rate permitted by Legal

Requirements.

(0) “Documents of Record” shall mean cach document recorded in the local
real estate records of the County where the Leased Premises are located and applicable to the

Leased Premises.

) “Environmental Claim” shall mean Environmental Claim as defined in

Paragraph 26(a).

(q)‘ “Environmental Laws” shall mean Environmental Laws as defined in

Paragraph 26(a).

(r) “Event of Default” shall mean an Event of Default as defined in

Paragraph 19,

(s) “Expiration Date” shall mean an Expiration Date as defined in

{60224698.DOCX}




Paragraph 3.
(t) "Fit-Up Work” shall mean the Fit-Up Work as defined in Section 49.
(w) “Guaranties” shall mean guaranties as defined in Paragraph 6(c).
(v) “Improvements” shall mean the Improvements as defined in Paragraph 2

(w)  “Indemnified Party” shall mean Indemnified Party as defined in
Paragraph 26(E).

x) “Insurance Requirement” or “Insuranée Requirements” shall mean,
as the case may be, arss one or more of the terms of each insurance policy required to be carried
by Tenant under this Lease and the requirements of the issuer of such policy, and whenever
Tenant shall be engaged in making any Alteration or Alterations, repairs or construction work of
any  kind (collectively, "Work"), the term "Insurance Requirement” or "Insurance
Requirements” shall be deemed to include a requirement that Tenant obtain or cause its
contractor to obtain completed value builder's risk insurance when the estimated cost of the
Work in any one instance exceeds the sum of $150,000 and that Tenant or its contractor shall
obtain worker's compensation insurance or other adequate insurance coverage covering all
persons employed in comnection with the Work, whether by Tenant, its contractors or
subcontractors and with respect to whom death or bodily injury claims could be asserted against
Landlord.

(y)  “Interim Term” shall mean the period from the Commencement Date to

the Basic Rent Commencement Date.
(z) = “Land” shall mean the Land as defined in Paragraph 2.

(aa)  “Leased Premises” shall mean the Leased Premises as defined in

Paragraph 2.

(bb)  “Legal Requirement” or “Legal Requirements” shall mean, as the case
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may be, any one or more of all present and future laws, codes, ordinances, orders, judgments,
de_crees, injunctions, rules, regulations and requirements, even if unforeseen or extraordinary, of
every duly constitut_ed governmental authority or dgency (but excluding those which by their
terms are not applicable to and do not impose any obligation on Tenant, Landlord or the Leased
Premises) and all covenants. restrictions and conditions now or hereafter of record which may be
applicable to Tenant, to Lasdlord or to any of the Leased Premises, or to the use, manner of use,
occupancy, possession, operation, maintenance, alteration, repair or reconstruction of any of the
Leased - Premises, even if compliance .therewith (i) necessitates structural changes or
improvements (including changes required to comply with the "Americans with Disabilities
Act") or results in interference with the use or enjoyment of any of the Leased Premises or (ii)

requires Tenant to carry insurance other than as required by the provisions of this Lease.

(cc)  “Lenmder” shall mean the entity or entities identified to Tenant as such in
writing, which makes a l.oan to Landlord, secured in Whole. or in part by a Mortgage and
evidenced by a Note or Notes or which is or are the holder of a Mortgage and Note(s) as a result
of an assignment of a whole or partial interest therein, and when a Mortgage secures multiple
Notes held by one or more noteholders, the trustee acting on Eehalf of such holders, provided

such trustee has been identified as such in writing to Tenant.

(dd) “Loan” shall mean a loan made by a Lender to Landlord secured in whole

or in part by a Mortgage and evidenced by a Note or Notes,
(ee) “Losses” shall mean Losses as defined in Paragraph 34.

(ffhi ~ “Materials of Environmental Concern” shall mean Materials of

Environmental Concern as defined in Paragraph 26(a).

gg) “Mortgage” shall mean a mortgage, deed of trust, deed to secure debt or
: gag

similar security instrument from Landlord to Lender that encumbers the Leased Premises.

(hh)  “Net Award” shall mean the entire award payable to Landlord by reason

of a Condemnation, less any actual and reasonable expenses incurred by Landlord in collecting
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such award.

(1)  “Net Proceeds” shall. mean the entire proceeds of any property casualty
insurance required under Paragraph 13(a), less any actual and reasonable expenses incurred by

Landlord or Tenant in collecting such proceeds.

(1) “Net Surplus Award” shall mean the Net Surplus Award as defined in
Paragraph 12(b).

{kk)  “Notice™ or “Notices” shall mean Notice or Notices as defined in

Paragraph 21.

1D “Note™ or “Notes” shall mean a promissory (or senior secured) note or
notes hereafter executed from landlord to Lender, which Note or Notes will be secured in whole
or in part ,by. a Mortgage and an assignment of leases and rents (which assignment of leases and

rents may be included within the Mortgage rather than in a separate document).

(mm) “Permitted Encumbrances” shall mean those covenants, restrictions,
reservations, liens, conditions, encroachments, easements and other matters of title that affect the
Leased Premises as of Landlord's acquisition thereof, and are recorded in the land records of the
county in which the Leased Premises are located (any unrecorded documents that are referenced
in a recorded document), but excepting any such matters arising from the acts of Landlord (such

as liens arising as a result of judgments against Landlord).

(nn)  “Person” shall mean any and all person(s) and/or entity(ies), including,

but not limited to, Landlord.

(00) “Prime Rate” shall mean the rate of interest announced publicly by
Citibank, N.A. or its successor, from time to time, as Citibank N.A.'s or such successor's base
rate, or if there be no such base rate, then the rate of interest charged by Citibank, N.A. or such
successor to its most creditworthy customers on commercial loans having a ninety (90) day
duration.
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(pp)  “Regulated Activity” shall mean the Regulated Activity as defined in
Paragraph 26(a).

(q@) . “Remedial .W,ork” shall mean the Remedial Work as defined in
Paragraph 26(a). -

- (r)  “Rent” shall mean Basic Rent and Additional Rent.

(ss)  “Requisition” shall mean any temporary condemnation or confiscation of
the use or occupancy of any of the Leased Premises by any governmental authority, civil or
military, whether pursuant to an agreement with such governmental authority in seftlement of or

under threat of any such requisition or confiscation, or otherwise.

()  “Restoration” shall mean the restoration of the Leased Premises after any
Taking or damage by casualty as nearly as possible to their value,' condition and character
existing immediately prior to such Taking or damage and shall inchude the demolition, planning,

and permitting periods required to complete such restoration.

(o)  “Restoration Award” shall mean- the Restoration Award as defined in -

Paragraph 12(D).

(vv) “Restoration Fund” shall mean the Restoration Fund as defined in

Paragraph 15.

(ww) “Restoration Notice” shall mean the'Restoration Notice as defined in

Paragraph 15(g).

(xx) “S&P” shall mean Standard & Poor’s, a division of The McGraw-Hill

Companies, Inc, its successors and/or assigns.
(yy)  “State” shall mean the State of New Jersey.

(zz)  “Taking” shall mean any transfer of title to any of the Leased Premises in
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or by condemnation or other eminent domain proceedings pursuant to any law, general or
special, or by reason of any agreement with any condemnor in settlement of or under threat of

any such condemnation or other eminent domain proceedings.

(aaa) *“Taxes” shall mean taxes of every kind and nature (including real, ad
valorem énd personal property, income, franchise, withholding, profits and gross“receipts taxes);
all charges and/or taxes for any easement or agreement maintained for the benefit of any of the
Leased Premises; all general and special assessments, levies, permits, inspection and license
fees; all utility charges, all ground rents, and all other public charges and/or taxes whether of a
like or different nature, even if unforeseen or extraordinary, imposed upon or assessed, prior to
or during the Term, against Landlord, Tenant or.any of the Leased Premises as a result of or
arising in respect of the occupancy, leasing, use, maintenance, operation, management, repair or
possession thereof, or any activity conducted on the Leased Premises, or the Basic Rent or
Additional Rent, including without limitation, any gross income tax, sales tax, use tax,
occupancy tax or excise tax levied by any governmental body on or with respect to such Basic

Rent or Additional Rent.
(bbb) "Tenant's Allowance" is defined in Paragraph 49.

(cce) “Tenant Insurance Payment” shall mean the Tenant Insurance Payment

as defined in Paragraph 14(c).

(ddd) “Term” shall mean the Interim Term and the Basic Term of this Lease, as

extended pursuant to any extension option that has become effective.

(eece) “Trade Fixtures” shall mean all items of personal property which (a) are
attached to the Improvements (b) owned by Tenant and used in the operation of the business
conducted on the Leased Premises and (¢) can be removed without material damage to the

Improvements.
(fff)  “Trustee” shall mean the Trusiee as defined in Paragraph 14(a).
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2. DEMISE OF PREMISES. Landlord hereby demises and lets to Tenant and Tenant
hereby takes and leases from Landlord for the Term and upon the provisions hereinafier specified
the following described property (collectively, the "Leased Premises"): (i) the premises
described in Exhibit "A' attached hereto and made a part hereof together with the easements,
rights and appurtenances thereunto belonging or appertaining (collectively, the "Land"); (ii) the
buildings, structures, fixtures and other improvements constructed and to be constructed on the
Land (collectively, the "Improvements"), and (iii) the equipment, together with all additions and

accessions thereto, substitutions therefor and replacements thereof permitted by this Lease.

3. TERM. Tenant shall have and hold the Leased Premises for an initial term
commencing on the Commencement Date and ending on the Basic Rent Commencement Date
(the “Interim Term?) and a Basic Term of 25 years (300 months) commencing on the Basic
Rent Commencement Date and ending on the last day of the 300" month thereafter (the
"Expiration Date").

4, RENT. (a) Tenant shall pay to Landlord or Lender, if so directed by Landlord or
Lender, as annual rent for the Leased Premises during the Basic Term ("Basic Rent"), the sums
set forth on Exhibit B, which rent shall be paid in equal monthly installments in advance
commencing on the Basic Rent Commencement Date and continuing on the same day of each
month thereafter during the Basic Term (the said days being called the "Basic Rent Payment
D‘ates”), and shall pay the same at Landlord's address set forth below, or at such other place or to
such other Persons (not exceeding two (2) in number) and in such proportions as Landlord from
time to time may designafe to Tenant in writing, in funds which at the time of such payment shall
be legal tender for the payment of public or private debts in the United States of America and if
required by Landlord or Lender by wire transfer in immediately available federal funds to such
account in such bank as Landlord or Lender, as the case may be, shall designate from time to
time, Whenever any payment hereunder shall be stated to be due on a day which is not a business

day, such payment shall be made on the first business day preceding such scheduled due date.

(b) . If any installment of Basic Rent is not paid on the date due, Tenant shall
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pay Landlord interest on such overdue payment at the Default Rate, accruing from the due date
of such payment uﬁtil the same is paid. If any installment of Basic Rent is not paid for a period
of three (3) days after notice of default thereof by Landlord or Lender, Tenant shall pay Landlord
a late éharge in an amount equal to the lesser of the late charge, if any, under the first Morigage
(and if there is no Mortgage five (5%) percent of the unpaid installment of Basic Rent) or the
highest late charge permitted by Legal Requirements. |

(c) Tenant shall pay and discharge before the imposition of any fine, lien,
interest or penalty may be added thereto for late payment thereof, as Additional Rent; all other
amounts and obligations which Tenant assumes or agrees to pay or discharge pursuant to this
Lease, together with every fine, penalty, interest and cost which may be added by the party to
whom such payment is due for nonpayrﬁent or late payment thereof. In the event of any failure
by Tenant to pay or discharge any of the foregoing, Landlord and Lender shall have all rights,
powers and remedies provided herein, by Jaw or otherwise, in the event of nonpayment of Basic
Rent. Any Additional Rent payable to Landlord shall be paid, within fifteen (15) days after
demand therefor, to the party to whom Basic Rent is paid.

(d) Anything set forth in this Lease or in any other document or under
applicable Legal Requirements or elsewhere to the contrary notwithstanding, (i) the obligation of
Tenant to pay Basic Rent shall commence on the Basic Rent Commencement Date and Tenant
shall be obligated to commence and continue to pay Basic Rent and Additional Rent regardless
of (A) Landlord’s, Landlord’s affiliate’s or any other party’s failure to commence or complete
the construction of the Improvements or punthist items or other obligations pertaining thereto,
(B) whether or not Tenant has accepted possession of the Improvements or any space therein,
(C) the availability of funds sufficient to complete the construction, punchlist items and other
obligations pertaining thereto, and/or (D} whether or not funds for such purposes have been
appropriated and (ii) Tenant shall have no right to abate or reduce rents or to terminate or cancel
this Lease or declare a constructive eviction or exercise any other remedies under this Lease or

under applicable Legal Requirements as a result of the events described in this Section 4.
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(e) If the Basic Rent Commencement Date is other than the first day of the
month, Tenant shall pay the prorated share of Basic Rent and Additional Rent. The parties shall
execute a Certificate of Commencemént of this Lease in recordable form confirming the Basic

Rent Commencement Date,

5. BOND LEASE. (a) It is the intention of the parties hereto that the obligations of

Tenant hereunder shall be separate and independent covenants and agreements, and that Basic
Rent, Additional Rent and all other sums payable by Tenant hereunder shall continue to be
payable in all events, and that the obligations of Tenant hereunder shall continue unaffected,
unless the requirement to pay or perform the same shall have been terminated pursuant to an
express provision of this Lease. This is a bond lease and Basic Rent, Additional Rent and all
other sums payable hereunder by Tenant shall .be paid without notice or demand, and without
setoff, counterclaim, recoupment, abatement, suspension, deferment, diminution, deduction,
reduction or defense. except as otherwise specifically set forth herein. This Lease shall not
.terminate and Tenant shall not have any right to terminate this Lease during the Term. Tenant
agrees that it shall not take any action to terminate, rescind or avoid this Lease notwithstanding (i)
the bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution,
winding-up or other proceeding affecting Landlord, (ii) the exercise of aﬁy remedy, including
foreclosure, under the Mortgage, (iil) any action with respect to this Lease (including the
disaffirmance hereof) which may be taken by Landlord under the Federal Bankruptcy Code or by
any trustee, receiver or liquidator of Landlord or by any court under the Federal Bankruptcy Code
or otherwise, (iv) the Taking of the Leased Premises or any portion thereof, (v) the prohibition or
restriction of Tenant's use of the Leased Premises under any Legal Requirement or otherwise, (vi)
the destruction of or damage '6r casualty to the Leased Premises or any portion thereof, (vii) the
eviction of Tenant from possession of the Leased Premises, by paramount ftitle, constructive .
eviction or otherwise, or (viii) default by Landlord hereunder or under any other agreement
between Landlord and/or any of its affiliates and Tenant. Tenant waives all rights which are not
expressly stated herein but which may now or hereafter otherwise be conferred by law to quit,
terminate of surrender this Lease or any of the Leased Premises; to any setoff, counterclaim,

recoupment, abatement, suspension, deferment, diminution, deduction, reduction or defense of or
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“to Basic Rent, Additional Rent or any other sums payable under this Lease, and for any statutory
[lien or offset right against Landlord or its property, each except as otherwise expressly provided

herein.

(B) All costs and expenses (other -than depreciation, interest on and
amortization of debt incurred by Landlord, and costs incurred by Landlord in financing or
lreﬁnancing the Leased Premises) and other obligations of every kind and nature whatsoever
relating to the Leased Premises and the appurtenances thereto and the use and occupancy thereof
which may arise or become due and payable prior to the expiration or earlier termination of the
Term (whether or not the same shall become payable during the Term or thereafter) shall be paid

and performed by Tenant. -

(c) Tenant shall pay difectly to the proper authorities charged with the .

collection thereof all chargés for water, sewer, gas, oil, electricity, telephone and other_utilities or

‘ services used or consumed on the Leased Premises during the Term, whether designated as a
charge, tax, assessment, fee or otherwise, including, without limitation, water and sewer use
charges, impact fees and taxes, if any, all such charges, fees and taxes to be paid as the same
from time to time become due. It is understood and agreed that Tenant shall be responsible, as
part of The Fit-Up Work, for distribution of utilities throughout the Improvements and for
making arrangements with the utility companies for commencement of services, Landlord shall
be under no obligation to furnish any utilities to the Leased Premises and shall not be liable for

. any interruption or failure in the supply of any such utilitics to the Leased Premises.

6. TITLE AND CONDITION. (a) The Leased Premises are demised and let subject to

 the Permitted Encumbrances and all Legal Requirements and Insurance Requirements, including
any existing violation of any thereof, without representation or warranty by Landlord; it being
understood and agreed, however, that the recital of the Permitted Encumbrances herein shall not

“be construed as a revival of any thereof which for any reason may have expifed.

(b)y  Without limiting the .effect of Landlord's covenant set forth in Paragraph

8(c), the Landlord makes no, and expressly hereby denies any, representations or warranties
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regarding the condition or suitability of, or title to, the Leased Premises. Tenant agrees that, with
respect to matters affecting ftitle, it fakes the Leased Premises "AS IS," without any such

representation or warranty.

{c) Landlord hereby conditionally assigné, without recourse or warranty
whatsoever, to Tenant, all warranties, guaranties and indemnities, express or implied, and similar
rights which Landlord may have against any manufacturer, seller, engineer, contractor or builder
in respect of any of the Leased Premises, including, but not limited to, any rights and remedies
existing under contract or pursuant to the Uniform Commercial Code (collectively, the
"guaranties”). Such assignment shall remain in effect so long aé no Event of Default exists
hereunder or until the efcpiration or sooner termination of this Lease. Landlord shall alse retain
the right to enforce any guaranties so assigned in the name of Tenant upon the occurrence of an
Event of Default. Landlord hereby agrees to execute and deliver at Tenant's sole cost and
expense such further documents, including powers of attorney, as Tenant may reasonably request
(and which in the good faith judgment of Landlord, do not adversely affect a substantial interest
of Landlord), in order that Tenant may have the full benefit of the assignment effected or
intended to be effected by this Paragraph 6. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default or the
expiration or termination of this Lease, the guaranties shall automatically revert to Landlord.
The foregoing provision of reversion shall be self-operative and no _further instrument of
reassignment shall be required. In confirmation of such reassignment, Tenant shall execute and
deliver promptly any certificate or other instrument whiéh Landlord may request at Tenant's sole
cost and expense. Additionally, upon the occurrence of an Event of Default or the expiration or
sooner termination of this Lease, Tenant shall, at Landlord’s request and at Tenant’s sole cost
and expense, assign to Landlord all claims against third parties for damages to the Leased
Premises to the extent that such damages are Tenant’s responsibility to répair pursuant to the
provisions of this Lease, and all warranties, guaranties and indemnities, express or implied, and
similar rights which Tenant may have against any manufacturer, seller, engineer, contractor or
builder in respect of any of the Leased Premises, including, but not limited fo, any rights and
remedies existing under contract or pursuant to the Uniform Commercial Code. Any monies

collected by Tenant under any of the guaranties or under the prior sentence after the occurrence
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of and during the continuation of an Event of Default shall be held in trust by Tenant and
promptly paid over to Landlord. -

7. TAXES; INSURANCE AND LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. (a) Tenant  shall,

subject to the provisions of Paragraph 18 hereof relating to contests, no later than fifteen (15)

days before interest or penalties are due thereon, pay and- discharge all Taxes and provide
Landlord with a paid receipt therefor. Nothing herein shall obligate Tenant to pay, and the term
"Taxes" shall exclude, federal, state or local (i) franchise, capital stock or similar taxes, if any, of
Landlord, (ii) income, excess profits or other taxes, if any, of Landlord, determined on the basis
of or measured by its net income, or (iii) any éstate, inheritance, succession, gift, capital levy or
similar taxes unless the taxes referred to in clauses (i) and (i) above are in lieu of or a substitute
for any other tax or assessment upon or with respect to any of the Leased Premises which, if
such other tax or assessment were in effect at the commencement of the Term, would be payable
by Tenant. In the event that any assessment against any of the Leased Premises may be paid in
installments, Tenant shall have the option fo pay such assessment in installments; and in such
event, Tenant shall be liable only for those installments (and all resulting interest thereon) which
become due and payable in respect of the Term. Tenant shall prepare and file all tax reports
required by governmental authorities which relate to the Taxes. If Tenant is not permitted to file
any tax reports or pay any Taxes directly to the applicable governmental authorities, Tenant shall
remit such Taxes, no later than fifteen (15) business days prior te the date when due, to Landlord
and, at Landlord’s request, shall cooperate with Landlord in the preparation of such tax reports.
Landlord, at Tenant’s éxpense, shall prepare and file such tax reports and pay such Taxes to the
applicable governmental authorities until Tenant has obtained permission to do so. Promptly
after the date hereof, Tenant shall endeavor to obtain permission to file all tax reports and pay
Taxes directly to the applicable governmental authorities. Tenant shall deliver to Landlord and
Lender, upon receipt, copies of all setflements and notices pertaining to the Taxes which may be
issued by any governmental authority and, prior to delinquency, receipts for payments of all

Taxes made during each calendar year of the Term.

(b) Tenant shall promptly comply with and conform to all Legal
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Requirements, all Documents of Record and all Insurance Requirements, subject to the

provisions of Paragraph 18 hercof,

8. USE. (a) Tenant may use the Leased Premises for any lawful purpose other than
any use that will (i) have an adverse effect on the value of the Leased Premises, (ii) increase the
likelihood “that Tenant, Landlord or Lender would incur liability under any provisions of
Environmental LaWs, as defined in Paragraph 26 of this Lease, or (iii) result or give rise to any
environmental deterjoration or degradation of the Leased Premises. In no event shall the Leased
Premises be used as a dry cleaners or for any purpose which shall violate any of the provisions of

-any Permitted Encumbrances applicable to the Leased Premises either specifically or through
broader application to any center or industrial park of which the Leased Premises may be a part.
Tenant agrees that with respect to any such Permitted Encumbrances, Tenant shall observe,
perform and comply with and carry out the provisions thereof required therein to be observed and
performed by Landlord. If under applicable zoning laws, the use of all or any portion of the
Leased Premises is or shall become a non-conforming right, Tenant shall not cause or permit such

non-conforming right to be discontinued or abandoned.

(b) Subject to Tenant's rights of contest under Paragraph 18 hereof, Tenant
shall not permit any unlawful occupation, business or trade to be conducted on any of the Leased
Premises or-any use to be made thereof contrary to applicable Legal Requirements or Insurance
Requirements. Subject to Tenant's rights of contest under Paragraph 18 hereof, Tenant shall not
use, occupy or permit any of the Leased Premises to be used or occupied, nor do or permit
anything to be done in or on any of the Leased Premises, in a manner which would (i) violate any
certificate of occupancy or equivalent certificate affecting any of the Leased Premises, (i) make

. void or voidable any insurance which Tenant is required hereunder to maintain then in force with
respect to any of the Leased Premises, (iii) affect in any manner the ability of Tenant to obtain
any insurance which Tenant is required to furnish hereunder, (iv) cause any injury or damage to
any of the Improvements unless pursuant to Alterations permitted under Paragraph 11 hereof, or

(v) constitute a public or private nuisance or waste.
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(c) Subject to all of the provisions of this Lease, so long as no Event of
Default exists hereunder, Landlord covenants that neither it nor any party claiming by, through
or under it, shall do any act to disturb the peaceful and quiet occupation and enjoyment of the
Leased Premises by Tenant. Landlord may enter upon and examine any of the Leased Premises
at reasonable times after reasonable notice and during business hours and exercise any rights and
privileges granted to Landlord under the provisions of this Lease. During an Event of Default or
in an emergency, Landlord's access to the Leased Premises shall not be restricted as provided in

the immediately preceding sentence. |

9. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR, (a) Tenant shall at all times; including, but not

limited to, any Requisition period, put, keep and maintain the Leased Premises, including, without
limitdtion, the roof, landscaping, parking areas, walls (interior and exterior), footings, foundatioﬁs
and structural components of the Leased Premises, and the Adjoining Property, in good repair and
appearance, and shall promptly make all repairs and replacements (substantially equivalent in
quality and workmanship to the original work) of every kind and nature, whether foreseen or
unforeseen, which may be required to be made upon or in connection with any of the Leased
Premises in order to keep and maintain the Leased Premises in good condition and order of repair,
except for ordinary wear and tear, Tenant shall do or cause others to do all shoring of the Leased
Premises or Adjoining Property or of foundations and walls of the Improvements and every other -
act necessary or appropriate for preservation and safety thereof, by reason of or in connection
with any excavation or other building operation upon any of the 'Leased Premises or Adjoining
Property, whether or not Landlord shall, by reason of any Legal Requirements or Insurance
Requirements, be required to take such action or be liable for failure to do so. Landlord shall not
be required to make any repair, whether foreseen or unforeseen, or to maintain any of the Leased
Premises or Adjoining Property in any way, and Tenant hereby expressly waives the right to
make repairs at the expense of the Landlord, which right may otherwise be provided for in any
law now or hereafter in effect. Tenant shall, in all events, make all repairs for which it is
responsible hereunder promptly, and all repairs shall be in a good, proper and workmanlike

manner,
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(b)  If Tenant shall be in default under any of the provisions of this Paragraph

9, Landlord or Lender may, after thirty (30) days Notice to Tenant and failure of Tenant to
‘commence to cure during said period or to diligently prosecute such cure to completion once
begun, but immediately upon notice in the event of an emergency (that is, imminent danger of
injury to person'é or property), do whatever is necessary to cure such default as may be
reasonable under the circumstances for the account of and at the expense of Tenant. In the event
of an emergency, before Landlord or Lender may avail itself of its rights under this Paragraph
9(b), Landlord or Lender, as the case may be, shall send- Notice to '_Tenant of the situation by
phone, electronic mail or other available ‘communication. Al actual and reasonable costs and
expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses) so incurred by
Landlord or Lender, together with interest thereon at the Default Rate from the date of payment
or incurring- the expense, shall coﬂstitute Additional Rent payable by Tenant under this Lease
and shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord or Tender (as applicable) on demand. Landlord and
- Tenant agree that, in the event of an emergency, expenditures which might otherwise be

unreasonable (such as overtime) may nevertheless be reasonable under the circumstances.

{c) Tenant shall from time to time replace with other similar operational
equipment or parts any of the mechanical systems 'dr other equipment included in the
Improvements which shall have become worn out, obsolete or unusable for tl_le purpose for
which it is intended, been taken by a Condemnation as provided in Paragraﬁh 12, or been lost,
stolen, damaged .or destroyed as provided in Paragraph 14. Tenant shall repair at its sole cost

- and expense all damage to the Leased Premises caused by the rem0§a1 of equipment or any other
personal property of Tenant at any time, including upon expiration or earlier termination of this

Lease.

| 10. LIENS. Tenant shall not, directly or indirectly, create or permit to be created or to
;emain, and shall discharge, within fifteen (15) days after the lien is filed, any lien on any of the
Leased Premises, on the Basic Rent, Additional Rent or on any other sums payable by Tenant
under this Lease, other than the Mortgage (and any assignment of leases, rents or profits collateral

thereto), the Permitted Encumbrances and any mortgage, lien, encumbrance or other charge
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created by or resulting from any act or omission by Landlord or those claiming By, through or
under Landlord except Tenant. Tenant shall provide Landlord with a copy of any notice of lien

within five (5) business days after Tenant’s receipt of such notice of lien.

11. ALTERATIONS. Tenant may make any Alterations without the prior written

consent of the Landlord provided such Alterations comply with all of the following provisions:
(a) the fair market value of the Leased Premises shall not be lessened as a result of any such
Alteration, nor shall the structural integrity of the Leased Premises be impaired; (b) the Alteration
and any Alteration theretofore made or thereafter to be made shall not in the aggregate reduce the
gross floor area of the Improvements, nor shall any such Alteration materially adversely atfect
access to the Improvements; (¢) the Alteration shall be performed in a good and workmanlike
manner, and shall be expeditiously completed in compliance with all Legal Requirements, (d) all
work done in connection with any such Alteration shal-l comply with all Insurance 'Réquirements,
(e) Tenant shall promptly pay all costs and expenses of any such Alieration, and shall discharge
all liens filed against the Leased Premises arising out of the same, (f) Tenant shall procure and
pay for all permits and licenses required in connection with any such Alteration, (g) all such
Alterations shall be the property of Landlord and shall be subject to this Lease, (h) any Alteration
the estimated cost of which exceeds $150,000 shall be made under the supervision of a licensed
architect or engineer in accordance with detailed plans and specifications which shall be
submitted to Landlord and Lender at least thirty (30) days prior to the commencement of the
Alterations; and shall be secured by cash or unconditional letter of credit (in such form and issued
by an institutional lender reasonably acceptable to Landlord and lender) equal to 125% of the
estimated cost of the Alteration. Upon completion of any Alteration in excess of $150,000,

Tenant will provide as-built plans and specifications or record drawings to Landlord and Lender.

12. CONDEMNATION. (a) Immediately upon obtaining knowledge of the institution of

any proceeding for Condemnation, Tenant shall notify Landlord and Lender thereof and Landlord
and Lender shall be entitled to participate in any Condemnation proceeding at Tenant's expense,
Landlord and Lender, immediately upon obtaining knowledge of the institution of any proceeding

for Condemnation, shall notify Tenant thereof and Tenant shall have the right to participate in
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such proceedings at its own expense. Subject fo the provisions of this Paragraph 12 and
Paragraph 15, Tenant hereby irrevocably assigns to Lender or to Landlord, in that order, any
award or payment in respect of any Condemnation, except that Tenant does not assign to Lender
or to Landlord any award or payment on account of Tenant’s Trade Fixtures or other tangible
personal property, moving expenses and similar claims, if available, to the extent Tenant shall
have a right to make a separate claim therefor against the condemnor; it being agreed, however,
that Tenant shall in no event be entitled to any payment that reduces the award or payment to

which either iender or Landlord is or would be entitled for the Condemnation.

(b) Subject to the requirements of Paragraph 15, the Net Award of such
Condemnation shall be retained by Lender, if any, or, if no Lender, then Landlord and, promptly
~ after such Condemnation, Tenant shall commence and diligently continue to perform the
Restoration whether or not the Net Award shall be sufficient to do so. Upon the payment to
Lender or Landlord of the Net Award of a Taking which falls within the provisions of this
subparagraph (b), Landlord and Lender shali, to the extent received, make that portion of the Net
Award equal to the cost of Restoration (the "Restoration Award") available to Tenant for
Restoration, in accordance with the provisions of Parégraph 15 (as if Landlord or Lender were
acting as Trustee and the Restoration Award were the Restoration Fund) and the balance
remaining (the “Net Surplus Award”™) shall be the pfoperty of Lender or Landlord, in that order,
and shall be applied, at Lender’s or Landlord’s option, in that order, as follows: Tenant shall
receive that portion of the Net Surplus Award equal to the present value (calculated at a discount
rate of 12%) of the reductions in the Basic Rent that would have occurred had Lender or
Landlord, as the case may be, elected to retain the entire Net Surplus Award and give Tenant a
reduction in Basic Rent in the same proportion as the percentage of the building area subject to
the Taking; that portion of the Net Surplus Award in excess of the amount so received by Tenant
shall be retained by Lender, if any, or, if no Lender, then Landlord; and the Basic Rent shall not

be reduced.

{c) In the event of a Réquisition of any of the Leased Premises,
Landlord shall apply the Net Award of such Requisition, to the extent available, to the
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instaHments of Basic Rent, Additional Rent or other sums payable by Tenant hereunder
thereafter payable and Tenant shall pay any and all unpaid balance remaining thereafter. Upon
the expiration of the Term, any portion of such Net Award that shall not previously have been
credited td Tenant on account of the Basic Rent and Additional Rent shall be retained by
Landlord. |

(d)  Except with respect to an award orrpayment to which Tenant is entitled
pursuant to the foregoing provisions of this Paragraph 12, no agreement with any condemnor in
setilement of or under threat of any Condemnation shall be made by either Landlord or Tenant
without the written consent of the other, and of Lender, if the I.eased Premises are then subject to
a Mortgage, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed provided such award

or payment is applied in accordance with this Lease.

13, INSURANCE. (a) Tenant shall maintain at its sole cost and expense the

following insurance on the Leased Premiscs:

(i) Insurance against loss or damage to the Improvements under an

ISO “Special Form” Policy (or its equivalent) which shall include terrorism insurance (unless
unavailable under such form of insurance policy), flood insurance (if the Leased Premises are in
a flood zone) and earthquake insurance (if customarily required by lenders for property similar
to, and in an area which has a similar earthquake potential as, the Leased Premises), and which
may otherwise contain other exclusions if endorsements providing insurance for such exclusions
are either not available or cannot be obtained at a commercially reasonable premium, in amounts
to prevent Landlord or Tenant from becoming a co-insurer under the applicable policies, and in
any event in amounts not less than 100% of the full, actual replacement cost of the
Improvements (excluding footings and foundations and parts of the Improvements which are not

insurable) and which may contain a deductible of not more than $150,000.

(ii)  Contractual and commercial general liability insurance against
claims for bodily injury, death or property damage occurring on, in or about any of the Leased

Premises or the Adjoining Property, which insurance shall be written on a so-called "occurrence
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basis," and shall provide minimum protection with a combined single limit in an amount not less
than $5,000,000 (or in such increased limits from time to time to reflect declines from the date
hereof in the puréhasing power of the dollar as Landlord or Lender may reasonably requeét) and

which may contain a deductible of not more than $50,000.

(iiiy  Worker's compensation insurance ‘covering all persons employed
by Tenant on the Leased Premises in connection with any work done on or about any of the

Leased Premises.

_ (iv)  Pollution legal liability, on a claims-made policy form, with limits
of $10,000,000 for each incident and $15,000,000 in the aggregate (as of each annual policy
renewal date), with a deductible of not more than $100,000 per incident with respect to the
Leaséd Premises (including the Motor Fuels Equipment), providing coverage for on-site clean-up
expenses and third party claims ariging out of pollution conditions, as set forth in the form of

policy provided to Landlord prior to the Commencement Date.

(v)  Rental loss insurance covering a period of 18 months in an amount -

equal to all Basic Rent and Additional Rent payable under this Lease over the immediately
following 18-month period; the amount of such rental loss insurance shall be increased from time

to time as and when Basic Rent and/or Additional Rent payable under this Lease increases,

(vi)  If terrorism insurance is unavailable under the type of policy
described in Section 13(a)(i) above, a separate all risk terrorism policy covering the Leased
Premises in an amount not less than the actual replacement cost of the Improvements and which

may contain a deductible of not more than $50,000.

(b)  The insurance required by Paragraph 13(a) shall be written by companies

having a claim rating ability of not worse than AA from S&P. All companies providing

insurance required by Paragraph 13(a) shall be authorized to do an insurance business in the
State or otherwise agreed to by Landlord and Lender. The insurance policies shall be for a term

of not less than one year, and shall (except for worker's compensation insurance and the
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insurance required under Paragraph 13(a)(i) above) name Landlord, Tenant and any Lender as
additional insured parties, as their respective interests may appear and shall name Lender, if any,
as mortgagee and loss payee on the insurance required under Paragraph 13(a)(i) above. If said
- insurance or any part thereof shall expire, be withdrawn, become void By breach of any condition
thereof by Tenant or beéome void for any other reason or should the insurer’s rating decrease to
a rating worse than AA from S&P as required above, Tenant shall immediately obtain new or

additional insurance that satisfies the requirements of this Lease.

(¢)  Each insurance policy referred to above shall, to the extent applicable,

contain standard non-coniributory mortgagee clauses in favor of any Lender, As evidence of the '

insurance specified in Paragraph 13(a)(i).(iv), (v) and (vi), required to be maintained by Tenant,
Tenant shall deliver to Landlord and Lender an ACORD 28 (2003) Evidence of Property
Insurance or other certificate providing at least the same assurances (or, if limited by Legal

Requirements, then a certificate providing as many of the same assurances as allowed by

applicable law). 'As evidence of the insurance specified in Paragraph 13(a)(ii) and (iii), required -

to be maintained by Tenant, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord and Lender an ACORD 25

Certificate of Insurance or other certificate providing at least the same assurances. Each such.

ACORD certificate shall provide that the insurance company will give Landlord and Lender at
least 30 days written notice prior to the termination or cancellation of, or changes to, the policy.
Each policy required td be carried by Tenant shall also provide that any loss otherwise payable
thereunder shall be payable notwithstanding (i) any act or omission of Landlord, or Tenant which
might, absent such provision, result in a forfeiture of all or a part of such insurance payment, (ii)
the occupation or use of any of the Leased Premises for purposes more hazardous than permitied
" by the provisions of such- policy, (iii) any foreclosure or other action or proceeding taken by any
Lender pursuant to any provision of the Mortgage upon the happening of an event of default
therein, or (iv) any change in title or ownership of any of the Leased Premises. If requested by

Lender, Tenant shall deliver a copy of the requested insurance policy to Lender.

(d) Tenant shall pay, at least thirty (30) days before they become due, -all
premiums for the insurance required by this Paragraph 13, shall renew or replace each policy and
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shall deliver to Landlord and Lender, the appropriate assurances for such remewals or
replacements in accordance with the provisions of this Paragraph 13 at least thirty (30) days
before expiration of the then-effective coverage. In the event of Tenant's failure to maintain any
of the insurance required by this Paragraph 13, Landlord or Lender shall be entitled to procure
such insurance. Any sums expended by Landlord or Lender in procuring such insurance shall be
Additional Rent and shall be repaid by Tenant, together with interest thereon at the Default Rate,
from the time of payment by Landlord or Lender until fully repaid by Tenant immediately upon

written demand therefor by Landlord or Lender, as the case may be.

(e) Anything in this Paragraph 13 to the contrary notwithstanding, any
insurance which Tenant is required to obtain pursuant to Paragraph 13(a) may be carried under a
"blanket" policy or policies covering other properties or liabilities of Tenant, provided that such
"blanket" policy or policies shall specifically allocate to the Leased Premises the amount of
coverage from time to time required hereunder and shall otherwise provide the same protection
as would a separate policy insuring only the Leased Premises in compliance with the provisions
of this Paragraph 13. In the event any such insurance is carried under a blanket policy, Tenant
shall deliver to Landlord and Lender upon request a certified copy of those provisions of the
blanket policy that pertain to the Leased Premises to evidence the issuance and effectiveness of
the policy, the amount and character of the coverage with respect to the Leased Premises and the
presence in the policy of provisions of the character required in the above sections of this

P'aragraph 13.

(f) Tenant hereby waives any and all rights of recovery against Landlord and
Lender, or against their respective officers, employees, agénts or representatives, for loss df or
damage to property or the property of others under its control, if such loss or damage is covered
by any insurance policy (whether or not described in this Lease) in force, or required by the
terms of this Lease to be in force at the time of such loss or damage. Tenant shall obtain for the .
benefit of Landlord and Lender on any property insurance policy reqﬁired hereunder a waiver of
any right of subrogation which the insurer might otherwise acquire against Landlord or Lender

(or such party’s officers, employees, agents or representatives) by virtue of the payment of any
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loss covered by insurance or otherwise,

14. DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION. (a} In the event of any casualty loss exceeding

$150,000, Tenant shall give Landiord and Lender immediate notice thereof, Tenant shall adjust
and compromise any and all such claims, with the consent of Lender and Landlord, not to be
unreasonably withheld or delayed and Landlord and Lender shall have the right to join with
Tenant therein. All proceeds shall be paid to a Trustee which shall be a federally insured bank or
other financial institution, selected by Landlord and Tenant and reasonably satisfactory to Lender
(the "Trustee"). If the Leased Premises shall be covered by a Mortgage, Lender, if it so desires,
shall be the Trustee. Each insurer is hereby authorized and directed to make payment under said
policies directly to stuch Trustee instead of to Landlord and Tenant jointly; and Tenant hereby
appoints such Trustee as Tenant's attorney-in-fact to endorse any draft therefor for the purposes
set forth in this Lease after approval by Tenant of such Trustee, if Trustee is other than Lender,

such approval not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

(b)  In the event of any casualty (whether or not insured against) resulting in
damage to the Leased Premises or any part thereof, the Term shall nevertheless continue and
theré shall be no abatement or reduction of Basic Rent, Additional Rent or any other sums
payable by Tenant hereunder. The Net Proceeds of such insurance payment shall be retained by
the above-mentioned Trustee and, promptly after such casualty, Tenant shall commence and
diligently continue to perform the Restoration to the Leased Premises. Upon payment to the
Trustee of such Net Proceeds, the Trustee shall, to the extent available, make the Net Proceeds
available to Tenant for restoration, in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 15. Tenant
shall, whether or not the Net Proceeds are sufficient for the purpose, promptly repair or replace
the Improvements as nearly as possible to their value and condition and character immediately
prior to such event and otherwise in accordance with all Insurance Requirements and Legal
Requirements and the provisions of this Lease (including Tenant's making any desired
Alterations allowed hereunder) and the Net Proceeds of such loss shall thereupon be payable to

Tenant, subject to the provisions of Paragraph 15 hereof.
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-(¢) © In the event that any da:mage or destruction shall occur at such time as
Tenant shall not have maintained insurance in accordance with Paragraph 13(a)(i), or if such
insurance is maintained with a deductible permitted by this Lease Tenant shall pay to the Trustee
the amount of the proceeds that wbuld. have been payable had such insurance program been in

effect or the amount of the deductible, as the case may be (the "Tenant Insurance Payment").

15. RESTORATION. The Net Proceeds and Tenant Insurance Payment (the aggregate

of which and any interest thereon being herein defined as the "Restoration Fund") paid to the

Trustee shall be disbursed by the Trustee in accordance with the following conditions:

{(a) At the time of any disbursement, no Event of Default shall exist and no

mécham'cs‘ or materialmen's liens shall have been filed and remain undischarged and unbonded.

(b) If the cost of Restoration exceeds $150,000, prior to commencement of the
Restoration, the architects, contracts, contractors and plans and specifications for the Restoration.
shall have been approVed by Landlord and Lender, which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld or delayed. |

5

()  Each request for disbursement shall be accompanied by a certificate of
Tenant, signed by Tenant's architect or other professional designated by Tenant, describing the
completed work for 'which payment is requested, stating the cost incurred in connection
therewith and stating that Tenant has not previously received payment for such work and the
certificate to be delivered by Tenant upon completion of the work shall, in addition, state that the
work has been completed and complies with the applicable requirements of thié Lease and all

Legal Requirements and Insurance Requirements.

(d)  Disbursements shall be made from time to time in an amount not
exceeding the cost of the work completed since the last disbursement upon receipt by Landlord
and Lender of (1) satisfactory evidence, including architects' certificates, of the stage of
completion, of the estimated cost of completion and of performance of the work to date in a good

and workmanlike manner in accordance with the contracts and plans and speciﬁcatiéns approved
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by Landlord and Lender, (2) waivers of liens, (3} a satisfactory bring down of title insurance, and
{(4) other evidence of cost and payment so that Landlord and Lender can verify that the amounts
disbursed from time to time are represented by work that is completed in place and free and clear

of mechanics’ liens and mechanics' lien enforcement actions.

(e) The Trustee, at Landlord's or Lender's election, shall retain ten (10%) -

percent from each disbursement of the Restoration Fund until the Restoration is fully completed
and the Teased Premises are available for their intended use, in the reasonable judgment of the

Lender, including the issuance of any necessary certificate of occupancy.

(H Prior to commencement of Restoration and at any time during Restoration,
if the estimated cost of Restoration, as reasonably determined by Landlord or Lender, exceeds
the amount of the Restoration Fund, the amount of such excess shall be paid by Tenant to the
Trustee to be added to the Restoration Fund prior to any further disbursement or Tenant shall
fund at its own expense the costs of such Restoration until the remaining Restoration Fund is
sufficient for the completion of the Restoration. Except for the payment to Landlord or Lender
of the Net Surplus Award, referred to in Paragraph 12(b), any sum in the Restoration Fund which

remains in the Restoration Fund upon the completion of Restoration shall be paid to Tenant.

(g)  If Tenant does not diligently pursue the completion of the Restoration to
the satisfaction of Landlord, Landlord shall have the right to give written Notice to Tenant,
which notice shall specify the exact reason(s) Landlord maintains that Tenant is not pursuing the
completion of the Restoration (the “Restofation,Notice”). Upon receipt of the Restoration
-Notice, Tenant shall have thirty (30) days to either: (i) cure the deficiencies specified in the
Restoration Notice, or if such deficiency cannot be cured within such peridd of thirty (30) days,
‘such period shall be extended for such longer time as reasonably necessary provided that Tenant
has commenced to cure such deficiency within said i)eriod of thirty (30) days and is actively,
diligently and in good faith proceeding with continuity to remedy such failure; or (ii)
demonstrate to Landlord in writing, with sufficient supporting documentation attached, that to

the extent that Tenant is not hampered by a legal impediment not caused by Tenant (which shall
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include, without limitation, delays 6r stoppages caused by delays in the permitting process),
Tenant is actively, di_ligently, and .in good faith proceeding with continuity to complete the
Restoration. If Tenant fails to do either of the preceding within such thirty (30) day period,
Landlord shall have the right (without limiting its right to exercise its rights aﬁd reinedies under
Paragraphs 19 and 20) to take over control of the Restoration, in which event Landlord shall
have access to the Restoration Fund fo ioerform such Restoration. In such event, any sum which

remaing in the Restoration Fund upon the completion of the Restoration shall be paid to
Landlord.

16. SUBORDINATION TO FINANCING. (a)  Subject to the following provisions of
this Paragraph 16(a), Tenant agrees that this Lease shall, upon Landlord's and Lender's (if any)

written request, be subject and subordinate to the lien of any Mortgage, and Tenant agrees, upon
demand, ‘Withouf cost to Landlord or Lender, to execute instruments as may be requiréd to further
- effectuate of confirm such subofdination. So long as no Event of Default shall be outstanding,
Tenant's tenancy shall not be distufbed, nor shall this Lease be affected by any default under suéh
Moﬂgﬁge, and in the event of a foreclosur(_e or other enforcement of any such Mortgage, or sale in
lieu thereof, the purchaser at such foreclosure sale or pursuant to a deed in lieu thereof shall be
bound to Tenant for the Term of this Lease ai_1d any extensions thercof, the rights of Tenant
hereunder shall expressly survi\.ze, and this Lease shall in all respects contimlé in full force and
~ effect so long as no Event of Defauit by Tena.ﬁt has occurred and is continuing. So long as no
Event of Default by Tenant has occurred and is continuing, Tenant shall not be named as a party
 defendant in ansz such foreclosure suit, except as may be required by Legal Requirements. Any
Mortgage to which this Lease is now or hereafter subordinate shall provide, in effect, that during
the time this Lease is in force all insurance proceeds and condemnation awards shall be permitted

to be used for restoration in accordance with the provisions of this Lease.

(b) - Notwithstanding the provisions of subdivision (a) of this Paragraph 16, the
holder of the Mortgage to which this Lease is subject and subordinate, as provided in said
subdivision (a), shall have the right, at its sole option, at any time, to subordinate and subject the

Mortgage, in whole or in part, to this Lease by recording a unilateral declaration to such effect.
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() At any time prior to the expiration of the Term, Tenant agrees, at the
election and upon demand of any owner of the Leased Premises, or of Lender who has granted
non-disturbance to Tenant pursuant to Paragraph 16(a) above, to attorn, from time to time, to any
such owner or Lender, upon the then executory terms and conditions of this Lease, for the
remainder of the term originally demised in this Lease and for any renewal term, provided that
such owner or Lender shall then be entitled to possession of the Leased Premises subject to the
provisions of this Lease. The provisions of this subdivision (c) shallA inure to the benefit of any
such owner or Lender, shall apply notwithstanding that, as a matter of law, this Lease may
terminate upon the foreclosure of the Mortgage, shall be Self-opera'ti've upon any such demand,

- and no further instrument shall be required to give effect to said provisions.

(d)  Bach of Tenant and Landlord agrees that, if requested by the other, each
shall, without charge, enter into (i) a Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornment
Agreement reasonably requested by Lender, provided such agreement contains provisions
relating to non-disturbance in accordance with the provisions of subparagraph (a), and (ii) an
agreement with Lender whereby Tenant shall agree for the benefit of Lender that Tenant will not,
without in each case the prior written consent of Lender, (a) amend, modify, cancel or surrender
the term of this Lease except as expressly permitted by the provisions of this Lease, or enter into
any agreement with Landlord so to do, or (b) pay any installment of Basic Rent more than one
(1) month in advance of the due date thereof or otherwise than in the manner provided for in this

Lease.

17. ASSIGNMENT, SUBLEASING. (2) Tenant may not assign its interest in this

Lease. Tenant may sublease any portion(s) of the Leased Premises with the prior written consent
of Landlord, which consent shall not be unrecasonably withheld or delayed. No sublease shall
relieve Tenant of its obligations hereunder, which shall continue as the obligations of a principal
and not as the obligations of a surety or a guarantor. Notwithstanding any merger, consolidation
or sale (i) of the Tenant, (ii) of any parent, subsidiary or affiliate of the Tenant or (iii) of any or all
of the assets of th;e Tenanf or any parent, subsidiary or affiliate of the Tenant, the Tenant (and any

successor of the Tenant by such merger, sale or consolidation) shall continue to be obligated for
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afl of the Tenant’s obligations hereunder without any abatement, diminution, set-off, reduction,
rebate, termination, or decrease. The joint and several liability of Tenant named herein and any
immediate and remote successor in interest of Tenant, and the due performance of the obligations
of this Lease on Tenant’s part to be performed or observed, shall not in any way be discharged,
released or impaired by any (i) agreement which modifies any of the rights or obligations of the
parties under this Lease, (ii) stipulation which extends the time within which an obligation under
this Lease is to be performed, (iii) waiver of the performance of an obligation required under this
Lease, or (iv) failure to enforce any of the obligations set forth in this Lease, unless in each case,

the same has been consented to by Landlord and Lender.

(b) Each sublease of the Leased Premises or any part thereof shall be subject
and subordinate to the provisions of this Lease, and a duplicate otiginal thereof shall be delivered
to Landlord and Lender within fifteen (15) days after the execution and delivery of such
sublease. Actions affecting the Leased Premises by the subtenant (including, but not limited to, a
holding over by a subtenant after the expiration or sooner termination of this Lease) shall also be

deemed actions taken by Tenant,

()  Upon the occurrence of an Fivent of Default under this Lease, Landlord
shall have the right to collect and enjoy all rents and other sums of money payable under any
sublease of any of the Leased Premises, and Tenant hereby irrevocably and unconditionally
assigns such rents and money to Landlord, which assignment may be exercised upon and after
(but not before) the occurrence .of an Event of Default. All subleases shall provide that upon
notice from Landlord and/or Lender of an Event of Default, all rent due under such sublease

shall be paid as so directed.

(d)  In the event of a termination of this Lease, any subtenant of the Leased
Premises shall, at the option of Landlord or Lender, exercisable within thirty (30) days after such
termination, attorn to Landlord. Each subtenant who hereafter takes an interest in the Leased
Premises shall be deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this Paragraph 17(d). Tenant

covenants that each sublease of the Leased Premises hereafter executed shall contain a clause
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expressly providing that the subtenant thereunder shall aftorn to Landlord, upon request of
TLandlord or Lender, in the event of a termination of this Lease, but the absence of such a clause
from any sublease shall not relieve the subtenant from the provisions of this Paragraph 17(d). In
the event Landlord and Lender expressly waive such right of attornment or do not timely
exercise the option to have a subtenant attorn as aforesaid, such sublease shall automatically

terminate,

18, PERMITTED CONTESTS. Notwithstanding any provision of this Lease to the

contrary, after prior Notice to Landlord and Lender, Tenant shall not be required to (i) pay any
Tax or (ii) comply with any Legal Requirement, so long as Tenant shall contest, in good faith and
at its expense, the existence, the amount or the validity thereof, the amount of the damages caused
thereby, or the extent of its or Landlord's liability therefor, by appropriate proceedings which shall
~ operate during the pendency thereof to prevent (v) the collection of, or other realization upon, the
Tax so contested, (w) the sale, forfeiture or loss of any of the Leased Premises, any Basic Rent or
any Additional Rent to satisfy the same or to pay any damages caused by the violation of the
same, (x) any interference with the use, occupancy, sale or financing of any of the Leased
Premises, (v) any interference with the payment of any Basic Rent or any Additional Rent, and ()
the cancellation of any fire or other insurance policy. Inno event shall Tenant pursue any contest
with respect to any Tax or Legal Requirement referred to above in such manner that exposes
Landlord, Tenant or Lender, to any criminal or civil liability, penalty or sanction. Tenant shall
provide Lender or Landlord in that order, as security for such contest, an amount of cash or
~ unconditional letter of credit (in such form and issued by an institutional lender reasonably
acceptable to Landlord and Lender) equal to 125% of the amount being contested. While any
such proceedings are pending and the required security is held by Lender or Landlord, in that
order, Lender or Landlord, as the case may be, shall not have the right to pay, remove or cause to
be discharged the Tax or Legal Requirement thereby being contested unless Landlord or Lender
reasonably believes that any one or more of the conditions in subdivisions (v) through (z) shall
not be prevented during the pendency of the contest. Tenant further agrees that each such contest
shall be promptly and diligently prosecuted to a final conclusion, except that Tenant shall, so long

as all of the conditions of the first sentence of this Paragraph 18 are at all times complied with,
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have the right to attempt to settle or compromise such contest through negotiations, Tenant shall
pay any and all judgments, decrees and costs (including all attorneys' fees and expenses) in

connection with any such contest and shall, promptly after the final determination of such contest,

fully pay and discharge the amounts which shall be Ievied; assessed, charged or imposed or be

determined to be payable therein or in connection therewith, together with all penalties, fines,

interest, costs and expenses thereof or in connection therewith, and perform all acts the

performance of which shall be ordered or decreed as a result thereof.

19. DEFAULT. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall
constitute an Event of Default under this Lease:

(a) Tenant's failure to make any payment of Basic Rent when due which
continues unremedied for a period of three (3) days, provided, however, Tenant shall not be
entitled to an opportunity to cure such default if Tenant has failed to make Basic Rent payments
on or before theldate when due on two (2) or more occasions within the previous twelve (12)

month period.

(b) Tenant's failure to make payment of Additional Rent or other sum herein
required to be paid by Tenant and such default shall continue for a period of ten (10) days after

notice by Landlord or Lender to Tenant.

(c) Tenant's failure to duly perform and observe the provisions of Paragraph
22(b) and such defanlt shall continue for a period of five (5) days after notice by Landlord or

Lender to Tenant.

(d)  Tenant's failure to duly perform and observe, or Tenant's violation or

breach of, any other provision hereof if such failure shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days
after notice thereof from Landlord or .Lender, or if such failure cannot be cured within such
period of thirty (30) dayé, such period shall be extended for such longer time as reasonably
necessary (not to exceed a total of ninety (90) days) provided that Tenant has commenced to cure

such default within said period of thirty (30} days and is actively, diligently and in good faith
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proceeding with continuity to remedy such failure. Tenant agrees that after receiving any such
notice of default referred to above in this subparagraph (d), Tenant shall, upon request of

Landlord or Lender, advise the requesting party of Tenant’s progress in curing such default.

| ()  Tenant becomes insolvent Withiﬁ the meaniﬁg of the United States
Bankruptcy Code, as amended (the "Code™"), files or notifies Landlord that it intends to ﬁle a
petition under the Code, initiates a proceeding under any similar law or statﬁte relating td
bankruptey, insolvency, reorganization, winding up or adjustment of debts (any of the foregoing
hereinafter referred to as, an "Action"), becomes thé_ subject of either a petition under the Code

or an Action, or is not generally paying its debts as the same become due.

(f) A court shall enter an order, judgment or decree appointing a receiver or
irustee for it or for any of the Leased Premises or approving a petition filed against Tenant which
seeks relief under the .bankruptcy or other similar laws of the United States, any state or any
jurisdiction, and such order, judgment or decree shall remain in force, undischarged or unstayed,

sixty days after it is entered.

() Tenant shall be liquidated or dissolved or shall begin prc')ceedi.ngs towards
its liquidation or dissolution, or shall, in any manner, permit the divestiture of all or substantially
all of its assets other than in cornection with a merger or consolidation of Tenant, as the casc
~ may be, into, or a sale of all or substantially all of Tenant’s assets to, another corporation
provided that the survivor of such‘merger or consolidation, or the purchaser of such assets, shall
assume all of Tenant’s obligations under this Lease by a written instrument, in form and
substance satisfactory to Landlord and Lender, accompanied by an opinion of counsel,
saiisfactory to Landlord and Lender, stating that such -instruﬁlent of assumption is valid, bind_ing
.and enforceable against the parties thereto in accordance with its terms, and provided further
that, immediately after giving effect to any such merger or consolidation or sale of such assets,
the survivor of such merger or consolidation, or the purchaser of such assets, as the case may be,
shall have a consolidated tangiblé net wofth equal or gi‘eater than that of Tenant, as the case may

be, immediately prior to such merger or consolidation or sale of such assets, as the case may be.
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© (h) The estate or interest of Tenant in any of the Leased Premises shall be
levied upon or attached in any proceeding and such estate or interest is about to be sold or
transferred or such process shall not be vacated or discharged within sixty (60) days after such

levy or attachment.

Tenant acknowledges and agrees that all notice periods provided in this Paragraph

19 are in lieu of, and not in addition to any notice periods provided by law.

20. LANDLORD'S REMEDIES. Aﬁér the occurrence of an Event of Default by Tenant,

Landlord shall have the right to exercise the following remedies:

(a) Landlord may, at its option, continue this Iease in full force and effect,
without terminating Tenant's right to possession of the Leased Premises, in which event
Landlord shall have the right to collect Basic Rent, Additional Rent and all other charges when
due. In the alternative, Landlord shall have the right to peaceably re-enter the Leased Premises
on the terms set forth in subparagraph (b) below, but without such re-entry being deemed a
termination of the ‘Lease or an acceptance by Landlord of a surrender thereof. Landlord shall
also have the right, at its option, from time to time, without terminating this Lease, to relet the
Leased Premises, or any part thereof, with or without legal process, as the agent, and for the
account, of Tenant upon such terms and conditions as Landlord may deem advisable (which
terms may be materially different from the terms of this Lease), in which event the rents received
on such reletting shall be applied (i) first to the reasonable and actual expenses of such reletting
and collection, including without limitation necessary renovation and alterations of the Leased
Premises, reasonable and actual attorneys' fees and any reasonable and actual real estate

“commissions paid, and (ii) thereafter toward payment of all sums due or to become due Landlord
hereunder. If a sufficient amount to pay such expenses and sums shall not be realized or secured,
then Tenant shall pay Landlord any such deficiency monthly, and Landlord may bring an action
therefor as such monthly deficiency shall arise. Landlord shall not, in any event, be required to
pay Tenant any sums received by Landlord on a reletting of the Leased Premises in excess of the

rent provided in this Lease, but such excess shall reduce any accrued present or future
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obligations of Tenant hereunder. Landlord's re-entry and reletting of the Leased Premises
without termination of this Lease shall not preclude Landlord from subsequently terminating this

Lease as set forth below.

(b)  Landlord may terminate this Lease by written notice to Tenant specifying
a date therefor, which shall be no sooner than ten (10) days following notice to Tenant, and this
Lease shall then terminate on the date so specified as if such date had been originally fixed as the
expiration date of the Term. In the event of such termination, Landlord shall be entitled to

recover from Tenant the worth at the time of the payment by Tenant of all of the following:

(i) Any obligation which has acerued prior to the date of termination,

plus,

(i)  The amount of unpaid Basic Rent, Additional Rent and all other
charges which would have accrued after termination until the time of the payment by Tenant,

plus,

(iii)  The amount by which the unpaid Basic Rent and Additional Rent
for the balance of the Term (excluding any option periods not previously exercised) exceeds the
fair and reasonable rental value of the Leased Premises for such period (taking into account,
among other factors, the anticipated duration that the Leased Premises would be umoccupied
prior to reletting and the anticipated costs of reletting the Leased Premises, including those types

of costs set forth in (a)(i) above).

As used in this Paragraph 20(b), the term, "worth at the time of the payment",
shall be computed by allowing simple interest at the Default Rate on the obligations referred to
in clauses (i) and (ii) of this Paragraph 20(b), and employing a discount rate equal to 4% on the
obligations referred to in clause (iii) of this Paragraph 20(b), on the amount of the obligations
payable on the date of such calculation. In the event this Tease shall be terminated as provided
above, by summary proceedings or otherwise, Landlord, its agents, servants or representatives

may immediately or at any time thercafter peaccably re-enter and resume possession of the
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Leased Premises and remove all persons and property therefrom, by summary dispossession or

similar proceedings.

(¢)  Tenant agrees that neither Landlord nor Lender shall have any obligation
to mitigate damages hereunder following a termination of this Lease due to an Event of Defauit,
and in any action or claim by Landlord or Lender against Tenant due to breach of this Lease
following an Event of Default the amount of damages to which Landlord and/or Lender may be
entitled shall not be reduced to reflect any loss which Landlord or Lender may be able to recover
by reletting of the Leased Premises or other efforts at mitigation, To the extent that applicable
law requires Landlord to mitigate damages, Tenant agrees that it shall have the burden of proving
the amount of damages which Landlord and/or Lender may be able to recover by mitigation énd
that Lé.ndlord shall have no obligation to subdivide the Leased Premises or to lease the Leased
Premises other than on a triple net basis to a tenant whose long term debt is rated at least

investment grade by Standard & Poor’s Corporation.

(d)  Landlord may recover from Tenant, and Tenant shall pay to Landlord
upon demand, as Additional Rent, such reasonable and actual expenses as Landlord may incur in
recovering possession of the Leased Premises, placing the same in good order and condition and
repairing the same for reletting, and all other reasonable and actual expenses, commissions and

-charges incurred by Landlord in exercising any remedy provided herein or as a result of any

Event of Defanlt by Tenant hereunder (including without limitation attorneys' fees).

()  Except as provided in Paragraph 9(b) or 13(d), at any time upon prior
notice to Tenant, Landlord and Lender shall have the right, but shall not be required, to pay such
sums or do any act which requires the expenditure of monies which may be necessary or
appropriate by reason of the failure or neglect of Tenant to comply with any of its obligations
under this Lease (Landlord and Lender shall not, however, exercise any such rights unless the
failure or neglect shall have ripened into an Event of Defaultj, and in the event of the exercise of
~ such right by Landlord or Lender, Tenant agrees to pay to Landlord or Lender forthwith upon

demand, as Additional Rent, all such sums including reasonable attorneys fees, together with
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interest thereon at the Delault Rate.,

(f) The various rights and remedies reserved fo Landlord herein are
cumulative, the rights and remedies described in Paragraph 20(a)-(e) shall survive termination of
this Lease and Landlord may pursue any and all such rights and remedies and any other available
to Landlord under applicable law or equity, Whether at the same time or otherwise (fo the extent
not inconsistent with specific provisions of this Lease). To the extent permitted under applicable
law, Landlord expressly reserves its right to forcibly dispossess Tenant from the Leased

Premises, whether peaceably or otherwise, without judicial process.

21. NOTICES. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, offers, statements
and other instruments or communications required or permitted to be given pursuant to the
provisions of this Lease (collectively "Notice" or "Notices") shall be in writing and shall be
deemed to have been given for all purposes (i) thfee (3) days after having beén sent by United
States mail, by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to
the other party at its address as stated below, or (ii) one (1) day after having been sent by Federal
Express, United Parcel Service or other nationally recognized air courier service, to the Addresses

~ stated below:
(a)  Ifto Landlord, at the address set forth on the first page of this Lease.

(b)  Ifto Tenant, at the address set forth on the first page of this Lease.
(¢)  Ifto Lender, at the address provided for such purpose.

If any Lender shall have advised Tenant by Notice in the manner aforesaid that it is the holder of
a Mortgage and stating in said Notice its address for the receipt of Notices, then simultaneously
with the giving of any Notice by Tenant to Landlord, Tenant shall serve one or more copies of
such Notice upon Lender in.the manner aforesaid and no Notice shall be effective unless and
until Lender shall be sent a copy thereof. Landlord agrees that Tenant shall be entitled to rely on

any such notice from any party who Tenant has been notified by Landlord is a “Lender”
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hereunder. For the purposes of this Paragraph, any party may substituie its address by' giving

fifteen days' notice to the other party in the manner provided above.

22. MEMORANDUM OF LEASE; ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES. (a) Tenant  shall

execute, deliver and record, file or register from time to time all such instruments as may be

feqﬁired by any present or future law in order to evidence the respective interests of Landlord and
Tenant in any of the Leased Premises, and shall cause a memorandum of this Lease, and any
supplement hereto or to such other instrument, if any, as may be appropriate, to be recorded, filed
or registered and re-recorded, refiled or re-registered in such manner and in such places as may be
required by any present or future law in order to give public notice and protect the validity of this
Lease. In the event of any discrepancy between the provisions of said recorded memorandum of
this Lease or any other recorded iﬁstrument referring to this Lease and the provisions of this

Lease, the provisions of this Lease shall prevail.

(b) = Landlord and Tenant shall, at any time and from time to time, upon not
less than fifteen (15) days' prior written request by the other (br, in the case of an estoppel
certificate requested of eithér,' upon not less than fifteen (15) days' prior written request of
Lender), execute, acknowledge and deliver to the other and Lender, if applicable, a statement in
writing, executed by Landlord or Tenant by its duly authorized officer thereof certifying (1) that
this Lease (a copy of which shall be attached to such statemént) is unmodified and in full effect
(or, if there have been modifications, that this Lease is in full force and effect as modified,
setting forth such modifications), (i) the dates to which Basic Rent payable hereunder has been
paid, (iii) that, to the knowledge of the party executing such certificate, no default by either
Landlord or Tenant exists hereunder or specifying each such default of which such party may
have knowledge; (iv) the remaining Term hereof; (v) with respect to a certificate signed by
Tenant, that tb Tenant’s knowledge there are ﬁo proceedings pending or threatened against
Tenant before or by any court or administrative agency which if adversely decided would
.materially and adversely affect the financial condition and operations of Tenant or if any such
proceedings ate pending or threatened to said party's knowledge, specifying and describing the
same; (vi) with respect to a certificate signed by Tenant, that no rent has been paid under the
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Leasé for more than one (1) month in advance; and (vii) with respect to a certificate signed by
Tenant, that to Tenant’s knowledge Tenant is in full comi:dianée with all federal, State and local
laws, ordinances, rules and regulations affecting its use of the Leased Premises, including but not
limited to the handling, storage and disposal of hazardous and/or toxic materials used or
generated as a result of its business conducted on or about the Leased Premises. Tt is intended
that any such statements may be relied upoﬁ by Lender, the recipient of such statements or their

assignees or by any prospective mortgagee, purchaser, or subtenant of the Leased Premises.

23, SURRENDER AND HOLDING OVER. ‘Upon the expiration or earlier termination

of this Lease, Tenant shall peaceably leave and surrender the Leased Premises to Landlord in the
condition the Leased Premises are required to be maintained pursuant to the provisions of this
Lease except for ordinary wear and tear and damage by fire, casualty or condemnation but only to
the extent Tenant is not required to repair the sarhe hereunder. Tenant may remove at Tenant's
sole cost and expense from the Leased Premises on or prior to such expiration or earlier
termination Trade Fixtures and persohal property which are owned by Tenant or third parties
other than Landlord, and Tenant at its expense shall, on or prior to such expiration or earlier

termination, repair any damage caused by such removal. Trade Fixtures and personal property

not so removed at the end of the Term or within fifteen (15) days after the earlier termination of

the Term for any reason whatsoever shall become the property of Landlord, and Landlord may
thereafter, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, cause such property to be removed from the Leased
Premises. Landlord shall not in any manner or to any extent be obligated to reimburse Tenant for
any property which becomes the property of Landlord as a result of such expiration or earlier
termination. Upon such expiration or earlier termination, no party shall have any further rights or

obligations hereunder except as specifically provided herein,

Any holding over by Tenant of the Leased Premises after the expiration or earlier
termination of the term of this Lease or any extensions thereof, with the consent of Landlord,
shall operate and be construed as fenancy from month to month only, at one hundred fifty
percent (150%) of the Basic Rent reserved hercin and upon the same terms and conditions as

contained in this Lease. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any holding over without Landlord's
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consent shall entitle Landlord, in addition to collecting Basic Rent at a rate of one hundred fifty
percent (150%) thereof, to exercise all rights and remedies provided by law or in equity,

including the remedies of Paragraph 20.

If to the extent there is any Legal Requirements with respect to the fransfer of
possession of the Leased Premises from Tenant to Landlord, Tenant shall be obligated to comply
therewith and reimburse Landlord for any costs it incurs in connection therewith. The
obligations of Tenant and the rights and remedies of Landlord under this Paragraph 23 shall

survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease.

24. NO MERGER OF TITLE. There shall be no merger of this Lease nor of the

leasehold estate created by this Lease with the fee estate in or ownership of any of the Leased

Premises by reason of the fact that the same Person may acquire or hold or own, directly or
indirectly, (i) this Lease or the leasehold estate created by this Lease or any interest in this Lease
or in such leasehold estate and (ii) the fee estate or ownership of any of the Leased Premises or
any interest in such fee estate or ownership. No such merger shall occur unless and until all
Persons having any interest in (x) this Lease or the leasehold estate created by this Lease and (y)
the fee estate in or ownership of the Leased Premises including, without limitation, Lender's
interest therein, or any part thereof sought to be merged shall join in a written instrument effecting

such merger and shall duly record the same.

25. LANDLORD AND LENDER EXCULPATION. Anything contained herein to the

contrary notwithstanding, any claim based on or in respect of any liability of Landlord under this

Lease shall be enforced only against the Landlord's interest in the Leased Premises and shall not
be enforced against the Landlord individually or personally, Tenant agrees that any assignment
by Landlord to Lender of Landlord’s interest in this Lease, or the rent, payable hereunder,
whether absolute or conditional in nature or otherwise, whether such assignment is made to the
‘Lender solely as additional collateral related to a mortgage or otherwise, and the acceptance
thereof by Lender shall never be treated as an assumption by Lender of any obligations of

Landlord hereunder unless Lender shall, by notice sent to Tenant, specifically elect, and that
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Lender shall be treated as having assumed Landlord’s obligations hereunder only upon purchase
of the Leased Premises pursuant to foreclosure of the Mortgage or by deed in lieu thereof, or
other conveyance and then only subject to the limitations set forth in the first sentence hereof. In
addition, the parties hereto acknowledge and agree that Landlord may condition any consent or
approval required under this Tease on Landlord’s receipt of the written consent or approval of

Lender if required under the documents relating to the Mortgage.

26. MATERIALS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERN. (a) For the purposes of

this Paragraph 26, the terms listed below shall have the meanings ascribed herein:

“Envirenmental Claim™ means any claim, action, investigation or written notice by any
Person alleging potential liability (including, without limitation, potential liability for Remedial
Work, investigatory costs, cleanup costs, governmental response costs, natural resource
damages, property damages, personal injuries or penalties) arising out of, based on or resulting
from (A) the presence, or release or threatened release of -any Materials ‘of Environmental
Concern on, in, under, at or emanating from the Leased Premises, or (B) circumstances forming

the basis of any violation, or alleged violation, of any Environmental Law.

“Environmental Laws” shall include all Legal Requirements (alohg with common law
or strict liability provisions, and any judicial or administrative interpretations thereof, including
any applicable judicial or administrative orders or judgments) relating to health, safety, industrial
hygiene, Materials of Environmental Concern, pollution, the environment, or related matters
including, but not limited to each of the following, as enacted as of the date hereof or as hereafter
amended; the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of
1980, 42 U.S.C. §9601 et seq.; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, 42 U.S.C.
§6901 et seq.; the Toxic Substance Conirol Act, 15 U.S.C. §2601 et seq.; the Water Pollution
Control Act (also known as the Clean Water Act), 33 U.S.C. §1251 et seq.; the Clean Air act, 42
U.S.C. §7401 et seq.; and the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. §1801 et seq.

“Materials of Environmental Concern” means any hazardous or toxic waste, hazardous

or toxic substance, pollutant, contaminant, oil or petroleum product, or other solid, liquid, or
{00224698.D0CK}




gaseous substance or product (i) that is currently or hereafter listed, regulated, 61” designated as,
or is determined to be (in whole or in part), toxic, hazardous, or harmful (or words of similar
meaning and regulatory effect), or with respect to which governmental regulatory obligations
(including, without limitation, recordkeeping, remedial or closure obligations) may be imposed,
under any Environmental Laws, or (ii) exposure to which may pose an environmental, health, or

safety threat or hazard.

“Regulated Activity” means the use, presence, release or threatened release, discharge,

generation, manufacture, recycling, transportation, processing, refinement, treatment, storage,

disposal or other handling of Materials of Environmental Concern.

“Remedial Work” means, without limitation, investigation, characterization, testing,
sampling, monitoring, removal, response, remedial actions, transportation, disposal, restoration,

cleanup, and similar activities,

(b) Tenant represents and warrants to Landlord that neither the Leased
Premises, nor any portion thercof, has been used by Tenant or, to the best of Tenant’s
knowledge, by any prior owner or tenant for a Regulated Activity except to the extent expressly
permitted by the terms of thié Paragraph 26(b). Tenant covenants that it (i) will comply, and will
cauée the Leased Premises to comply, with all Environmental Laws aipplicable to the Leased
Premises; (i) will not use, and shall prohibit the use of, the Leased Premises for Regulated
Activities (other than the storage or handling of Materials of Environmental Concern in
connection with operations conducted at the Leased Premises at the commencement of the Term
and maintenance of the Leased Premises in the ordinary course of business and in commercially
' reasonably quantities. as a consumer and generator thereof, subject to compliance with applicable
Environmental Laws); (iif) will not install or permit the installation on the Leased Premises of
any tanks,- pits, sumps or surface impoundments (unless and only to the extent this Lease
specifically permits Tenant to do so); (iv) shall respond to the presence of Materials of
Environmental Concern on, in or under the Leased Premises in accordance with Paragraph ‘26(o)-

of this Lease; provided, however, that in the eveni that Tenant believes that applicable
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Environmental Laws requires reporting to governmental authorities with respect to the Leased

Premises or environmental conditions at the Leased Premises, it shall first promptly notify

Landlord in writing, and the parfies shall cooperate in determining whether such requirements .

apply before any such reportizig requirements are addressed; (v) shall cause any Alterations of
the Leased Premises to be done in a way which complies with applicable Environmental Laws
relating to exposure of persons working on or visiting the Leased Premises to Materials of
Environmental Concern and, in connection with any such Alteration; shall remove any Materials
of Environmental Concern present upon the Léased Premises which are not in compliance with
applicable Environmental Laws or which may present a risk to persons working on or visiting
the Leased Premises; (vi) shall not install in the eased Premises, or permit to be installed in the
Leased Premises, asbestos or any asbestos-containing materials in any form that is or could be
friable or any other Materials of Environmental Concern that could reasonably be expected to
prove a present or future risk to human health or the environment; and (vii) shall cause the
Leased Premises to be operated and maintained in such a manner so that mold, other indoor air

“pollutants, and/or other materials, the exposure to which may pose human health risks, do not

preéent such an exposure risk at the Leased Premises. Additionally, Landlord agrees that Tenant

may use household and cdmmercial cleaners and chemicals to maintain the Leased Premises,
provided that such use is in compliance with all Environmental Laws. Landlord and Tenant
acknowledge that any or all of the cleaners and chemicals described in this Paragraph may
constitute Materials of Environmental Concern. However, Tenant may use, handle and store
such chemicals and cleaners that are Materials of Environmental Concern provided that in doing

s0 Tenant complies with all Environmental Laws.

(c) If, at any time during the Term, Materials of Environmental Concern shall
be found in, on, at, under or emanating from the Leased Premises, then Tenant shall (Without
cost to Landlord and Lender, except to the extent otherwise provided in Paragrap-h 26(e) of this
Lease) promptly conduct such Remedial Work as is provided in Paragraph 26(h) of this Lease.

(d) During the Term of this Lease, Tenant shall provide prompt written notice _

to Landlord and Lender of any of the following matters:

{00224698. DOCX}

41




(L) any proceeding or investigation commenced or threatened by any
governmental authority with respect to the release, threatened release or presence of any
Materials of Eunvironmental Concern affecting the Leased Premises in, on, under, from or

migrating towards the Leased Premises;

(i)  any lien, action or notice with respect to the Leased Premises
resuliing from any violation or alleged violation of Environmental Laws or any proceeding or
investigation commenced or threatened by any governmental authority with respect to the
presence, suspected presence, release or threatened release of Materials of Environmental

Concern from, onto, under, or migrating onto or toward the Leased Premises;

(iii)  all written notices of any pending or threatened investigation or
claims made or any lawsuit or other legal action or proceeding brought by any Person with
respect to the Leased Premises against (A) Tenant or Landlord or the Leased Premises, or (B)
any other party occupying the Leased Premises or any portion thereof, in any such case relating
to any loss or injury allegedly resulting from any Materials of Environmental Concern or relating

to any violation or alleged violation of Environmental Laws; or

(iv)  knowledge of the presence of Materials of Environmental Concern

in, on, or under the Leased Premises, or any wriiten notice received by Tenant of any oceurrence
or condition on any real property adjoining or in the vicinity of the Leased Premises, which
reasonably could be expected to (A) lead to the Leased Premises or any portion thereof being (x)
in violation of any Environmental Laws, (y) subject to any deed recordation or restriction on
ownership, occupancy, ftransferability or use under any Environmental Laws or Legal
Requirements, or (z) impacted by Materials of Environmental Concern, including, without
limitation, being subject to a remedial obligation under Environmental Laws, or (B} subject

Tenant, Landlord, or Lender to any Environmental Claim; and

(v)  the commencement of any Remedial Work, the status of the

Remedial Work on an ongoing basis, and completion of the Remedial Work.
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(©) Tenant shall be solely responsible for and shall defend, reimburse,

indemnify and hold Landlord and Lender, any affiliates of the foregoing, and each of their

respective  directors, officers, emplovees, shareholders, members, pariners, agents,

successors and assigns (including, without limitation, any participants in a loan by Lender)

(each such Person being an “Indemnified Party”) harmless from and against all demands,

claims, actions, causes of action, assessments, losses, damages, liabilities, investigations, or

written notices, including costs and expenses of any kind (including withouat limitation,

diminution in property value and expenses of investigation by engineers, environmental

consultants and similar technical personnel and fees and disbursements of counsel), arising

out of, in respect of or in connection with (i) Tenant's breach of its representations,

warranties, covenants or other obligations in this Lease; (ii) the occurrence of any

Rerulated Activity at, on or ander the Leased Premises at any time during or prior to the

Term of this Lease; (iii) any Environmental Claim with respect to the Leased Premisecs

against any Indemnified Party or any Person whose liability for such Environmental Claim

any Indemnified Partiy or Tenant has or may have assumed or retained, or may be charged

with, either contractuallv ox by operation of law (provided that after the Commencement

Date Landlord shall not contractually assume liability for an environmental liabilitv which

Landlord would not otherwise have by operation of law without the consent of Tenant);

(iv) the release, threatened release or presence of any Materials of Environmental Concern

at, on, under, in, emanating from or migrating to or from, the Leased Premises, regardless

of how discovered by Tenant, Landlerd or anv third party, except to the extent that

Tenant can demonstrate that such release, threatened release or presence occurred solely

subsequent to the Term of this Lease; (v) any Remedial Work required fo _be performed

pursuant to any Environmental Law or the terms hereof with respect to matters arising or

occurring prior to or during the Term; (vi) any matters arising under or relating to any

Environmental Law and relating to the Tenant, the Leased Premises or activities at_the

Leased Premises, or (vii) all other direct or indirect consequential damages (including,

without limitation, any third party tort claims or governmental claims, fines or penalties).

Notwithstanding_the foregoing, Tenant shall not be responsible, nor be required to
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reimbuljse, indemnify, or hold an Indemnified Party harmless, to the extent that the gross

neglicence or willful misconduct (which gross neglisence or willful misconduct Tenant shall

establish) of the Indemnified Party materially contributed fo_the liability from which

Tenant would otherwise be required to reimburse, indemnify or hold harmless under this

Paragraph 26(e). Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the indemnification

provisions in this Lease shall be applicable whether or not negligence of an Indemnified

Party is alleged or proven irrespective of whether negligence or a strict liability standard

may apply.

(£ Upon Landlord’s or Lender’s request, at any time as Landiord or Lender
has reasonable grounds to'beli(_ave that (i) Materials of Environmental Concern (except to the
extent those substances are permitted to be used by Tenant under Paragraph 26(b) in the ordinary
course of its business and in compliance with all Environmental Laws) are or have been released,
storéd or disposed of or are otherwise present under, on, or around the Leased Premises, (ii) the
Leased Premises may be in violation of the Environmental Laws, or (iii) the Leased Premises
may be subject to a remedial obligation under Environmental LaWs, Tenant shall provide, at
Tenant’s sole cost and expense, an inspection or audit of the Leased Premises prepared by a
hydrogeologist or environmental engineer or other appropriate consultant approved by Landlord
and Lender indicating whether the Materials of Environmental Concern are present at the Leased
Premises; ﬁnd, if so, the nature and extent of such presence. If Tenant fails to provide -such
. environmental reports within fifteen (15) days after such request, Landlord may, at Tenant’s
expense, order the samé; and Tenant hereby grants to Landlord and Lender and their respective -
employees and agents access to the Leased Premises upon reasonable notice and a license to
undertake such inspection or audit. The foregoing notwithstanding, in the event of an emergency,
. Landlord or Lender may have any such inspection or audif conducted immediately at Tenant’s

€xpense.

(g)  Without limiting the foregoing, where indicated by the environmental
reports delivered to Landlord in connection with its purchase of the Leased Premises or in any

other environmental assessment and where the particular conditions on the Leased Premises
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which formed the basis for such indication still exist, Tenant shall conduct and pursue to
completion Remedial Work as provided in Paragraph 26(h) of this L.ease and shall provide
documentation as required by Landlord or Lender and access to the Leased Premises upon
reasonable notice, by Landlord or Lender, and their respective agents, to review and assess the -

environmental condition of the Leased Premises,

(hy  Consistent with its obligations under Paragraphs 8(a), 26(c), 26(e), and
26(f) of this Lease, Tenant shall conduct Remedial Work to the extent required by
Environmental Laws and in compliance with Environmental Laws. Tenant, with approval and
concurrence of Landlord, will negotiate with the relevant governmental authel'ities regarding the
nature and extent of environmental conditions to be remediatéd and the work plans and/or
remedial action plans to be performed by Tenant. Landlord and Tenant agree to work together to
approve cleanup cri‘ﬁeﬁa and Remedial Work for the Leased Premises that comply with -
applicable Environmental Laws and are consistent with (i) the then existing zoning for the
Leased Premises, and (ii) the redevelopment of the Leased Premises in the future. If Tenant
proposes cleanup criteria for soils that would permit contaminants to remain in place and that
would require (a) special handling of soils in connection with redevelopment activities, (b)

additional cost for offsite disposal of soils, or (¢) governmental approval for disturbance of soils

~ following closure, then approval of those cleanup.criteria shall be at the sole diseretion of the

Landlord. If Tenant proposes cleanup criteria for groundwater that would require a deed
restriction or otherwise limit or prohibit the use of groundwater at the Teased Premises, then
approval of those cleanup criteria shall be at the sole discretion of the Landlord. Any other
restrictions proposed to be included as part of a final confirmation of closure issued for all or any
part of the Leased Premises must be approved by Landlord, which shall have the rlght to grant or

deny such approval in its sole and absolute discretion.

) The obligations of Tenant to indemnify Landlord pursuant to Paragraph
26(e) and the rights and remedies of Landlord under Paragraph 26(e) shall survive the expiration
or earlier termination of this Lease. Persons indemnified under this Lease will continue to be

afforded the protections under this Paragraph 26 notwithstanding the assignment or other transfer
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of this Lease by such Persons.

0 If recommended by any environmental assessment or audit of the Leased
Premises, Tenant shall establish and comply (or cause to be established and complied) with én
operations and maintenance program with respect to the Leased Premises, in form and substance
reasonably acceptable to Landlord and Lender, prepared by an environmental consultant
reasonably acceptable to Landlord and Lender, which program shall address any asbestos-
containing material or lead based paint that may now or in the future be detected at or on the
Leased Premises. Without limiting the generality of the preceding sentence, Landlord or Lender
may require: (i) periodic notices or reports to Landlord and Lender in form, substance and at
such intervals as Landlord or Lender may specify; (il) an amendment to such operations and
maintenance program to address changing circumstances, laws or other matters; (iii) at Tenant’s
sole expense, supplemental examination of the Leasgad Premises by consultants specified by
Landiord or Lender; (iv) access to the Leased Premises by Landlord and Lender, its agents or
servicer, to review and assess the environmental condition of the Leased Premises and Tenant’s
compliance with any operations and maintenance program; and (v) variation of the operations

and maintenance program in response to the reports provided by any such consultants.

27. ENTRY BY LANDLORD AND LENDER. Landlord, Lender and their authorized

representatives shall have the right upon reasonable notice (which shall be not less than 48 hours
except in the case of emergency) fo enter the Leased Premises at all reasonable business hours,
(and at all other times in the event of an emergency), for (i) the purpose of inspecting the same,
including, without limitation, the right to conduct an environmental inspection of the Leased
Premises, or for the pufpose of doing any work under Paragraph 9, and may take all such action
thereon as may be necessary f)r appropriate for any such purpose (but nothing contained in this
Ledse or otherwise shall create or imply any duty upon the part of Landlord or Lender to make
any such inspection or do any such work), and Tenant shall cooperate with all such inspections,
work and/or action; provided, however, that if a default has occurred and is continuing, such
inspections and work shall be at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, and (ii) the purpose of showing

the Leased Premises to prospective Lenders. No such entry shall constitute an eviction of Tenant
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but any such entry shall be done by Landlord and/or Lender in such reasonable manner as o

minimize any distuption of Tenant's business operation.

28. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Unless publicly available, at Landlord or Lender's

request, Tenant shall provide the prior fiscal year's annual audited financial statements. -

29. NO USURY. The intention of the parties being to conform strictly to the usury laws
now in force in the State, whenever any provision herein provides for payment by Tenant to
Landlord of interest at a rate in excess of the legal rate permitted to be charged, such rate herein

provided to be paid shall be deemed reduced to such legal rate.

30. BROKER. Landlord and Tenant represent and warrant to each other that neither
party negotiated with any broker in connection with this Lease and that this Lease was negotiated
directly by Landlord and Tenant. Each party hereby agrees to indemmify the other against all

- claims, damages, costs and expenses incurred by the indemnified party as a result of the breach of

the foregoing representation or warranty by the indemnifying party.

31. WAIVER OF LANDLORD'S LIEN. Landlord hereby waives any right to distrain

Trade Fixtures or any property of Tenant and any Landlord's lien or similar lien upon Trade
Fixtures and any other property of Tenant 1'egardiesé of whether such lien is created or otherwise.
Landlord agrees, at the 'request of Tenant, to execute a waiver of any Landlord's or similar lien for
the benefit of any present or future holder of a security interest in or lessor of any of Trade
Fixtures or any other peréonal property of Tenant. Landlord acknowledges and agrees in the
future to acknowledge (in a written form reasonably satisfactdry to Ldndlord and Tenant} to such
Persons at such times and for such purposes as Tenant may reasonably request that Trade Fixtures
are Tenant's property and not part of Improvements (regardless of whether or to what extent such

Trade Fixtures are affixed to the Improvements) or otherwise subject to the terms of this Lease.

32. NO WAIVER. No delay or failure by either party to enforce its rights hereunder shall

be construed as a waiver, modification or relinquishment thereof.
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33. SEPARABILITY. Tf any term or provision of this Tease or the application thereof to

any provision of this Lease or the application thereof to any Person and/or circumstance shall to
any extent be invalid and unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease, or the application of such
term or provision to Persons and/or circumstance(s) other than those as to which it is invalid or
unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of this Lease shall be

valid and shall be enforced to the extent permitted by law.

34. INDEMNIFICATION. Tenant agrees to defend, pay, protect, indemnify, save and
hold harmless Landlord and Lender, any entity controlled by Landlord or Lender and each of their

respective officers, directors, employees, shareholders, agents, members and partners and each of
their respective successors and assigns (including, without limitation, any participant, holder of a
trust certificate or holder of any beneficial direct or indirect interest in a Loan by Lender), from
and against any and all liabilities, Iosses, damages, penalties, costs, expenses (including
reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses), causes of action, suits, claims, demands or judgments of
any nature whatsoever, howsoever caused, arising from (a) any of the Teased Premises or
Adjoining Property, (b) the use, non-use, occupancy, ownership, condition, design, construction,
maintenance, repair, rebuilding, casualty or condemnation of any of or otherwise relating to, the
Leased Premises oI‘ Adjoining Property, including, but not limited to, any matter arising under or
relating to any Environmental Law, any injury to or death of any person or persons or any loss of
or damage to any property, real or personal, in any manner arising therefrom connected therewith
or occurring thereon, or (¢) any default by Tenant or Event of Default under this Lease
(collectively, "Losses"), whether or not Landlord or Lender has or should have knowledge or
notice thereof, if any, causing or contributing to said Loss and whether or not the event in
question arose prior to or after the date of this Lease. In case any action or proceeding is brought
against Landlord or Lender by reason of any such Loss, Tenant covenants upon notice from
Landlord or Lender to defend Landlord and/or Lender in such action, with the expenses of such
defense paid by Tenant, and Landlord or Lender will cooperate and assist in the defense of such
action or proceeding if reasonably requested so to do by Tenant. The obligations of Tenant under

this Paragraph 34 shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease.
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35. PERMITTED ENCUMBRANCES. Tenant agrees that Tenant is obligated to and

shall perform all obligations of the owner of the Leased Premises and pay all expenses which the

owner of the Leased Premises may be required to pay in accordance with the Permitted
Encumbrances. Tenant further covenants and agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless
Landlord and Lender against any claim, loss or damage suffered by Landlord or Lender by reason
of Tenant's failure to perform any obligations or pay any expenses as required under any of the
Permitted Encumbrances or comply with the terms and conditions of any of the Permitted

Encumbrances as hereinabove provided during the term of this Lease.

36. EXPENSES. Whenever this Lease provides for the reimbursement by Tenant of costs
and expenses of Landlord or Lender or any other party, such reimbursement obligation shall be
limited to actual, out-of-pocket third-party costs and expenses (including reasonable attorney’s
fees and expenses). In addition to any other costs ﬁayable hereunder by Tenant, Tenant
ackilowledges and agrees that whenever (i) it makes a request of Landlord and/or Lender or secks
Landlord’s and/or Lender’s consent or approval to any matter with respect to this Lease, (ii) a
casualty or Condemnation occurs or (iii) there is a default by Tenant or Event of Default under
this Lease; or (iv) Landlord or Lender incurs expenses in connection with satisfying any
obligations of Landlord or Tenant which are required to be performed after the date of this Lease
pursuant to any Permitted Encumbrance, Tenant shall pay all reasonable costs and expenses
incurred by Landlord and/or the Lender (including without limitation, reasonable attorney’s fees

and expenses) arising out of the foregoing.

37. HEADINGS. The paragraph headings in this Lease are.used only for convenience in
finding the subject matters and are not part of this Lease or to be used in determining the intent of

the parties or otherwise interpreting this Lease.

38. MODIFICATIONS. This Lease may be modified, amended, discharged or waived -

only by an agreement in writing signed by the party against whom enforcement of any such

modification, amendment, discharge or waiver is sought. Each of Tenant and Landlord agrees

that it will not modify or amend this Lease without the written consent of Lender within any
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period during which there is a Lender hereunder. In the event of any inconsistent instruction from

Landlord and Lender, Tenant shall comply with the instruction of Lender.

39. SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS. The covenants of this Lease shall run with the Land and
bind Tenant, the heirs, distributees, personal representatives, successors and permitted assigns of
Tenant and all present and subsequent encumbrances and subtenants of any of the Leased
Premises, and bind Landlord, its successors and assigns, and inure to the benefit of each of the
parties hereto, their respective executors, administrators, heirs, successors and assigns, as the case
may be. In the event there is more than one person that composes Tenant, the obligation of each
shall be joint and several. The term "Landlord" as used in this Lease, so far as.covenants or
obligations on the part of Landlord are concerned, shall be limited to mean and include only the
owner or owners of the Leased Premises or holder of the Mortgage in possession at the time in
question of the Leased Premises and in the event of any transfer or transfers of the title of the
Leased Premises, the Landlord herein named (and in case of any subsequent transfers or
conveyances, the then Landlord) shall be automatical%z freed and relieved from and after the date
of such transfer and conveyance of all personal liability as respects the performance of any
covenants or obligations on the part of Landlord contained in this Lease thereafter to be

performed.

40. COUNTERPARTS. This Lease may be executed in several counterparts, which

together shall be deemed one and the same instrument.

41. TH\’IE OF THE ESSENCE. Time is of the essence in this Lease and each and every

provision hereof in which any date or time is specified.

_ 42. GOVERNING LAW. This Lease shall be governed by and construed according to
the laws of the State.

43. LENDER AS THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY. Lender shall be deemed a third
party beneficiary with respect to all provisions of this Lease that purport to confer benefits upon

Lender or impose obligations upon Tenant or Landlord in order to protect the interests of Lender.
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44. INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.

45. BANKRUPTCY. (a) As a material inducement to Landlord executing this Lease,

Tenant acknowledges and agrees that Landlord and Lender are each relying upon (i) the financial
condition and specific operaling experience of Tenant, (if) Tenant’s timely performance of all of
its obligations under this Lease notwithstanding the entry of an order for relief under the Code for
Tenant, and (iii) in the event of the entry of an order for relief under the Code for Tenant, this
Lease being assumed within 60 days of such order, or this Lease being rejected within such 60
day period and the Leased Premises surrendered to Landlord. Accordingly, in consideration of
the mutual covenants contained in this Lease and for other good and valuable consideration,
Tenant hereby agrees that: (i) all obligations that accrue or become due under this Lease
(including the obligation fo pay Rent), frozﬁ and after the date that an Action is commenced shall
be timely petformed exactly as provided in this Lease and any failure to so perform shall be
harmful and prejudicial to Landlord and Lender; (i) any and all obligations under this Lease that
accrue or become due frdm and after the date that an Action is commenced and that are not paid
as required by this Lease shall, in the amount of such Rénts, constitute administrative expense
claims allowable under the Code with priority of payment at least équai to that of any other actual
and necessary expenses incurred after the commencement of the Action; (iii) any extension of the
time period within which Tenant may assume or reject this Lease without an obligation to cause
all obligations accruing or coming due under this Lease from and after the date that an Action is
commeﬁced to be performed as and when required under this Lease shall be harmful and
prejudicial to Landlord and Lender; (iv) any time period designated as the period within which
Tenant must cure all defaults and compensate Landlord and Lender for all pecuniary losses which
extends beyond the date of assumption of this Lease shall be harmful and prejudicial to Landlord
and Lender; (v) any assignment of this Lease must result in all terms and conditions of this Lease
being assumed by the assignee without alteration or amendment, and any assignment which
results in an amendment or alteration of the terms and conditions of this Lease without the
express written consent of Landlord and Lender shall be harmful and prejudicial to Landlord and
Lender; (vi) any proposed assignment of this Lease {0 an assignee: that does not possess financial

condition, . operating performance and experience characteristics equal to or better than the
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financial condition, operating pérformance and experience of Tenant as of the date of this Lease
with a financial condition equal to or better than the financial condition of the original guarantor
of this Lease as of the date of this Lease, shall be harmful and prejudicial to Landlord and Lender;
and (vii) the rejection (or deemed rejection) of this Lease for any reason whatsoever shall
constitute cause for immediate relief from the automatic stay provisions of the Code, and Tenant
stipulates that such automatic stay shall be lifted immediately and possession of the Leased
Premises will be delivered to Landlord and Lender immediately without the necessity éf any

further action by Landlord or Lender.

(b) No provision of this Lease shall be deemed a waiver of Landlord’s or
Lender’s rights or remedies under the Code or applicable law to oppose any assumption and/or
assignment of this Lease, to require timely performange of Tenant’s obligations under this Lease,
or to regain possession of the Leased Premises as a result of the failure of Tenant to comply with

the terms and conditions of this Lease or the Code.

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary, all amounts
payable by Tenant to or on behalf of Landlord under this Lease, whether or not expressly

denominated as such, shall constitute "rent" for the purposes of the Code.

(d) For purposes of this Article addressing the rights and obligations of
Landlord and Tenant in the event that an Action is commenced, the term "Tenant” shall include
Tenant’s successor in bankruptcy, whether a trustee,. Tenant as debtor in possession or other

responsible person.

46. ATTORNEYS' FEES. In the event that either Tenant or Landlord employs an

attorney or attorneys to enforce or defend any of the conditions, covenants, rights or obligations

- of this Lease, then the prevailing party shall be entitled to reimbursement from the other of all
reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the prevailing party in so doing, ihcluding, but not by
way of limitation, all reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other reasonable costs incurred or paid by

the prevailing party.
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47. PURCHASE OPTION. Provided there is no uncured default under the Lease, Tenant
shall have the right to purchase the Leased Premises after the Expiration Date (the “Purchase
Option™) for ONE DOLLAR ($1.00) (the “Purchase Price”). Tenant's Purchase Option

hereunder shall be subordinated to the Mortgage. Unless Tenant notifies Landlord in writing at
least 180 days prior to the Expiration Date that it does not wish to exercise the Purchase Opﬁon,
Tenant shall be deemed to have exercised the Purchase Option and closing shall occur within
thirty (30) days following the Expiration Date (the “Closing Date”). Landlord shall convey title
by special warranty deed, free from encumbrances other than (i) the Permitted Encumbrances, (ii)
liens or encumbrances created or suffered through or by or with the consent of Tenant, and (iif)
any installments of Taxes due and payable after the Closing Date. Such deed shall contain an
agreement by grantee to observe and perform all of the covenants, conditions and restrictions
contained in any instruments of record which were assumed by Landlord or deemed to have been
assumed by Landlord on its acquisition of title.  The acceptance of a deed by Tenant shall be
deemed to be a full performance and discharge of every agreement and obligation on the part of
Landlord to be performed pursuant to the provisions hereof, Tenant shall pay all conveyance,

transfer, sales and like taxes and recordation fees required in connection with the purchase. If
there are any adverse title matters other than those to which Landlord's conveyance under special

warranty deed may be subject as set forth in subparagraphs (i) through (iii) above, upon request

made a reasonable time before the Closing Date, Tenant shall provide at the closing separate

funds for the foregoing, payable to each holder of such lien or encumbrances, and such funds

shall be added to the Purchase Price payable to Lender or Landlord, as the case may be.

48, CROSS ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT.

Within 180 days after the execution of this Lease Agreement, Landlord and the
owner of the shopping center adjacent to the Leased Premises, more commonly known as the
HUB Shopping Center, shall execute and send for recordation in the official records of the City of
Jersey City, Couniy of Hudson, State of New Jersey, a cross access easement agreement (the

“Easement Agreement™) for the purpose of providing sidewalks, driveways, parking spaees, and
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other common arcas for ingress and egress for the benefit of the Leased Premises. The Easement

Agreement shall be a Permitted Exception which runs with the Land.

49, BASE BUILDING AND FIT-UP WORK.

Landlord shall be responsible for constructing and completing the Base Building Work as
defined in Exhibit C at Landlord’s sole cost and expense. In addition to the Base Building Work,
Landlord shall perform, on Tenant's behalf, the work to complete the construction of the Leased
Premises in accordance with the provisions of Exhibit C (the "Fit-Up Work"). Landloxd shall
provide an allowance of $50.00 per square foot towards the cost of the Fit-Up Work (the
"Tenant's Allowance"). The square footage used in the calculation of the Tenant's Allowance
shall be based upon the total square footage of the building as measured by the exterior
dimensions of the building. Tenant shall be responsible for all costs of the Fit-Up Work which

Landlord incurs exceeding the Tenant Allowance.

Landlord shall perform the Base Building Work and Fit-Up Work in a good and
workmanlike manner in accordance with all applicable building codes and other Legal

Requirements.

50. - WARRANTY OF TITLE.

Landlord represents that it will have, cffective as of the Cdmmencement Date,
title to the Land and that it has the full right, capacity and authority to enter into the Lease.

51. FORCE MAJEURE.

~ Except for the obligation of Tenant to pay Basic Rent and other charges as
provided in this Lease and any payments due to Tenant from Landlord, the period of time during
which Landlord or Tenant is prevented from performing any act require& to be performed under
this Lease by reason of fire, catastrophe, strikes, lockouts, civil commotion, acts of God or the

public enemy, government prohibitions or preemptions, embargoes, inability to obtain material
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or labor by reason of governmental regulations or prohibitions, the act or default of the other
party, or other events beyond the reasonable control of Landlord or Tenant, as the case may be,
shall be added to the time for performance of such act. Anything herein contained to the
contrary notwithstanding, the adverse financial condition of Landlord or Tenant shall not
constitute Force Majeure. A party wishing to invoke this Section 51 shall give the other party
notice of that intention within ten (10) days after the commencement of an event of Force
Majeure and shall, at that time, specify the reasons therefor, the specific provisions of this Lease
which will be delayed as a result, and the period of such extension, if known, or if not known, a
reasonable estimate thereof,

52. ACQUISITION.

(a)  Landlord shall proceed diligently and use reasonable and good faith efforts
to acquire fee title to the Land, |

(b)  Inthe event that Landlord, despite diligent and commercially reasonable
efforts by Landlord, has not acquired fee title to the Land within 90 days after the City of J érsey
City approves the subdivision of land frbm a larger parcel (“Landlord’s Satisfaction Date™), then
either party may at its election, upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to the other, at any time after
Landlord’s Satisfaction Date, elect to terminate this Lease. In the event that Landlord should
acquire fee title to the Land prior to the end of such (3 0) day notice as provided for herein,
Landlord shall so advise Tenant in writing and the notice of termination shall be deemed null and
void and this Lease shall remain in full force and effect

(c) In the event that Landlord and Tenant have executed a short form or

memorandum of this Lease for recording prior to Landlord’s closing of title to the Land,
£00224698.DOCX)

55




Landlord shall cause such short form or memorandum to be duly recorded immediately after the
deed of conveyance to Landlord, at Landlord’s expense. Within five (5) days after the closing of
title to the Land, Landlord shall give Tenant notice thereof.

53. LANDLORD DEFAULT.

If Landlord shall from time to time fail to perform any act or acts required of
Landlord by this Iease and if such failure continues for thirty (30) days after receipt of notice
+ from Tenant, Tenant shall then have the right, in addition‘to such remedies as .may be available
under law or in equity, at Tenant's option, to perform such act or acts, in such manner as Tenant
deems reasonably necessary, and the full amount of the cost and expense so incurred shall
immediately be owing by Landlord to Tenant but in no such event shall Tenant offset the amount
of Basic Rent due and payable to Landlord and Tenant shall continue to pay in full Basic Rent
due hereunder. If Landlord shéll in good faith within said thirty (30) days commence to correct
such breach, and diligently proceed therewith to completioﬁ, then Landiorci shall not be

considered in default.

54. MEASUREMENT OF PREMISES.

Within twenty (20) days after the completion of the first course of masonry for the
exterior walls of the Premises, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant a certification to Tenant by
Landlord’s licensed aréhitect, surveyor, or engineer of the exterior dimensions and the floor area
(with the dimensions on which it is based) of the Leased Premises, the measurements of which
shall be subject to confirmation by Tenant’s licensed architect, surveyor, or engineer. If
Landlord shall fail to deliver such certification to Tenant, Tenant shall have the right to have any
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such measurements made and certified to Landlord by Tenant’s licensed architect, surveyor, or
engineer, If the exterior dimensions and/or floor area of the Leased Premises vary from those
shown on the approved plans and specifications, then within ten (10) days after receipt of the
measurements from Landlord, Tenant shall provide Landlord with a certification from Tenant’s
licensed architect, surveyor, or engineer that the aggregate exterior dimensions of the premises is
less than 59,500 square feet. If Tenant fails to deliver such oertiﬁcaﬁon fo Landlord within the
ten (10) day period, Tenant shall be deemed to have aceepted Landlord’s measurement. If
Tenant timely delivers such certification to Landlord and such certification reflects that the
exterior dimensions of the Leased Premises is less than 59,500 square feet, the Basic Rent and
any other applicable provision of this Lease shall be reduced to conform to the actual
measurement, and Tenant shall receive a proportional refund of any rent theretofore paid to
Landlord. If the measurerﬁent of the Premises after Landlord corrects any work indicates that the
exterior dimensions of the Leased Premises is 59,500 square feet or greater, the exterior
dimensions shall be stipulated to be 60,000 square feet, and the Basic Rent shall be as -set forth
in Exhibit “B”. Landlord and Tenant shall each promptly execute and deliver to the other an
amendment memorializing any change to Basic Rent, or any other applicable provisions of this

Lease, made pursuant to this Section.

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have caused this instrument to be
executed under seal as of the day and year first above written.

JERSEY CITY MUNICIPAL, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

CITY OF JERSEY CITY

By:
Name:
Title:

{00224698.DOCX}

58




- EXHIBIT A

The "Leased Premises” will be buili on an approximately 0.556 acre portion of a 6.95 acre parcel
- Block 21201, Lot 17. It will be an L-shaped site located along the southwest corner of Lot 17
at the intersection of Kearney Avenue and Martin Luther King Drive.

The legal description shall be added to this Exhibit A upon completion of the subdivisior
process. ,
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EXHIBIT B
Basic Rent

For purposes of this Exhibit B, the first [ease year shall commence on the Basic Rent
Commencement Date and shall terminate on the last day of the calendar month in which the
364th day after the Basic Rent Commencement Date occurs, Each lease year thereafter shall
commence on the anniversary of the Basic Rent Commencement Date and shall continue for 364
days thereafter (or in the case of a leap year, the 365™ day theleafter) provided, however, that
the last lease year shall terminate on the Expiration Date.

L. [See Exhibit B]
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EXHIBIT “B”

BASIC RENT

MLK City Hall Annex Building

Basic Rent
Based on 60,000 Square Feet
Year | SPSF SMonthly SAnnual
1 $21.40 $107,000 51,284,000
2 $21.40 $107,000 $1,284,000
3 $21.40 $107,000 $1,284,000
4 $21.40 $107,000 51,284,000
5 $21.40 $107,000 $1,284,000
6 $25.25 $126,250 51,515,000
7 $25.88 5129,400 51,552,800
8 $26.53 : $132,650 $1,591,800
9 527.19 $135,950 51,631,400
10 $27.87 $139,350 51,672,200
11 528.57 $142,850 51,714,200
12 529.28 $146,400 51,756,800
13 $30.01 $150,050 $1,800,600
14 $30.76 5153,800 $1,845,600
15 $31.53 $157,650 51,891,800
16 $32.32 $161,600 $1,939,200
i7 $33.13 $165,650 51,987,800
18 $33.96 $169,800 $2,037,600
19 $34.81 5174,050 $2,088,600
20 $35.68 $178,400 $2,140,800
21 536.57 $182,850 52,194,200
22 $37.48 $187,400 52,248,800
23 $38.42 $192,100 $2,305,200
24 $39.38 $196,900 $2,362,800
25 $40.37 $201,850 $2,422,200
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Exhibit C
Cl.  Landlord shall obtain all financing required for the construction of the "Base
Building Work," meaning the construction of a three-story 1.building (with two-story
wings) of approximately 60,000 square feet as measured to the exferior dimensions of the
building (the "Project”) with the following construction characteristics attached as
Schedule A and as follows:

» Foundations Poured in place reinforced concrete; reinforced slab on
grade.

¢ Structural Systems Steel Frame, Metal Deck with Concrete topping.

¢ Roof System Steel Frame, Metal Deck, Insulation ancf (TPO) ‘
Thermoplastic Polyolefin Roof.

o Exterior Framing 6" Steel Studs, Insulation, Face Brick and Cast
Stone.

C2.  Landlord shall, at its own cost and expense {except as provided herein), construct
and perform the Base Building Work in accordance with the provisions of this Exhibit

CCC”

C3.  When plans and specifications for the Base Building Work are complete,
Landlord shall deliver to the Tenant final construction plans and specifications in
conformity with Exhibit “C”. Tenant shall notify Landlord within ten (10) days after
receipt of the final plans and specifications ("Base Building Plans and Specifications") of
Tenant’s approval or disapproval qf same. Tenant inay only disapprove of the Base

Building Plans and Specifications if the same: (i) do not conform to this Exhibit “C” or
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(i) would violate any applicable Legal Requirement (collectively, “Tenant’s Permitted
Objection™). In the event Tenant shall not approve such Bas¢ Building Plans and
Specifications in accordance with this Section, Tenant shall notify Léndlord in writing of
any changes required by Tenant; and Landlord shall, within ten (10) days after receipt of
Tenant's proposed changes, incorporate any such reasonable changes therein and deliver
the final plans and specifications (as revised, the "Revised Base Building Plans and
Specifications") to Tenant, for Tenant’s approval. Tenant shall notify Landlord within
five (5) days after receipt of the Revised Base Building Plans and Speciﬁcatior;s of

" Tenant’s approval or disapproval of same. The Base Building Plans and Specifications, as
revised and approved, are referred to as the "Final Base Building Plans and
Specifications.” Landlord shall deliver to Tenant a Construction Schedule showing an
estimated construction commencement date and a target date of Substantial Completion
(defined ’f;el_ow). The Construoﬁon Schedule shall include dates by which Tenant is
required to deliver to Landlord plans .and specifications (the "Plans and Specifications")
for the Fit-Up Work. Landlord shall provide Tenant with any amendments to the

Construction Schedule as construction progresses.

C4.  Landlord shall apply for and obtain all permits, licenses and approvals required to
perform the Base Building Work and the Fit-Up Work (together, the "Work") at
Landlord’s sole cost and expense. Landlord Will, within a reasonable period of time,
provide copies of all applications relating to the approvals to Tenant. Landlord shall
perform the Work and cause the Improvements to be constructed in a good and

workmanlike manner in dccordance with the provisions of this Lease. Landlord shall
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corriply, and shall cause its contractors and subcontractors to comply, with all Legal

Requirements applicable to the construction of the Improvements.

- C5.  Tenant shall submit the Plans and Specifications to Landlord, Ifor Landlord's
approval, in accordance with the C011sﬁuction Schedule. Landlord shall review the Plans
and Specifications for consistency with the Final Base Building Work and shall notify
Tenant of its approval or disapproval within 15 days after submission. Landlord may only
disapprove the Plans and Speéiﬁcations if Landlord shall determine that the same: (i) do
not conform to the Final Base Building Plans and Specifications; or (ii) would subject
Landlord to any additional cost, expense or liability; or (iii) would violate ény Legal

" Requirement. In the event Landlord shall not apprové the Plans and Specifications,
Landlord shall notify Tenant in writing of any changes required by Landlord; and Tenant
shall incorporate any such feasonable changes therein and deliver the final Plans and
Specifications (as revised, the "Revised Plans and Specifications") to Landlord, for
Landlord’s approval within ten (10) dlays after receipt of Landlord’s proposed changes.
Landlord shall notify Tenant within five (5) days after receipt of the revised Tenant’s
Plans of Landlord’s approval or disapproval of same. Notwithstanding any other
provision herefn, in the event that there continueé to be a dispute regarding the Plans and
Specifications, the parties shall submit the Plané and Speciﬁcationé to mediation and such
Plans and Specifications shall be finalized within 30 days of submission to such
mediator; provided however, the Landlord shall have the final ability to make reasonable
adjustments to the Plans and Specifications, The Plans and Specifications, as revised and

approved, are referred to as the "Final Tenant Work Plans and Specifications."
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C6. - Within 30 days after receiﬁt of the Final Tenant Work Plans and Specifications, .
Landlord shall deliver to Tenant a budget for the performance of the Fit-Up Work in
accordance with the Final Tenant Work Plans and Specifications (the "Tenant Work
Budget“).' If the Tenant Work Budget exceeds the amount of Tenant's Allowance,
Landlord and Tenant shall promiaﬂy meet to discuss how the Final Tenant Work Plans
and Speciﬁcatiéns may be revised to bring the Tenant Work Budget within Tenant's_
Allowance. If Tenant desires nevertheless to proceed with the Fit-Up Work regardless of
such overage, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord a notice (a) confirming Tenant's desire to
proceed with the Fit-Up Work and acknowledging Tenant's responsibility to pay for the

overage and (b) describing the source of funding to pay the overage.

C7.  Following approval of the Final Tenant Work Plans and Specifications and the
-Tenant Work Budget, Tenant may make changes to the Fit-Up Work (a "Change Order"), |
provided that (a) if a Change O.rder results in an increase in the Tenant Work Budget,
Landlord and Tenant shall follow the pljoceaure described in C6 above and {b) if such
Change Order results in a delay in the Date of Sﬁbstantial Completion, Tenant shall

confirm in writing the duration of the delay.

C8.  Landlord and Tenant shall each designate one or more individuals to setve as its -
representatives in connection with the construction of the Improvements (a "Landlord
Representative" and a "Tenant Representative™), who shall have authority to act on

Landlord's and Tenant's behalf, respectively, in connection with the matters described in
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this Exhibit C. Tenant shall have the right to monitor the performance of the Fit-Up
Work, including participation by Tenant's Representative in construction meetings

relating to the Fit-Up Work.

C9.  Landlord shall require all architects, engineers, contractors and subconiractors
engaged in connection with the performance of the Work to be licensed in accordance
with Legal Requirements and to o'btain and maintain errors and omissions insurance with
limits of not less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and $2,000,000.00 in the aggregate

in favor of both Landlord and Tenant.

C.10. As soon as practicable, and in no event later than 60 days after the Date of
Substantial Completion, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant:
(a) one complete set of final "as-built" plans and specifications for the
completed Improvenients;
(b) an "as built" survey prepared by a registered land surveyor or engineer
depicting the location of the Improvements on the Land; and
(c) one complete set of operations and maintenance manuals for all
systems, equipment, fumniture and fixtures relating to the

Improvements.

Cll. The term "Date of Substantial Completion" means the date upon satisfaction of
both of the following conditions: (a) the issuance of a certificate of occupancy by the
appropriate governmental entity and (b) such completion as render the Improvements

sufficient, suitable and ready for Tenant's immediate occupancy.
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CI2.  Not later than the date Tenant has opened the Leased Premises for business,
Landlord Representétive and Tenant Representative together shall conduct a walk-
through of thé Leased Premises to compile a list of the “Punch List Items” (as hereinafter
defined). Tenant shall deliver to Landlord a copy of said punch list within five (5) days
after the walk-through. Landlord shall complete the Punch List Items within sixty (60)
days after it receives a copy of said punch list. If Landlord fails to complete any Punch
List Items within said sixty (60) day period, Tenant shall givelLandlord notice thereof. If
Landlord fails to complete such Punch List Items within five (5) days after Landlord
receives Tenant’s notice, Tgnant shall have the right to complete such item(s) using its
.own céntractors and receive reimbursement from Landlord for the reasonable costs and
expenses thereof upon demand. If Landlord fails to reimburse Tenan't for such costs,
Tenant shall give notice to Landlord of the costs that Tenant incurred and Landlord shall
reimburse Tenant within ten (10) days after the date Lahdlord receives such notice. The
term “Punch List Items™ shall mean such minor items which, when considered as a
whole, do not adversely affect Tenant’s ability to conduct its normal business operations

in the Leased Premises.
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SKANSKA

Jersey City HUB, Municipal Building - Brandywine Financlal Services
Scope of Work Narrative - Interiors

Jersey City, NJ

August 8, 2014

Architectural:

» Base Scope of Core Work includes one 3 stop Hydraulic Elevator, 2500 1b capacity with
drywall &%rﬂtion (rated sha't wall) enclosure. There is an add alternate for a second passenger
elevatottBoth to have standard cab finishes.

+ The building enirance lobby on the first floor totals 324 sf and is enclosed by a drywall
pariition and includes a flooring allowance of $30/sf and a ceiling allowance of $8/st furnished
& installed. Interior of lobby walls to be painted with an allowance for a building directory (1)
and other interior core building signage of $5,000. (2 ,

» Interior drywall column enclosures, interior of perimeter exterfor wall drywall and ductwork
shaft enclosures are assumed to be by tenant fitout costs and not inciuded in the estimate.@
* 3 sets of pan filled metal stairs are included — 2 that setvice all three floors & all enclosed in
2hr rated partitions that are painted with drywall ceilings and sealed concrete floors.

* Plastic laminate interior window sills have heen included and an aflowance of 20 hollow metal
framed wood doors with standard door hardware at interlor areas — Lobby, Stair wells, T/D
roems, MEP room, sfc. .

+ Additional enclosed areas Include 3 Tele/data closets — approximately 4' x &' for each floor,
enclosed with drywall partitions, sealed floors and no ceiling. The T/D rooms will each tecelve
a 4’ x 8 sheet of plywood for equipment mounting (by others). A genaral MEP room has been
included at approximately 10" x 10" and enclosed with drywall partitions, sealed floors and no
ceiling. A 5' x 10' elevator machine room has also been included with the same finishes as
above,

« The building will be fully spray fireproofed with a wet sprinkler system with upright heads at
future fit out areas. An add alternate has been provided if a fire pump is required if inadequate
waler pressure exists,

Fire Protection —

Risers sized and installed for the complete building with tamper and flow switches

All sprinkler heads installed at normal density. In areas where we instali the ceilings, the heads
will be semi recessed. In areas to be fit-out later, the heads are up turned until the fit-out is
corplete. :

Plumbing -

L

- ow

Install 1 hot water heater for the janitors closet and future core bathrooms

Install 2 mop sink and hose Bibb for 1 janitors closet

Roof drains and rain water conductors are installed from the roof to ground level

Rough-in for drains, vents and water for future core toilet areas. Fit-out for complete Toilet
Rooms are in the Tenant Fit-out.

Mechanical -~

L 2

Install all A#r Conditioning on the roof
o First Floor - 50 Tons, Gas Fired, “DX” type
o Second Floor - 50 Tons, Gas Fired, “DX” type
o Third Floor - 20 Tons, Gas Fired, “DX” type

_ I
© Ryt of e Fit-Up Work, Tenant s Allowance.

B Costs aboye thege amounts ore within

Pavt o€ He F¥-V Werk.
% chl‘?'fhmw\ o vons dwf: pm—“‘ ot He F+-Up Wonk,




SKANSKA

Jersey City HUB, Municipal Building - Brandywine Flnanczal Services
Scope of Work Narrative - Interiors

Jersey City, NJ

August 8, 2014

o YLobby and Stair — 5 Ton AC Unit Gas Fired, DX
Exhaust Fan for the Elevator Machine Room — approximately 600 CFM
Provisions for a roof mounted Exhaust Fan for the Future Toilet rooms are included
Cabinet Unit Heaters installed at the base of the egress stairs
Electric Baseboard heaters installed at the lobby windows
Duoctwork
o Risers installed from the wnits on roof to each floor
o 1 mediuvm pressure duct run per floor
o 6-Variable Air Boxes installed in the 1% & 2™ Floors for keeping the future tenant space
at 50 degrees until fit-out
o 5-VAYV boxes installed on the 3™ floor for keeping the future tenant space at 50 degrees
until fit-out

Electrical -
« Service :
o 1~ 1000 Ampere, 265/460 Volt main distribution panel for the building with branches
to serve a mechanical panel and house panels and provisions for future tenants
I — 100 Ampere House lighting & site lighting panel
1 - 30 KVA step down transformey
1 - 160 Ampere 120/208 Volt panel for house receptacle loads
1 — 200 ampere mechanical panel on the 3* floor to serve the A/C units on the roof
s Lighting
o Lighting for the lobby, t-5 fluorescent or CLF fluorescent down lights
o Lighting on each landing of the stairs
o Utility strip lights in the jamitors closet and electrical room
A o Local switches where required
* Power
o GFI's in the janitors closet -
o Duplex receptacles in the lobby
o 120 voli connections for the telephone board, fire alarm and security panels
& Communications .
' 6 Sleeves through the 2™ & 3™ floors for future extension of tenant telsphone wiring
o Provisions for wall telephones in the lobby, main electrical room & janitor closet (cable,
jack & phone by others)
s TFire Alarm
o Pull stations at exit doors
Horn strobes in lobby and stairs
Strobe provisions for the future bathrooms
Duct smoke detectors on roof with the A/C umits
Connections to the sprinkler tamper and flow switches
o Smoke detectors, heat detectors and provisions for elevator recall for the elevator
= Securdty & CCTV

.00 00

o 0 C O

2




SKANSKA

Jersey City HUB, Municipal Building - Brandywine Financial Services
Scope of Work Narrative - interiors

Jersey City, NJ

Augqust 8, 2014

o Provisions for security to be installed in the doors in the future
o 4 CCTV cameras with remote reporting via internet on the building perimeter
o Provisions for local main security & CCTV panels to be installed in the future




City Clerk Fite No. Ord. 14.100
3.1

Agenda: No, 1st Reading

Agenda No._______ _ 2nd Reading & Final Passage

ORDINANCE
~ OF
JERSEY' CITY, N.J.

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
" offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 14.100
TITLE: '

AN ORDINANCE YACATING A PORTION OF BRAMHALIL AVENUE
CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 3,000 SQUARE FEET FOR
DEVELOFMENT OF BERRY LANE PARK

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, the City of Jersey City (the “City”) does possess rights-of-way through all
public streets, thoroughfares and sidewalks located within the City; and

WHEREAS, the City is anthorized pursuant to N.LS.A. 40:67-1 et seq. and N.J.8, A 40-
A:12-5 to establish, change the grade of or vacate any pubhc street, highway, lane or alley, or any
part thereof at the discretion of the City; and

WHEREAS, the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency, (*Petitioner”) has filed a petition with
the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey Ciiy requesting the vacation of a portion of Bramhall
Avenue, depicted attached to the Vacation Map, attached as Fxhibit “A” to the Ordinance and is
more particularly described by the metes and bound description Exhibit “B” and ; and

WHEREAS, Bramhall Avenue is located within the City of Jersey City, County of Hudson,
State of New Jersey; and

WHEREAS, there is no municipal or public need for the portion of Bramhall Averme and
the Petitioner now desires that this portion of Bramhall Averue be vacated; and

WHEREAS, the area being vacated is no longer necessary for the general public use, and
the rights of the public will not be injuriously or adversely affected by the requested vacation, and
such vacation advances the public safety and weifare; and

WHEREAS, the City is authorized to vacate that portion of Bramhall Avenue as set forth
in Exhibit *A~; and

WHEREAS, the City and the Petitioner each own part of the property located on the adjacent
lots immediately east of the desired portion of Bramhall Avenue to be vacdted, more specifically
identified as Block 18901, Lot 18 on the official Tax Map of the City of Jersey City(the “Property™);
and

WHEREAS, the vacated parcel will be improved as part of Berty Lane Park, a public park
dedicated to the city for which the Petitioner is acting as the project leader on behalf of the City ; and

WHEREAS, the desired portion of Bramhall Avenue to be vacated is a “paper dedicated
street” and not an active public right-of~way; and

‘WHEREAS, the Municipal Engineer and Municipal Traffic Engineer have reviewed and
approved the proposed vacation of this portion of Bramhall Avenue; and




Continuation of City Ordinance 14.100 page 2

WHEREAS, said Petition has been duly advertised and proof of the giving of due notice of
the Petition requesting enactment of this ordinance as required by law has been filed with the City
Clerk, and the Municipal Council having held a public hearing thereon, and no objections having
been made thereto,

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City
that:

Section I: All parts or portions of Bramhall Avenue adjacent to Block 18901, Lot 18,
and as hereinafter more particularly described and as are shown and delineated on Exhibit “A™,
which is annexed to this Ordinance, be and the same are hereby vacated and included into Block
Block 18901, Lot 18, and the public easement and rights therein be and the same are hereby
extinguished, which parts of the aforesaid street are more particularly described in the metes and
bounds descriptions contained in Exhibit *B” to this Ordinance, which is incorporated herein by
reference,

SectionIE:  All costs and expenses related to the introduction, passage and publication of
this Ordinance, including the preparation and mailing of any and all notices related to this ordinance
upon property owners within 200 feet of the area to be vacated, shall be bomme and paid by the
Petitioner

Seetion HI:  The Petitioner shall file this Ordinance and the Maps with the Register of the
County of Hudson within sixty (60) days after the Ordinance becomes effective.

Section IV:  This Ordinance shall be subject to the following:

1) In the event the utilities, if any, presently located under the roadways being vacated
hereunder, are not moved fo another location or abandoned in place, an easement in
perpetuity is reserved for the benefit of the City of Jersey City, Jersey City Municipal
Utilities Authority and all public utility companies, including any cable television company
as defined in the “Cable Television Act®, P.L. 1972, c. 186 (c. 48:5A-1 et seq.) for the
purpose of ingress and egress over and upon the area subject to this vacation ordinance in
order to maintain, repair or replace existing utility facilities including water lines, sewer
lines, gas lines and telephone, elecirical and cable television wires and poles which may be
located either beneath or above the surface of the area subject to this vacation ordinance.

2) No buildings or structures of any kind may be constructed over the water or sewer
utilities within this area subject to the easement without the consent of the Chief Engineer
of the City of Jersey City and/or the Jersey City Municipal Utilities Authority unless and
until those utilities are relocated and/or abandoned.

3) In the event that utilities, if any, presently lying in the portion of Bramhall Avenue
being vacated hereby are relocated, then the easement otherwise created under Section IV (1),
shall immediately terminate and the same shall be considered as abandoned by the respective
utility company.

Section V:  All Ordinances and parts of Ordinances inconsistent herewith are hercby
repealed.

Section VI:  This Ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and
fully set forth therein. The City Clerk shall have this Ordinance codified and incorporated in the
official copies of the Jersey City Code,

Section VII: This Ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manners provided by
Taw.
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Section VIII: The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel are hereby authorized and
directed to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the
codification of this Ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those nuntbers and the existing
code in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repeal of the existing provisions.

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:

APPROVED:

Corparation Counsel ) . Business Administrator

Cerfification Required O
Not Reguired O




ORDINANCE/RESOLUTHON FACT SHEET

This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any ordinance, resolution, cooperation agreement ot
contract that is submitted for Council consideration. Incomplete or sketchy summary sheets will be
returned with the resolution or ordinance. The department, division or agency responsible for the overall
implementation of the proposed project or program should provide a concise and aceurate statement of
facts.

1. Full Title of Ordinance/Resclution/Cooperation Agreement:

AN ORDINANCE VACATING A PORTION OF BRAMHALIL AVENUY, CONSISTING
OF APPROXTMATELY 3,000 SQUARE FEET FOR DEVELOPMENT OF BERRY
LANE PARK,

2. Name and Title of Person Initiating the Ordinance/Resolution, etc.:
Benjamin Delisle, Director of Redevelopment, Jersey City Redevelopment
Agency, 201-761-0822,

3. Concise Deseription of the Program, Project or Plan Proposed in the
Ordinance/Resolution: This Ordinance will authorize the vacation of a portion of
Bramhall Avenue in order to effectuate the terms of the Morris Canal Redevelopment
Plan as amended which provide for development of park and recreation area.

4. Reasons (Need) for the Proposed Program, Project, efc:
In order to caxry out the Morris Canal Redevelopment Plan and the vacation of a portion of

Bramhall Avenuc is necessary to complete the development of Berry Lane Park.

5. Anticipated Benefits to the Community:
Development of open space and recreation with the creation of the Berry Lane Park,

6. Cost of Proposed Program, Project, etc. (Indicate the dollar amount of City, State
and Federal Funds to be used, as well as match and in-kind contributions.): N/A

7. Date Proposed Program or Project Will Commence:
Upon adoption of this Ordinance

8. Aanticipated Completion Date:
Approximately a year fo develop entire park.

9. Person Responsible for Coordinating Proposed Program, Project, etc.:
Benjamin Delisle bdelisle@jenj.org (201) 761-0822

19,  Addifional Comments:

I certify that all the Facts Presented Herein are Accurate,

Signature of Christopher Fiore
Assistant Executive Director,
Jersey City Redevelopment Agency

Signature of ANTHONY CRUZ
Director,
Department of Housing, Economic
. Development and Commerce




PETITION
TO THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF JERSEY CITY, NEW JERSEY

Your petitioner, the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency (the "Petitioner"), having
an address of 66 York Street, Second Floor, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302, respectfully
shows:

WHEREAS, the amended Morris Canal Redevelopment Plan, first adopted March
1999, calls for the dedication and development of new park land in the section of the Plan
Area that is bounded by the Hudson Bergen Light Rail, Woodward Sireet, Garfield Avenue
and Communipaw Avenue, shown on the Zoning Plan map (“Map B,” a copy which is
attached hereto as Exhibit C), the development of which could include, but is not limited to,
playing fields, other recreational facilities, structures, passive recreation and amenities;

WHEREAS, the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency, in close coordination with the
City of Jersey City, has been implementing the Redevelopment Plan through the creation of
Berry Lane Park; and

WHEREAS, on April 2, 2013, the Jersey City Planning Board heard a presentation on
Berry Lane Park and found that the plan for the Park comports with the Jersey City Master
Plan; and

WHEREAS, in order to develop the park, the Petitioner seeks the vacation of a
portion of the former Bramhall Avenue measuring approximately 3,000 squarc feet (the
“Vacation Parecel"), as depicted on that certain map prepared by Dresdner Robin
Environmental Management, dated May 16, 2014, (the "Vacation Map", a copy of which
is attached hereto as Exhibit A), and as described in that certain metes and bounds
description prepared by Dresdner Robin Environmental Management, dated May 16, 2014
and entitled " Deed Description of Right-of-Way Vacation Portion of Bramhall Avenue to
be annexed to Block 18901, Lot 18, City of Jersey City, Hudson County, New Jersey (the
"Metes & Bounds Description", a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B); and

WHEREAS, the Vacation Parcel is not necessary for general public use as a Right of
Way, and the rights of the public will not be injuriously or adversely affected by the
requested vacation; and

NOW THEREFORE, your Petitioner respectfully requests that the Municipal
Council of the City of Jersey City ordain the vacation of the Vacation Parcel for the
reasons set forth herein.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

GERRARE R RRATE — DN Sy R
ROTARY PUSLIC OF N .J. enjamm“e
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES - |
~ ABBUST 04, 2018




EXHIBIT A
Map of Proposed Lot
May 16, 2014
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EXHIBIT B
Metes & Bounds Description
- May 16, 2014




May 16, 2014 ~Job No. 00080-785
DEED DESCRIPTION
Right of Way Vacation
" of a portion of Bramhall Avenue
to be annexed to Block 18901, Lot 18
" City of Jersey City
Hudson County, New Jersey

BEGINNING at a point in the northwesterly line of Woodward Street
(60 feet wide), said point being distant South 46 degrees 37 minutes
16 seconds West, 816.09 feet along the northwesterly line of
Woodward Street from its intersection with the southwesterly line of
Communipaw Avenue (60 feet wide), and running; thence

1. South 46 degrees 37 minutes 16 seconds Woest, 64.20 feet to a

point; thence
2. North 64 degrees 12 minutes 51 seconds West, 50.00 feet to a
point; thence
3. North 46 degrees 37 minutes 16 seconds East, 64.20 feet to a
point; thence
4, South 64 degrees 12 minutes 51 seconds East, 50.00 feet fo
the point or place of BEGINNING.

Containing '3,000 square feet or 0.089 acres, more or less.

This description was prepared in accordance with a map entitled
“Exhibit for Right of Way Vacation for a Portion of Bramhall Avenue, to
be annexed to Block 18901, Lot 18, City of Jersey City, Hudson
County, New Jersey, prepared for Jersey City Redevelopment
Agency” dated May 15, 2014 prepared by Dresdner Robin, Hanson
Engineering Division, Job No. 00080-785.

S

G‘reg S. Gloor
‘Professionai Land Surveyor
New Jersey License No. 37189

PO

DRESDNER ROBIN

meawz}- Planning - Surveylng « Gandseape Architeauss

Jersey City

Corporate Office

371 Warren Street, 37 Fioor
P.O. Box 38

Jersey City, NJ 07303-0038
PHONE: 201-217-9200
FAX: 201-217-9607

Asbury Park Office
603 Mattison Avenue

Asbury Park, NJ 07712

PHONE: 732-988-7020
FAX: 732-988-7032

Pennsauken Office

Perlss Ruetter Division
Fairway Corporate Center

4300 Haddonfield Road, Suite 115
Pennsauken, NJ 08109

PHONE: 856-488-6200
FAX: 856-488-4302

Wayne Office

Hanson Engineering Division
Wayne Plazal

145 Route 46 West, Suite 210
Wayne, NJ 07470

PHONE: 973-696-2600

FAX: 973-696-1362

www.dresdnerrobin.com




EXHIBIT C
Morris Canal Redevelopment Zoning
Map B
April 30,2014




City Clerk File No. Ord. 14.101

AQenda MNo. 3.4 1st Reading

Agenda No. 2nd Reading & Final Passage

ORDINANCE
OF
JERSEY CITY, N.J.

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 14.101

TITLEORDINANCE APPROVING A 10 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR A MIXED USE MARKET RATE
RESIDENTIAL RENTAL PROJECT TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY LHN OWNER URBAN
RENEWAL, LLC, AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM TAX
EXEMPTION LAW N.I.S.A, 40A:20-1 ET SEQ.

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, LHN Owner Urban Renewal, LLC, is an urban renewal entity, formed and qualified
to do business under the promsmns ofthe Long Term Tax Exemption Law 0f 1992, as amended
and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq. (Entity); and .

WHEREAS, the Entity owns a portion of certain property within Block 15901, Lot 17, to be
known as Master Deed Unit Sub-Unit 1.1, on the City’s Official Tax map, and more commonly
known by the street address of 33 Park Avenue, and more specifically described by metes and
bounds, in the application [Property]; and

WHEREAS, the Property is located within the Liberty Harbor Noth Redevelopment Plan Area
as required by N.J.S.A. 40A:20-4 and N.J.S.A. 404:12A-5(g).; and

WHEREAS, the Entity has applied for a 10 year long term tax exemption to construct a forty-
four (44) story building with approximately four hundred forty-eight (448) market rate
residential rental units, approximately five thousand two hundred ninety (5,290} square feet
of ground floor retail space and a garage unit to contain approximately five hundred forty-four
(544) parking spaces; and

WHEREAS, the Entity represents that there will be no rent fee or other charge for parkmg,
_thereby exempting the parking from certain municipal charges; and

WHEREAS, the Project received a site plan approval from the Planning Board on january 7,
2014; and

WHEREAS, LHN Owner Urban Renewal, LLC, has agreed to:
- L pay the greater of (i} the Minimum Annual Service Charge or (i) 10% of Annual Gross
Revenue each year, which sum is estimated to be $1,559,975, and which shall be subject to

statutory staged increases over the term of the tax exemption; and

2. pay an annual sum equal to 2% of each prior year’s Annual Service Charge as an
Administrative Fee: and

3. provide employment and other economic opportunities for City residents and
businesses;
4, pay to City for remittance to Hudson County, an equal to 5% of the Annual Service

Charge upon receipt of that charge;
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5. provide a contribution to the City’s Affordable Housing Trust Fund, pursuant to
Ordinance 03-112, in the amount of $679,935; and

6. make a one-time contribution to the City as an Additional Service Charge equal to 1.5%
ofthe Project’s actual Construction Costs as an element of Total Project Costs as defined in the
Long Term Tax Exemption Law, N.L.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., estimated to be $140,661,526, or,
approximately $2,109,923, which shall be payable fifty (50) days from the date of the adoption
of the within ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the relative benefits of the project outweigh the
cost of the tax exemption, for the following reasons:

1 the current real estate taxes generate revenue attributable to Master Deed Unit Sub-
Unit 1.1 of only $149,141, whereas, the Annual Service Charge as estimated, will generate
revenue of more than $4,559,975 to the City and an additional sum of approximately $77,999
to Hudson County;

2. it is expected that the Project will create approximately 400 jobs during construction
and 20 new permanent jobs;

3. the Project will stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of businesses in the
surrounding area;
4, the Projectwill further the overall redevelopment objectives of the Liberty Harbor Noth

Redevelopment Plan Area;

5. the City’s impact analysis, on file with the Office of the City Clerk, indicates that the
benefits of the Project outweigh the costs to the City;

6. construction jobs shall be subject to a Project Labor Agreement, pursuant to Section
304-33 of the Jersey City Municipal Code;

7. janitorial and unarmed security jobs on the project shall be paid a Living Wage
pursuant to Section 3-76 of the Jersey City Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the tax exemption is important in obtaining
development of the project and influencing the locational decisions of probable occupants for
the following reasons:

1. the relative stability and predictability of the Annual Service Charges will make the
Project more attractive to investors needed to finance the Project;

2. the relative stability and predictability of the Annual Service Charges will allow the
owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of maintenance to the building
over the life of the Project, which will attract purchasers to the Project and insure the
likelihood of the success of the Project; and

WHEREAS, LHN Owner Urban Renewal, LLC, has initially complied with Executive Order
2002-005 concerning "Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status” by filing anappropriate
letter in the Office of the City Clerk; and

WHEREAS, LHN Owner Urban Renewal, LLChas agreed to comply with the City of Jersey City’s
Ordinance 07-123 Requiring Apprenticeships and Project Labor Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City
that:




Continuation of City Ordinance 14.101 , page 3

ORBINANCE APPROVING A 10 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR A MIXED USE MARKET RATE RESIDENTIAL RENTAL PROJECT TO BE
CONSTRUCTED BY LHN OWNER URBAN RENEWAL, LLC, AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM TAX
EXEMPTION LAW N.LS.A. 40A4:20-1 ET SEG.

A, Theapplication of LHN Owner Urban Renewal, LLC, an urban renewal company, formed
and qualified to de business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of
1992, asamended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq. a copy of which is on filein the
office of the City Clerk, for a portion of property within Block 15901, Lot 17, to be known as
Master Deed Unit Sub-Unit 1.1, more commonly known by the street address of 33 Park
Avenue, more specifically described by metes and bounds in the application is hereby
approved.

B. The Mayor or Business Administrator is hereby autheorized to execute a Financial
Agreement, which shall include at a minimum the following terms and conditions:

1. Term: the earlier of 15 years from the adoption of the within Ordinance or 10 years
from the date the project is Substantially Complete;

2. Annual Service Charge: each year the greater of;

{a) the Minimum Annual Service Charge equal to $149,141 upon Project
Completion, whether or not the Project is occupied; or

(b)  10% of Annual Gross Revenue, estimated at $1,559,975, which shall be subject
to statutory increases during the term of the tax exemption. ’

3. Administrative Fee: 2% of the prior year’s Annual Service Charge or $31,200;

4, County Payment: an additional 5% of the Annual Service Charge for remittance by the
City to Hudson County or $77,999;

5. Affordable Housing Trust Fund: provide a contribution to the City’s Affordable Housing
TrustFund, pursuant to Ordinance 03-112, in the amount of $679,935. In the eventa fee direct
or indirect is ever charged for parking, an additional charge of $1.50 per square foot of parking
shall be immediately due and owing; and

6. Project: aforty-four (44} story building with approximately four hundred forty-eight
{448) market rate residential rental units, approximately five thousand two hundred ninety
(5,290} square feet of ground floor retail space and a garage unit to contain approximately five
hundred forty-four (544) parking spaces;

7. Aone-time contribution to the City as an Additional Service Charge equal to 1.5% ofthe
Project’s actual Construction Costs as an element of Total Project Costs as defined inthe Long
Term Tax Exemption Law, N.[.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., estimated to be $140,661,526, which sum
is estimated to be approximately $2,109,923, which shall be payable fifty (50} days from the
date of the adoption of the within ordinance; and

8. An obligation to execute (i} a Project Employment and Contracting Agreement for
contracts and permanent jobs and (i} a Project Labor Agreement for construction jobs to
insure employment and other economic benefits to City residents and businesses;

9, An obligation to pay a Living Wage to all janitorial and unarmed security jobs pursuant
to Section 3-76 of the Jersey City Municipal Code;

C. This Ordinance will sunset and the Tax Exemption will terminate unless construction
of the Project begins within two (2) years of the adoption of the within Ordinance.
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D. The City Clerk shall deliver a certified copy of the Ordinance and Financial Agreement
to the Tax Assessor and Director of the Division of Local Government Services.

E. The application is on file with the office of the City Clerk, The Financial Agreementand
Project Employment and Contracting Agreement shall be in substantially the form on file in
the Office of the City Clerk, subject to such modification as the Business Administrator or
Corporation Counsel deems appropriate or necessary.

E. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

G. Thisordinance shalt be partofthe Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set forth
therein. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official
copies of the Jersey City Code.

H.  This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner provided by law.

L The City Clerkand Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and directed
to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the
codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers and the
existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of existing

provisions,
NOTE: All material is new; therefore underlining has been omitted.
For purposes of advertising only, new matter is indicated by
bold face and repealed matter by italic.
M/he
8/12/14
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED;
APPROVED:
Corporation Counsel Business Adminlstrator

Certification Required O
Not Reguired O




TIER 2 - FINANCIAL AGREEMENT (10 YEAR}
Rev. 8/12/14

Long Term Tax Exemption

N.I.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq.

Re: 33 Park Avenue
Approximately 1.190 Acres
Block 15901, Lot 17, Sub-Unit 1.1
Liberty Harbor North Redevelopment Plan

PREAMBLE

THIS FINAN CIAL AGREEMENT, [ Agreement] is made the day of . 2014,
" byand between_LHN OWNER URBAN RENEWAL, LLC, an urban renewal entity formed and
qualified to do business under the prbvisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as
amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., having its principal office at ¢/o Fisher
Development Associates, LLC, Two Manhattanville Road, Purchas e, New York 1077 [Entity], and.
the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Municipal Corporation of the State of New Jersey, having its
principal office at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 [City].
RECITALS
WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, the Entity is the Owner pursuant to Deed dated October 25, 2013, a portion of

certain property within Block 15901, Lot 17, to be known as Master Deed Unit Sub-Unit 1.1, more
commonly known by the street address of 33 Park Avenue, J ersej City, and more particularly
described by the metes and bounds description set forth as Exhibit 1 to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, ﬁis property is located within the boundaries of the Liberty Harbor North
Redevelopment Plan Area; and _

WHEREAS, the Entity plans to construct a forty-four (44) story building with approximately
four hundred forty-cight (448) market rate residential rental units, approximately five thousand two
hundred ninety (5,290) square feet of ground floor retail space and a garage unit [Project]; and

WHEREAS, th_e Entity ref)resents that there will be no rent fee or other charge for parking,
thereby exemptiﬁg the parking from certain municipal charges; and '

_ WHEREAS, on J. anuéry 7,2014, the Project received site plan approval from the Planning
Board; énd




WHEREAS, on June 27, 2014, the Entity filed an Application with the City for a long term

tax exemption for the Project; and

WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance on , 2014, the Municipal

Council approved a long term tax exemption for the Project and authorized the execution of a

Financial Agreement; and

. WHEREAS, the City made the followirig findings:

A. Relative Benefits of the Project when compared to the costs:

1.

10.

the current real estate tax generates revenue of only $149,141, whereas, the

Annual Service charge as estimated, will generate revenue to the City of

approximately $1,559,975;

as required by ordinance 13-088, the Entity shall pay the City the sum of
$226,645 on or before the effective date of the ordinance approving the
Financial Agreement, and will pay the balance of $453,290 as an affordable

housing contribution as required by the ordinance;

make a one-time contribution to the City as an Additional Service Charge
equal to 1.5% of the Project’s actual Gross Construction Costs, estimated to
be $140,661,526, which sum is estimated to be approximately $2,109,923,
which shall be payable fifty (50) days from the date of the adoption of the
ordinance approving this Agreement;

itis expected that the Project will create approximately 400 new construction
jobs and 20 new permanent full time jobs;

construction jobs shall be subject to a Project Labor Agreement, pursuant to
Section 304-33 of the Jersey City Municipal Code;

permanent jobs shall be subject to a Project Employment & Contracting
Agreement pursuant to the Mayor’s Executive Order 13-004;

janitorial and unarmed security jobs shall be paid a Living Wage pursuant to

" Section 3-76 of the Jersey City Municipal Code;-and

the project should stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of existing
local business and to the creation of new businesses, which cater to the new
occupants; i

. the Project will further the objectives of the Liberty Harbor North

Redevelopment Plan, and will include the development of vacant property;
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11, the City’s Impact Analysis, on file with the Office of the City Clerk, indicates

that the benefits of the Project outweigh the costs to the City; and
B. Assessment of the Tmportance of the Tax Exemption in obtaining development of the -
project and influencing the locational decisions of probable occupants:

1. the relative stability and predictability of the annual service charges will
make the Project more attractive to investors and lenders needed to finance
the Project; and

2. the relative stability and predictability of the service charges will allow the
owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of maintenance
to the building over the life of the Project, which will attract occupants to the
Project, insure the likelihood of stabilized rents to tenants and the success of
the Project; and

3. have a positive impact en the surrounding area.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and for
other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows:

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1.1 Gov‘erning Law

This Agreement shall be governed by the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law,
as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., Executive Order of fhe Mayor 2013-004,
Disclosure of Lobbyist Stétus, Ordinance 02~075 , and Ordinance . Whiqh authorized the-
execution of this Agreement. It Be'mg expressly understood and agreed that the City expressly relies
upon the facts, data, and representations contained in fhe Application, attached hereto as Exhibit 3,
in granting this tax exemption.
Section 1.2 General Definitions

Unless specifically provided otherwise or the context otherwise réquires, when used in this

Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

i Allov_vable Net Profit- The amount arrived at by applying the Allowable Profit Rate
to Total Project Cost pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(c).

ii.  Allowable Profit Rate - The greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived at

by adding 1.25% to the annual interest percentage rate payable on the Entity’s initial permanent
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mortgage financing. ‘If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or guaranteed by a governmental
agency, the mortgage insurance premium or similar charge, if payable on a per annum basis, shall
be considered as interest for this purpose. If there is no permanent mortgage financing, or if the
financing is internal or undertaken by a related party, the Allowable Profit Rate shall beA the greater
of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived at by adding 1.25% per annum to the interest rate per
annum which the municipality determines to be the prevailing rate on mortgage financing on
comparable improvements in Hudson Counfy. The provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(b) are
incorporated herein by reference.

iii. Annual Gross Revenue - Any and all revenue derived from or generated by the Project

of whatever kind or amount, whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees from third
parties, including but not limited to fees or income paid or received for parking, or as user fees or
for any other services. No dedﬁctions will be allowed for operating or maintenance costs, including,
but not limited to gas, electric, water and sewer, other utilities, garbage removal and insurance
- charges, whether paid for by the landlord, tenant or a third party. _

iv. Annual Service Charge - The amount the Entity has agreed to pay the City each year

for municipal services supplied to the Project, which sum is in lieu of any taxes on the Improve-
inents, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12. It shall include a payment for all profit exceeding
Allowable Net Profit, i.e., annual excess profit, ' |

V. Auditor's Report - A complete annual ﬁnéncial statement outlining the financial status
of the Project, which shall also include a certification of Total Project Cost and clear computation
of the annual Net Profit. The contents of the Auditor’s Repoﬁ shall have been prepared in cogformjty
with génerally accepted accounting principles and shall contain at a minimum the following: a
balance sheet, a statement of income, a statement of retained earnings or changes in stockholders’
equity, a statement of cash flows, ciescriptions of accounting policies, notes to financial statements
and appropriate schedules and explanatory material results of operations, cash flows aﬁd any other
items required by Law. The Auditor’s Report shall be certified as to its conformance with such
ﬁﬁﬁcfples by a certified public accountant who is Iicensg:d to practice that profession in the State of

New Jersey.

vi. Certificate of Occupancy - A document, whether temporary or permanent, issued by

4




the City aufhorizing occupaﬁcy of a building, in whole or in part, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:27D-133.

vil.  Debt Service - The amount required to make annual payments of p'rincipal and
interest or the equivalent thereof on any construction mortgage, permaneht mortgage or other
financing including returns on institutional equity fmancing and market rate related party debt for
the project for a period 'edual to the term of this agreement.

viii.  Default - Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entity to perform any obligation
imposed upon the Entity by the terms of this Agreement, or under the Law, beyond any applicable
grace or cure periods. ' |

ix. Enfity - The term Entity within this Agreement shall mean LN Owner Urban
Renewal, LLC, which Entity is formed and qualified pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-5, It shall also
include any subsequent purchasers or successors in interest of the Project, provided they are formed |
and operate under the Law.

X. Improvements or Project - Any building, structure or fixture permanently affixed to

the land and to be constructed and tax exempted under this Agreement.

Xl. In Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure - A summary proceeding by which the

City may enforce a lién for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under N.J.S.A, 54:5-1 to 54:5-129 et

xfi.  Land Taxes- The amount of taxes assessed on the value of land, on which the project
is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing improvements. ‘Land Taxes are not exempt;
however, Land Taxes are applied as a credit againét the Annual Service Charge.

xiil.  Land Tax Payments - Payments made on the quarterly due dates, including approved

grace periods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor and the Tax Collector.

x1v, @ - Law shall refer to tﬁe Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and
supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq.; Executive Order of the Mayor 2013-004, relating to long
term tax exemption, as it may be supplemented; Ordinance 02-075 requiring Disclosure of Lobbyist
Status and Ordinance , which authorized the execution of this. Agreement and all other
relevant Federal, State dr City statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations.

xv.  Minimum Annual Service Charge - The Minimum Annual Service Charge shall be

the greater of: (a) the amount of the total taxes levied against all real property in the area covered by




the Project in the last full tax year in which the area was subject to taxation, which amount the
parties agree is $149,141; or (b) the sum of $1,559,975 per year, which sum is equal to the estimated
Annual Service Charge will 'be due following Substantial Completion of the Project.

Following Substantial Completion, the Minimum Annual. Service Charge set forth in
subsection (b) shall be paid in each year in which the Annual Service Charge, calculated pursuanf
toN.J.S.A. 40A:20-12 or this Agreement, would be less than the Minimum Annuval Service Charge.

xvi.  Net Profit - The Annual Gross Revenues of the Entity less all annual operating and
non-operating expenses of the Entity, all determined in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, but: |

(1) there shall be included in expenses: (a) all Annual Service charges paid pursuant to
N.IS.A. 40A:20-12; (b) all annual payments to the City of excess profits pursuant to N.J.S.A.
40A:20-15 or N.J.S.A. 40A:20-16; (c) an annual amount sufficient to amortize (utilizing the straight
line method-equal annual amounts) the Total Project Cost and all capital costs determined in

.accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of any other entity whose revenue is
included in the computation of excess profits over the term of this agreement; (d) all reasonable
annual operating expenses of the Entity and any other entity whose revenue is included in the
computation of excess profits inch;ding the cost of all management fees, brokerage commissions,
insurance premiums, all taxes or service charges paid, legal, accounting, or other professional service
fees, utilities, building maintenance chts, btﬁlding and office supplies and payments into repair or
maintenance reserve accounts; (¢) all payments of rent including but not limited to ground rent by
the Entity; (f) all debt service; and

(2) there shall not be included in expenses either depreciation or obsolescence, interest on
debt, except interest which is part of debt service, income taxes or salaries, bonuses or other
compensation paid, directly or indirectly to directors, officers and stockholders of the entity, or
officers, partners or other persons holding a proprietary ownership interest in the enﬁty.

XVii. Prpﬂouns - He orit shall mean the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, the singular,

as well as the phural, as context requires.

xviii. Substantial Completion - The determination by the City that the Project, in whole or

in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the first date on which the Project
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receives, or is eligible to receive, any Certificate of Occupancy whether temporary or permanent for
any portion of the Project.

- xix.  Termination - Any act or omission which by operation of the terms of this Financial
Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption.

xx.  Total Project Cost - The total cost of constructing the Project through the date a

Certificate(s) of Occupancy is issued for the entire Proj ec;c, which categories of cost are set forth in
. N.I.S.A. 40A:20-3(h). There shall be included from Total Project Cost the actual costs incurred by
the Entity and certified by an independent and qualified architect or engineer, which are associated
with site remediation and cleanup of environmentally hazardous materials or contaminants in
accordance with State or Federal law and any extraordinary costs incurred including the cost of
demolishing structures, relocation or removal of public utilities, cost of relocating displaced residents
or buildings and the clearing of title. If the Service Charge is a percentage of Total Project Cost, then
“the Entity agrees that final Total Project Cost shall not be less than its estimated Total Project Cost.
ARTICLE II - APPROVAL

Section 2.1  Approval of Tax Exemption

_The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption for all the Improvements to be
constructed and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the
provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constructed on certain property known on the
Official Tax Assessor’s Map of the City as: Block 15901, Lot 17, Sub-Unit 1.1, more commbnly
knoer.by the street addréss 33 Park Avenue, Jersey City, and described by metes and bounds in
Exhibit 1 attached hereto,
Section 2.2 Approval of Entity _

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Formation is attached hereto as Exhibit

4. Entity represents that its Certificate contains all the requisite provisions of the Law; has been
reviewed and approved by the Commissioner of the Department of Communitj Affairs; and has been
filed with, as appropriate, the Office of the State Treasurer or Office of the Hudson County Clerk,
all in accordance with N.LS.A. 40A:20-5., ‘
Section 2.3  Improvements to be Constructed

Entity represents that it will construct a forty-four (44) story building with approximately
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four hundred forty-cight (448) market rate residential rental units, approximately five thousand two
* hundred ninety (5,290) square feet of ground floor retail spé.ce and a garage unit to contain
| approximately five hundred forty-four (544) parking spaces; all of which is specifically described
in the Application attached hereto as Exhibit 3. |

Section 2.4  Construction. Schedule

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence construction and complete the Project
in accordance with the Estimated Construction Schedule; attached hereto as E:ﬂ]iBit 5, and in
compliance with any Redeveiopment Agreement.

Section 2.5 Ownership, Management and Control

The Entity represents that it is the owner of the property upon which the Project is to be con-
structed. Upon construction, the Entity represents that the Improvements will be used, managed and
controlled for the purposes set forth in this Agreement and any Redevelopment Agreement.
Section 2.6 Financial Plan '

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be financed in accordance with the
Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plan sets forth a good faith estimate of Total
Project Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the source of funds, the interest rates
to be paid on construction financing, the source and amount of paid-in capital, and the terms of any
mortgage amortization. |
Section 2.7  Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rents [or Sale Prices, if Condominium]

-The Entity represents that its good faith projections of the initial rents and other revenue [or
sale prices, if condominium] to the Project are set forth in Exhibit 7.

ARTICLE III - DURATION OF AGREEMENT

Section 3.1 Term

So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it is understood and agreed
by the parties hereto that this Agreement shall remain in effect for the earlier of fifteen (15) years
from the date of the adoption of Ordinance on , 2014, which approved the tax

exemption or ten (10) years from the original date of Substantial Completion of the Project. The tax
exemption shall only be effective during the lﬁeriod of usefulness of the Project and shall continue

. in force only while the Project is owned by a corporation or association formed and operating under




thé Law.
ARTICLE IV = ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE

Section 4.1  Annual Service Charge

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following annual payments
to the City for services provided to the Project:

i City Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of: the Minimuﬁ Annual Service
Charge or an Annual Service Charge equal to 10% of the Annual Gross Revenue. The Annual
Service Chargé shall be billed initially based upon the Entity’s estimate of Annual Gross Revenue,
attached hereto as Exhibit 6. Thei‘eafter, the Annual Service Charge shall be adjusted in accordance
with this Agreement. .

il. County Service Charge: an amount equal to 5% of the Municipal Annual Service
Charge shall be paid to the City and remitted by the City to the County.

iii. The Minimum Annual Service Charge pursuant to Section 1.2xv(a) shall be due
beginning on the effective date of this Agreement. The Minimum Annual Service Charge pursuant
to Section 1.2xv(b) shall be dﬁe following Substantial Completion of the Project. The City Service
Charge and the County Annual Service Charge shall be due on the first day of the month following
the Substantial Completion of the Project. In the event the Entity fails to timely pay the Minimum
Annual Service Charge or the Annual Service Charge, the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate
of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on land until paid.

Section 4.2 Staged Adjﬁstments
" The Annual Service Charge shall be adjusted, in Stages over the term of the tax exemption
in accordance with N.J.S.A, 40A:20-12(b) as follows:

i. Stage One: From the 1st day of the month following Substantial Completion until the
last day of the 6th year, thé Annual Service Charge shall be 10% of Annual Gross Revenue;

ii.  Stage Two:Beginning on the 1* day of the 7th year following Substantial Completion
until the last day of the 7th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service Charge or 20%
of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land énd Improvements;

iii. Stage Three: Beginning on the 1st day of the 8th year following the Substantial
Completion until the last day of the 8th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service




Charge or 40% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land and
" Improvements;

iv. Stage Four: Beginning on the 1st day of the 9th year following Substantial
Completion until the last day of the th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service
Charge or 60% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land and
Improvements. |

v.  Final Stage: Beginning on the Ist day of the 10th vear following Substantial
Completion through the date the tax exemption expires, an amount equal to the greater of the
Annual Service Charge or 80% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of
the land and Improirements.

Section 4.3 Land Tax

The Entity is required to pay both the Annual Service Charge and the Land Tax Payments.
The Entity is obligated to make timely Land Tax Paymenfs, including any tax on the pre-existing.
improvements, in order to be entitled to a Land Tax credit against the Annual Service Charge for the
subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the amount, without interest, of the Land
Tax Payfnents made in the last four preceding quarterly installments against the Annual Service
Charge. In any quarter that the Entity fails to make any Land Tax Payments when due and owing,
such delinquency shall render the Entity ineligible for any Land Tax Paymeﬁt credit against the |
Annual Service Charge. No credit will be applied against the Annual Service Charge for a partial
payment of Land Taxes. In addition, the City shall have, among this remedy and other remedies,
the right to proceed against the property pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, m 54:5-
1, et seqg. and/or declare a Default aﬁd terminate this Agreement.

" Section 4.4  Quarterly Installments / Interest

The Entity expressly agrees that the Annual Service Charge shall be made in quarterly
installments on those dates when real estate tax payments are due; subject, nevertheléss, to
adjustment for over or underpayment within thirty (30) days after the close of each calendar year.
Inr'l:he event that the Entity fails to pay the Annual Service Charge or any other charge due under this
agreemeﬁt, the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid

taxes or tax liens on the land until paid in full.
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‘ Sectioil 4.5 Administrative Fee
' The Entity shall also pajf an annual Administrative Fee to the City in addition to the Annual
Service Charge and Land Tax levy. The Administrative Fee shall be calculated as two (2%) 'percent
of each prior year’s Annual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due on or before
December 31st of each year, and collected in the same manner as the Annual Service Charge.
Section 4.6  Affordable -Housing Contribution and Remedies
A. Contribution. T.hé Entity will pay the City the sum of $679,934 or [$1,500 per unit
or $672,000 and $1.50 per square foot of retail space or $7,935] as a contribution. The sum shall
be due and payable as follows:
i. 1/3 on or before the effective adoption date of the Ordinance approving the tax exemption;
ii. 1/3 on or before the issuance of the first of any construction permit for the Project, but no
later than six months after the date of the Financial Agreement; and _'
iii. 1/3 on or before the date the first of any Certificate of Occupancy is issued for the Project,
‘but no later than twenty-four (24) months after the date of the Financial Agreement.
Section 4.7  Material Conditions
It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes, Minimum
Annual Service Charges, Annual Service Charges, including Annual Net Profits and any adjustments
thereto, Administrative Fees, Affordable Housing Contributions, and any interest thereon, are
Material Conditions of this Agreement. _
Section 4.8 Additional Service Charge (from Tier One to Tier Two)
 The En;city agrees to make a one time contribution to the City equal to 1.5% of the actual
Gross Construction Cost, an element of Total Project Cost as defined in the Long Term Tax
Exemption Law, N.J.S:A, 40A:20-1. This sum is estimated to be $2,109,923 based on the estimated
Construction Costs of approximately $140,661,526. It is due and payable 'ﬁfty (50) days from the
date of adoption of Ordinance approving this Financial Agreement. The amount of the
Additional Service Charge is subject to a “true up”, which shall occur at the end of the year
following Project Completion and the Audit of the Total Project Cost. The Entity agrees that the
amount of the Additional Service Charge can be increased but never reduced. Failure fo make timely

payment will be considered a material breach of this Agreement.
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ARTICLE V - PROJECT EMPLOYMENT AND CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

Section 5.1  Project Employment and Contracting Agreement

In order to ‘provide City residents and businesses with certain employment and other
economic related opportunities, the Entity is éubj ect to the terms and conditions of the Project
Employment and Contracting Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 8. '
Section.5.2 Project Labor Agreement (Projects with construction costs exceeding $25

million) |

The Entity shall execute a Project Labor Agreement as required by Section 304-33 of the
Jersey City Municipal Code as it éxists or as it may be amended from time to time.
SectionS5.3  Living Wage Mandate (Projects with constraction costs éxceeding $25 million)

The Entity also agrees to comply with the requirements of Section 3-76 of the Jersey City
Municipal Code concerning required wage, benefit and leave standards for building service workers.
All janitors and unarmed security guards employed at the Projects, including by any and all tenants
or subtenants of the developer, shall not be p-aid less than the standard hourly rate of pay and benefits
for their respective classifications and shall be provided with paid leave in accordance with the
provisions of the Jersey City Municipal Code Section 3-51G(1).

ARTICLE VI - CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

Section 6.1  Certificate of Occupancy
It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain all
Certificates of Occupancy in a timely manner so as to complete construction in accordance with the
proposed construction schedule attached hereto as Exhibit 5. The failure to secure the Certificates
of Occupancy shall subject thé Property to full taxation for the period between the date of Substantial
. Completion and the date the Certiﬁéate of Occupancy is obtained.
Section 6.2  Filing of Certificate of Occupancy |
It shall be the primary responsibility of the Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax Assessor
and the Tax Collector a copy of éach Certificate of Occupancy.
Failure of the Entity to file such issued Certificate of Occupancy as required by the precediﬁg
paragraph, shall not militate against any action ‘or non-action, taken by the City, including, if

appropriate retroactive billing with interest for any charges determined to be due, in the absence of
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such filing by the Entity.
Section 6.3 Construction‘Permits

The estimated cost basis disclosed by the Entity’s application and proposed. Financial
Agreement may, at the option of the City, be used as the basis for the construction cost in the

issuance of any construction permit for the Project.

ARTICLE VI1I - ANNUAL REPORTS

Section 7.1  Accounting System

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls established and
administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Section 7.2 Periodic Reports ‘ )

A. Auditor’s Réport: Within ninety (90} 'days after the close of each fiscal or calendar year,
depending on the Entity’s accounting basis that i:he Agreement shall continue in effect, the Entity
shall submit to the Mayor and Municipal Council and the NJ Division of Local Government Services
in the Department of Community Affairs, its Auditor’s Report for the preceding fiscal or calendar
year. The Auditor’s Report shall include, but not be limited to gross revenue, and the terms and
interest rate on any mortgage(s) associated with the purchase or construction of the Project and such
‘details as may relate to the financial affairs of the Entity and to its operation and performance
hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this Agreement. The Report shall clearly idéﬁtify and calculate
the Allowable Net Profit for the Entity during the previous year, the excess of which shall be paid
to the City each year an excess profit is generated. |

B. Total Project Cost Audit: Within ninety (90} days afier Substantial Completion of the
Project, the Entity shall submit to the Mayor, Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City
Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials required to be advised, an audit of Total Project
Cost, including but not limited to an audit of actual construction costs as certified by the Project
é,rchitect. | |

C. Disclosure Statement: On the anniversary date of the execution of this Agfeement, and
each and every year thereafter while this agreement is in effect, the Entity shall submif to the
Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials

required to be advised, a Disclosure Statement listing the persons having an ownership interest in
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the Project, and the extent of the ownership interest of each and such additional information as the

City may request from time to time. All disclosures shall include ownership interests of the
- individual persons owning any corporate interest in the Entity. |

Section 7.3  Inspection/Audit ,

The Entity shall permit the inspection of its property, equipment, buildings and other
facilities of the Project and, if deemed appropriate or necessary, any other related Entity by
representatives duly authorized by the City or the NJ Division of Local Government Services in the
Department of Community Affairs. it shall also permit, upon request, examination and audit of its
books, contracts,'recdrds, documents and papers. Suéh examination or audit shall be made during
the reasonable hours of the business day, in the presence of an officer or agent designated by the
Entity for any year during which the tax exemption financial agreement was in full force and effect.

All costs incurred by the City to conduct a review of the Entity’s audits, including reasonable
attorneys’ fees if appropriate, shall be billed to the Entity and paid to the City as part of the Entity’s
Annual Service Charge. Delinquent payments shall accrue interest at the same rate as for a
delinquent service charge. ‘

ARTICLE VI- LIMTTATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES

Section 8.1  Limitation of Profits and Reserves

During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject to a '
limitation of its profits pursuant to the provisions of N.IS.A. 40A:20-15.

The Entity shall have the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpaid rentals, and
reasonable contingencies in an amount equal to five (5%) percent ofthe Gross Revenue of the Entity
for the last full fiscal year preceding the year and may retain such part of the Excess Net Profits as
isnecessary to eliminate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided in N.J.S.A. 40A:20-15. The reserve
isto be non—cumulative,,if being intended that no further credits thereto shall be permitted after the
reserve shall have attained the allowﬁble level of five (5%) percent of the preceding year's Gross
Revenue.

Section 8.2 Annual Payment of Excess Nef Profit
In the event the Net Profits of the Entity, in any year, exceeds the Allowable Net Profits for
such year, then %he Entity, within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the end of the year, shall |
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pay such excess Net Profits to the Cify as an additional annual service charge; provided, however,
that the Entity may maintain a reserve as determined pursuant to aforementioned paragraph 8.1. The
calculation of the Entity’s Excess Net Profits shall include those project costs directly attributable
to site remediation and cleanup expenses and any other costs excluded in the definition of Total
Project Cost in Section 1.2 (xx)} of this Agreement. If the Service Charge is calculated as a -
percentagé of Total Project Costs, such costs must be included in the Total Préject Costs for
purposes of calculating the Anmual Service Charge.

Secﬁon 8.3 Payment of Reserve/ Excess Net Profit Upon Termination, Expiration or Sale

The date of termination, expiration or sale shall be considered to be the close of the fiscal
year of the Entity. Within ninety (90) days after such date, the Entity shall pay to the City the amount
of the reserve, if any, maintained by it pursuant to this section and the balance of the Excess Net

Profit, if any. |

ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION

Section 9.1  Approval of Sale |

Any sale or transfer of the Project, shall be void unless approved in advance by Ordinance
of the Municipal Council. It is understood and agreed that the City, on written application By the
Entity, will not unreasonably withhold its consent to a sale df the Project and the transfer of this
Agreement provided 1) the new Entity does not own any other Project subject to long term tax
exemption at the time of transfer; 2) the new Entity is formed and eligible to operate under the Law;
_ 3) the Entity is not then in default of this Agreement or the Law; 4) the Entity's obligations under
this Agreement are fully assumed by the new Entity; 5) the Entity pays in full the maximum transfer
fee, currently 2% of the Annual Service Charge, as permitted by N.J.S.A. 40A:20-10(d); and 6) as
to projects that are not Substantially Complete, the Entity is comprised of principals possessing
substantially the same or better ﬁnanciél qualifications and credit worthiness as the Entity.

‘Nothing herein shall prohibit any transfer of the ownership interest in the Eniity itself
provided that the trans'fer,rif greater than 10%, is disclosed to the City in the annual disclosure
staternent or in correspondence sent to the City in advance of the filing of the annual disclosure

statement.
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Section 9.2  Transfer Application Fee ,

Where the consent or approval of the City is sought for approval of a change in ownership
or sale or transfer of the Project, the Entity shall be required to pay to the City a new tax exemptidn
application fee for the legal and administrative services of the City, as it relates to the review,
preparation and/or submission of documents to the Municipal Council for appropriate action on the
requested assignment. The fee shall be non-refundable.

ARTICLE X - COMPLIANCE

Section 10.1 Operation

During the term of this Agreement, the Project shall be maintained and operated in
accordance w:ith the provisions of the Law. Operation of Project under this Agreement shall not
only be terminable as provided by N.J.S.A. 4QA:20-1, et seq., as amended and supplemented, but
also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's failure to comply with the Law shall constitute
a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have -the right to
terminate the tax exemption. '
Section 10.2 Disclosure of Lobhbyist Representative

During the term of this Agreement, the Entity must comply with Executive Order 2002-005,
and Ordinance 02-075, requiring Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Represen;cative Status. The Entity’s
failure to comply with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall constitute a Default under this
Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to terminate the tax
exemption.

ARTICLE XI - DEFAULT

Section 11.1 Default

Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement or failure
of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, béyond any applicable notice, cure or
grace period.
Section 11.2  Cure Upon Default

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written noﬁce to the Entity of the Default
[Default Notice]. The Defaunlt Notice shall set forth with particularity the basis of the alleged
Default. The Entity shall have thirty (30} days, from receipt of the Default Notice, to cure any |
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Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Entity. Howevef, if, in the
reasonable opinion of the City, the Default cannot be cured within thirty (30) days using reasonable
diligence, the City will extend the time to cure.

Subsequent to such thirty (30) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have the right
to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 12.1.

Should the Entity be in default due to a failure to pay any charges defined as Material
Conditions in Section 4.7, the Entity shall not be subject to the default procedural rerﬁedies as
provided herein but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as
provided in Article XII herein.

Section 11.3 Remedies Upon Default

The City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to proceed against the property
pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A. 54:5-1, et seq. In order to secure the full and
timely payment of the Annual Service Charge, the City on its own behalf, or on behalf of the Trustee,
reserves the right to prosecute an In Rem Tax Foreclosure action against the Project Area in
accordance with Applicable Law, as more fully set forth in this Financial Agreement.

In addition, the City may declare a Default and terminate this Agreement. Any default arising
out of the Entity's failure to pay Land Taxés, the Minimum Annuél Service Charge, Administrative -
Fees, Affordable Housing Contribution, or the Annual Service Charges shall not be subject to the
default procedural remedies as provided herein, but shall allbw the City to proceed immediately to
terminate the Agreement aé provided herein. All df.the remedies provided in this Agreement to the
City, and all rights and remedies granted to it by law and equity shall be cumulative and concurrent.
No termination of any provision of this Agreement shall deprive the City of any of its remedies or
actions against the Entity because of its failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service
Charge, Annual Service Charge, Affordable Hbusing Contribution or Administrative Fees, This
right shall apply to arrcarageé that.are due andlowing at the time or which, under the terms hereof,
would in the future become due as if there had been no termination. Further, the bringing of any
action for Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, the Annual Service Charge, Affordable

" Housing Contribution, Administrative Fées, or for breach of covenant or the resort to any other

remedy herein provided for the recovery of Land Taxes shall not be construed as a waiver of the
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rights to terminate the tax exemption or prdceed with a tax sale or Tax Foreclosure action or any
other specified remedy. | 7

In the event of a Default on the part of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in Article [V,
the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the Entity's land and
property, in the manner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any act supplementary or
amendatory thereof, Whenever the word taxes appear, or is applied, directly or impliedly to mean
taxes or municipal liens on land; such statutory provisions shall be read, as far as is pertinent to this
Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or municipal liens on land.

- ARTICLE XII- TERMINATION

Section 12.1 Termination Upon Default of the Entity

In the event the Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default within the time period provided in
Section 11.2, the City may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to the
Entity [Notice of Termination].
Section 12.2 Voluntary Termination by the Entity .
The Entity may notify the City that it will relinquish its status as a tax exempt Project, after
the expiration of one year from the Substantial Completion of the Project , as of the January 1% of
the year next ensuing. The Notice of Voluntary Termination must be received by the City no later
than October 1* of the tax year preceding the calendar year in which the termination is to occur. As
of the date so set, the tax exemption, the Annual Service Charges and the profit and dividend
restrictions shall terminate. However, under no circumstances will the Entity be entitled to any
refund, in whole or in part, of any funds paid to the City to obtain the tax exemption, including but
not limited to the Affordable Housing Contribution. In addition, the due date for all Affordable
Housing Contribution and any other fees that the Entity agreed to pay under this Agreement, shall
“be accelerated so that all fees to be paid shall be due on January 1% as a condition precedent of the
voluntary termination. |
Section 12.3 Final Accounting |
Within ninety (90) days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action of the
Entity or by virtue of the provisions of the Law or pursuant to the terms of'this Agreement, the Entity

shall provide a final accounting and pay to the City the reserve, if any, pursuant to the provisions of
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N.J.S.A. 40A:20-13 and 15 as well as any remaining excess Net Profits. For purposes of rendering
a ﬁﬁal accounting the termination of the Agreement shall be deemed to be the end of the fiscal Sfea:f
for the Entity.

Sectidn 12.4 Conventional Taxes .

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the Project ghall
expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be assessed and conventionally
taxed acéording to the rgeneral law applicable to other nonexempt taxable property in the City.

ARTICLE XHI - DISPUTE RESOLUTION
Section 13.1 Arbitration |

In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of the parties hereto or a dispute
arising between the parties in reference to the terms and provisions as set forth herein, either party
may apply to the Superior Court of New Jersey by an appropriate proceeding, to settle and resolve
the dispute in such fashion as will tend to accomplish the purposes of the LaW.' In the event the
Superior Court shall not entertain jurisdiction, then the parties shall submit the dispﬁte to the
American Arbitration Association in New Jersey to be determined in accordance with its rules énd
regulations in such a fashion to accomplish the purpose of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law. The
cost for the arbitration shall be borne by the Entity. The parties agree that the Entity inay not file an
action in Superior Court or with the Arbitration Association unless the Entity has first paid in full
all ‘char.ges defined in Secti-on 4.7 as Materiall Conditions.

Section 13.2 Appeal of Assessment _

In calculating the amount of the Staged Adjustments that is, taxes otherwise due, pursuant
to Section 4.2 hereof and N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12, either party may file an appeal of the conventional
assessment to determine the value of land and improvements.

ARTICLE XTIV - WAIVER

Section 14.1 Waiver

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver or
relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without limitation, the right to
terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions provided herein.

Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the City’s right to audit or recover any amount which the
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City has u_ndér law, in equity, or under any provision of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XV - INDEMNIFICATION

Section 15.1 Defined ,

~ Itisunderstood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as party defendant in any
action by a third party alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of this
Agreement and/or the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., the Entity shall indemnify and hold
the City harmless against any and all liability, loss, cost, expense (including reasonable attorneys’
fees and costs), arising out of this Agreement. In addition, the Fintity expressly waives all statutory
or common law defenses or legal principles which would defeat the purposes of this indemnification.
The Entity also agrees to defend the suit at its own expense. Howe\}er, the City maintains the right
to intervene as a party thereto, to which intervention the Entity consents; the expense thereof to be

borne by the City.

. ARTICLE XVI- NOTICE
Section 16.1 Certified Mail | _ |
'Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other shall-be sent by certified
or registered mail, return receipt requested.
Section 16.2 Sent by City
When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to:

LHN Owner Urban Renewal, LLC
c/o Fisher Development Associates, LLC
Two Manhattanville Road
" Purchase, New York 1077
Att: Brian Fisher, Managing Member
and
Connell Foley, LLP
Harborside Financial Center -
2510 Plaza Drive
Jersey City, NJ 07311
Att: James C. McCann, Esq.

unless prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise.
In additiori, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this

~ Agreement, of the name and address of Entity’s Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such
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Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.
Section 16.3 Sent by Entity
When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to:

City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk
City Hall

280 Grove Street

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302,

with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax Collector

unless prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity otherwise. The notice to

the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the Urban Renewal Entity and the

Property’s Block and Tot number),
ARTICLE XVII-SEVERABILITY

Section 17.1 Severability

If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the Application, except a Material
Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this
Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition fo persons or circumstances other
than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceéble, shall not be affected thereby, and each
term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent
perinitted by law.

If a Materidl Condition shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceabie and
provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the parties shall cooperate with each other
to take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a manner contemplated by the
parties and the Law. This shall include, but not be limited to thé authorization and re-execution of
this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the original intent of the parﬁes and the
Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if it would modify a Material
Condition, the amount of the periodic adjustments or any other term of this Agreement which would
result in any economic reductiqp or loss to the City. '

ARTICLE XVIIT - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 18.1 Construction

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced-in accordance with the laws of the State of
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New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring construction
against the party drawing or causing this AgTéemerit to be drawn since counsel for both the Entity
and the City have combined in their review and approval of same.
Section 18.2 Conflicts

The parties agree that in the event of a conflict between the Application and the language
contained in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevail. In the event of conflict
between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevail.
Section 18.3 Oral Representations

There have been no oral representations made by either of the parties hereto which are not
contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing the Agreement, and the
Application constitute the entire Agfeement between the parties and there shall be no modifications
thereto other than by a written instrument approved and executed by both parties and delivered to
each party.
Section 18.4 Entire Document

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance of the Municipal Council approving this
Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a part hereof. ﬂ.
Section 18.5 Good Faith

In their dealings with each other, utmost good faith is requireéi from the Entity and the City.

” ARTICLE XIX - EXHIBITS

Section 19 Exhibits |
The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at length

herein: _

Metes and Bounds description of the Project;

Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement;

The Application with Exhibits;

Certificate of the Entity;
~Bstimated Construction Schedule;

The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Project;

Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rents [or Sales Prices];

Project Employment and Contracting Agreement;

Architect's Certification of Actual Construction Costs.

Entity’s Deed-
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed the day

and year first above written.

WITNESS: .

ATTEST:

ROBERT BYRNE
CITY CLERK

- By:

LHN OWNER URBAN RENEWAL, I.L.C, a New Jersey
Limited Liability Company

By: Liberty Harbor North JV, LLC, Sole Member

By: Park Liberty Company, LIC, its Managing Member
By: Iisher LHN Associates, LLC, its Manager

Brian Fisher, Managing Member

CITY OF JERSEY CITY

ROBERT KAKOLESKI
BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR
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New & Revised as of March 17, 2014
(Projects with a PLA covering construction jobs)
8/12/14

PROJECT EMPLOYMENT & CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

This Project Employment & Contracting Agreement is made as of the ___day of \
2014, between the CITY OF JERSEY CITY [City] having its principal office at 280 Grove
Street, Jersey City, NJ 07302, and LHN OWNER URBAN RENEWAL, LLC, [Recipient],
having its principal office at c/o Fisher Development Associates, LLC, Two Manhattanvﬂle
Road, Purchase, New York 1077.

I Definitions:

The following words and terms, when used in this agreement, shall have the following
meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

1. "City" means the Business Administrator of the City of Jersey City, or his designee,
including any person or entity which enters into an agreement with the City to
implement, in whole or in part, this agreement.

2, "Contractor" means any party performing or offenng to perform a prime contract on
behalf of the Recipient.
3. “DEQ” means the Division of Economic Opportunity under the Department of

- Administration, located at 280 Grove Street. DEO is in charge of Project Employment &
Contracting coordination and monitoring on projects receiving abatements.

4. "Economic Incentive" means a tax abatement or tax exemption for a property or pro;ect
which requires approval of the Municipal Council

5. "Employment" includes positions created as a result of internal promotions, terminations,
or expansions within the Recipient's work force which are to be filled by new employees.
However, positions filled through promotion from within the Recipient's existing work
force are not covered positions under this agreement.

6. Jersey City Employment and Training Corporation or “JCEPT” means the non-profit
quasi public Entity with whom the City has an operating agreement to undertake certain
employment services.

7. "Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey City.
8. "Minority" means a person who is defined as such under federal or state law.
9. "Minority or Woman Owned Local Business" means a bona fide business located in

Jersey City which is fifty-one (51%) percent or more owned and controlled by either a
Minority or woman.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

"Non-Traditional Jobs" means jobs which are held by less than twenty (20%) percent
women, as reported by the New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce
Development, Division of Labor Market, and Demographic Research for Jersey City,
which report shall be on file with the City Clerk.

"Permanent Jobs" mean newly created long term salaried positions, whether permanent,
temporary, part time or seasonal.

"Project or Project Site" means the specific work location or locations specified in the
contract.

The “Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator”™ or “Coordinator” is the employee
in the Department of Administration presently, the Executive Director of the Jersey City
Employment & Training Program, Inc., who is in charge of coordinating Project
Employment & Contracting projects. Coniractors and developers engaged in projects
covered by Project Employment & Contracting Agreements will direct inquiries to the
Coordinator. The Coordinator may refer a developer to the JCEPT or its one-stop career
center so long as the City and JCEPT agreement is in full force and effect.

The “Project Employment & Contracting Monitor” or “Monitor” is the employee in the
Department of Administration who is in charge of monitoring the site, collecting the
reports and documentation, and other day-to-day Project Employment & Contracting
administration as stipulated by this agreement.

The “Project Employment & Contracting Officer” or “Officer” is an employee of the
Recipient who is designated by the Recipient to make sure the Recipient is in compliance
with the Recipient’s Project Employment & Contracting agreement.

"Recipient” means any individual, partnership, association, organization, corporation or
other entity, whether public or private, or for profit or non-profit, or agent thereof, which
receives an Economic Incentive and shall include any Contractor, Subcontractor or agent
of the Recipient.

“The Registry” or "Jersey City Employment Registry" means a data base maintained by
the City or its designee, of Jersey City residents seeking employment and Local
Businesses, including Minority or Woman Owned Local Businesses, seeking contracts.

"Subcontract" means a binding legal relationship involving performance of a contract that
is part of a prime contract.

"Subcontractor" means a third party that is engaged by the prime Contractor to perform
under a subcontract all or part of the work included in an original contract.

“Substantial Completion” means the determination by the City that the Project, in whole
or in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the date on which the
Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for any portion of
the Project.




II.  Purpose: Business Contracting and Permanent Jobs

The City wishes to assure continuing employment opportunities for City residents,
particularly residents who are Minorities, and business opportunities for Local Businesses,
especially Minority and Women Owned Local Businesses, with employers located in or
relocating to the City who are the Recipients of Economic Incentives. The City has determined
to accomplish that goal by requiring the Recipient of an Economic Incentive to act in Good
Faith, as- defined herein, and discharge its obligations under this Agreement. To the extent
mandated by State and Federal law and so long as the Entity discharges its Good Faith
obligations under this agreement, the City acknowledges that the Recipient and its contractors
are free to hire whomever they choose.

Because this project.is subject to the terms of a Project Labor Agreement during
construction, this agreement shall apply only to Business Coniracting and non-construction
Permanent Jobs. ' '

II1. Good Faith Goals:

In the event the Recipient is able to demonstrate that its work force already meets the
goals set forth below or is able to meet such goals during the term of this agreement, the
Recipient shall only be required to submit the periodic certified manning and certified payroll
repotts described below to confirm ongoing compliance. All other Recipients must comply with
the following Good Faith goals.

1. Employment: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal of a
work force representing fifty-one (51%) percent City residents, fifty-one (51%) percent
of whom are residents who are Minorities and, in Non-Traditional Jobs, six point nine
(6.9%) percent of whom are residents who are women, it being understood that one
employee may satisfy more than one category.

2. Business Contracting: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal
of awarding twenty (20%) percent of the dollar amount of its contracts to Local
Businesses, fifty-one (51%) percent of which shall be Minority or Women Owned Local
Businesses. If fifty-one (51%) percent of Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses
cannot be obtained, that percentage of contracts must still be applied to local vendors.

IV.  Recipient Designee:

The Recipient shall designate a principal officer of its firm to be responsible for
administering the agreement detailed herein and to report to and confer with the City in order to
discharge its Good TFaith obligations as defined in this agreement. This officer should be
designated as the Project Employment & Contracting Officer.

The Recipient shall send a letter designating its “Project Employment & Contracting
- Compliance Officer” to the Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator prior to any




preconstruction meetings. An example of this letter can be found in Appendix 1. This Officer
should also be present for all preconstruction meetings.

The Recipient should send a letter regarding the “Project Employment & Contracting
Compliance Officer” to the employees of the Recipient’s company. An example of this letter
can be found in Appendix 2.

V. 'I_'erm:

'This agreement shall be in effect for a period co-terminus with the effective period of the
tax exemption [the Economic Incentive]. Thus, it will commence on the date the City Council
adopted Ordinance , approving the tax exemption and terminate the earlier of 15 years
from the date of the adoption of that Ordinance or 10 years from the date of Substantial
Completion of the Project. '

VL Good Faith Defined;

1. Permanent Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following
conditions: '

A. Pre-hiring Job Awareness: At least eight (8) months prior to the hiring of a Recipient’s
permanent workforce, the Project Employment & Contracting officer for the Recipient
will meet with the Coordinaior, including the director of JCETP to discuss how the
Recipient plans to hire its permanent workforce. The following issues should be covered
in this meeting:

i) whether subcontractors will be used in the hiring process.
ii) the specific types of jobs that need to be filled.
iii) the qualifications needed for these particular jobs.
iv) possible training programs offered by the permanent employer.
v) the Recipient’s goals and how it plans to meet these goals.
vi) any other issues which need to be addressed.

B. Subcontractor Notification -- If the Recipient decides to subcontract any portion or all of
its permanent workforce, then the Recipient must receive a signed acknowledgment from
the subcontracting party that it will abide by the Project Employment & Contracting
Agreement before said subcontractor begins staffing permanent employees. The
Recipient must forward a copy of the signed acknowledgment to the Project Employment
& Contracting Monitor. An example of this signed acknowledgment can be found in
Appendix 3.

C. Subcontractor Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting -- Fach subcontractor hired to staff
permanent job positions must appoint a Project Employment & Contracting Officer to
meet with the head of the Registry to discuss the same issues presented above in VI
1.A.(i)-(vi) and notify the City.




Subcontractors of Subcontractors--Subcontractors of subcontractors are subject to the
same requirements for the initial subcontractors.

Documentation of Hiring Plan--Once the Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting has taken

- place, the Recipient must put together a document with goals and fotals for future
permanent employment needs. This plan should summarize all that was discussed in the
Pre-Hiring Awareness Meeting, list estimates for manpower needs, set residential and
minority employment goals commensurate with the Project Employment & Contraciing
Agreement, and show how the Recipient plans to meet these goals. An example of this
plan is found in Appendix 4.

Pre-Hiring Notification: At least ten (10) working days prior to advertising for any
employees, the Recipient or the Recipient’s subconiractor shall provide the DEO and the
JCEPT with a written notice, which shall state the job title, job description and minimum
qualzﬁcatlons rate of pay, hours of work and the hiring date for each position {o be filled,
in qualitative and objective terms which will enable the referral of qualified applicants to
the Recipient.

Advertisement: At the request of the City, or because the City does not have qualified
applicants to refer to the Recipient, the Recipient will place an advertisement for the jobs
in a newspaper which is regularly published in Jersey City. The Recipient must furnish
the DEO with a copy of this advertisement.

Pre-Hiring Interview: The Recipient shall interview any qualified applicants referred to it
pursuant to the agreement. In the event advertisement is required, the Recipient agrees to
interview any qualified persons responding to the advertisement.

Monthly Employment Reports: The Recipient will submit written employment reports to
the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in the form to be provided by the City.
The report will be submitted on the 1* day of every month, Tt will describe each job and
state whether the job was filled or held by a City resident, minority resident or woman
resident and date of hire. The report wiil explain in writing the reasons why any qualified
referred applicant (or in the event advertisement is required, any qualified person
responding to the advertisement) was not hired and the reason therefore, The form of this
report shall be in substantially the form found in Appendix 5, subject to such revision as
the City deems appropriate and reasonable. Monthly reports may be extended to semi-
annually reports once the initial workforce is hired.

Record Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to all files
and records including payroll and personnel information reasonably necessary to confirm
the accuracy of the information set forth in the semi-annual reports.

Work Place Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to the
site to physically monitor the work site to verify the accuracy of the information set forth
in the any reports.




Other Reports, Documents: In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish

such reports or other documents that the City may request from time to time in order to
implement the purposes of this agreement.

Incorporation of Agreement: The Recipient shall incorporate the provisions of this

Agreement in all contracts, agreements and purchase orders for labor with any service,
maintenance, security or management agent or Contractor engaged by the Recipient
whose personnel will be assigned to the Recipient project.

Business Contracting

- Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions:

Solicitation of Busfnesses:

a)

b)

d)

One month before the solicitation for any goods or services, the Recipient must
forward a letter with a description of the goods or services to the Project
Employment and Contracting Coordinator;

The Recipient shall pfovide the City with a writien Purchasing Report every
month, The form of this report shall be in substantially the form found in

- Appendix 6.

Pre-Hiring Notification: At least ten (10) working days prior to advertising for
any employees, the Recipient or the Recipient’s subcontractor shall provide the
DEO and the JCEPT with a written notice, which shall state the job ftitle, job
description and minimum qualifications, rate of pay, hours of work and the hiring
date for each position to be filled, in qualitative and objective terms which will
enable the referral of qualified applicants to the Recipient.

Advertisement: At the request of the City, or because the City does not have
qualified applicants to refer to the Recipient, the Recipient will place an
advertisement for the jobs in a newspaper which is regularly published in Jersey .
City. The Recipient must furnish the DEO with a copy of this advertisement.

Pre-Hiring Interview: The Recipient shall interview any qualified applicants
referred to it pursuant to the agreement. In the event advertisement is required, the
Recipient agrees to interview any qualified persons responding to the
advertisement.

Monthly Employment Reports: The Recipient will submit written employment
reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in the form to be
provided by the City. The report will be submitted on the 1% day of every month.
It will describe each job and state whether the job was filled or held by a City
resident, minority resident or woman resident and date of hire. The report will
explain in writing the reasons why any qualified referred applicant (or in the event
advertisement is required, any qualified person responding to the advertisement)




3.

was not hired and the reason thercfore. The form of this report shall be in
substantially the form found in Appendix 5, subject to such revision as the City
deems appropriate and reasonable. Monthly reports may be extended to semi-
annually reports once the initial workforce is hired.

g) Record Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to all
files and records including payroll and personnel information reasonably
necessary to confirm the accuracy of the information set forth in the semi-annual
repozts.

h) Worlk Place Access: The Recipieﬁt shall provide the City with reasonable access
to the site to physically monitor the work site to verify the accuracy of the
information set forth in the any reports.

1) Other Reports, Documents: In addition fo the above reports, the Recipient shall
furnish such reports or other documents that the City may request from time to
time in order to implement the purposes of this agreement.

1) Incorporation of Agreement: The Recipient shall incorporate the provisions of this
Agreement in all contracts, agreements and purchase orders for labor with any
service, maintenance, security or management agent or Contractor engaged by the
Recipient whose personnel will be assigned to the Recipient project.

The Recipient pledges not to use local and local minority vendors solely as conduits for
vendors that are not local and minority owned. Any discovery by Project Employment

- and Contracting Monitor of a Recipient, using the masthead of a local or minority

owned business as a way to get credit for local or minority employment when it should
not, will immediately subject the Recipient to the penalties listed in Section VIII (d)

below.

Commercial Tenants at the Project Site

Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions:

A.

VIL

The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space, including retail space, within
the Project Site a Tenant Employment Services Guide in the form attached as Appendix
7. '

The Recipient shall require tenants of commercial, including any retail space to complete
an annual questionnaire concerning the composition of the work force of each tenant. The
completed questionnaire be submitted to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor.
The questionnaire shall be in the form attached as Appendix 8.

The Recipient will send the results of its solicitation to the Project Employment & -
Contracting Monitor no later than December 1% of each year. :

Notices of Violaﬁon:




VIII.

Advisory Notice: The City will issue a written Advisory Notice to the Recipient if there
is non-compliance with a Good Faith requirement as defined in this agreement. The
Advisory Notice shall explain in sufficient detail the basis of the alleged violation. The
Recipient shall have 7 days to correct the violation.

Violation Notice: If the alleged violation set forth in the Advisory Notice has not been
corrected to the satisfaction of the City the City shall issue a Violation Notice to the
Recipient. The Violation Notice shall explain in sufficient detail the basis of the alleged,
continuing violation. The Recipient will have three (3) working days to correct the
violation.

Correcting the Violation: Either or both the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may
be considered corrected if the Recipient satisfies the requirements of this agreement and
so advises the City in writing, subject to confirmation by the City.

Extension of Time to Correction: Either the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice
may be held in abeyance and the time for correction extended if the Recipient enters into
satisfactory written agreement with the City for corrective action which is designed to
achieve compliance. If Recipient fails to abide by the terms of such agreement the
violation will be considered not corrected.

If the City determines that the Recipient is in violation after the expiration of the cure
periods, the Recipient agrees that the City shall be entitled to the liquidated damages
provided below.

Liquidated Damages:

While reserving any other remedies the City may have at law or equity for a material
breach of the above terms and conditions, the partics agree that damages for violations of
this agreement by the Recipient cannot be calculated within any reasonable degree of
mathematical certainty. Therefore, the parties agree that upon the occurrence of a
material breach of any of the above terms and conditions and after notice and expiration
of any cure period, the City will be entitled to liquidated damages from the Recipient in
the following amounts:

Failure to conduct Pre-hiring Interviews or submit Compliance Statement (Submit
description of goods or services, (Business Contracting): an amount equal to Three (3%)
percent of the estimated annual service charge as set forth in the Financial Agreement
for each quarter or part thereof that the Recipient is non compliant.

Failure to allow record or work place access or submit any other required reports (all
categories): an amount equal to Three (3%) percent increase service charge as set forth
in the Financial Agreement for each quarter or part thereof that the Recipient is non
compliant.

The use of the local or local minority business’ masthead for [abor or work supplied by a
non local or local minority vendor: An amount equal to Ten (10%) service charge as set




forth in the Financial Agreement for each quarter or part thereof, the Recipient is non
compliant.

IX. Notices

Any notice required‘ hereunder to be sent by either party to the other, shall be sent by

certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows:

L.

and

and

When sent by the City to the Recipient it shall be addressed to:

LHN Owner Urban Renewal, LLC

¢/o Fisher Development Associates, LLC
‘Two Manhattanville Road

Purchase, New York 1077

Att: Brian Fisher, Managing Member

When sent by the Recipient to the City, it shall be addressed to:

City of Jersey City

Department of Administration

Division of Economic Opportunity

Project Employment & Contracting Monitor
280 Grove Street

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302

Att: Division Director

Director of Jersey City Employment and Training Program, Inc
895 Bergen Avenue—2" Floor

Jersey City, NI 07306

Atf: Executive Director

with separate copies to the Mayor and the Business Administrator.

X.

Appendix

These forms are examples only and shall be in substantially the form attached, subject to

modifications from time to time by the City as necessary or appropriate.

PRI LN

- Letter designating Recipient’s Project Employment & Contracting Officer

Letter from Recipient to Employees of Recipient’s Company
Acknowledgment of PECA compliance of Subcontractor
Example of Hiring Plan

Example of Monthly Employment Report

Example of Monthly Purchasing Report

Tenant Employment Services Guide ‘

Commercial Retail Annual Questionnaire




XL.  Adoption, Approval, Modification:

This agreement shall take effect on the date that the Economic Incentive is approved by
the Municipal Council.

XIl.  Controlling Regulations and Laws: -

To the extent required by State and Federal Law and so long as the Entity discharges its
Good Faith obligations under this agreement, the City agrees and acknowledges that the
Recipient and its coniractors are free to hire whomever they choose. If this agreement conflicts
with any collective bargaining agreement, the City agrees to defer to such agreements so long as
the Recipient provides the City with a copy of the offending provigion in the collective
bargaining agreement.

In the event there are any conflicts between this Agreement and any Project Labor
Agreement, then as it pertains to construction jobs covered by the PLA, the Project Labor
Agreement shall govern. Wherever possible, this Agreement shall be interpreted consistently
with the Project Labor Agreement.

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY

Robert Byrne Robert J. Kakoleski

City Clerk Business Administrator

WITNESS: LHN OWNER URBAN RENEWAL, LLC, a New

Jersey Limited Liability Company

- By: Liberty Harbor North JV, LLC, Sole Member
By: Park Liberty Company, LLC, its Managing Member
By: Fisher LHN Associates, LI.C, its Manager

By:
Seeretary Brian Fisher, Managing Member
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City Clerk File No. Ord. 14.102

Agenda No. 3.K 1st Reading
Agenda No. 2nd Reading & Final Passage
ORDINANCE
OF
JERSEY CITY, N.J.
COUNCIL AS A WHOLE

offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:
CITY ORDINANCE 14,102

TITLE: ORDINANCE APPROVING A 10 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR A MARKET
RATE RESIDENTIAL CONDOMINIUM PROJECT TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY
68 ERIE STREET URBAN RENEWAL CO., LLC, AN URBAN RENEWAL
ENTITY, PURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION LAW NJS.A.
40A:20-1 ET SEQ.

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES
ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, 68 Erie Street Urban Renewal Co., LLC, is an urban renewal entity, formed
and qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law
of 1992, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq. (Entity); and

WHEREAS, the Entity owns certain property known as Block 11302, Lot 3.01, on the

City’s Official Tax map, and more commonly known by the street address of 68 Erie
Street, Jersey City, and more specifically described by metes and bounds, in the
application [Property]; and

WHEREAS, the Property is located within the School No. 2 Redevelopment Plan Area
as required by N.I.S.A. 40A:20-4 and N.J.S.A. 40A:12A-5(g).; and

WHEREAS, the Entity has applied for a ten (10) year long term tax exemption to
construct a five (5) story building with approximately twelve (12) market rate residential
condominium units with no onsite parking with no onsite parking; and

WHEREAS, the Project received a site plan approval fiom the Planmng Board on
Décember 2, 2008; and

WHEREAS, 68 Erie Street Urban Renewal Co., LLC, has agreed to:
. L pay the greater of (i) the Minimum Annual Service Charge or (ii) 10% of Annual
Gross Revenue, which sum is estimated to be $88,370, and which shall be subject

to statutory staged increases over the term of the tax exemption; and

2 pay an.annual sum equal to 2% of each prior year’s Annual Setvice Charge as an
: Administrative Fee estimated to be $1,767; and

3. provide employment and other economic opportunities for City residents and
businesses;

4. pay to City for remittance to Hudson County, an equal to 5% of the Anmual
Service Charge upon receipt of that charge estimated to be $4,418;

5. pay the sum of $18,000 to the City’s Affordable Housing Trust Fund; and

%E) A
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Continuation of City Ordinance 14.102 , page 2

ORDINANCE APPROVING A 10 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR A MARKET
RATE RESIDENTITAL CONRDOMINIUM PROJECT TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY
68 ERIE STREET URBAN RENEWAL CO., LLC, AN URBAN RENEWAL
ENTITY, PFURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION LAW N.I8S.A.
40A:20-1 ET SEQ.

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the relative benefits of the project outweigh
the cost of the tax exemption, for the following reasons:

1. the current real cstate taxes generate revenue of only $3,322.27, whereas, the
Annual Service Charge as estimated, will generate revenue of more than $88,370
to the City and an additional sum of approximately $4,418 to Hudson County;

2. it is expected that the Project will create approximately 12 jobs during
construction and 2 new permanent jobs;

3. the Project will stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of businesses in
the surrounding area;

4, the Project will further the overall redevelopment objectives of the School No. 2
Redevelopment Plan Area;

5. the City"s impact analysis, on file with the Office of the City Clerk, indicates that
the benefits of the Project outweigh the costs to the City; and

WHEREAS, the Ciiy hereby defermines that the tax exemption is important in obtaining
development of the project and influencing the locational decisions of probable
occupants for the following reasons:

L. the relative stability and predictability of the Annual Service Charges will make
the Project more atiractive to investors needed to finance the Project;

2. the relative stability and predictability of the Annual Service Charges will allow
the owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of maintenance
to the building over the life of the Project, which will attract purchasers to the
Project and insure the likelihood of the success of the Project; and

WHEREAS, 68 Erie Streei Urban Renewal Co., LLC, has initially complied with
Executive Order 2002-005 concerning “Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status"
by filing an appropriate letter in the Office of the City Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of
Jersey City that:

A, The application of 68 Lrie Street Urban Renewal Co., LLC, an urban renewal
company, formed and qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term
Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and supplemented, N.I.S.A. 40A:20-1 ¢t seq. a
copy of which is on file in the office of the City Clerk, for Block 11302, Lot 3.01, more

_commonly known by the street address of 68 Erie Street, more specifically described by
metes and bounds in the application is hereby approved.

B. The Mayor or Business Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a tax
exemption Financial Agreement and a Project Employment and Contracting Agreement.
The Financial Agreement shall include at & minimum the following terms and conditions:

L Term: the eatlier of 12 years from the adoption of the within Ordinance or 10
years from the date the project is Substantially Complete;

2. Annual Service Charge: each year the greater of:




Continyation of Cily Ordinance 14.102 : ,page __ 3

ORDINANCE APPROVING A 10 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR A MARKET
RATE RESIDENTIAL CONDOMINIUM PROJECT TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY
68 ERIE STREET URBAN RENEWAL CO., LLC, AN URBAN RENEWAL
ENTITY, PURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION LAW N.IS.A.
40A:20-1 ET SEQ. ' o

(a) the Minimum Annual Service Charge equal to initially $3,322.37 upon
Project Completion, whether or not the Project is occupied; or

(b) 10% of Annual Gross Revenue, estimated at $88,370, which shall be
subject to statutory increases during the term of the tax exemption.

3. Administrative Fee: 2% of the prior year’s Annual Service Charge or $1,767,

4. County Payment: an additional 5% of the Annual Service Charge for remittance
by the City to Hudson County or $4,418;

5. Affordable Housing Trust Fund: $1,500 per unit or $18,000;

6. Project: a five (5) story building with approximately twelve (12) market rate
residential condominitm urits with no onsite parking;

7. An obligation to execute a Project Employment and Contracting Agreement to
insure employment and other economic benefits to City residents and businesses.

8. This Ordinance will sunset and the Tax Exemption will terminate unless
construction of the Project begins within two (2) vears of the adoption of the
within Ordinance.

C. The City Clerk shall deliver a certified copy of the Ordinance and Financial
Agreement to the Tax Assessor and Director of the Division of Local Government
Services.

D, The application is on file with the office of the City Clerk. The Financial
Agreement and Project Employment and Contracting Agreement shall be in substantially
the form on file in the Office of the City Clerk, subject to such modification as the
Business Administrator or Corporation Counsel deems appropriate or necessary.

E. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

F. This ordinance shall be part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully
set forth therein, The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in
the official copies of the Jersey City Code.

G. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner provided.by law.

H. The City Clerk and Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and
directed to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the
event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those
numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental
repealers of existing provisions.

NOTE: All material is new; therefore underlining has been omifted. For purposes
of advertising only, new matter is indicated by bold face and repealed
maitter by ifalic. :

IM/he
8/14/14 _
APPRCVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:
APPROVED:
Corporation Counsel Business Administrator

Certification Required 0O
Not Reqtired |




DRAFT

DATE: July 22, 2014
TO: - Diana Jeffrey (for Distribution to City Council)

FROM; Al Cameron Fiscal Officer, Tax Collector’s Office

SUBJECT: TEN -~ YEAR TAX ABATEMENT APPLICATION: 68 Erie Street KDJ
Urban Renewal Co., LLC - Block 11302 Lot 3.01, To Be Known as 227
Fourth Street.

CC: M. Cosgrove, E. Borja, D. Donnelly, E. Toloza, J. Monahan, G. Corrado, R. Byrne
INTRODUCTION:

The applicant, 68 Erie Street KDJ Urban Renewal Co., LLC., has applied for a Ten

(10) Year tax abatement under N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq. The Entity proposes to

construct a twelve unit (12), Five (5) story market rate residential for sale
condominium building on an existing parking lot. The application fee of $9,500
was paid.

LOCATION OF THE PROPERTY:

The property, to be known as 227 Fourth Street, is on the East side of Erie Street
at the corner of Fourth. It is in the School 2 Study Redevelopment Plan Area. Itis
Block 11302 lot 3.01 y

PROPERTY TO BE CONSTRUCTED:

The project will be a five (5) story, twelve (12} unit market rate for sale residential
condominium. Although the property will be built on an existing parking lot there
is no provision for parking.

COST OF CONSTRUCTION:

The estimated Total Project cost certified by the Applicant"s architect, Jak (sic)
Inglese, is $5,242,333.50. '

CQNSTRUCTION SCHEDULE;
The applicant estimates to begin construction within six (6) months of approval of

the abatement. Completion is expected within thirty (30) months of
commencement. ' :

68 Erie $t KDJ Urban Renewal Co LLC.docx
8/14/2014 3:00 PM




DRAFT

ESTIMATED JOBS CREATED:

The applicant estimates that there will fwelve {12) jobs during construction. Two
(2) post construction jobs are anticipated. :

CURRENT REAL ESTATE TAXES:
Based upon the current assessment provided by the Tax Assessor of $44,500 for
the property, an existing parking lot, at the current tax rate of $74.66, the current

real estate tax is $3,322. All taxes are current.

AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST FUND CONTRIBUTION:

The applicant proposes a payment of $18,000 for twelve (12) units @ 1,500 per
unit.

REVENUE TO THE CITY:

The applicant proposes to pay 10% of Annual Gross Revenue for a period of ten
(10) years. Based upon the projected sales prices of the condominium units the
annual service charge would be approximately $88,368.00 for the total project at
sellout. In addition to the two percent (2%) Administrative Fee paid to the City as
well as five percent (5%) to the County.

sQ Bed Mtg. ASC | Admin | Total | County
Unit | FT | Rooms Price Payment Maint. Total | Annual 10% 2% To City 5%
1 1300 2 724,500 7,164 384 7,548 | 90,579 | 9,058 181 9,239 453
2 1250 2 989,625 9,786 369 10,155 | 121,860 | 12,186 244 12,430 609
3 780 1 414,000 4,094 230 4,324 | 51,886 | 5,189 104 5,292 259
4 780 1 521,325 5,155 230 5,385 | 64,622 | 6,462 129 6,591 323
5 1000 2 517,650 5,119 295 5,414 | 64,966 | 6,497 130 6,627 325
6 ‘1000 2 510,825 5,051 295 5,346 | 64,156 | 6,416 128 6,544 321
7 780 - 1 414,000 4,094 230 4,324 | 51,886 5,189 104 5,292 259
8 780 1 517,125 5,114 230 5,344 | 64,124 | 6,412 128 6,541 321
9 1000 2 510,825 5,051 295 5,346 64,156 6,416 128 6,544 321
10 1000 2 421,800 4,171 295 4,466 | 53,592 5,359 107 5,466 268
il 1400 3 766,500 7,580 414 7,994 | 95,923 9,592 192 9,784 480
12 1400 3 766,500 7,580 414 7,994 | 95,923 9,592 192 9,784 480
' 88,368 | 1,767 | 90,135 | 4,418

The tax assessor has developed the attached proposed schedule of staged
adjustments beginning in year seven (7). The Applicant would pay the higher of
ten percent (10%) of Annual Gross Revenue or the Adjusted Gross Rate.

68 Erie 5t KDJ Urban Renewal Co LLC.docx
8/14/2014 3:00 PM




68 ERIE STREET KDJ URBAN RENEWAL
BLOCK 11302 Lot 3.01
To Be Known As 227 Fourth Street

Block Lot Existing New Good Faith Land Bldg
"~ Assessments Assessments ASC Tax  (Phased-In)
11302 3.01 Land 44,500 223,100
Bldg - 1,987,600 88,368 28,495,000
Total 44,500 2,210,700 88,368 28,495,000
In-Lieu of Full Property Tax Payments An Amount Equal To A
A Percentage Of Taxes Otherwise Due On The Land and
New Improvement According To The Following Stages:
' ASC Bldg. Taxes
(Phased-In)
Stage {Aassumption)
1 From the 1st day of the month following substantial
completion untit the last day of the 6th year, the ASC
shall be at 10% of Annual Revenue S 88,368 16,599 0
2 Beginning on the 1st day of the 7th year and the last day of the
7th year of substantial completion, an amount equal to the greater
-of the ASC at 10% or 20% of the amount of taxes otherwise
due on the value of the land and improvements; S 88,368 16,657 S 33,010
3 Beginning on the 1st day of the 8th year and the last day of the
8th year of substantial completion, an amount equal to the greater
of the ASC at 10or 40% of the amount of taxes otherwise
due on the value of the land and improvements; S 88,368 16,657 § 66,020
4 Beginning on the 1st day of the 9th year and the last day of the
9th year of substantial completion, an amount equal to the greater
of the ASC at 10% or 60% of the amount of taxes otherwise
due on the value of the land and improvements; S 88,368 16,657 $ 99,031
Final Stage Beginning on the 1st day of the 10th year and the last day of the

10th year of substantial completion, an amount equal to the greater
of the ASC at 10% or 80% of the amount of taxes otherwise
$ 88,368

' Yearly Land and Improvement Taxes
7/18/2014

16,657 S 132,041

$ 165,051
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TER 2

FINANCIAL AGREEMENT
Rev. 4-08-14

Long Term Tax Bxemption
N.J8.A, 40A:20-1, gt seq,
10 YEARS

Re: 68 Brie Street
Approximately 0.08 Acres
Block 11302, Lot 3.01
School No. 2 Redevelopment Plan

PREAMBLE

THIS FINANCIAL AGREEMENT, (“Agreement”) is made the . day of
2014 by and between 68 ERIE STREET KDJ URBAN RENEWAL CO., LLC, an urban

renewal entity formed and qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax

Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A, 40A:20-1 et seq., having its
principal office at 201 St. Anthony’s Drive, Moorestown, New Jersey (“Entity”) and the CITY
OF JERSEY CITY, a Municipal Corporation of the State of New Jetsey, having its principal
office at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 (“City™).
RECITALS
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Entity is the Owner pursuant to Deed dated April 3, 2014, of certain

property designated as Block 11302, Lot 3.01, more commonly known by the street address of

68 Erie Street, Jersey City, and more patticularly described by the metes and bounds description
set forth as Exhibit 1 to this Agreemenf; and

WHEREAS, this property is located within the boundaries of the School 2
Redevelopment Plan Area; and

WHEREAS, the Bntity plans to construct & Five (5) story building with approximately
12 market rate condominium units and

WHEREAS, on December 2, 2008, the Project received site plan approval from the
Planning Board; and | |

WHEREAS, on_ |, 2014, the Entity filed an Application with the City for a long term
tax exemption for the Project; and

WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance on , 2014, the Municipal




Council approved a long term tax exemption for the Project and authorized the execution of a

Financial Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City made the following findings:

A, Relative Benefits of the Project when compared to the costs:

1.

the current real estate tax generates revenue of only $3,322.37 whereas,
the Annual Service charge as estimated, will generate revenue to the City
of approximately $90,138.04;

as required by ordinance 13-088, the Entity shall pay the City the sum of
$6,000.00 on or before the effective date of the ordinance approving the
Financial Agreement, and will pay the balance of $12,000.00 as an
affordable housing contribution as required by the ordinance;

it is expected that the Project will create approximately 12 new
construction jobs and 2 new permanent full time jobs;

the project should stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of
existing local business and to the creation of new businesses, which cater
to the new occupants; '

the Project will further the objectives of the School 2 Redevelopment Plan,
and will include the development of vacant property or rehabilitation of
existing improvements;

the City’s Impact Analysis, on file with the Office of the City Clerk,
indicates that the benefits of the Project outweigh the costs to the City; and

B. Assessment of the Importance of the Tax Exemption in obtaining development of

the project and influencing the locational decisions of probable occupants:

1.

3.

the relative stability and predictability of the annual service charges will
make the Project more attractive to investors and lenders needed to
finance the Project; and

the relative stability and predictability of the service charges will allow the
owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of
maintenance to the building over the life of the Project, which will attract
occupants to the Project, insure the likelthood of stabilized rents to tenants
and the success of the Project; and

have a positive impact on the swrrounding area.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and
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for other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows:
ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1.1  Governing Law

This Agreemeﬁt shall be governed by the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption
Law, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., Bxecutive Order of the Mayor
No. 2013-004, Disclosure of Lobbyist Status, Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinance _____, which
authorized the execution of this Agreement. It being expressly understood and agreed that the
City expressly relies upon the facts, data, and representations contained in the Application,
attached hereto as Exhibit 3, in granting this tax exemption, |
Section 1.2 General Definitions

Unless specifically provided otherwise or the context otherwise requires, when used in

this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

i, Allowable Net Profit- The amount artived at by applying the Allowable Profit
Rate to Total Project Cost pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(c).

1i. Allowable Profit Rate - The greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived

at by adding 1.25% to the annual interest percentage rate payable on the Entity's initial
permanent mortgage financing, If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or guaranteed by a
governmental agency, the mortgage insurance preminm or similar charge, if payable on a per
annum basis, shall be considered as interest for this purpose. If there is no permanent mortgage
financing, or if the financing is internal or undertaken by a related party, the Allowable Profit
Rate shall be the greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived at by adding 1.25% per
annum to the interest rate per annum which the municipality determines to be the prevailing rate
on mortgage financing on comparable improvements in Hudson County. The provisions of
N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(b) are incorporated herein by reference.

#ii.  Annual Gross Revenue - Any and all revenue derived from or generated by the

Project of whatever kind or amount, whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees
from third parties, including but not limited to fees or income paid or received for parking, or as
uger fees or for any other services. No deductions will be allowed for operating or maintenance
costs, including, but not limited to gas, electric, water and sewer, other utilities, garbage removal

and insurance charges, whether paid for by the landlord, tenant or a third party.




iv, Annual Gross Revenue for Condominivm - The amount equal to the annual

aggregate constant payments of principal and interest, asswming a purchase money
mortgage encumbering the condominium unit to have been in an original amount equal to
the initial value of the unit with its appurtenant interest in the common elements as stated
in the master deed, if unsold by the urban renewal entity, or, if the unit is held by a unit
purchaser, from time to time, the most recent true consideration paid for a deed to the
condominium unit in a bona fide arm’s length sale transaction, but not less than the initial
assessed valuation of the condomininm unit assessed at 100% of the true value, plus the
total amount of common expenses charged to the unit pursuant to the by laws of the
condeminium. association. The constant payments to principal and inferest shall be
calculated by assuming a loan amount as stated above at the prevailing lawful interest rate
for mortgage financing on comparable properties within the municipality as of the date of
the recording of the unit deed, for a term equal to the full term of the exemption from
taxation stipulated in this Agreement; and provided further that any gain realized by the
Entity on the sale of any unit in fee simple, whether or not taxable under Federal or State

Iaw, shall not be included in compufing gross revenue.

V. Annusl Service Charge - The amount the Entity has agreed to pay the City each
year for muﬁicipal services supplied to the Project, which sum is in lieu of any taxes on the
Improvements, pursuant to N.J.8.A. 40A:20-12. It shall include an annual payment for all profit
exceeding Allowable Net Profit, i.e., annual excess profit.

Vi, Auditor's Report - A complete annual financial statement outlining the financial

status of the Project, which shall also include a certification of Total Project Cost and clear
computation of the annual Net Profit. The contents of the Auditor’s Report shall have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and shall contain at a
minimum the following: a balance sheet, a statement of income, a statement of retained earnings
or changes in stockholders® equity, a statement of cash flows, descriptions of accounting policies,
notes to financial statements and appropriate schedules and explanatory material results of
operations, cash flows and any other items required by Law. The Auditor’s Report shall be
certified as to its conformance with such principles by a certified public accountant who is

licensed to practice that profession in the State of New Jersey.
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vil.  Certificate of Occupancy - A document, whether temporary or permanent, issued

by the City authorizing occupancy of a building, in whole or in part, pursuant to N.J.S.A.
52:27D-133.

viii.  Debt Service ~ The amount required to make anmal payments of principal and
interest or the equivalent thereof on any construction mortgage, permanent mortgage or other
financing including returns on institutional equity financing and market rate related party debt
for the project for a period equal to the term of this agreement.

1x. Default - Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Eatity to perform any obligation
imposed upon the Entity by the terms of this Agreement, or under the Law, beyond any
applicable grace or cure periods,

X. Entity - The term Entity within this Agreement shall mean 68 Erie Strest KDJ
Urban Renewal Co., LLC, which Entity is formed and qualified pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-5.
It shall also include any subsequent purchasers or successors in interest of the Project, provided
they are formed and operate under the Law.

xil.  Improvements or Project - Any building, siructure or fixture permanently affixed

to the land and to be constructed and tax exempted under this Agreement.

xiii. In Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure - A summary proceeding by which

the City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under N.J.S.A. 54:5-1 to 54:5-
120 et seq.

xiv. Land Taxes - The amount of taxes assessed on the value of land, on which the
project is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing improvements. Land Taxes are not
exempt; however, Land Taxes are applied as a credit against the Annual Service Charge.

xv.  Land Tax Payments - Payments made on the quarterly due dates, including
approved grace periods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor and the Tax
Collector.

xvi. Law - Law shall refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and
supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq.; Executive Order of the Mayor No., 2013-004, relating
to long term tax exemption, as it may be supplemented; Ordinance 02-075 requiring Disclosure
of Lobbyist Status and Ordinance , which authorized the execution of this Agreement

and all other relevant Federal, State or City statutes, ordinances, resdlutions, rules and




regulations.

xvii. Minitmum Annual Service Charge - The Minimum Annual Service Charge shall

be the greater of: (a) the amount of the total faxes levied against all real property in the area
covered by the Project in the last full tax year in which the area was subject to taxation, which
amount the parties agree is $3,322.37; or (b) the sum of $90,138.04 per year, which sum is equal
to the estimated Annual Service Charge will be due 12 months following the initial assessed
value of the unit.

Following Substantial Completion, the Minimum Annual Service Charge set forth in
subsection (b) shall be paid in each year in which the Annual Service Charge, calculated
pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12 or this Agreement, would be less.

xviil. Net Profit - The Annual Gross Revenues of the Entity less all annual dperating
and non-operating expenses of the Entity, all determined in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, but:

(1) there shall be included in expenses: (a) all Aanual Service charges paid pursuant to
N.I.S.A. 40A:20-12; (b) all annual payments to the City of excess profits pursuant to N.J.S.A.
40A:20-15 or N.J.S.A. 40A:20-16; (c) an annual amount sufficient to amortize (utilizing the
straight line method-equal annual amounts) Total Project Cost and all capital costs determined
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of any other entity whose revenue
is included in the computation of excess profits over the term of this agreement; (d) all
reasonable annual opérating expenses of the Entity and any other entity whose revenue is
included in the computation of excess profits including the cost of all management fees,
brokerage'commissions, insurance premiums, all taxes or service charges paid, legal, accounting,
or other professional service fees, utilities, building maintenance costs, building and office
supplies and payments into repair or maintenance reserve accounts; (¢) all payments of rent
including but not limited to ground rent by the Entity; (f) all debt service; and

{2} there shall not be included in expenses either depreciation or obsolescence, interest on
debt, except interest which is part of debt service, income taxes or salaries, bonuses or other
compensation paid, directly or indirectly to directors, officers and stockholders of the entity, or
officers, partners or other persons holding a proprietary ownership interest in the entity.

xix.  Pronouns - He or it shall mean the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, the




singular, as well as the plural, as context requires.

xx.  Substantial Completion - The determination by the City that the Project, in whole

or in part, is ready for the vse intended, which ordinarily shall mean the first date on which the
Project receives, or is eligible to receive, any Certificate of Occupancy whether temporary or
pertmanent for any portion 6f the Project.

xxi.  Termination - Any act or omission which by operation of the terms of this

Financial Agteement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption.

xxil.  Total Project Cost - The total cost of constructing the Project through the date a
Certificate(s) of Occupancy is issued for the entire Project, which categories of cost are set forth
in N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(h). There shall be excluded from Total Project Cost the actual costs
incurred by the Entity and certified by an independent and qualified architect or engineer, which
are associated with site remediation and cleanup of environmentally hazardous materials or
contaminants in accordance with State or Federal law and any extraordinary costs incurred
including the cost of demolishing structures, relocation or removal of public utilities, cost of
telocating displaced residents or buildings and the clearing of title. If the Service Charge is
calculated as a percentage of Total Proj ect Cost, such costs must be included in the Total Project
Costs for purposes of calculating the Annual Service Charge.

ARTICLE IT - APPROVAL
Section 2.1  Approval of Tax Exemption

The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption for all the Improvements to be
constructed and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and
the provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constructed on certain @roperty lenown
on the Official Tax Assessor’s Map of the City-as: Block 11302, Lot 3.01, more comrhonly
known by the sireet address 68 Erie Street, Jersey City, and described by metes and bounds in
Exhibit 1 attached hereto,

Section 2.2°  Approval of Entity

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Formation is attached hereto as
Exhibit 4. Entity represents that its Certificate containg all the requisite provisions of the Law;
has been reviewed and approved by the Commissioner of the Depariment of Community Affairs;

and has been filed with, as appropriate, the Office of the State Treasurer or Office of the Hudson
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County Clerk, all in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:20-5,

Section 2.3  Improvements to be Constructed

Entity represents that it will construct a Five (5) story building with approximately 12
market rate condominium units (“Project™); all of which is specifically described in the
Application attached hereto as Exhibit 3,
Section 2.4  Construction Schedule

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence construction and complete the
Project in accordance with the Estimated Construction Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 5,
and in compliance with any Redevelopment Agreement.
Section 2.5  Use, Management or Operation

The Entity malkes the following detailed representations and covenants: the Project will
be managed by an entity unaffiliated with the Entity upon construction. Upon construction, the
ntity represents that the Improvements will be used, managed and controlled for the purposes
set forth in this Agreement and any Redevelopment Agreeineﬂt.
Section 2.6 Financial Plan

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be financed in accordance with the
Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plan sets forth a good faith estimate of Total
Project Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the source of funds, the interest
rates to be paid on construction financing, the source and amount of paid-in capital, and the
~ terms of any mortgage amortization.
Section 2.7 Good Faith Estimate of Sale Prices

The Entity represents that its good faith projections of the sale ptices and other revenue
to the Project are set forth in Exhibit 7,

ARTICLE III - DURATION OF AGREEMENT

Section 3.1 Term ,

So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it is understood and
agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement shall temain in effect for the earlier of ten (10)
years from the date of the adoption of Ordinance on , 2014, which approved

the tax exemption for ten (10) years from the original date of Substantial Completion of the

Project. The tax exemption shall only be effective during the period of usefulness of the Project




and shall continue in force only while the Project is owned by a corporation or association
formed and operating under the Law.

ARTICLE IV - ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGF,
Section 4.1  Annual Service Charge

In congideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following annual
payments to the City for services provided to the Project:

1. City Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of! the Minimum Annual
Service Charge or an Annual Service Charge equal to 10% of the Annval Gross Revenue. The
Annual Service Charge shall be billed initially based upon the Entity’s estimate of Annual Gross
Revenue, attached hereto as Exhibit 6. Thereafter, the Annual Service Charge shall be adjusted
in accordance with this Agrecment.

ii. County Service Charge: an amount equal to 5% of the Municipal Annual Service
Charge shall be paid to the City and remitted by the City to the County,

i, The Minimum Annual Service Charge pursuant to Section 1.2xv(a) shall be due
beginning on the offective date of this Agreement. The Minimum Annual Service Charge
pursuant to Section 1.2xv(b) shall be due 12 months following Substantial Completion of the
Project. The City Service Charge and the County Annual Service Charge shall be due on the
first day of the month following the Substantial Completion of the Project. In the event the
Entity fails to timely pay the Minimum Annual Service Charge or the Annual Service Charge,
the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or
tax Hens on land until paid.

Section 4.2 Staged Adjustments

The Annual Service Charge shall be adjusted, in Stages over the term of the tax

exemption in accordance with N.J.S.A, 40A:20-12(b) as follows:

Section4.3 Land Tax
The Entity is required to pay both the Annual Service Charge and the Land Tax




Payments, The Entity is obligated to make timely Land Tax Payments, including any tax on the
pre-existing improvements, in order to be entitled to a Land Tax credit agéinst the Annual
Service Charge for the subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the smount,
without interest, of the Land Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarterly ﬁlstalline11ts
against the Annual Service Charge. In any guarter that the Entity fails to make any Land Tax
Payments when due and owing, such delinquency shall render the Entity ineligible for any Land
Tax Payment credit against the Annual Service Charge. No credit will be applied against the
Annual Service Charge for a partial payment of Land Taxes. In addition, the City shall have,
among this remedy and other remedies, the right to proceed against the property pursuant to the
In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A, 54:5-1, et seq. and/or declare a Default and terminate this
Agreement,
Section4.4  Quarterly Iustallments / Inferest

The Entity expressly agrees that the Annual Service Charge shall be made in quarterly
installments on those dates when real estate tax payments are due; subject, nevertheless, to
adjustment for over or underpayment within thirty (30) days after the close of each calendar year,
In the event that the Entity fails to pay the Annual Service Charge or any other charge due under
this agreement, the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of
unpaid taxes or tax liens on the land until paid in full, |
Section 4.5  Administrative Fee

The Entity shall also pay an annual Administrative Fee to the City in addition to the
Annual Service Charge and T.and Tax levy. The Administrative Fee shall be calculated as two
percent (2%) of each prior year’s Annual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due on
or before December 315t of each year, and collected in the same manner as the Annua} Service
Charge. |
Section 4.6  Affordable Housing Contribution and Remedies

Al Contribution. The Entity will pay the City the sum of $18,000.00 as a
contribution. The sum shall be due and payable as follows:
i 1/3 on or before the effective adoption date of the Ordinance approving the tax

exemption;
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i, 1/3 on or before the issuance of the first of any construction permit for the Project, but no
later than six months after the date of the Financial Agreement; and
i, 1/3 on or before the date the first of any Certificate of Occupancy is issued for the
Project, but no later than twenty-four (24) months after the date of the Financial
Agreement,
Section 4,7 Material Conditions
It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes, Minimum
Annual Service Charges, Annual Service Charges, including Anmwal Net Profits and any
adjustments thereto, Administrative Fees, Affordable Housing Contributions, and any interest
thereon, are Material Conditions of this Agreement,
ARTICLE V - PROJECT EMPLOYMENT AND CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

Section 5.1  Project Employment and Contracting Agreement

In order to provide City residents and businesses with certain employment and other
economic related opportunities, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of the Project
Employment and Contracting Agreement, attached heteto as Exhibit 8.

ARTICLE VI - CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY
Section 6.1  Certificate of Occupancy

It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain all
Certificates of Occupaney in a timely manner so as to complete construction in accordance with
the proposed construction schedule attached hereto as Exhibit 5. The failure to secure the
Certificates of Occupancy shall subject the Property to full taxation for the period between the
date of Substantial Completion and the date the Certificate of Occupancy is obtained.

Section 6.2  Filing of Certificate of Occupancy

It shall be the primary responsibility of the Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax
Asgessor and the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy.

Failure of the Entity to file such issued Certificate of Occupancy as required by the
preceding paragraph, shall not militate against any action or non-action, taken by the City,
including, if appropriate retroactive billing with interest for any charges determined to be due, in

the absence of such filing by the Entity.
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Section 6.3  Construction Permits
The estimated cost basis disclosed by the Entity's application and proposed Financial
Agreement may, at the option of the City, be used as the basis for the construction cost in the
issuance of any construction permit for the Project.
ARTICLE VIT - ANNUAL REPORTS

Section 7.1  Accounting System

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls established
and administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Section 7.2 Periodic Reports

A. Auditor’s Report: Within ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal or calendar
year, depending on the Entity’s accounting basis that the Agreement shall continue in effect, the
Entity shell submit to the Mayor and Municipal Council and the NJ Division of Local
Government Services in the Department of Community Affairs, its Auditor’s Report for the
preceding fiscal or calendar year, The Auditor’s Report shall include, but not be limited to gross
reveliue, and the terms and interest rate on any mortgage(s) associated with the purchase or
construction of the Project and such details as may relate to the financial affairs of the Entity and
to its operation and performance hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this Agreement. The |
Report shall clearly identify and calculate the Allowable Net Profit for the Entity during the
previous year, the excess of which shall be paid to the City each year an excess profit is
generated. |

B. Total Project Cost Audit: Within ninety (90) days after Substantial Completion of the
Praject, the Entity shall submit to the Mayor, Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City
Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials required to be advised, an audit of Total Project
Cost, including but not limited to an audit of actual consiruction costs as certified by the Project
architect.

C. Disclosure Statement: On the anniversary date of the execution of this Agreement,
and each and every year thereafter while this agreement is in effect, the Entity shall submit to
the Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those municipal

officials required to be advised, a Disclosure Statement listing the persons having an ownership
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interest in the Project, and the extent of the ownership interest of each and such additional
information as the City may request from time to time. All disclosures shall include ownership
interests of the individual persons owning any interest in any corporation with an ownership
interest in the Entity.
Section 7.3 Inspection/Audit

The EBntity shall permit the inspection of its property, equipment, buildings and other
facilities of the Project and, if deemed appropriate or necessary, any other related Entity by
representatives duly authorized by the City or the NJ Division of Local Government Services in
the Department of Community Affairs. It shall also permit, upon request, examination and audit
of its books, contracts, records, documents and papers. Such examination or audit shall be made
during the reasonable hours of the business day, in the presence of an officer or agent designated
by the Entity for any year during which the tax exemption financial agreement was in full force
and effect.

- All costs incurred by the City to conduct a review of the Entity’s audits, including
reasonable attorneys’ fees if appropriate, shall be billed to the Entity and paid to the City as part
of the Fntity’s Annual Service Charge. Delinquent payments shall accrue interest at the same
rate as for a delinquent service charge.

ARTICLE VIII- EIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES

Section 8.1  Ljmitation of Profits and Reserves

During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject to a

limitation of its profits pursuant to the provisions of N.LS.A. 40A:20-15.

The Entity shall have the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpaid rentals,
and reasonable contingencies in an amount equal to five (5%) percent of the Gross Revenue of
the Entity for the last full fiscal year preceding the year and may retain such part of the Excess
Net Profits as is necessary to eliminate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided in N.I.S.A.
40A:20~15, The reserve is to be non-cumulative, it being intended that no further credits thereto
shall be permitted after the reserve shall have attained the allowable level of five (5%) percent of
the preceding year's Gross Revenue,

Section 8.2 Annual Payment of Excess Net Profit
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In the event the Net Profits of the Enfity, in any year, exceeds the Allowable Net Profits
for such year, then the Entity, within one hundred and twenty (120} days after the end of the
year, shall pay such excess Net Profits to the City as an additional annual service charge;
provided, however, that the Entity may maintain a reserve as determined pursuent to
aforementioned paragraph 8.1. The calculation of the Entity’s Excess Net Profits shall include
those project costs directly attributable to site remediation and cleanup expenses and any other
costs excluded in the definition of Total Project Cost in Section 1.2 (xx) of this Agreement.

Section 8.3 Payment of Reserve/ Excess Net Profit Upon Termination, Expiration or Sale

The date of termination, expiration or sale shall be considered to be the close of the fiscal
year of the Entity. Within ninety (90) days after such date, the Entity shall pay to the City the
amount of the reserve, if any, maintained by it pursuant to this section and the balance of the
Excess Net Profit, if any.

ARTICLE IX ~ ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION
Section 9.1  Approval of Sale

Any sale or transfer of the Project, shall be void unless approved in advance by
Ordinance of the Mumnicipal Council. It is understood and agreed that the City, on written
application by the Entity, will not unreasonably withhold its consent to a sale of the Project and
the transfer of this Agreement provided: 1) the new Entity does not own any other Project subject
to long term tax exemption at the time of transfer; 2) the new Entity is formed and eligible to
operate under the Law; 3) the Entity is not then in default of this Agreement or the Law; 4) the
Entity's obligations under this Agreement are fully assumed by the new Entity; 5) the Entity pays
in full the maximum transfer fee, currently 2% of the Annual Service Charge, as permitted by
N.I.S.A. 40A:20-10(d); and 6) as to projects that are not Substantially Complete, the Entity is
comprised of principals possessing substantially the same or better financial gqualifications and
credit worthiness as the Entity.

Nothing herein shall prohibit any transfer of the ownership interest in the Entity itself
provided that the transfer, if greater than 10%, is disclosed to the City in the annual disclosure

statement or in correspondence sent to the City in advance of the filing of the annual disclosure
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statement. _
Section 9.2 Transfer Application Fee

Where the consent or approval of the City is sought for approval of a change in
ownership or sale or transfer of the Project, the Entity shall be required to pay to the City a new
tax exemption application fee for the legal and administrative services of the City, as it relates to
the review, preparation and/or submission of documents to the Municipal Council for appropriate
action on the requested assignment. The fee shall be non-refundable.

ARTICLE X - COMPLIANCE

Section 10.1 Operation _

During the term of this Agreement, the Project shall be maintained and operated in
accordance with the provisions of the Law. Operation of Project under this Agreement shall not
only be terminable as provided by N.J.S.A, 40A:20-1, et seg., as amended and supplemented, but
also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's failure to comply with the Law shall
constitute a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the
right to terminate the tax exemption.

Section 10.2 Disclosure of Lobbyist Representaﬁve -

During the term of this Agreement, the Entity must comply with Executive Order 2002-
005, and Ordinance 02-075, requiring Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status.
The Entity’s failure to comply with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall constitute a
Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to
terminate the tax exemption.

ARTICLE XI - DEFAULT

Section 11.1 Default

Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement or
failure of the Entity to perform any ebligation imposed by the Law, beyond any applicable
notice, cure or grace period.
Section 11.2 Cure Upon Default

Should the Entity be in Defaulf, the City shall send written notice to the Entity of the
Default [Defauit Notice]. The Default Notice shall set forth with particularity the bagis of the
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alleged Defanlt. The Entity shall have thirty (30) days, from receipt of the Default Notice, to
cure any Default which shell be the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Entity, However,
if, in the reasonable opinion of the City, the Defaunlt cannot be cured within thirty (30) days using
reasonable diligence, the City will extend the time to cure,

Subsequent to such thifty.(B 0) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have the
right to temﬁnate this Agreement in accordance with Section 12.1.

Shouid the Entity be in default due to a failure to pay any charges defined as Material
Conditions in Section 4.7, the Entity shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as
provided herein but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as
provided in Article X1I herein.

Section 11.3 Remedies Upon Default

The City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to proceed against the property
pursuant fo the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A, 54:5-1, et §e_q.. In order to secure the full
and timely payment of the Annual Service Charge, the City on ifs own behalf, or on behalf of the
Trustee, reserves the right to prosecute an In Rem Tax Foreclosure action against the Project
Area In accordance with Applicable Law, as more fully set forth in this Financial Agreement.

In addition, the City may declare a Default and terminate this Agreement, Any default
arising out of the Entity's failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge,
Administrative Fees, Affordable Housing Contribution, or the Annual Service Charges shall not
be subject to the default procedural remedies as provided herein, but shall allow the City to
proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided herein. All of the remedics
provided in this Agreement to the City, and all rights and remedies granted to it by law and
equity shall be cumulative and concurrent. No termination of any provision of this Agrecment
shall deprive the City of any of its remedies or actions against the Entity because of its failure to
pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, Annual Service Charge, Affordable
Housing Contribution or Administrative Fees. This right shall apply to arrearages that are duc
and owing at the time or which, under the terms hereof, would in the future become due as if
there had been no termination. Further, the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum

Annual Service Charge, the Annual Service Charge, Affordable Housing Contribution,
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Administrative Fees, or for breach of covenant or the resort to any other remedy hetein provided
for the recovery of Land Taxes shall not be construed as a waiver of the rights to terminate the
tax exemption or proceed with a tax sale ot Tex Foreclosure action or any other specified
remedy.

In the event of & Default on the part of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in Article
IV, the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the Entity's land and
propetty, in the manner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any act supplementary or
amendatory thereof. Whenever the word taxes appear, or is applied, directly or impliediy to
mean taxes or municipal liens on land, such statutory provisions shall be read, as far as is
pertinent to this Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or municipal liens on land. -

_ ARTICLE XII- TERMINATION

Section 12.1 Termination Upon Default of the Entity

In the event the Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default within the time peried provided
in Section 11.2, the City may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to
the Entity [Notice of Termiration],

Section 12.2 Voluntary Termination by the Entity )

The Entity may notify the City that it will relinquish its status as a tax exempt Project,
after the expiration of one year from the Substantial Completion of the Project , as of the January
1% of the year next ensuing. The Notice of Voluntary Termination must be received by the City
no later than October 1% of the tax year preceding the calendar year in which the termination is to
occur. As of the date so set, the tax exemption, the Annual Service Charges and the profit and
dividend restrictions shall terminate. However, under no circumstances will the Entity be
entitled to any réfund, in whole or in part, of any funds peid to the City to obtain the fax
exemption, including but not limited to the Affordable Hdusing Confribution. In addition, the
due date for all Affordable Housing Contribution and any other charges or fees that the Entity
agreed to pay under this Apgreement, shall be accelerated so-that all charges and fees to be paid
shall be due on January 1% as a condition precedent of the voluntary termination.

Section 12.3 Final Accounting

‘Within nirety (90) days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action of the
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Entity or by virtue of the provisions of the Law or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the
Entity shall provide a final accounting and pay to the City the reserve, if any, pursuant to the
provisions of E,_LLS_AH 40A:20-13 and 15 as well as any remaining excess Net Profits, For
purposes of rendering a final accounting the termination of the Agreement shall be deemed to be
the end of the fiscal year for the Entity.
Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the Project
shall expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be assessed and
conventionally taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taxable
property in the City,

ARTICLE XHI - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Section 13.1 Arbitration

In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of the parties hereto or a
dispute arising between the parties in reference to the terms and provisions as set forth herein,
either party may apply to the Superior Court of New Jersey by an appropriate proceeding, to
settle and resolve the dispute in such fashion as will tend to accomplish the purposes of the Law,
In the event the Superior Court shall not entertain jurisdiction, then the parties shall submit the
dispute to the American Arbitration Association in New Jersey to be determined in accordance
with its rules and regulations in such a fashion to accomplish the purpose of the Long Term Tax
Exemption Law. The cost for the arbifration shall be bome by the Entity. The parties agree that
the Entity may not file an action in Superior Court or with the Arbitration Association unless the
Entity has first paid in full all charges defined in Section 4.7 as Material Conditions,

Section 13.2 Appeal of Assessment

In caleylating the amount of the Staged Adjustments that is, taxes otherwise due,
pursuant to Section 4.2 hereof and N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12, either party may file an appeal of the
conventional assessment to determine the value of land and improvements.

ARTICLE XTIV - WAIVER

Section 14.1 Waiver

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver or
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relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without limitation, the right to
terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions provided
herein. Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the City’s right to audit or recover any amount
which the City has under law, in equity, or under any provision of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XV - INDEMNIFICATION

Section 15.1 Defined

It is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as party defendant in
any action by a third party alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of
this Agreement and/or the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., the Fntity shall indemnify
and hold the City harmless against any and all liability, loss, cost, expense (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs), arising out of this Agreement. In addition, the Entity expressly waives
all statutory or common law defenses or legal principles which would defeat the purposes of this
indemnification. The Entity also agrees to defend the suit at its own expense. However, the City
maintains the right to intervene as a party thereto; to which intervention the Entity consents; the
expense thereof to be borne by the City.

ARTICﬁE XVI- NOTICE

Section 16.1 Certified Mail

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other shall be sent by
cettified or registered mail, return receipt requested.
Section 16.2 Sent by City

When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to.

68 Brie Street KDJ Urban Renewal Co, LLC
201 St. Anthony’s Drive
Moorestown, New Jersey 08057

Atin: Eugene T. Paolino, Esq.
Genova Burns Giantomasi Webster LIC
30 Montgomery Street, 15™ Floor
Tersey City, New Jersey 07302
unless prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise.

In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this
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Agreement, of the name and address of Entity’s Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such
Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.
Section 16.3 Sent by Entity
When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to:

City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk

City Hall

280 Grove Street

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302,
with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax Collector
unless prior to the giving of notice, the City shell have notified the Entity otherwise. The notice
to the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.c., the Urban Renewal Entity and the
Property’s Block and Lot number).

ARTICLE XVII-SEVERABILITY

Section 17.1 Severability

If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the Application, except a
Matetial Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of
this Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or
circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid 'c;r unenforceable, shall not be
affected theréby, and each term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and be
enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

If a Material Condition shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable and

provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the parties shall cooperate with each -

other to take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a manner contemplated
by the parties and the Law. This shall include, but not be limited to the authorization and re-
execution of this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the original intent of the
parties and the Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if it would
modify a Material Condition, the amount of the periodic adjustments or any other term of this
Agreement which would result in any economic reduction or loss to the City, |

ARTICLE XVHI - MISCELEANEOUS
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Section 18.1 Construction

This Agreement shall be construed and enforeed in accordance with the laws of the State
of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring
construction against the party drawing or causing this Agreement to be drawn since counsel for

both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and approval of same.

Section. 18.2 Conflicts

The parties agree that in the event of a conflict between the Application and the language

© contained in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevail. In the event of conflict

between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevail.
Section 18.3 Oral Representations ‘

There have been no oral tepresentations made by either of the parties hereto which are
not contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing the Agreement,
and the Application constitute the entire Agreement between the parties and there shall be no
modifications thersto other than by a written instrument approved and executed by both parties
and delivered to each party.

Section 18.4 Entire Document

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance of the Municipal Council approving
this Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a part hereof.
Section 18.5 Good Faith

In their dealings with each other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and the
City.

ARTICLE XIX - EXHIBITS

Section 19  Exhibits

The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at
length herein:

Metes and Bounds description of the Project;

Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement;
The Application with Exhibits;

Certificate of the Entity;

o=
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i

Estimated Construction Schedule;

The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Project;
(Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rents [or Sales Prices];
Project Employment and Contracting Agreement;
Architect's Certification of Actual Construction Costs.
Entity’s Deed [or Lease]

IN WITNESS WHEREOFE, the parties have caused these presents to be executed the
day and year first above written.

68 ERIE STREET URBAN RENEWAL CO,, LLC

WITNESS:
JUSTIN WOLK, MEMBER
ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY
ROBERT BYRNE ROBERT KAKOLESKI
CITY CLERK ACTING BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR
12300918(21897.001)
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u.4

Proposed form of Project Employment and Contracting Agreement on form
approved by Corporation Counsel;

Attached.
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2-19-14 .
PROJECT EMPLOYMENT & CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

This Project Employment & Contracting Agreement is made on the day of ,
2014, between the CITY OF JERSEY CITY [City] and 68 ERIE STREET KDJ URBAN
RENEWAL CO., LLC,, having its principal office at 35 Journal Squate, Ste 401, Jersey City,
NJ 07306. Recipient agrees as follows:

I. Definitions:

The following words and terms, when vsed in this agreement, shall have the following
meanings vnless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

1. "City" means the Business Administrator of the City of Jersey City, or his designee,
including any person or entity which enters into a contract with the City to implement, in
whole or in part, this agreement,

2. "Construction Contract’ means any agreement for the erection, repajr, alteration or

demolition of any building, structure, bridge, roadway, or other improvement on a Project
Site.

3. “"Contractor" means any party performing or offering to perform a prime contract on
behalf of the Recipient.

4, “DEO” means the Division of Economic Opportunity under the Depariment of
Administration, located at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, NJ 07302, Telephone #(201)
547-5611. DEO is in charge of Project Employment & Contracting coordination and
monitoring on projects receiving abatements.

5. "Economic Incentive" means a tax abatement or exemption for a property or project
which requires approval of the Municipal Council and which reduces fhe annual amount
of taxes otherwise due, by $25,000 or more in the aggregate;

0. "Employment" means any job or position during the construction and cperational phase
of the project. It includes positions created as a result of intetnal promotions,
terminations, or expansions within the Recipient's work force which are to be filled by
new employees. However, positions filled through promotion from within the Recipient's
existing work force are not covered positions under this agreement.

7. "Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey City.

8. Mayor Steven M. Fulop's Business Cooperative Program means the group within DEO
under the Department of Administration responsible for collecting local and minority
business contracts and capability information. This proup operates the Supplier Alert
setvice which is to be used by the Recipient to meet their good faith business contracting
and construction subcontracting goals,

9. "Minority" means a person who is African, Hispanic, Asian, or American Indian defined




10.

11.

12,

13.

14,

15.

16.

ag follows:

a) "African-American" means a person having origing in any of the black racial
groups of Africa.
b) "Hispanic" means a person of Mexican, Puetto Rican, Cuban, Cestral or South

American or other Latino culture or origin, regardless of race, excluding,
however, persons of European origin.

<) "Asgian" means a person having origins in any of the original people of the Far
Hast, Southeast Asia, and subcontinent India, Hawaii or the Pacific Islands.

d) "American Indian" means a person having origins in any of the original people of
North America who maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or
community recognition,

"Minority or Woman Owned Local Business" means a bona fide business located in
Jersey City which is fifty-one (51%) percent or more owned and controlled by either a
Minority or woman.

"Non-Traditional Jobs" means jobs which are held by less than twenty (20%) percent
women, as reported by the New Jersey Department of Labor, Division of Labor Market,
and Demographic Research for Jersey City, which report shall be on file with the City
Clerk.

"Permanent Jobs" mean newly created long term salaried positions, whether permanent,
temporary, part time or seasonal.

"Project or Project Site" means the specific work location or locations specified in the
contract,

The “Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator” is a member of the DEQ staff
under the Depariment of Administration who is in charge of coordinating Project

Employment & Contracting projects. Centractors and developers engaged in projects’

covered by Project Employment & Contracting Agreements will direct inquities to the
Project Employment & Countracting Coordinator,

The “Project Employment & Contracting Monitor” or “Monitor* is a member of the DEO
staff under the Department of Administration directly under the command of the Project
Employment & Contracting Coordinator, who is in charge of monitoring the site,
collecting the reports and documentation, and other day-to-day Project Employment &

- Contracting housekeeping as stipulated by this agreement.

The “Project Employment & Contracting Officer” or “Officer” is an employee of the
Recipient who is designated by the Recipient to make sure the Recipient is in compliance
with the Recipient’s Project Employment & Contracting agreement.




17 "Recipient" meens any individual, parinership, association, organization, corporation or
other entity, whether public or private, or for profit or non-profit, or agent thereof, which
receives an BEconomic Incentive and shall include any Contractor, Subconiractor or agent
of the Recipient.

18.  “The Registry” or "Jersey City Employment Registry" means a list maintained by the
City or its designee of Jersey City residents seeking employment and Local Businesses,
including Minerity or Woman Owned Local Businesses, seeking contracts.

19, "Subcontract” means a binding legal relationship involving performance of a contract that
is part of a prime contract. '

20,  "Subcontractor" means a third party that is engaged by the prime Contractor to perform
under a subcontract all or part of the work included in an original contract.

21, “Substantial Completion” means the determination by the City that the Project, in whole
or in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the date on which the
Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for any portion of
the Project.

II. Purpose:

The City wishes to assure continuing employment opportunities for City residents,
particularly residents who are Minorities, and business opportunities for Local Businesses,
especially Minority and Women Owned Local Businesses, with employers located in or
relocating to the City who are the Recipients of Economic Incentives, The City has determined
to accomplish that goal by requiring the Recipient of an Hconomic Incentive to act in Good
Faith, as defined herein, and discharge its obligations under this Agreement. To the oxtent
mandated by State and Federal law and so long as the Entity discharges its Good Faith

obligations under this agreement, the City acknowledges that the Recipient and its contractors

are free to hire whomever they choose.
I Good Faith Goals:

In the event the Recipient is able to demonstrate that its work force already meets the
goals set forth below or is able to meet such goals during the term of this agreement, the
Recipient will not be required to comply with the interviewing or reporting obligations set forth
in Section VI 1., A~L (Construction Jobs) and Section VI, 2., A-J (Permanent Jobs), All goals for
Construction Jobs shall be calculated as a percentage of the total number of work hours in each
trade from the beginning of the project to its completion.

1. Employment: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal of a
work force representing fifty-one (51%) percent City residents, fifty-one (51%) percent of whom
are residents who are Minorities and, in Noen-Traditional Jobs, six point nine (6.9%) percent of
whom are residents who are women, it being understood that one employee may satisfy more
than one category.




2. Business Contracting: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal -

of awarding twenty (20%) percent of the dollar amount of its contracts to Local Businesses, fifty-
one {51%) percent of which shall be Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses, If fifty-one
(51%) percent of Minozity or Women Owned Local Businesses cannot be obtained, that
percentage of contracts must still be applied to focal vendors.

IV.  Recipient Designee:

The Recipient shall designate a principal officer of its firm to be responsible for
administering the agreement detailed herein and to report to and confer with the City in order to
discharge its Good Faith obligations as defined in this agreement. This officer should be
-designated as the Project Employment & Contracting Officer.

The Recipient should send a letter of introduction regarding the “Project Employment &
Contracting Compliance Officer” to the Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator prior to
any preconstruction meetings. An example of this letter can be found in Appendix A. This
principle officer should also be present for all preconstruction meetings.

The Recipient should send a lefter regarding the “Project Employment & Contracting
Compliance Officer” to the employees of the Recipient’s company. An example of this letter
can be found in Appendix AZ

Y. Term:

This agreement shall be in effect for a period co-terminus with the effective period of the
tax exemption [the Economic Incentive]. Thus, it will commence on the date the City Council
adopted Ordinance approving the tax exemption and ferminate 5 years from the date of
Substantial Completion of the Project,

VI Good Faith Defined:

1. Construction Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following
conditions:

A Initial Manning Renort:

i) Prior fo the commencement of their work on the Project, each Contractor
/Subcontractor shall prepare an Initial Manning Report.

i} The initial manning report should contain an estimate of the total work force to be
used at the Project Site, including the work force of any and all Contractors and
Subcontractors. It should also describe the specific construction trades and crafts,
and indicate the projected use of City residents, City resident Minorities and City

resident women., Attached hereto as Appendix B is the Recipient’s Initial

Manning Report.

iiiy  The Initial Manning Report shall be filed with the Project Employment and




B.

C.

D.

Contracting Monitor, who must accept said Report prior to the Recipient entering
into any construction contract. An example of this acceptance leiter is given in
Appendix C.,

Developer’s Contracting Obligations

1)

Once the developer submits the project’s initial manning report, he/she must
forward a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor Steven M, Fulop's

" Business Cooperative Program for local and minority vendors for any

construction or building operating goods, services and sub-contracting
opportunities. An example of this letter is given in Appendix D.

The developer shall make a good faith effort to contact those businesses and
individuals who submit bids. This effort must be documented by letter, which will
be sent to Mayor Steven M, Fulop's Business Cooperative Program at DEO under
the Department of Administration. An example of this letter can be found in
Appendix D2.

Contractor's/Subconiractor’s Compliance Statement

Prior to commencement of their work on the Project, each Contractor or Subconfractor
must agree in writing to comply with this apreement and the employment goals elaborated
herein. An example of this Compliance Statement can be found in Appendix E.

Union Statement of Usin-g Its Best Efforts

i)

Prior to commencement of their work on the Project, the contractor/subcontractor
must submit a statemient expressing its adherence to the Project Employment &
Contracting Agreement to each umion with which he/she has a collective
bargaining agreement covering workers to be employed on the project.

The Compliance Statement shall include a union statement for the particular
union to sign, which claims the union will use its best efforts to comply with the
employment goals articulated in the Project Employment & Contracting
agreement. This compliance statement is detailed in Appendix F. A copy of the
signed compliance statement must be sent to the Project Employment &
Contracting Monitor in DEO under the Department of Administration before
work starts in order for a developer to be in compliance.

The Recipient will require the Contractor or Subcontractor to promptly notify the
City of any refusal or failure of a union to sign the statement. If a particular union
refuses to sign a statement, the Recipient will document its efforts to obtain such
statement and the reasons given by the union for not signing such statement, and
submit such documentation to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in
DEO under the Department of Administration.

Sub-Coniractors




The developer shall require that each prime contractor be responsible for the compliance
of his/her subcontractors with the aforementioned Project Bmployment & Contracting
requirements during the performance of the contract. Whenever the confractor sub-contracts a
portion of the work on the project, the contractor shall bind the subcontractor to the obligations
contained in these supplemental conditions to the full extent as if he/she were the contractor.

F. Union Apprentices

The contractor is responsible for assuring that resident and minority apprentices account
for at least fifty (50%) percent of the total hours worked by union apprentices on the job in each
trade listed in which apprentices are employed, according to the apprentice-to~journey-worker
ratio contained in the collective bargaining agreement between the various unions, and shall hold
each of his/her subcontractors to this requirement. The Recipient will require the contractor or
subcontractor to promptly notify the City of any refusal of a union to utilize resident and
minority apprentices. :

G. Meonthly Manning Report

i) The Recipient will cause the Contractor to complete and submit Monthly Project
Manning Reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in DEQ
under the Department of Administration by the seventh day of the month
following the month during which the work is performed, for the duration of the
contract.

i) The report will accurately reflect the total work hours in each construction trade
or craft and the number of hours worked by City residents, including a list of
minority resident and women resident workers in each trade or craft, and will list
separately the work hours performed by employees of the Contractor and each of
its Subconiractors. The Monthly Manning Report shall be in the form attached
hereto as Appendix G,

iii)  The Recipient is responsible for maintaining or causing the Contractor to maintain
records supporting the reported work hours of its Contractors or Subcontractors.

H. Monthly Cettified Pavroll Report

i) The Recipient will cause the Contractor to furnish the Project Employment &
Contracting Monitor with copies of its weekly Certified Payroll reports. The
reports will specify the residency, including gender and ethnic/racial origin of
each worker, The Certified Payroll report shall be in the form attached hereto as
Appendix H,

if) Payroll reports must be submitted on a monthly basis with the Monthly Manning
Report or the Recipient is no longer in compliance,




L Equal Employment Oppottunity Reporis

Prior to commencement of work on the Project, the Recipient will request copies of the
most recent Local Union Report (EEO-3) and Apprenticeship Information Report (EEO-2)
which are required to be filed with the US Commission of Bqual Employment Oppottunity
Commission by the collective bargaining unit. These reports will be forwarded to the Project
Employment & Contracting Monitor within onie month of the signing of the Project Employment
& Contracting Agreement. '

J. Other Reportg

In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish such reports or other
documents to the City as the City may request from time to time in order to carry out the
purposes of this agreement,

K. Records Access

The Recipient will insure that the City will have reasonable access to all records and files
reasonably necessary to confirm the accuracy of the information provided in the reports.

I. ‘Worlk Site Access For Monitor

1) The City will physically monitor the work sites subject to this agreement to verify
the accuracy of the monthly reports. Each work site will be physically monitored
approximately once every two weeks, and more frequently if it is deemed
reasonably necessary by the City. The City's findings shall be recorded in a "Site
Visit Report.” An example of a bi-weekly site visit report can be found in
Appendix L. '

i) The Recipient shall require the Contractor and Sub-contractor to cooperate with
the City's site monitoring activities and inform the City as to the dates they are
working at the Project site. This includes specifically instructing the on-site
construction manager about the monitoring process, and informing him/her that
the monifor will contact him/her to set up an initial meeting, In the case of
projects with multiple locations, the Recipient shall inform the City of the dates
they are working at each site location(s) where they are working, in order fo
facilitate the monitoring,

2. Permanent Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following
conditions:

A. Pre-hiring Job Awareness: At least eight (8) months prior to the hiring of a Recipient’s
permanent workforce, the Project Employment & Contracting officer for the Recipient will sit
down with the head of the Registry to discuss how the Recipient plans to hire its permanent
workforce. The following issues should be covered in this meeting:

i) whether subcontractors will be used in the hiring process.




i) the specific types of jobs that need to be filled.

i) the qualifications needed for these particular jobs.

1v) possible training programs offered by the permanent employer.
v) the Recipient’s goals and how it plans to meet these goals.

vi) any other issues which need. to be addressed by the Registry.

1. Subcontrector Notification -- If fhe Recipient decides to subcontract any portion or all of
its permanent workforce, then the Recipient must receive a signed acknowledgment from the

© subcontracting party that it will abide by the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement

hefore said subecontractor beging staffing permanent employees, The Recipient must forward a
copy of the signed acknowledgment to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor. An
example of this sipned acknowledgment can be found in Appendix E.

2. Subcontractor Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting -- Each subcontractor hired to staff
permanent job positions must appoint a Project Employment & Contracting Officer to meet with
the head of the Registry to discuss the same issues presented above in VI 2. A(I-vi).

3. Subcontractors of Subcontractors--Subcontractors of subcontractors are subject to the
samne requirements for the initial subcontractors above in Section VI 2.A. -

B. Documentation of Hiring Plan--Once the Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting has taken
place, the Recipient must put together a document with goals and totals for future permanent

 employment needs. This plan should summarize all that was discussed in the Pre-Hiring

Awareness Meeting, list estimates for manpower needs, set residential and minority employment
goals commensurate with the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement, and show how the
Recipient plans to meet these goals. An example of this plan is found in Appendix J.

C. Pre-Hiring Notification: At least ten (10) working days prior to advertising for any
employees, the Recipient or the Recipient’s subcontractor shall provide the Registty with a
written notice, which shall state the job title, job description and minimum qualifications, rate of
pay, hours of wotk and the hiring date for each position to be filled, in qualitative and objective
terms which will enable the Registry to refer qualified applicants to the Recipient.

D. Advertisement: At the tequest of the City, or because the City does not have qualified
applicants o refer to the Recipient, the Recipient will place an advertisement for the jobs in a
newspaper which is regularly published in Jersey City. The Recipient must furnish the Project
Employment & Contracting Coordinator in DEO under the Department of Administration with a
copy of this advertisement.

E. Pre-Hiring Interview: The Recipient shall interview any qualified applicants referred to it
from the Registry, to be maintained by the City or its designee. In the event advertisement is
required, the Recipient agrees to interview any qualified persons responding to the
advertisement.

I Semi-Annual Employment Reports: The Recipient will submit written semi-annual
employment reports to the Project Employment & Confracting Monitor in the form to be
provided by the City. The report will describe the job, whether the job is held by a City resident,




minority resident or woman resident. The report will explain in writing the reasons why any
qualified applicant referred by the Registry (or in the event advertisement is required, any
qualified person responding to the advertisernent) was not hired. An example of this report is
found in Appendix K,

G. Record Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to all files
and records including payroll and petsonnel information reasonably necessary to confirm the
accuracy of the information set forth in the semi-annual reports.

H. Work Place Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to the
site to physically monitor the work site to verify the accuracy of the information set forth in the
semi-antal reports,

L Other Reports, Documents: In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall firnish
such reports or other documents that the City may request from time to time in 01der to
implement the purposes of this agreement,

J. Incorporation of Agreement: The Recipient shall incorporate the provisions of this
Agreement in all contracts, agreements and purchase orders for lsbor with any service,
maintenance, Security or management agent or Coniractor engaged by the Recipient whose
personnel will be assigned to the Recipient project.

3. Business Contracting

Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions:
1) solicitation of Businesses:

a) One month before accepting bids for goods and services, the Recipient must
forward a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor Steven M. Fulop's
Business Cooperative Program for Jocal and local minority vendors for any
consfruction or building operating goods, services and subcontracting
opportunities. An example of this letter can be found in Appendix D.

b)  Afer submission of bids, the Recipient will document whether the bid was
accepted or rejected, and state the reason why, An example of this documentation
can be found in Appendix D2,

1) Semi-Annual Purchasing Reports: The Recipient will submit written semi-
annual purchasing reports which will include a list of all contracts
awarded over a six month period and the dollar amounts of these
contracts, The reports will specify the number and dollar amount of
contracts awarded to Local Businesses and Minority or Women Owned
Local Businesses. An exatmple of these reports can be found in Appendix
L.

i) No Utilization of Local and Local Minority Vendois As Conduits For




Vendors That Are Not Local Or Minority Owned:

The Recipient pledges not to use local and local minority vendors solely as conduits for vendors
that are not Jocal and minority owned. Any discovery by DEO under the Deparfment of
Administration of a Recipient, either knowingly or unknowingly, using the masthead of a local
or minority owned business as a way to get credit for local or minority employment when it
should not, will immediately subject the Recipient to the penalties listed in Section VIII (d)
below.

4, Summation of Documentation Needed For Conmipliance with Agreement

L. Letter Designating Project Employment & Contracting Officer (Appendix A)

Letter designating Project employment & Contracting Officer to Recipient’s Employees

(App.} AZ

Example of Initial Manning Report (Appendix B)

Letter Of Acceptance of Initial Manning Report (Appendix C)

Letter From Developer Forwarding Requests for Quotation or Bid for Minority and

Residential Vendors from Mayor Steven M. Fulop's Business Cooperative Program

(Appendix D)

Documentation of Bid Submission (Appendix D2)

7. Letter Expressing Project Employment & Contracting Obligations to Contractors/
Subcontractors (Appendix E)

8. Union Statement of Best Efforts (Appendix F)

9. Example of Monthly Manning Report (Appendix G)

10.  Bxample of Monthly Certified Payroll Report (Appendix )

11.  Example of Bi-Weekly Site Visit Report (Appendix 1)

12.  Example of Documentation of Hiring Plan (Appendix J)

13.  Example of Semi-Annual Employment Report (Appendix K)

14, Example of Semi-Annuval Purchasing Report (Appendix L)

W

&

VII. Notices of Violation:

1. Advisory Notice: The City will issue a written Advisory Notice to the Recipient if there
is non-compliance with a Good Faith requirement as defined in this agreement, The
Advisory Notice shall explain in sufficient detail the basis of the alleged violation. The
Recipient shall have four (4) working days to correct the violation. An example of an
Advisory Notice can be found in Appendix M.

2. Violation Notice: If the alleged violation set forth in the Advisory Notice has not been
corrected to the satisfaction of the City within four (4) working days, the City shall then
issue a Violation Netice to the Recipient. The Violation Notice shall explain in sufficient
detail the basis of the alleged, continving violation. The Recipient will have three (3)
working days to correct the violation. An example of a Violation Notice can be found in
Appendix N.

3. Correcting the Violation: Either or both the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may
be considered corrected if the Recipient satisfies the requirements of this agreement and
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VIIL

so advises the City in writing, subject to confirmation by the City.

Extension of Time to Correction: FEither the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice
may be held in abeyance and the time for correction extended if the Recipient enters into
satisfactory written agreement with the City for corrective action which is desigoed to
achieve compliance. If Recipient fails to abide by the terms of such agreement the
violation will be considered not corrected.

Meetings Concerning Violations: The City may provide an opportunity for a meeting
with the Recipient, his Contractors or Subcontractors in an effort to achieve compliance;
or may respond to Recipient's request for a meeting after the Recipient has made timely
submission of a written explanation pursuant to the above. The meeting shall be
requested no later then two days after the alleged violator has submitted the written
explanation.

Interviews Relating to Violations: The City may conduct interviews and may request
additional information from appropriate parties as is considered necessary to determine
whether the alleged violation has occurred,

Determination of Violation: The City shall issue a determination of whether the Recipient
is in violation of this agreement as soon as possible but not later than thirty days after the
delivery of the Violation Notice to the Recipient. If the City determines that the Recipient
i8 in violation, the City shall be entitled to the liquidated damages provided below.

Damages:

While reserving any other remedies the City may have at law or equity for a material

breach of the above terms and conditions, the parties agree that damages for violations of this
agreement by the Recipient capnot be calculated within any reasonable degree of mathematical
certainty. Therefore, the parties agree that upon the occutrence of a matetial breach of any of the
above terms and conditions and after notice and expiration of any period to correct the violation,
the City will be entitled to liquidated damages from the Recipient in the following amounts:

a) failure to file Initial Manning Reports (Construction Jobs) or Pre-Hiring
Notification (Permanent Jobs) or Pre-Contracting Notification (Business
Contracting): Five (5%) percent increase in the annual payment in Heu of taxes;

b) failure to conduct Pre-hiring Interviews or submit Compliance Statement
(Construction Jobs) or Solicit Bids (Business Contracting): Three (3%) percent
increase in the annual payment in lieu of taxes;

c) failure to allow record or work place access or submit any other required reports
(all categories): Two (2%) percent increase in the annual payment in lieu of taxes.

d} the use of the local or local minority business’ masthead for labor or work

supplied by a non local or local minority vendor: Five (5%) percent increase in
the annual payment in lieu of taxes.

11




IX. Commercial Tenants at the Project Site:

L.

X. Notices

The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Project Site a
letter and a Tenant Employment Services Guide in the form attached as Appendix
0.

The Recipient shall solicit information from tenants of commercial space about
the composition of the work force of each tenant, The information solicited will
be submitted to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor, which shall
provide the Recipient with a questionnaire in the form attached as Appendix P.

The Recipient wilt send the results of its solicitation to the Project Employment &
Contracting Monitor no later than October 31 of each year.

The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Project Site a
Supplier Alert Service Registration Package in the form attached as Appendix Q.

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other, shall be sent by
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows:

L.

When sent by the City to the Recipient it shall be addressed to:

68 Erie Street KDJ Urban Renewal Co., LLC
¢/o Damerjian Group LLC

201 Saint Anthony’s Drive

Moorestown, NJ 08057

When sent by the Recipient to the City, it shall be addressed to:

Project Employment & Contracting Monitor
Department of Administration

Division of Economic Opportunity

280 Grove Street — 1* Floor

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302

with separate copies to the Mayor and the Business Administrator; unless prior to
giving of such notice, the City or the Recipient shall have notified the other in
writing.

XI.  Adoption, Approval, Modification:

This agreement shall take effect on the date that the Bconomic Tncentive is approved by
the Municipal Council.

12




XII. Controlling Regulations and Laws:

To the extent required by State and Federal Law and so long as the Entity discharges its
Good Faith obligations under this agreement, the City agrees and acknowledges that the
Recipient and its contractors are free to hire whomever they choose, If this agreement conflicts
with any collective bargaining agreement, the City agrees to defer to such agreements so long as
the Recipient provides the City with a copy of the offending provision in the collective
bargaining agreement.

WITNESS: 68 ERIE STREET URBAN RENEWAL CO., LLC
By: Damerjian Group, LLC

JUSTIN WOLK, MANAGING MEMBER

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY
ROBERT BYRNE ROBERT KAKOLESKI

CITY CLERK ACTING BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR

12420483(21897.001})
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v.a

Proposed Project Labor Agreement, if applicable;

N/A
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w.

Proof of Payment in full of the applicable application fee;

PLEASE SEE SEPARATE LETTER AND ATTACH RECEIPT TO
APPICATION
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| GIANTOMASI
| WEBSTER

ATTORNEYS-AT-LAW

Thomas P, Leane, Esq,
Membar of N] and NY Bars

fleans@genovabliins.com
Dlrect: 201-249-8242 v

YIA BAND DELIVERY
Hon. Steveni M. Fulop, Mayor
ofo Diana Jeffiey, Bsq.
Assistant Corporation Coungel
280 Grove Strest

Jersey City, NI 07302

Genova Burns Glantomasl Webster LLC

30 Montgomery Street, 15th Flool, Jarsey Clty, N] 07302
Tel: 201,462,0100 Faxi 201.332,1303

Web: www.genovablizhs,com

Nawark, N | New York, NY | Caméen, 8} | Red Bank, NJ | Philadelphia, PA | Jersay Cly, N)

May 29, 2014

Re:  Appleation for Ten Year Tax Exemption of 68 Frie Street KDJ Urban
Renewal Co, LLC (2" Tier Area)
Applicant: 68 Erie Street KDJ Urban Renewal Co., LLC
Property:  Block 11302, Lot 3.41 '
08 Erie Street

' Dear Mayor Fulop: -

As you may be aware, this firm represents 68 Erie Street KIDF Urban Renewal Co, LLC
in connection with the above-reforenced Tax Exemption Applicetion. On May 19, 2014 nine (9)
copies of an Application for a Ten-Year (10) Tax Hxemption along with all attendant exhibits
was delivered fo the Jersey City Department of Law, We now attach herewith a check in the
amomzt of $9,500.00 for the requited application foe,

Pleage note that the project is a minor development consisting of a new five (5) story
residential building, housing twelve (12) condominiums, Qur client is ready and able to begin
construction upon the approval of the Tax Exemption, As such, we request that the application

be expedited for review,

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned.

TPLigj
Banclosure
12389783(21897.001) '

Very truly yours,
GENOVA BURNS GIANTOMASI WEBSTER LLC

P -

THOMAS P, LEANE




x.

Required Certifications shall contain the original signature of the Developer

notarized or witnessed. In the case of a corporation, the Developer shall submit a
notarized corporate resotution, with the seal of the corporation and the sighature

of the secretary of the corporation, authorizing the signatory to bind the
corporation or similar bone fide evidence of authorization. In the case of a

partnership the Developer shall submit a copy of the partnership agreement,

certified to be in full force and effect, authorizing the signatory to bind the
partnership. In the case of a limited liability corporation or any other lawful
business organization, the Developer shall submit other similar bona fide
evidence of the signatory’s authority,

Attached is the Certification of Eugene T. Paolino, Esq, certifying a duly signed
Resolution of 68 Erie Street KDJ Urban Renewal Co., LLC appointing Justin

Wolk as the anothorized signatory of the Urban Renewal Company. The
Resolution is also attached herewith.

27




CERTIFICATION OF EUGENE T. PAOLINO, ESQ.
ATTORNEY FOR 68 ERIE STREET KDJ URBAN RENEWAL CQ., LLC
A NEW JERSEY LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

STATE OF NEW JERSEY
T SS.
COUNTY OF HUDSON:

EUGENE T. PAOLINO, ESQ., being duly affirmed, upon his affirmation,
deposes and says:

1. Tam the Attorney at Law of the State of New Jersey and a member of the law
firm Genova Burns Giantomasi Webster LILC, attorneys for 68 Erie Street KDJ Urban Renewal
Co., LLC, a New Jersey Limited Liability Company (the “Company”) in relation to their
application for a ten (10) year tax exemption with the City of Jersey City.

2. Justin Wolk is the Managing Member of Damerjian Group, LLC, which is a
Managing Member of the Company.

3. Justin Wolk has been directed, authorized and empowered by way of a duly and
legally adopted Resolution at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company called for that
purpose and held on July #7% 2014 pursuant and accordance with the Certificate of Formation
and Operating Agreement thereof to execute, acknowledge and deliver such documents,
instruments and papers and perform such acts as may be legally, properly and reasonably
required or necessary for the purpose of application for a long term tax exemption for property
known as 68 Erie Street, Jersey City, New Jersey and to execute, acknowledge and deliver such
documents, instruments and papers and perform such acts as may be legally, properly and
reasonably required or necessary to effectuate any agreements, financial or otherwise, necessary
such an exemption.

4, T certify that the foregoing statements made by me are true. I am aware that if any of
the foregoing statements made by me are willfully false, I am subject to punishment.

EUGENE T. PAOLINO, ESQ.
Attormney for 68 Erie Street
_Co., LLC

an Renewal

12420482v1
12420402v1




RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED that the appHeation for long term tax exemption herein
referred to, being herewith approved, the members of 68 Erie Street KDI Urban Renewal
Company, LLC are hereby directed, authorized and empowered to execute, acknowledge
and deliver such documents, Instruments and papers and perform such acfs as may be
legally, properly and reasonably required or necessary for the purpose of applicetion for a
long term tax exemption. for property known as 68 Brle Street, Jetsey City, New Jersey
and to execute, acknowledge and deliver such documents, instruments and papets and
perform such acts as may be legally, properly and reasonably required or necessary to
offectuate any agreements, financial or otherwise, hecessary such an exemption,

Wa, the Members of the Cotnpany, CERTIFY that the foregoing is a ttue copy of
a Resolution ag it appeats in the records of the Company and as was duly and legally
adopted at 8 meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company called for that purpose
and held on July _, 2014 pursuant and accordance with the Certificate of Formation and
Operating Agreement thereof; that it has not been modified, amended or rescinded, and is
in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

68 ERIE STREET KDJ URBAN RENEWAL
COMPANY, L.L.C. '
By:{DamerjjainGroup, LLC, a Managing Member

DATéD:‘ /) ‘} / [ L) | /l ! [

‘ Iusﬁw ol]E‘,”MafEfg’—ing‘IﬁgrﬁBer o

EMWAL
naging Member

68 ERIE STREET KDJ URBA
COMPANY, L1«

: Derby Copeulfly ;
DATEDj//I//‘ 0/// / 2 @

Kevin Smith, Wanaging Member

g, LLC|

12409 148(21897.001)




v.4

A list of properties owned within Jersey City with or without tax or financial
agreements by all investors in the applicant either directly or through any entity
they are investors in.

Please see the attached certifications of Justin Wolk, Kevin Smith and Robert

Damerjian stating that they, nor any entities they are affiliated with, currently own
any interest in properties within the City of Jersey City.
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CERTIFICATION OF KEVIN SMITH
MANAGING MEMBER OF DERBY CONSULTING, LLC, A MANAGING MEMBER
OF 68 ERTFE, STREET KDJ URBAN RENEWAL CO., LLC
A NEW JERSEY LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

STATE OF NEW JERSEY
: 1 88,
COUNTY OF HUDSON;

KEVIN SMITH, being duly affirmed, upon his affitmation, deposes and says:

1. I am the Managing Member of Derby Consulting, LL.C, which is a Managing
Member of 68 Erie Street Urban Renewal Co., LLC (the “Company™).

2. The Compeny is currently seeking a Long Term Tax Exemption pursuant to
NJ.S.A, 40A:20-1, ef se. and Executive Order of the Mayor No., 2013-004 for property owned
by the Company located at Block 1102, Lot 3.01 on the Official Tax Map of the City of Jersey
City, also known as 68 Erie Street (the “Property™).

3. I, personally ot through any other entity that I am affiliated with, hold no title
or interest to any real property within the City of Jersey City other than the Property which is
subject to the Company’s application for a Long Term Tax Exemption. I am not aware of any
title or interest in property within the City of Jersey City held by the Company other than the
Property,

4. I certify that the foregoing statements made by me are true. I am aware that if
any of the foregoing statements made by me are willfully false, I am subject to punishment.

EWAL
&i g’@aer

7//0 // ;/

Keviqﬁ Smith, Méhaging Member

124344451 ~
12434445v1




CERTIFICATION OF JUSTIN WOLK
- MANAGING MEMBER OF DAMERJTAN GROUP, LLC. A MANAGING MEMBER OF
68 ERIE STREFET KDJ URBAN RENEWAL CO., LI.C

ANEW JERSEY LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

STATE OF NEW JERSEY
' 885,
COUNTY OF HUDSON:

JUSTIN WOLK, being duly affirmed, upon his affirmation, deposes and says:

1. Tam the Managing Member of Dametjian Group, LLC, which is a Managing
Member of 68 Erie Street Urban Renewal Co., LLC (the “Company™).

2. The Company is currently secking a Long Term Tax Exemption pursuant to
N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, ef se. and Bxecutive Order of the Mayor No. 2013-004 for propetty owned
by the Company located at Block 1102, Lot 3.01 on the Official Tax Map of the City of Jersey
City, also known as 68 Erie Street (the “Property™).

3., personally or through any other entity that T am affiliated with, hold sio title
or m’terest to any real property within the City of Jersey City other than the Property which is
subject to the Company’s application for a Long Term Tax Exemption. Iam not aware of any
title or interest in property within the City of Jersey City held by the Company other than the
Property,

4. I certify that the foregoing statements made by me are true. I am aware that if
“any of the foregoing statements made by me are willfully false, I am subject to punishment.

68 ERIE STREET KDJ URBAN RENEWAL
COMPANY, L.L.C.

q ByyA)ametjign Group, LLC, a Managing Member
DATED: 74 M
7

stin Wolk, Managing Member

12434262v1
12434262v1




CERTIFICATION OF ROBERT DAMERJIAN
MEMBER OF DAMERJIAN GROUP, LLC, A MANAGING MEMBER OF 68 ERIE
STREET KDJ URBAN RENEWAI, CO., LI.C
A NEW JERSEY LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

STATE QF NEW JERSEY
' ¢ 88,
COUNTY OF HUDSON:

ROBERT DAMERJIAN, being duly affirmed, upon his affirmation, deposes
and says:

{. Tam a Member of Damerjian Group, LLC, which is a Managing Member of 68
Erie Street Urban Renewal Co., LLC (the “Company™).

2. The Company is currently seeking a Long Term Tax Fxemption putsuant to
N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, et se. and Executive Order of the Mayor No. 2013-004 for property owned

by the Company located at Block 1102, Lot 3.01 on the Official Tax Map of the City of Jersey
City, also known as 68 Erie Street (the “Property™).

3.1, personally or thtough any other entity that I am affiliated with, hold no title
or interest to any real property within the City of Jersey City other than the Property which is
subject to the Company’s application for a Long Tertn Tax Exemption, [ am not aware of any
title or interest in property within the City of Jersey City held by the Company other than the
Property.

4. 1 certify that the foregoing statements made by me are true. I am aware that if
any of the foregoing statements made by me are willfully false, I am subject to punishment.

68 ERIE STREET KDJ URBAN RENEWAL
COMPANY, L.L.C.

eu?ejjian Group, LLC, a Managing Member

patep._|- J=14 | (Dlji{z-ﬁ B en,

Robert Damerjiat, Member

12434437v1
12434437v1




Z.J

12411436(21897.001)

Such other documents or information as deemed necessary or appropriate.

Please see attached the following documents:

1.

2.

Certificate of Formation for 68 Erie Street KDJ, Limited Liability Corporation
dated February 11, 2014.

A Certificate of First Amendment to the Certificate of Formation of 68 Erie
Street KDJ, Limited Liability Corporation renaming the entity 68 Erie Street
KDJ, Urban Renewal Co., LLC.

A letter from the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs approving
the Certificate of First Amendment to the Certificate of Formation of an
Urban Renewal Entity dated May 9, 2014.
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NEV " GRSEY DEPARTMENT OF THE TRE, “IRY
DIVISION OF REVENUE AND ENTERPRISE SERVICES

CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION

68 ERIE STREET KDJ LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
0400634406

The above-named DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY was duly filed
in accordance with New Jersey state law on 02/11/2014 and was
asgigned identification number 0400634406, Following are the
articles that constitute its original certificate.
1. Name:

68 ERIE STREET KDJ LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
2. Registered Agent:

JUSTIN WOLK
3. Regigtered Qffice:

201 SAINT ANTHONY DRIVE

MOORESTOWN, MNJ 08075
4, Business Purpose:

Real Estate Management

5. Members/Managers:

THE DAMERJIAN GROUP, ILLC
201 SAINT ANTHONY DRIVE
MOCRESTOWN, NJ 0807b

DERBY CONSULTING, LLC
320 PLEASANT VALLEY ROAD
MENDHAM, NJ 0709245

6. Main Businesgs Addreszs:
201 SAINT ANTHONY DRIVE
MOORESTOWN, NJ 08075

Signatures:

JUSTIN WOLK
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF, I have
kereunto set my hand and affixed my
Official Seal at Tventon, this

11th day of February, 2014

. A(C/ﬁ

Andrew P Sidamon-Eristoff
State Treasurer

Certification# 131127522

Verify this certificate at
https:/fwerw ] state.nj.us/TYTR_StandingCert/JSP/Verify_Cert.jsp




Certificate of First Amendment to the Certificate of Formation MAY 28 ¢ 014

of ‘
STATE TREASURE

68 ERIE STREET KDJ, LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY =it

1. The name of the Limited Liability is: 68 Erie Street K1J, Limited Liability
Company

2. The Identification Number of the Limited Liability Company is: 0400634406

3. The name of the Limited Liabﬂity Company shall now be: 68 Erie Strest KDJ
-Urban Renewal Co,, LLC 1

4, The following shall be added as paragraph (4) to the Certificate of Formation of
the Limited Liability Company dated Febrnary 11, 2014 and filed with the Treasurer of
the State of New Jersey on February 11, 2014:

4. (1).The purpose for which the Company is formed shall be to operate
under P.L.1991, C.431 (C.40A20-1 et seq.) and {o initiate and conduct projects for the
redevelopment of a redeveloprment area pursuant to a redevelopment plan, or projects
necessary, useful, or convenient for the relocation or residents displaced ot to be
displaced by the redevelopment of all or part of one or more redevelopment areas, or low
and moderate income housing projects, and , when authorized by financial agresment
with the City of Jersey City (the “City™), to acquire, plan, develop, construct, alter,
maintain or operate housing, senior citizen housing, business, industrial, commercial,
administrative, community, health, recreation, educational or welfare projects, or any
combination of two or more of these types of improvement in a single project, under such
conditions to use, ownership, management and control as regulated pursuant to P,L.1991,
c431 (CA0A:20-1 et seq.).

(it) So long as the Company is obligated under financial agreement with the City made
pursuant to P.L.1991, C.431 (C.40A20-1 et seq.), it shall engage in no business other than
the ownership, operation and management of the project,

(iif) The Company has been organized to serve a public purpose, its operations shall be
directed toward: (1) the redevelopment of redevelopment areas, the facilitation of-
residents displaced or to be displaced by redevelopment, or the conduct of low and
moderate income housing projects; (2) the acquisition, management and operation of a
project, redevelopment relocation housing project, or low and moderate income housing
project under P.L.1991, C.431 (C.40A20-1 et seq.); and (3) the Company shall be subject
to regulation by the City, and to a limitation on profits or dividends, as appropriate, for so
long as the Company remains the owner of a projest subject to P.1.1991, C.431
{C40A20-1 etseq.).

(iv) The Company shall not voluntarily transfer more than 10% of the ownership of the
project or any portion thereof undertaken by the Company under P.1..1991, C.431
(C.40A20-1 et seq,), until it has first removed both itself and the project from all




restrictions of P.1. 1991, C.431 (CL40A20-1 &t 5¢q.), in the manner required by P,L.1 991,
C.431 (CAOAR0-! et seq.), and if the project includes housing units, fns obtained the
consent of the Commissioner of Commuaity Affairs to such transfer with the exception
renewal entity shall assume all contractual obiigations of the transferor entity under the
financial agresment with the City, The Cotripany shall file annually with the municipal
governing body of the City a disclosure of the persons having an ownership interest in the
project, and of the extent of the ownership interest of each, Nothing hersin shafl prohibit
eny transfer of the owrnership interest in the Company itself, provided that the transfer, if
greatat than 10 percent, is disclosed to the municipal governing body of the City in the

annual disclosure stafement or in correspondence sent to the City in advance of the
annual disclosure statement rafesred to aboye,

{v) The Company is subject to the provisions of section 18 of P,1..199 1, C.431 (CACA20-
18}, as amended, respecting the powets of the City to alleviate financial difficuities of the

Company or to perform actions on behalf of the Company upon a determination of
financial emergency.

(vi) Any housing units constructed ot acquired by the Company shall be managed subject
to the supervision of, and rules ad opted by, the Commissioner of Cotninugity Affairs.

5 This Certificate shall be effective upon its filing with thepepe, of Treasury.
6. In all other respects the Certificate of Formation dated February 11, 2014 and

filed with the Treasuror of the State of New Jersey on Febrmary 11, 2014 shall remain in
full force and effect,

N WITNESS WHEREOQFFE, the undersigned being over the age of eighteen
(18) years, hereby represents that hs is authorized to sign this cerilficate on behalf of the

Limited Liability Company and this filing complies with N.J.S.A, 42:20-1 et seq., the
“New Jersey Limited Liability Com pany Act.”

Date: 68 Brie Street KDJ, Limited Liability Company
By: The ]fa‘amelj' jm@up,
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. f-jé"gr MAY 28 2014
State of Pew Jergey 3
‘ . STATE TREASURER

DErARTMENT 0¥ COMMUNITY AFFAIRS
.mm

101 South BROAD STREET

RrcHArD E, ConsTasLE, [T1
Conmntssiomner

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

TO:  State Treasurer
RE: 68 Erle Street KDJ URBAN RENEWAL Co,LLC
(formerly 88 Erie Strest KDJ Limited Liabllity Company)

File # 1436
An Urban Renewal Entity

This Is to certify that the attached CERTIFICATE OF FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE
CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION OF AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY has been examined and approved
by the Department of Community Affairs, pursuant to the power vestad in it under the “Long Term Tax

Exemption Law,” P.L. 1891, c.431,

Done this C%i"p—' day of )M,‘C_f 20/ 5,0 at Trenton, New Jersey. _

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

BY

Edward M. Smith Hi%gclo‘i"é/
Standatds

Division of Gdy
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